Public Document Pack
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr CYNGOR

» L]
Head of Legal and Democratic Services
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd Ay Slr Y FfJI“t
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

To: Clir Aaron Shotton (Leader)

. . . . CS/NG
Councillors: Bernie Attridge, Chris Bithell,

Helen Brown, Derek Butler, Christine Jones, 12 February 2014
Kevin Jones and Billy Mullin

Nicola Gittins 01352 702345
nicola.gittins@flintshire.gov.uk

Dear Sir / Madam

A meeting of the CABINET will be held in the CLWYD COMMITTEE ROOM,
COUNTY HALL, MOLD CH7 6NA on TUESDAY, 18TH FEBRUARY, 2014 at 9.30
AM to consider the following items.

Yours faithfully

P

Democracy & Governance Manager

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3 MINUTES (Pages 1 - 12)

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 21 January
2014.

County Hall, Mold. CH7 6NA

Tel. 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4
www.flintshire.gov.uk

Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug. CH7 6NR
Ffén 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4
www.siryfflint.gov.uk

The Council welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English
Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawau gohebiaeth yn y Cymraeg neu'r Saesneg



10

11

TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING REPORTS

STRATEGIC REPORTS

OUTCOME AGREEMENT 2013-2016 (Pages 13 - 40)

Report of Chief Executive - Cabinet Member for Corporate Management

NATIONAL MODEL FOR REGIONAL WORKING ON SCHOOL
IMPROVEMENT (Pages 41 - 78)

Report of Director of Lifelong Learning - Cabinet Member for Education

SCHOOL FUNDING FORMULA REVIEW (Pages 79 - 110)

Report of Director of Lifelong Learning - Cabinet Member for Education

COUNCIL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2014/15 (Pages 111 - 172)

Report of Head of Finance - Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for
Finance

COUNCIL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2014/15 AND INDICATIVE
FUNDING TO 2017/18 (Pages 173 - 194)

Report of Head of Finance, Chief Executive, Director of Environment - Leader
of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 2014/15 & CAPITAL PROGRAMME
2014/15 (Pages 195 - 218)

Report of Chief Executive, Head of Finance, Director of Community Services,
Head of Housing - Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2014/15 (Pages 219 - 226)

Report of Head of Finance - Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for
Finance

MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION 2014/15 (Pages 227 - 230)

Report of Head of Finance - Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for
Finance



12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2014/15 (Pages 231 - 254)

Report of Head of Finance - Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for
Finance

REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL'S HOUSEHOLD WASTE COLLECTION
POLICY AND HRC/BRING SITE ARRANGEMENTS (Pages 255 - 280)

Report of Director of Environment - Cabinet Member for Waste Strategy,
Public Protection and Leisure

HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY (Pages 281 - 316)

Report of Head of Housing - Cabinet Member for Housing

OPERATIONAL REPORTS

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2013/14 (MONTH 8) (Pages 317 - 368)

Report of Head of Finance - Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for
Finance

COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME CONSULTATION (Pages 369 - 380)

Report of Head of Finance - Cabinet Member for Corporate Management

INTERMEDIATE CARE FUND (Pages 381 - 386)

Report of Director of Community Services - Cabinet Member for Social
Services

PLAY PROVISION: SUMMER PLAYSCHEME 2014 (Pages 387 - 390)

Report of Head of Legal and Democratic Services - Cabinet Member for
Education

WORKFORCE INFORMATION QUARTER 3 (OCT - DEC 2013) (Pages 391 -
400)

Report of Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development -
Cabinet Member for Corporate Management

EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS (Pages 401 - 404)
Report of the Chief Executive enclosed.




21

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - COUNTY COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT
AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - FOR INFORMATION

Annual Improvement Report from Wales Audit Office
- Deferred to 18 March as the report is not yet available.

Single Integrated Plan 2012-2017
- Deferred to 18 March.

Flintshire Registration Service - Fees
- Dealt with under Delegated Powers.

Universal Credit Delivery Partnership Agreement
- Deferred to 18 March.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 - TO
CONSIDER THE EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

STRATEGIC

The following item is considered to be exempt by virtue of Paragraph(s) 14 of
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

Balance of public interest against the report being public as could prejudice
tender process.

NORTH WALES CAPITAL PROCUREMENT FRAMEWORK (Pages 455 -
460)

Report of Director of Lifelong Learning - Cabinet Member for Education



Agenda Item 3

CABINET
21 JANUARY 2014

Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet of Flintshire County Council held at County
Hall, Mold on Tuesday, 21 January 2014

PRESENT: Councillor Aaron Shotton (Chair)
Councillors: Bernie Attridge, Chris Bithell, Helen Brown, Derek Butler, Christine
Jones, Kevin Jones and Billy Mullin

ALSO PRESENT:
Councillor Mike Peers

IN ATTENDANCE:

Chief Executive, Director of Community Services, Director of Environment, Director of
Lifelong Learning, Head of Legal and Democratic Services, Head of Finance, Head
of ICT and Customer Service, Head of Human Resources and Organisational
Development and Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator

Prior to the start of the meeting the Leader of the Council paid tribute to the late
Councillor Ted Evans who had sadly passed away and invited Members and officers
to take part in a minute silence as a mark of respect to Councillor Evans.

145. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Bernie Attridge declared a personal interest in Agenda ltem
Number 17 — Charging for Re-rating Inspections carried out under the Food Hygiene
Rating (Wales) Act 2013 as he was the Chairman of Connah’s Quay Labour Club.

Councillor Derek Butler declared a personal interest in Agenda Item Number 8
— Rural Development Plan Local Action Groups 2014-2020 as he was a Board
Member for Cadwyn Clwyd.

Councillor Aaron Shotton declared a personal interest in Agenda Item Number
17 — Charging for Re-rating Inspections carried out under the Food Hygiene Rating
(Wales) Act 2013 as he was the Chairman of Connah’s Quay Labour Party and
Social Club.

146. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 17 December 2013 had been circulated
with the agenda.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes be approved as a correct record.

Page 1



147.

COUNCIL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2014/15

The Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance introduced the
draft revenue budget proposals for the Council Fund and advised of the ongoing
work to close the current remaining budget gap in 2014/15.

The Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance explained that for Cabinet the
overall strategy for 2014/15 had been to seek to maximise internal cost reductions as
much as possible including management, operating and workforce costs. In early
2014, it was proposed that consultation with local communities be carried out on the
priorities for the future and the choices to be made over the way the Council runs and
pays for local services from 2015 onwards. Local communities would be invited to
share in planning solutions for the future. The Cabinet continued to remain resolute
in defending local communities against the worst impacts of cuts to the Council’s
funding.

The Head of Finance detailed the financial strategy which had been adopted
to support the Organisational Redesign and Change Programme as shown in the
report. The report provided details of the total revenue budget and budget
requirements, details on expenditure, pay and inflation, schools budget, earmarked
and unearmarked reserves and the Investment Strategy. The Council had an
obligation to assess the potential equalities impacts of its budget proposals and it
was important that all aspects of the Organisational Redesign and Change
Programme were subject to an appropriate Equalities Impact Assessment, to ensure
that there was no potential for discrimination or disadvantage to either service users
of employees.

The Chief Executive thanked Members and officers who had worked together
in setting the proposed 2014/15 budget. He provided details on the Organisational
Redesign and Change Programme and the expectations of the Cabinet for this
programme. The programme had four sub-programmes, as set out in the Medium
Term Financial Plan:-

Corporate Value for Money

Functional Value for Money

Organisation Design: Structure and Operating Model
Operational Design: Workforce

The newly adopted Value for Money Model had replaced the previous
programmes of targeted service reviews. The Organisational Design: Structure and
Operating Model Sub-Programme involved a two phased review of the way the
Council was structured and operated with the dual aim of (1) improving the way the
Council worked and (2) making significant reductions in senior management costs.
The combined efficiency target for these two phases was set at £2m in a full financial
year with a proportionate target for 2014/15 of £1.45m based on the timing of the
current implementation plan. There will be operational efficiencies across corporate
level and there was a good degree of confidence that the £10m savings in this area
could be achieved. A more challenging review involved the changes to workforce
and management with big decisions needing to be taken over the coming months.

Page 2



148.

In line with the financial strategy, a risk based approach had been taken to the
assessment of all potential items of additional cost as to their likelihood and the level
required. The achievement of planned efficiencies was a priority with the
Improvement Plan and the Council had a good record of making efficiencies year on
year. For 2014/15, the scale of the challenge was greater than in previous years
which was recognised through the broader based and more ambitious change
programme.

The Chief Executive concluded by detailing the use of single status/equal pay
reserves should it be necessary as part of the total workforce strategy. During 2014
the Council planned to review and consult on a number of service models and their
future shape from 2015/16 onwards. This would be politically led to consider options
where future budget efficiencies would be drawn from.

The Head of Finance detailed the formal consultation required on the draft
revenue budget proposals. A number of Overview & Scrutiny Committee meetings
had been arranged for the week commencing the 28 January and they could be
preceded by an all Member Workshop on the afternoon of the 27 January to consider
the budget overview.

As the Chief Finance Officer, the Head of Finance confirmed the
reasonableness of the estimates shown in the budget proposals and said that she
was satisfied that the Council's Change Programme was reasonable and supported
the Council’s ability to deliver an ongoing programme of change and efficiencies in
the base budget.

Cabinet Member supported the draft revenue budget proposals which they felt
were achievable and commented on the investment to continue to provide services
for residents of Flintshire.

RESOLVED:

(@)  That the initial budget proposals and ongoing work to close the budget gap be
endorsed; and

(b)  That the initial budget proposals be referred to Overview & Scrutiny
Committees for consideration.

COUNCIL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2014/15 AND INDICATIVE TO 2017/18

The Chief Executive, Head of Finance and Director of Environment jointly
presented the proposed allocation of funding to the core capital programme in
2014/15 together with information on the estimated total capital programme, based
on current available information.

The Chief Executive reported that the indicative funding for 2015/16 included
£44.176m related to 21 Century Schools programme.  Whilst preliminary
expenditure on the programme had taken place in 2013/14, the programme was for
significant expenditure to commence from 2015/16 to deliver in the investment in

Page 3



149.

Flintshire schools which would be equally funded by Flintshire and the Welsh
Government (WG).

The Head of Finance highlighted the elements of funding received for the
capital programme, specific grants, unsupported (prudential) borrowing and the Local
Government Borrowing Initiative as detailed in the report.

The Director of Environment reported that the total projected core funding
available over the four year period 2014/15 to 2017/18 amounts to £31.898m. The
total resources available in 2014/15 to fund the core capital programme are £7.403m.
The issue of capital receipts continues to be a problematic one for the Council and in
the current economic climate it was difficult to predict when disposals would be
effected and the fund therefore realised to support the capital programme. As a
consequence it was considered to be imprudent to set capital budgets where the
funding may not be realised, therefore, it was recommended that the 2014/15 core
capital programme budget be set based on a minimal capital receipts target which
would have the effect of reducing the overall core programme indicated in last year’s
budget papers by 30%. It was proposed that any receipts generated over and above
the target figure for 2014/15 be kept until the 2015/16 financial year.

The Leader of the Council reported on the total projected Council fund capital
programme which amounted to £101.361m over the four year period 2014/15 to
2017/18. He spoke in support of the need to reduce the core capital programme in
order to plan for the future and commented on the commitment of the Council to
establish a Connects centre in Flint, Connah’s Quay and Buckley.

Cabinet Members spoke in support of setting a more prudent capital
programme based on capital receipts the Council was confident could be achieved.

RESOLVED:
(@)  That the report be noted;

(b)  That Cabinet approve the allocation of funding to the core capital programme
in 2014/15, as shown in Appendix 1 of the report, including the additional
items referred to in Section 5.05 of the report and note the indicative funding
available for future years.

(c) That Cabinet approve the setting of a minimal capital receipts target for
2014/15 and the process whereby receipts generated in one financial year are
used to fund expenditure in the next (Sections 5.02.03 and 5.02.4 of the
report).

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 2014/15 & CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2014/15

The Cabinet Member for Housing introduced the budget proposals for the
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and Capital Programme for the 2014/15 financial
year.

Page 4



150.

The Cabinet Member for Housing explained that 2014/15 was anticipated to
be the final year under the current rent and subsidy system in Wales. The proposed
guideline weekly rent increase for Flintshire was £3.29 per week and the proposed
garage rent increase for Flintshire was £0.25 per week. Outlined within the
appendices to the report were the key areas of expenditure and details of proposed
savings and efficiencies. Overall the budget provided £0.536m of additional
investment in services and £0.789m of additional funding for the capital programme.
The budget proposals were based on the draft determinations from the Welsh
Government (WG) and the final budget would be adjusted to reflect the final
determination received.

The Chief Executive provided details of the robust business plan the Council
had in place to meet the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) by the target of
2020. He commented on the current funding shortfall projected in the business plan
and reported that this could potentially be met by prudential borrowing if the gap was
not closed over the next three years from savings anticipated as a result of the rent
reform.

The Cabinet Member for Housing thanked officers for the work undertaken to
reduce the funding shortfall by £6.816m from the amount initially submitted to the
WG in the Council’s business plan.

RESOLVED:
(@)  That Cabinet approve and recommend to Council:-
i. The proposed HRA budget for 2014/15 as set out in Appendix 1 of the
report, incorporating the financial assumptions in Appendix 2 of the report

and the service Improvements and Efficiencies in Appendix 3 of the report.

ii. The level of rent and service charges for 2014/15 as set out in paragraphs
3.01 to 3.07 of the report.

ii. The level of projected balances at 31 March 2015 at 3.20% of total
expenditure.

iv. The proposed HRA Capital Programme as set out in Appendix 4 of the
report.

(b)  That the impact of the proposed revenue budget and capital programme on
the 30 year Business Plan be noted.

IMPROVEMENT ASSESSMENT LETTER FROM WALES AUDIT OFFICE

The Cabinet Member for Corporate Management introduced the report on the
Council’'s Improvement Assessment Letter from the Auditor General for Wales and
the Council’s response.

Mr. Huw Lloyd-Jones Audit Office (WAQO) was welcomed to the meeting and
was invited to provide an overview of the key points detailed in the WAO letter. It

Page 5



151.

152.

was noted that the Auditor General for Wales’ opinion was that the Council had
discharged its improvement reporting duties under the Local Government (\Wales)
Measure 2009, although there was potential to strengthen its arrangements further.
In outlining the Cabinet’'s response, the Chief Executive explained that the Letter
was, overall, a fair summary of the position of the Council with no new statutory
recommendations or proposals for improvement.

The Cabinet Member for Corporate Management thanked Mr. Huw Lloyd-
Jones for his attendance.

RESOLVED:

That the Council's Improvement Assessment Letter received from the Auditor
General for Wales and the Council’s response be noted.

RURAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN LOCAL ACTION GROUPS 2014-2020

The Cabinet Member for Economic Development introduced a report which
sought approval in principle for Cadwyn Clwyd to act as the Local Action Group for
Flintshire for the next Rural Development Plan (RDP) Programme. Within the
context of declining public sector finances, the Programme should make a significant
contribution to the strategic priorities of the County Council and make a measurable
impact on the lives of the rural population.

RESOLVED:

(@)  That the nomination of Cadwyn Clwyd as the Local Action Group for Flintshire
for the 2014 to 2020 Rural Development Plan Programme be approved in
principle subject to satisfactory agreement being reached on the areas listed
in Section 3.06 of the report; and

(b)  That a further report is brought to Cabinet for approval of the final details of
the management and delivery arrangements for the new Programme.

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN DELIVERY AGREEMENT: FINALISING THE
DELIVERY AGREEMENT FOLLOWING CONSULTATION

The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Environment introduced a report
which sought agreement for revisions to the draft Local Development Plan (LDP)
Delivery Agreement following consultation feedback, in order to submit the Delivery
Agreement to the Welsh Government (WG) for their formal approval. Once the WG
had approved the Delivery Agreement, it could be formally published and substantive
work on the preparation of the LDP could begin.

RESOLVED:

That the amendments to the Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement and
Timetable for submission to the Welsh Government for formal approval be approved.

Page 6



153.

154.

SARTH

The Cabinet Member for Housing introduced a report which sought approval
to implement the Single Access Route to Housing (SARTH) Project locally, the
development of a Housing solutions service and to continue to engage with the
project across the North East Wales sub region.

The overall aim of SARTH was to simplify access to a range of affordable
housing options which was transparent, legal, efficient and accessible to all sections
of the community. The SARTH policy not only included a revised allocation policy
but also included some changes to the way the register was currently managed, such
as, moving towards providing advice on realistic housing options.

Cabinet Members welcomed the proposals to implement a Single Access
Route to Housing Project locally.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the new Allocations Policy for Flintshire County Council, as shown in
Appendix 1 of the report, be approved;

(b)  That the phased implementation of the new Allocations Policy and Housing
Solutions Service in Flintshire as detailed in the project plan, as shown in
Appendix 2 of the report, be approved; and

(c)  That the continued involvement in the regional project work to the benefit of
Flintshire residents be supported.

CUSTOMER SERVICES STRATEGY UPDATE

The Cabinet Member for Corporate Management introduced an update on the
progress made with the implementation of the Customer Services Strategy. The
report set out what has been achieved over the previous four years and included an
overview of the future proposed direction for customer services which would be
included in the next version of the strategy.

The Head of ICT and Customer Services reported that the Council’'s new
website went live on 1 October, 2013 and a post implementation review of the new
website would be undertaken in early 2014, taking into account feedback received
and benchmarking information. The Corporate Twitter account was now being used
far more proactively recognising the huge increase in use of social media. To
increase the awareness of social media, a live question and answer session was
held in December, 2013 with Streetscene around preparations for winter and it was
hoped similar sessions could be arranged in the future to promote key activities
throughout the Council. During 2014 the Flintshire Connects Programme will see the
establishments of new Connects Centres at Flint, Connah’s Quay and Buckley.

The Leader of the Council commented on the importance of being able to

effectively engage with local communities in terms of how services are delivered in
the future with further budget reductions forecast.

Page 7



155.

156.

The Deputy Leader asked that the relevant Cabinet Member be invited to take
part in future live question and answer sessions.

RESOLVED:

That the report and progress made in relation to the Customer Service Strategy be
noted.

DOUBLE CLICK & THE CASE TO PROGRESS TO A SOCIAL ENTERPRISE

The Cabinet Member for Social Services introduced a report which sought
approval to progress Double Click to a Social Enterprise in 2014. The report
provided information which indicated the benefits of the proposals for Service Users
supported at Double Click and the benefits to the Council in terms of short and long
term efficiencies. The Business Model and Governance Arrangements that would be
in place were attached at Appendix 1 to the report.

The Director of Community Services reported that Mental Health Support
Services started looking at the Social Enterprise Model for their work services around
three years ago in response to a letter from a user of the service. A detailed
Business Plan had been developed and was supported by the Social & Health Care
Overview & Scrutiny Committee at its meeting in November, 2013.

In the short term the Council did not expect to see a change in its financial
contribution to this service. In the long term any surplus profit would be reinvested
back into the business.

RESOLVED:

That the development of Double Click as a Social Enterprise in accordance with the
business model and governance arrangements proposed be approved.

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2013/14 (MONTH 7)

The Head of Finance provided the most up to date revenue budget monitoring
information (Month 7) for the Council Fund and the Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
in 2013/14.

The projected year end position on the Council Fund, as estimated at Month 7
was:

e Net in year expenditure forecast to be £0.944m less than budget (a
decrease of £0.068m on the £1.012m reported at Month 6)
e Projected contingency reserve balance at 31 March 2014 of £3.585m

The projected year end position on the HRA, as estimated at Month 7 was:

¢ Net in year expenditure forecast to under spend the budget by £0.117m
(£0.062 m under spend reported at Month 6)

Page 8



157.

158.

e Projected HRA balances at 31 March 2014 of £1.551m

The report provided details on the projected positive variance of expenditure
against budget of £0.944m, programme of efficiencies, inflation, monitoring budget
assumptions and new risks, and unearmarked reserves.

On the HRA, for 2013/14 there was an overall projected under spend of
£0.117m and a projected closing balance at Month 7 of £1.551m, which at 5.4% of
total expenditure satisfied the prudent approach of ensuring a minimum level of 3%.
RESOLVED:

(@)  That the report be noted;

(b)  That the projected Council Fund contingency sum as at 31 March 2014 be
noted; and

(c) That the projected final level of balances on the Housing Revenue Account be
noted.

COUNCIL TAX AND BUSINESS RATE POLICIES 2014-15

The Cabinet Member for Corporate Management introduced the various
policies for the administration of Council Tax and Business Rates for the 2014/15
financial year. The policies required by statute to be approved each year were:-

Council Tax Discounts on second and long term empty homes
Council Tax Discretionary discounts

Business Rates Discretionary Rate Relief

Business Rates Discretionary Rate Relief for Small Businesses

The Head of Finance reported that during consideration of the report at a
meeting of the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee, a Member had
queried why discretionary discounts were not available to those who made payments
by standing order/direct debit. She explained that a high proportion of residents
currently used this preferred method and that a discount was not applied due to anti-
poverty issues to residents and cost implications to the Council.

RESOLVED:

That the current Council Tax and Business Rate Policies for 2014/15, as detailed in
the report, be continued.

COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME

The Cabinet Member for Corporate Management introduced a report to
explain the requirement for the Council to adopt the Council Tax Reduction Scheme
for 2014/15 by 31 January, 2014.

Page 9



159.

The Council Tax Reduction Scheme in Wales was set by regulations made
under Schedule 1B of the Local Government Finance Act 1992. The regulations
have been amended to reflect changes in benefit allowances and were approved by
the Welsh Government (WG) on 14 January, 2014.

In 2013/14 the Council adopted the discretions as set out in Appendix 1 of the
report and it was recommended that these continue.

The Head of Finance reported that the proposed Council Tax Reduction
Scheme for 2014/15 as set out in the report had been supported by the Corporate
Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on the 16 January, 2014.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the making of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme and Prescribed
Requirements (Wales) Regulations (‘the Prescribed Requirements
Regulations’) by Wales Government on 26 November 2013 be noted, as
amended by the Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements
and Default Scheme) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2014; and

(b)  That Council be recommended to adopt the Council Tax Reduction Scheme
discretionary elements as outlined in Appendix 1 to the report.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT MID YEAR REPORT 2013/14

The Head of Finance introduced the draft Treasury Management Mid Year
report for 2013/14 for recommendation to Council.

Treasury Management updates had been provided to the Audit Committee at
each quarterly meeting with the Committee receiving the Mid Year update on 18
December, 2013. The recommendations of the Audit Committee were shown in the
report, together with the key points of the Mid Year Report.

The development of the 2014/15 Treasury Management Strategy was well
underway. A seminar, presented by the Council’'s Treasury Management Advisors,
was scheduled to be held on 27 January, 2014 to assist Members in their role in
approving the 2014/15 Strategy and the ongoing monitoring of treasury management
activity.

The Cabinet Member for Corporate Management commended the work of the
Audit Committee in ensuring the effective scrutiny of the Treasury Management
Strategy.
RESOLVED:

That the Treasury Management Mid Year Report 2013/14 be approved and
recommended to Council.

Page 10



160. CHARGING FOR RE-RATING INSPECTIONS CARRIED OUT UNDER THE FOOD

161.

HYGIENE RATING (WALES) ACT 2013

The Cabinet Member for Waste Strategy, Public Protection and Leisure
introduced the new legislation on charging for re-rating inspections carried out under
the Food Hygiene Rating (Wales) Act 2013.

The Regulations that implement the Act, namely, the Food Hygiene Rating
(Wales) Regulations 2013, came into force on 28 November, 2013 and allowed
officers to issue Fixed Penalty Notices to any person guilty of the offences listed
within the report. Fixed Penalty Notices would be issued in line with the Public
Protection Enforcement Policy.

As a safeguard to businesses, the Act provided a mechanism by which they
could apply to be re-rated before their next programmed inspection date and for
Local Authorities to charge for carrying out visits for the purpose of re-rating them.
The report proposed a charge of £150 per visit. If the request for re-score visits
remained at a similar level seen over the previous two years, the current resources
should be sufficient to absorb this work. If the level increased significantly, additional
resources may be required, therefore, the number of requests for re-score visits
would be monitored closely.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the £150 Rescore Charge recommended by the Welsh Heads of
Environmental Health “All Wales Food Technical Panel” be approved; and

(b)  That delegated authority be given to the Director of Environment in
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Waste Strategy, Public Protection
and Leisure to review the fee level in the future.

ELEVENTH ANNUAL REPORT OF THE FLINTSHIRE LOCAL ACCESS FORUM

The Head of Legal and Democratic Services introduced the eleventh annual
report of the Flintshire Local Access Forum, prepared in accordance with Regulation
16 of the Countryside Access (Local Access Forums) (Wales) Regulations 2001.

The annual report covered the period 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 and had
been completed in accordance with the guidance issued by Natural Resources
Wales (NRW) on the preparation of annual reports.

RESOLVED:

(@) That, on behalf of the County Council, the eleventh annual report of the
Flintshire Local Access Forum be approved; and

(b)  That the annual report be submitted to Natural Resources Wales for their
records.

Page 11



162. EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS

An information report on the actions taken under delegated powers was
submitted. The actions were as set out below:-

Corporate Services

Community Services

Environment

Lifelong Learning

Business Rates — Application for Hardship Rate
Relief

Business Rates — Write Offs
Entering into a private sector leasing agreement for
a 7 bedroom property in Queensferry to provide

interim accommodation for individuals who have
been homeless.

Disposal of car park adjacent to Buckley Town
Council Offices

The sale of two areas of land adjacent to Bryn
Coch House and Flint Filling Station, Mold Road,
Flint.

Englefield Avenue / Linden Avenue / Celyn Avenue
— proposed traffic calming

Leisure Services Tariff 2014

Leisure Services Re-structure

163. MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE

There were two members of the press in attendance.

(The meeting started at 9.00 am and ended at 10.55 am)

Chairman

Page 12



Agenda ltem 4

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014
REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE

SUBJECT: OUTCOME AGREEMENT 2013-2016

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To recommend a new Outcome Agreement for 2013-16.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  Outcome Agreements
The Outcome Agreements were introduced by Welsh Government to
drive local partnership performance to achieve local outcomes in
support of set national priorities.

2.02 The new successor Outcome Agreement will be a three year
agreement. The guidance for the new successor Outcome Agreement
was received from Welsh Government during October 2013.

2.03 The structure of the new successor Outcome Agreement framework is
based on outcomes and corporate governance in two parts. The
successor Outcome Agreement Grant (approximately £1.46M) paid as
follows: 70% on the delivery of outcomes and 30% in meeting any
statutory recommendations made to Welsh Ministers on Council
corporate governance. The latter does not apply to Flintshire based
on its current governance.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 Outcome Agreement 2013-14 onwards

The choice of five of the strategic themes from the Welsh
Government’s Programme for Government has been made carefully
to ensure: -

¢ A close ‘fit’ with priorities within the Improvement Plan

e A strong evidence base to support our actions

e A reasonable level of confidence in meeting our outcomes to

secure the grant

Integration with the Improvement Plan is important to ensure that we

Page 13



3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

incorporate monitoring of achievement against the Outcome
Agreement within our quarterly reports of progress against the
Improvement Plan. This reduces duplication and provides regular
progress reports to identify if intervention is needed to maintain
progress and secure achievement.

As previously endorsed by Cabinet (17 September 2013) the
strongest five themes and outcomes are: -
e Growth and Sustainable Jobs / Supporting the economy and
business
e Education / Improving school attainment
e 21st Century Health Care / Ensuring people receive the help
they need to live fulfilled lives
e Welsh Homes / Supporting People / Welsh Homes - Improving
quality
e Tackling Poverty / Improving the skills of young people and
families

The previous Cabinet report set out the requirement to use three of
the Programme for Government’s ‘tracking indicators’ against each of
the five themes. Where appropriate tracking indicators have been
included in Flintshire’s draft Outcome Agreement.

Attached at Appendix 1 are the drafts of the 5 themes. These final
drafts have been shared with Welsh Government as part of the
negotiation process. Welsh Government has confirmed that they are
content with this version and that it is ready to be agreed by the
Minister for Local Government and Government Business subject to
approval.

Similarly to the existing Outcome Agreement there will be scope to
renegotiate parts of the successor Outcome Agreement as necessary
over its life time.

Following Welsh Government’'s assessment of our performance
against our existing agreement for 2012-13, we received a full grant
payment of £1.465M in December 2013.

RECOMMENDATIONS

To approve the new Outcome Agreement.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

A full grant of approximately £1.46M annually will be made payable
depending upon Welsh Government’s scoring and assessment. The
Council’'s Medium Term Financial Plan assumes receipt of the full
grant over the coming period.

Page 14



6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

11.02

12.00

12.01

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

There are no specific poverty implications for this report. However
poverty is a strategic theme within the proposed successor Outcome
Agreement as well as a priority within the Improvement Plan.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

There are no specific environmental implications for this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

There are no direct equality implications for this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct personnel implications for this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

The Local Service Board will be informed of any collaborative or joint
arrangements for achievement.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Consultation has been undertaken within the Council and with local
partners in the development of the new successor Outcome
Agreement.

The draft successor Outcome Agreement has been shared with \Welsh
Government and they have confirmed that they are content with this
version and that it is ready to be agreed by the Minister.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Draft Outcome Agreement 2013/14 — 2015/16

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None
Contact Officer: Vicki Robarts

Telephone: 01352 701457
Email: vicki.c.robarts@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



/T obed

Key

Measure from the Improvement Plan
Additional measure
WG Tracking Indicator (There are no tracking indicators for this theme)

Strategic theme: Growth and Sustainable Jobs

Flintshire County Council

Broad Outcome: Supporting the Economy and
Business

Outcome 1

Why are we focusing on this outcome?
In Flintshire we will: -

Meet the employment needs of local people.
Grow the local economy and create local
wealth.

Attract businesses to support local economic
growth.

Develop the energy and advance
manufacturing sectors to fit with national
priorities.

By developing Social Enterprise we will: -

Develop alternative model(s) of employment to
expand the mixed economy market.

Grow the social enterprise business model.
Maximise social benefits in the community e.g.
increasing training opportunities for young

people; keeping local money in the community.

What will success look like?
Creating jobs and growing the local economy

Supporting and creating new forms of local business




8T obed

Reporting

year out-turn 201314 201415 2015-16
2012-13 Targets Targets Targets
How much did we do? Input/ throughput indicators taken from any
source including the tracking indicators in the Programme for
Government
¢ Number of enquiries leading to inward investment in
Deeside Enterprise Zone (DEZ), including the Deeside 36 35-45 40 - 50 45 - 55
Industrial Park (DIP).
° z\lFuBrr\;\t?)er of people attending Flintshire Business Week 1876 2475 - 2525 2525 - 2575 2575 - 2625
e Number of sponsors for FBW maintained 40 40 40 40
e Approval of the Northern Gateway site “masterplan’ Not Applicable March 2014 Not Applicable | Not Applicable

e Establishing a social enterprise from within the Council
(targets are not applicable but actual figures will be reported
annually)

0

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

¢ Appointment of a part time project manager for the Social

: . Not Applicable March 2014 Not Applicable | Not Applicable
Enterprise project
o Agreement of the Social Enterprise investment plan Not Applicable June 2013 Not Applicable | Not Applicable
How well did we do it? Qualitative assessment of effectiveness/
evidence from surveys/ output data etc
e FBW Evaluation — Percentage of attendees scoring FBW as : .
4 or 5 for the question “How useful was FBW to your Baselln(()a Year Baseline or 62%-64% 64%-66%
) _ - 60% better
organisation?” (Score 1 = Poor and 5 = Excellent)
e FBW Evaluation — Percentage of attendees who felt the : .
event had presented opportunities to create new business Baselln(()a Year Baseline or 35%-37% 37%-39%
leads 35% better
Unable to Unable to
e Secure capital seed corn funding by July 2013 Not Applicable £50,000 determine at determine at
present present

Is anyone better off? Quantative evidence of the outcome achieved
using tracking indicators from the Programme for Government and your




6T obed

single integrated plans
e Percentage of enquiries that have led to investment in DEZ 42% 60% 65% 70%
(includes the DIP)
e Number of jobs sustained within DEZ (includes the DIP) 1300 1000 1000 1000
e Number of jobs created within DEZ (includes the DIP) 431 600 1000 1500
To be To be
B : determined determined
: . : : aseline to be : :
e Number of social enterprises supported (seed corn funding) | Not Applicable established following following
establishment | establishment
of baseline of baseline
¢ Relevant contracts that community benefit clauses have TBC 100% 100% 100%
been applied to

Story behind the data? Brief analysis of the context, updated each year. What are the factors that are at work in determining the outcomes?
Which other organisations have a significant role to play in achieving the outcomes?

There is a clear correlation between attracting business investment into an area and increasing the local employment rates, wealth and
quality of life. Persuading companies that Flintshire is the right location for them to set up or grow their business is essential to creating
jobs, improving people’s wealth and in turn increasing their quality of life.

Flintshire County Council have two key Improvement priorities that will significantly contribute to this Strategic Theme: -
e Business Sector Growth in Deeside
e Social Enterprise

Business Sector Growth in Deeside
Key activities for 2013/14 include: -

e Promotion of Deeside as a recognised centre for energy and advanced manufacturing through joint marketing and promotion of
Deeside Industrial Park (DIP) and Deeside Enterprise Zone (DEZ) - Achievement is measured through the scale and take-up of
enquiries leading to inward investment in DIP and DEZ.

e Supporting the growth of existing business on Deeside, to maximise opportunities for business development - Achievement is
measured through the number of jobs sustained and created.

e Producing, agreeing and implementing the “masterplan” for the Northern Gateway site to facilitate development of a key part of

3




0¢ abed

the Enterprise Zone — Achievement is measured through approval of the Northern Gateway site “masterplan” for 2013/14 and in
future the years the scale of the development within the site.

Exploring with Welsh Government the opportunities to improve the infrastructure (transport and housing etc) - Achievement is
measured through the approval by Welsh Government of the Infrastructure Business Plan for the DEZ by March 2014. Progress
milestones include flood mitigation, spine road development and energy and utilities, all of which have a target completion date of
January 2014. For future years achievement will be measured through the progress of implementing the business plan.

Key Risks/Challenges being faced: -

Meeting the needs of local employers to be able to recruit skilled people ready for work.

Ensuring that planned infrastructure arrangements to support the development of the DIP and DEZ can be undertaken given the
private ownership of the land for Northern Gateway and subject to approval of the DEZ business plan.

Social Enterprise

Key activities for 2013/14 include: -

Agreeing an investment plan for growing and supporting Social Enterprise — Achievement is measured through agreeing an
investment plan and securing capital seed corn funding.

Develop effective support for Social Enterprises - Achievement is measured through establishing a Social Enterprises network
and ensuring that community benefit clauses are applied to relevant contracts during 2013/14. For future years achievement will
be measured through the feedback received from the Social Enterprise network.

Develop new social enterprise projects to meet the Council’s priorities — Achievement will be measured through establishing a
Social Enterprise from within the Council.

Key Risks/Challenges being faced: -

Maintenance of the necessary capacity and investment to support the development of Social Enterprises.
Building the skills in the community to develop a social enterprise.
The ability of local Social Enterprises to compete effectively in the market.




T¢ obed

Key

Measure from the Improvement Plan
Additional measure
WG Tracking Indicator

Strategic theme: Education

Flintshire County Council

Broad Outcome: Improving School Attainment

Outcome 2

Why are we focusing on this outcome?

Achieve better learning outcomes for all
children and young people.

Achieve consistently high learner outcomes
across schools.

Support the national Welsh Government
priorities by:-

o Improving literacy levels;

o Improving numeracy levels;

o Raising standards by sharing best
teaching practice and resources
across schools and the region; and

o Raising standards through effective
use of new technologies.

Improve further through implementing the
agreed actions from the Estyn inspection of
Local Authority Education and Services for
Children and Young People in Flintshire.
Develop the design and building of planned
new schools and the post 16 centre at
Connah’s Quay.

Improving governance and financial
resilience and reduce surplus places
through having fewer schools.

What will success look like?
Improving standards in schools to get the best learner outcomes




2¢ abed

Reporting year

oSt | V1S4 Tagesl | aotats | a0iete
(Summer 2012) 9 9
How much did we do? Input/ throughput indicators taken
from any source including the tracking indicators in the
Programme for Government
* Establish subject forums within the secondary Not Applicable Sept 2013 Not Applicable | Not Applicable

sector (sharing of best practice and resources)

e Establishment of cross phase (Pedagogy) learning

consortium groups Not Applicable Not Applicable April 2014 Not Applicable
e 21% Century Schools Programme Complete
o Completing consultation (Holywell, consultation for
Connah’s Quay and Queensferry) Holywell, Connah’s Complete

o Ministerial Approval for 21%' Century
Schools Programme

o Submission of planning application for the
Post 16 Hub

o Setting up of local advisory board for the
Post 16 Hub

Not Applicable

Quay and
Queensferry (July
2013)

Approval by WG of
outline business

case
(Sept 2013)

Submission of
planning
application for the
Post 16 Hub
(March 2014)

Consultation for
Saltney and Flint
(April 2013)

Submission (June
2014) and
approval (Sept
2014) of full
business case by
WG for 21%
Century Schools
programme

Setting up of the
local advisory
board for the
Post 16 Hub

(Oct 2015)

¢ Introducing wireless technology in all schools

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

100% by Easter
2014

Not Applicable

How well did we do it? Qualitative assessment of




oz abed

effectiveness/ evidence from surveys/ output data etc.

e Maintain or improve attendance at Primary Schools 94.5% 94% - 95% 94% - 95% 94% - 95%
o I\S/I:r;rcm)tc?lg or improve attendance at Secondary 93.1% 93% - 94% 93% - 94% 93% - 94%
¢ Reduce the percentage of surplus places (primary) 17.83% Reduction year on Reduction year Reduction year
year on year on year
e Reduce the percentage of surplus places 12.76% Reduction year on Reduction year Reduction year
(secondary) e year on year on year
e Percentage of schools inspected during academic
éi?:g;fgzc:f:rsm%?ci %rr epxrzesléeergts\llzsrswn for 64% 60% or better 60% or better 60% or better
Improvement
Is anyone better off? Quantative evidence of the outcome
achieved using tracking indicators from the Programme for
Government and your single integrated plans
e The percentage of learners achieving the Level 2
Threshold (5 or more A* to C passes at GCSE or 77.3% 75% - 78.3% 78.4% -81.4% 81% — 82.5%
the vocational equivalent)
o The percentage of learners achieving the Level 2
Threshold inclusive of Mathematics and English 59.6% 60% - 63% 63% - 65% 65% - 67%
and/or Welsh 1% Language
y gz&.g‘zﬁﬁgitsgtir";t'e}?er;esrfagzhf‘””9 the Core 57.6% 58% - 62.3% 60% -65.5% 65% - 66.5%
" Lhe percentage of leamers achieving GCSE grade 69.4% 69% - 71.5% 69% -72.4% 72% - 74%
e The percentage of learners achieving GCSE grade 69 2% 69 5% - 75.1% 79% _75.5% 73% - 76.5%

C or above in English




vz abed

Story behind the data? Brief analysis of the context, updated each year. What are the factors that are at work in determining the outcomes? Which
other organisations have a significant role to play in achieving the outcomes?

Flintshire County Council continues to make progress in education; the Authority is no longer being monitored and none of our schools are
in special measures.

During 2012/13 we: -
e Put our School Improvement Strategy in place, replacing individual Primary and secondary improvement strategies to achieve
greater co-ordination.
Approved a full business case for regional school improvement delivery.
Improved attendance levels for primary and secondary schools.
Improved performance at all key stages for core subject indicators.
Put our School modernisation strategy in place.
Completed consultations for the three area reviews (Buckley/ Queensferry/Connah’s Quay and Holywell).
Developed the specification and design of the proposed new schools at Holywell and Queensferry as well as the Post-16 ‘Hub’ at
Connah’s Quay which is being developed in partnership with Deeside College.
e Infant and Junior schools in Hawarden and Penyffordd successfully amalgamated, new Primary School in Connah’s Quay officially
opened and closure of a small primary school.

However we didn’t do so well in the following areas which are part of our focus for 2013/14 and beyond: -
e Performance in the core subject indicators at Key Stage 2 and 3 improved but not to the same level achieved across Wales,
ranking us 16th and 7th in Wales respectively for 2012/13.

¢ Significant backlogs of repair and maintenance still exist and will be a feature for the foreseeable future. Future rationalisation will
also need to be used in order to further reduce backlogs.

Flintshire County Council have two key Improvement priorities that will significantly contribute to this Strategic Theme: -

e Modernised and High Performing Education
e Places of Modernised Learning

Modernised and High Performing Education

Key activities for 2013/14 include: -




G¢ obed

o Make a difference through our Schools Improvement Strategy by: -
o Raising standards by improving skill in literacy and numeracy
Raising educational attainment by reducing the impact of poverty and disadvantage
Raising standards by sharing best teaching practice and resources across schools and the region
Raising standards through effective use of new technologies
Better preparing young people for the work place
Making sure schools receive the best possible support from the new Regional School Effectiveness and Improvement
Service

o O O O O

Achievement is measured through:-
e outcomes in Maths and English at all Key Stages
reduction in the gap in performance in learners entitled to free school meals and those who are not
% of learners achieving 5 or more A* to C passes at GCSE or the vocational equivalent
% of learners achieving Core Subject Indicator at Key Stage 3
% of learners achieving Core Subject Indicator at Key Stage 2

Key Risks/Challenges being faced: -
e Ensuring that we wisely invest our resources to achieve the aspirations of our plans
e Ensuring that schools receive the support they need from the Council and those organisations commissioned to provide support
services
e Ensuring that schools work together effectively to share and develop best practice

Please Note - Target setting is used to express aspirations for improvements and challenge all schools to improve. A target range will
therefore appropriately express progress and whilst recognising the aspirational targets. Following completion of target setting meetings
with schools during the autumn and early spring term, revised targets for 2015 will be confirmed by 31% January 2014.

Places of Modernised Learning
Key activities for 2013/14 include: -
e Make a difference through our School Modernisation Strategy by: -
o Implementing our primary and secondary school modernisation plans
o Submitting a business case for future change to Welsh Government for approval
o Developing the design and building of planned new schools and the post-16 centre at Connah’s Quay
o Strengthening school ‘cluster working’ and federations

9




9¢ abed

o Improving Information Communication Technology Infrastructure in all schools using Learning in Digital Wales funding

Achievement is measured through:-

Completing decision making on Infant and Junior School amalgamations
Completing consultations on post-16 provision (Saltney and Flint).
Improving governance and financial resilience through having fewer schools
Reducing surplus places

Approval of Business Case by Welsh Government

Achieving Key 21 Century Schools planning and design

Introducing ‘wireless’ technology in all schools in 2013/14

Key Risks/Challenges being faced: -

Changing demographics and impact on supply of school places

Community attachment to current patterns of school provision

Limited Funding to Address Backlog of known repairs and maintenance works in educational assets
Programme Delivery Capacity (21% Century Schools)

Approval of business cases to drawn down 21st Century Schools Grant

10




/¢ abed

Key

Measure from the Improvement Plan
Additional measure
WG Tracking Indicator

Strategic theme: 21 Century Health Care

Flintshire County Council

Broad Outcome: Ensuring people receive the help they

need to live fulfilled lives

Outcome 3

Why are we focusing on this outcome?

Maximise the independence of the ageing
population and meeting the challenges of
dementia.

Prevent homelessness for people who are
alcohol and drug dependent, victims of domestic
violence, ex-offenders and young people
including care leavers.

Avoid unnecessary admission to hospital and
support early and successful hospital discharges.
Work with Betsi Cadwaldr University Health
Board (BCUHB) to develop the Enhanced Care
Model in all localities in Flintshire as a result of
the Health Review Health Care in North Wales is
Changing.

What will success look like?

Improving people’s quality of life and helping more people to live

independently and well at

home.

y;erp;’l:ﬂ;‘fm 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16
2012-13 Targets Targets Targets
How much did we do? Input/ throughput indicators taken from any
source including the tracking indicators in the Programme for
Government
e Agreeing the regional plan for telecare / telehealth Not Applicable | March 2014 | Not Applicable | Not Applicable

11




gz abed

Commissioning Plans in place for: -

o Learning Disability : November : :
o Mental Health Services Not Applicable 2013 Not Applicable | Not Applicable
o Dementia

e Development of one co-located community based health Not Applicable March 2014 Not Applicable | Not Applicable

and social care team within Holywell locality

Number of homes disabled adaptions were provided to, to

promote independence (measure of demand/pressure on 404 : : .
service to be reported each year, hence no targets set for homes Not Applicable | Not Applicable | Not Applicable
future years)
e Referrals to the Homesafe Service (victims of domestic 170
abuse) (measure of demand/pressure on service to be Not Applicable | Not Applicable | Not Applicable
people
reported each year, hence no target set for future years)
How well did we do it? Qualitative assessment of effectiveness/
evidence from surveys/ output data etc
e The average number of calendar days taken to deliver a 277 300 270 days 260 days
Disabled Facilities Grant for adults (PSR/009b) days days
e The average number of calendar days taken to deliver a 283 300 270 260
Disabled Facilities Grant (PSR/002) days days days days
e Rate of delayed transfers of care for social care reasons 1.11 per 1,000 12836 2 per 1,000 12836
Is anyone better off? Quantative evidence of the outcome achieved
using tracking indicators from the Programme for Government and your
single integrated plans
o Percentage of referrals where support was maintained or
reduced or no further support was required at the end of a 72.7% 71-75% 71-75% 71-75%
period of Reablement (SCAM2L)
o N_um_ber of adults receiving a pe_r_sonal t_)udget for services 215 210-220 210-220 210-220
via either a direct payment or Citizen Directed Support
(IA1.1L4) people people people people
e Homeless prevention for at least 6 months for households
and individuals (including care leavers) (HHA/013) 83.41% 85-90% 85-90% 85-90%




6¢ obed

e Gather patient stories where the patient has had positive
experiences of Enhanced Care Service (one off activity) Not Applicable 3 Not Applicable | Not Applicable

e The percentage of identified carers of adult service users
who were assessed or reassessed in their own right during o 2q0 _ano 40
the year who were provided with a service (SCA/018c) 2% 73-18% 75-80% 76-81%

Story behind the data? Brief analysis of the context, updated each year. What are the factors that are at work in determining the outcomes?
Which other organisations have a significant role to play in achieving the outcomes?

Flintshire County Council continues to make progress and has been able to evidence a range of positive outcomes which have been
delivered through our strategic transformation of services. It is our intention to put people in control of the services they receive and to
support more people to live independent lives. We seek to reduce dependency on services by strengthening support in communities and
through the use of new technology.

Our latest report from CSSIW outlines a very positive picture of Social Services in the ‘County’. Our inspectors state “The council is
forward looking and is innovative. This has been recognised in the number of awards it has been given.”

CSSIW see our services as having a clear vision for service improvement, forward looking and innovative and most importantly our staff
on the front line are delivering high quality services for both children and adults. The report finds that in Children Services we perform
“against a significant range of natural indicators among the best in \Wales” with strong safeguarding and preventative services. In Adult
Services strong services of Recovery in Mental Health Services, Reablement to help people regain independence and our continued
widening of service improvement such as Extra Care Housing at Llys Jasmine are also praised. Overall we are seen as making good
progress across the board.

Of course, there are areas for further improvement, including improving our joint planning approach with BCUHB.

Flintshire County Council have two key Improvement priorities that will significantly contribute to this Strategic Theme: -
e Independent Living
e Integrated Community Social and Health Services

13




o€ abed

Independent Living

Key activities for 2013/14 include: -

Build on the success of the reablement / recovery approach; agree the regional plan for telecare / telehealth; improve the
timeliness of adaptations — Achievement is measured through agreeing the regional plan for telecare / telehealth, meeting the all
Wales average for adaptations and meeting the local improvement target for reablement.

Develop Commissioning Plans for specific service areas to ensure service provision meets need - Achievement is measured
through the development of commissioning plans for dementia, learning disability and mental health services.

Prevent homelessness for people who are alcohol and drug dependent, victims of domestic violence, ex-offenders and young
people including care leavers - Achievement is measured through homeless prevention for at least 6 months and individual
including care leavers.

Key Risks/Challenges being faced: -

Ensuring we have enough capital for disabled facilities grants
Keeping up with specialist demand such as the specific residential needs of those with dementia
How we encourage service users and carers to embrace greater independence

Integrated Community Social and Health Services

Key activities for 2013/14 include: -

Integrate community based health and social care teams within localities - Achievement is measured through the development of
a co-located team during 2013/14 and the establishment of joint working processes and procedures.

Support the introduction of the Enhanced care Service (ECS) in the North West Locality initially and then in the North East and
South Localities - Achievement is measured through co-location of the Crisis Intervention Team (Health) and the Reablement
Team (Council) and the experiences of patients.

Ensure that effective services to support carers are in place as part of the integrated social and health services - Achievement is
measured through plans to support carers being agreed and implemented.

Key Risks/Challenges being faced: -

Ensuring effective joint working with BCUHB to achieve common goals, in order to ensure that people can safely remain at home
and be medically and socially supported.

That the new model (ECS) does not result in unexpected increased costs to the Council.

Public support for the changes to the services (ECS).

14




T¢ obed

Key
Measure from the Improvement Plan
Additional measure

WG Tracking Indicator

Strategic theme: Welsh Homes / Supporting People

Flintshire County Council

Broad Outcome: Welsh Homes — Improving Quality

Outcome 4

Why are we focusing on this outcome?

¢ Provide a range of affordable and flexible rented housing
to meet the need for additional homes

¢ Reduce the number of empty properties in Flintshire and
bring them back into use

¢ Give applicants wider access to social housing through
working together as landlords

o Meet the target of Welsh Government for all social
housing being brought up to the Wales Housing Quality
Standard

e Meet commitments given to tenants to improve their
homes

e Maximise resources available to improve homes owned
by the Council

What will success look like?

Improving the choice and quality of local housing and improving the
quality of life for our tenants.

Reporting 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16
year out-turn Targets Targets Targets
2012-13
How much did we do? Input/ throughput indicators taken from any
source including the tracking indicators in the Programme for
Government
Agreement of a revised WHQS business plan with Welsh Not Applicable | January 2014 | Not Applicable | Not Applicable

Government

15




Z¢ obed

Develop and implement a Private Rented Sector improvement
strategy and associated action plan

Not Applicable

Formal
approval by
the end 2013

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Asset management strategy including options for energy funding,

WHQS, regulation and compliance etc. to maintain and improve Not Applicable | January 2014 | Not Applicable | Not Applicable
the housing stock

Appointment of a Tenant Liaison Officer Not Applicable July 2013 Not Applicable | Not Applicable
Number of new affordable homes funded through Social Housing

Grant that meet the Code for Sustainable Homes Level 3+ (or 51 69 85 75
better)

Number of homes benefiting from |mprov_ed domestic energy 588 200 650 400
performance measures (also a measure in the Improvement Plan)

Number of additional affordable housing units delivered 51 25 85 75

How well did we do it? Qualitative assessment of effectiveness/

evidence from surveys/ output data etc

Percentage of new affordable homes funded through Social

Housing Grant that meet the Code for Sustainable Homes Level 3+ 100% 100% 100% 100%

(or better)

Number of empty homes brought back into use via action by local 32 30 30 30
Authorities (also a measure in the Improvement Plan)

Deliver the capital programme for improvement work streams in Not Applicable £12m £13m £13m

accordance with the programme.

Develop a regional housing register and common allocations policy
with partners

Not Applicable

Agreed and in
place February

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

2014

Is anyone better off? Quantative evidence of the outcome achieved
using tracking indicators from the Programme for Government and your
single integrated plans
Perceptage of tianants satisfied with the overall_quallty of their N/A *83% N/A 86%
council house (* actual STAR survey result — biannual survey)
Overall annual fuel bill reduction for residents £181,080 £75,000 £75,000 £75,000
Capital Works Targets: -

e Heating upgrades 1100 600 600 600

16




e¢ abed

e Kitchen replacements 1100 922 922 922

e Smoke detectors 2400 884 500 500

e Bathroom replacements 62 0 0 222

Story behind the data

Improving the choice and quality of local housing

Flintshire is exploring a variety of financial models available to the Council to facilitate housing development in Flintshire without the
requirement for public grant subsidy. The Council needs to ensure that the right types of housing offered in the right locations are
delivered to meet the needs of new and existing households, and therefore a range of models need to be both evaluated and made
available to satisfy individual schemes and locations. Of particular interest and focus at present is in finding the best model for Flint
Town Regeneration Plan. It is hoped that one or more options for this can be proposed to Council for consideration in November 2013.

Key activities for 2013/14 include:

e Agree a new model of private finance to deliver an increased number of affordable homes. Achievement to be measured through
gaining formal approval for a new model and approval for the Flint Town Plan

e Develop a strategy to grow and sustain the private rented sector approved by the end of 2013. Achievement will be measured
through formal approval for a strategy to grow and sustain the private rented sector approved by the end of 2013 and bringing of
30 empty homes back into use for residential living. This target has been kept the same for subsequent years as funding is being
reduced, therefore efficiencies will be made by doing the same with less.

e Develop a regional housing register and commons allocations policy with partners. Achievement to be measured through a
regional housing register and commons allocations policy agreed and in place by Autumn 2013

Key risks to manage

e Maximising our joint resources with our partners

e Ensure the availability of private finance

e Encouraging developers to build a range of affordable housing in the current economic climate
e Ensuring that we prevent delays in planning approvals

17




v abed

Improving quality of life for our tenants through improved housing

Flintshire County Council has agreed a revised business plan with Welsh Government to achieve the Welsh Housing Quality Standard
by 2020. A number of surveys are to be procured to validate figures provided in the business plan and to inform a revised 7 year work
programme for achievement of WHQS. These include: -

¢ Revised Stock Condition Survey — Currently out to tender
e Asbestos Consultancy and Surveying — Currently out to tender
e Communal Heating — Due to go out to tender in Nov

The revised business plan will commit to circa £103m over the next 7 years to achieve WHQS. As per the current work streams the initial
focus will be on the internal components of the properties with the external and environmental programmes to begin following the
completion of the internal work schemes.

The agreed business plan highlights a number of alternative funding streams and efficiency and income generation targets to contribute
towards achieving outcomes contained within the business plan i.e. ECO Funding, service charges.

A revised Asset Management Strategy is being developed alongside the completion of an updated Stock Condition Survey. The
outcomes of the Stock Condition Survey together with the information gathered for the Asset Management Strategy will then inform a
revised 7 year Capital Investment Programme to achieve WHQS by 2020.

Key activities for 2013/14 include:

e Agree a revised business plan with Welsh Government to meet the Wales Housing Quality Standard (WHQS). Achievement to be
measured through investing in improving the housing stock, a tenant satisfaction of work completed and performance measured
against promised made to tenants

e Deliver the capital programme ensuring value for money. Achievement will be measured through performance management of
our works programme.

e Develop a Housing Asset Management Strategy by January 2014. Achievement to be measured through an effective strategy to
maintain and improve the housing stock

Key risks to manage

e Ensuring Contractors perform effectively

18




e Ensuring that the Council finds the resources required to meet the Wales Housing Quality Standard by 2020
e Ensure that the Council maximises funding streams e.g. ECO Funds/ External funding

A new risk has also been identified in terms of welfare reform and the need to identify measures within the Asset Management Strategy
to mitigate the potential impact.

Gg obed

19




og abed

Key
Measure from the Improvement Plan

Additional measure
WG Tracking Indicator

Strategic theme: Tackling Poverty

Flintshire County Council

Broad Outcome: Improving the skills of young
people and families

Outcome 5

Why are we focusing on this outcome?

e Extend and improve the education,
employment and training opportunities
available for young people.

e Improve the prospects of local people.

e Meet the needs of local employers.

e Help young people take the step from
education to employment.

e Place and retain young people in work.

What will success look like?

Meeting the skills and employment needs of local employers

Reporting year
out-turn
2012-13

201314
Targets

2014-15
Targets

2015-16
Targets

How much did we do? Input/ throughput indicators taken from
any source including the tracking indicators in the Programme for
Government

¢ Increasing the number of people who successfully
establish and grow businesses (management
information — targets not set for future years)

In 2012 Flintshire
supported business
to create 573 new
jobs and safeguard
1,300

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

20




/€ obed

e The number of apprenticeships in the public and
voluntary sector (data provided by Coleg Cambria,
FCC, Careers Wales, Jobcentre Plus) (management
information — targets not set for future years)

Apprenticeships
825
Traineeships
124
Work Experience
Placements
219

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

e Support the Enterprise Club and develop further clubs
to assist with business starts (management information
— target not set for future years)

2 business starts

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

How well did we do it? Qualitative assessment of effectiveness/
evidence from surveys/ output data etc

e Launch the Employers Promise in the public sector to

Not Applicable March 2014 Not Applicable | Not Applicable
promote and enhance our roles as employers
* Setamarkefing strategy to communicate the range of Not Applicable March 2014 | Not Applicable | Not Applicable
apprenticeship and training programmes available
¢ Increase the number and range of Communities First .
Job Club programmes (Establishment of job clubs : 3" Club by . .
initially before looking at programmes / events in future Not Applicable October 2013 Not Applicable | Not Applicable
years)
¢ Implement skills development programmes in : : :
partnership with local employers (phase 1) Not Applicable March 2014 Not Applicable | Not Applicable
e Securing high levels of 16 year olds in education, 97 7% Baseline or Baseline or Baseline or
employment and training (EET) P better better better
¢ Increase the number of apprenticeship disciplines to 8 12 Baseline or Baseline or
help reduce the skills gap (FCC) better better
Is anyone better off? Quantative evidence of the outcome
achieved using tracking indicators from the Programme for
Government and your single integrated plans
o Key stage 4 free Schools Meals achieving level 2 o Actual data not o _ o o/ EAO
including English/Welsh & Maths 26% yet available | 49970 - 52.5% | 52.6% - 54%
e % of 16 year olds who are not in employment or 2 39, 2 20, 20% 2 0%

education training (NEET)

21




8¢ abed

% of 16-24 year olds who are not in employment, 7.8% average Baseline or Baseline or Baseline or
education or training (NEET) ' better better better
Improve performance of cohort of learners entitled to
Free School Meals (FSM) in achieving the Level 1 o o o o 0
Indicator (Five GCSE passes A* to G or vocational 89.5% 92% - 94% 94% - 95% TBC
equivalent)
Number of Flintshire County Council employees 115 - 125 Unable to Unable to
undertaking the supervisory and management training 154 employees employees determine at determine at
programmes developed with Coleg Cambria present present
0,
Percentage of Flintshire County Council employees 3462/2 ﬁtiﬁ%ﬂ?ﬂiﬁ? 2 Unable to Unable to
completing the supervisory and management training ears to complete) 85% - 95% determine at determine at
programmes developed with Coleg Cambria y Total = 9 49% present present
; NVQ's
: . . 185 NVQ's 60-70 Unable to Unable to
Numbers of Flintshire County Council employees Speciali : .
. - : - pecialist determine at determine at
attending specialist and or vocational courses 572 Specialist Training present present
Training 180 - 200
Number of residents from Communities First areas 328 (164 per Unabl_e to Unabl_e to
completing accredited community based courses 209 people cluster) determine at determine at
present present

Story behind the data

There is a clear correlation between improving the skills of young people and families and tackling poverty.

Flintshire County Council have three key improvements areas that will significantly contribute to this theme:-

e Entrepreneurships and Work Experience
e Skills Gap
e Young Entrepreneur Programme

Key activities for 2013/14 under the Improvement Plan Priority for Apprenticeships and Training include:-

22




6€ abed

Reducing the percentage of 16 to 24 year olds claiming job seekers allowance
Securing high levels of 16 year olds in education, employment and training
Improving the local skills base to improve employability and earning prospects
Increasing the number of people who successfully establish and grow businesses
Increasing the number of apprenticeships in the public and voluntary sector
Increasing the number of new work experience and apprenticeship opportunities
Implement the School Improvement Strategy

Implement Post 16 Transformation Programme

Key Risks/Challenges being faced:-

Ensuring that employer places match current and future aspirations and needs.
Ensuring capacity to support paid work placements and other programmes.
Ensuring that education providers participate fully.

Strengthening the links between schools, colleges and employers

23




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40



Agenda Item 5

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014

REPORT BY: DIRECTOR OF LIFELONG LEARNING

SUBJECT: NATIONAL MODEL FOR REGIONAL WORKING ON

SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  The purpose of this report is to update members on developments
with school improvement services and to recommend the new national
model for regional working on school improvement for adoption.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  The Hill Review set out a number of options for improving the delivery
and structure of education services in Wales. One of the key options
was that there needed to be greater consistency in the delivery of
school improvement services via the regional education consortia.
This view was endorsed by local government through the Welsh Local
Government Association (WLGA) response, as the representative
body, to the Hill Review in September 2013.

2.02 A subsequent key commitment on the part of local government has
been to co-construct a National Model for Regional Working on
School Improvement (hereafter referred to as the Model) with the
Welsh Government. The aim of the Model is to bring consistency and
stability to the local authority regional school improvement services
which is in line with the WLGA response to the Hill Review.

2.03 The work to develop the Model took place during November 2013 with
representatives of local authority Chief Executives, Directors of
Education, Directors of Finance and Directors of Human Resources,
closely involved in the process. In order to achieve this deadline a
number of working groups were established, involving local
government officers, education experts and Welsh Government civil
servants. These groups have worked on different aspects of the
model including clarity over the definition of school improvement,
governance and commissioning, budgets and business planning for
regional services.

Page 41



2.04

3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

The Model was agreed by the Minister and the WLGA Coordinating
Committee in late November 2013. There has been a very tight
timescale to undertake this work but it has been genuine co-
construction. Inevitably there have been concessions on all sides.

CONSIDERATIONS

The Model outlines a consistent approach to school improvement
activities, such as how to undertake school-to-school support, which is
a key part of moving towards self-improving schools. The model aims
to encourage schools to take more responsibility for their own
improvement. The Model also looks to clarify issues such as what
activities could usefully be undertaken at a local authority level and
what activities are best addressed regionally.

A key section of the document covers the governance arrangements
in relation to regional collaborative school improvement services. The
current statutory position is retained and responsibility for school
improvement rests within the individual local authorities. The Model
suggests that governance is best placed in a Joint Committee and in
line with the legal requirements of the Local Government Act 1972
members of the Joint Committee would be appointed by the
constituent local authorities. This Committee would be supported by
an Executive Board which would oversee operational planning.

As part of the new arrangements, it was agreed that a common
business plan template was required to enable consortia to clearly
identify their key priorities for the year and the expected outcomes.
The Minister for Education and Skills will use the plans as the basis of
an outcome agreement with consortia, and will formally accept (or not)
the plans on an annual basis. The process of submitting and signing
off a business plan should be completed by the end of March of each
year.

Through regular Review and Challenge events (formerly stock takes),
Welsh Government will monitor progress against and hold consortia
and local authorities to account for their performance against the
priorities and outcomes noted in the business plans. The plans must
be:

o focused on strategic outcomes;

o dovetail effectively with the outcomes identified in statutory
local authority plans;

e deliver national and local priorities to impact on outcomes for
learners;

¢ used to inform democratic accountability arrangements; and

¢ informed by effective data analysis and need.

Page 42



3.05

4.00

4.01

4.02

4.03

5.00

5.01

5.02

5.03

5.04

It is expected that consortia will have, within the guidance set out in
the Model, arrangements for effective strategic planning, governance
and decision making, clear performance management and
accountability arrangements internally and to constituent local
authorities, self-evaluation, quality assurance, local authority level
implementation action plans, managing risks and robust financial
planning.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The National Model for Regional Working on School Improvement be
supported;

That a business plan be developed with the intention that the
additional services listed in the Model be incorporated into the GwE
regional model, in phases, subject to a satisfactory business case for
each and a supporting transition plan to ensure service continuity and
performance; and

That the Joint Committee be directed to ensure that its supporting
Executive Board has a sufficiently broad membership to represent the
interests of the sub-regions/counties.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

In October 2013 the Minister for Education and Skills issued a written
statement outlining his acceptance of the proposal from local
government to protect school improvement funding within the local
government budget settlement and to jointly construct a National
Model for Regional Working.

The agreement replaces the proposal, in the Hill Review, to fund
regional school improvement services through a transfer out of the
RSG. It agrees Local Authority contributions to school improvement
functions will be protected on the basis of the methodology and
funding identified in papers submitted to the Distribution Sub Group
and Finance Sub Group.

The amount if based on the minimum amount originally proposed top
slice (£19.2m) reduced by the average percentage reduction in core
revenue funding for Wales, as announced in the Flint Local
Government Settlement for 2014-15. This equates to -3.4%.

The individual authority allocations are based on the ‘Mainstream
Schools’ sector Standards Spending Assessment distribution as
contained in the 2014-15 Final Settlement. The Mainstream Schools
sector comprises the main service areas relating to primary,
secondary and special education provision.

Page 43



5.05

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

Additional funding to meet the sums identified in the National Model
will only be transferred to GwE as and when the functions transfer.
This will be in accordance with the milestones identified in the
Business Plan and subject to the full compliance with the
recommendation at 4 above.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

The Welsh Government, Local Government, School Improvement
Consortia and Schools are committed to anti-poverty working as key
national priority for school improvement.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

There are no environmental implications arising directly from this
report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

There are no equalities impact implications arising directly from this
report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

There are no personnel implications at this point. Additional services
listed in the Model may be incorporated into regional delivery models,
in phases, subject to a satisfactory business case for each and a
supporting transition plan to ensure service continuity and
performance. This will involve appropriate consultation with staff and
their representatives.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Ongoing consultation with school leaders, governors, school
improvement officers, neighbouring authorities and the Welsh
Government will be required in developing the regional 2014/15
business plan.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

The Model has been developed through engagement with local
government officers, education experts, civil servants, WLGA and the
Welsh Government.

APPENDICES

Appendix A: National Model for Regional Working on School
Improvement.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985

Page 44



BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None.

Contact Officer: lan Budd
Telephone: 01352 704012
Email: ian.budd@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46



Contents

1. The mission, values and principles of effective school
improvement

The vision and the purpose
Model and key principles of school improvement
Step 1: School assessment
School self-evaluation
National school categorisation
Step 2: Planning improvement
Step 3: Making improvement
Step 4: Reviewing impact
The role of regional consortia in implementing this model
2. The scope of regional consortia

The scope of consortia services

3. Delivery of respective regional consortia and local
authority functions

The responsibilities of regional consortia

The responsibilities of local authorities

4. Governance and accountability

Joint committees

The executive board

The overall consortium business plan

A business plan for each local authority

Scrutiny and liaison between local authorities and regional consortia
Accountability and relations with Welsh Government

Challenge and review events

Relations with schools

Page 47

12

14

14

16

17

18

19

19

19

20



Estyn inspection

5. The organisation and operation of consortia
The central organisation of the consortium

The role of the managing director

Funding and finance

Timescales

Annex A: Consortia governance model

Annex B: National model for regional working
Basis of the local authority minimum contributions

Tables

Page 48

20

22

22

22

24

25

26

27

27

28



1. The mission, values and principles of effective
school improvement

The vision and the purpose

Wales needs for its future success in the world young people who are clever,
skilled, happy and healthy, and an educational system that helps to produce
them. Our proposals in this agreement are designed to generate this through
supporting reform to the way that local authorities, regional consortia and the
Welsh Government work together to support school leaders, governors and
teachers and, through this process, helping to create excellent learning, in
excellent classrooms in excellent schools.

The Hill review will help to shape Wales’ education reform programme and the
national model for school improvement is an integral part of that. The
development of the national model is a shared endeavour between schools,
local authorities, regional consortia and the Welsh Government. It recognises
the important role each tier has to play in improving outcomes for children and
young people. The national model can create the structures and define the
framework within which this partnership will function but it will require a shared
commitment and moral purpose for the system as a whole to deliver the
improvements in education and life chances that all children in Wales
deserve.

Local authorities retain the statutory responsibility for schools and school
improvement. The national model is based on a vision of regional school
improvement consortia working on behalf of local authorities to lead,
orchestrate and co-ordinate the improvement in the performance of schools
and education of young people. The prime mission and purpose of regional
consortia is to help those who educate our children and young people. So, in
future, their non-negotiable job will be to support schools and local authorities
in their efforts to:

e improve learner outcomes for all young people;
e ensure the delivery of high quality teaching and learning; and
e support and empower school leaders to better lead their schools.

Model and key principles of school improvement

Schools are at the heart of this new national model. It is the job of governors,
school leaders, teachers and other staff to set high expectations of pupils,
constantly seek to improve the quality of teaching and learning, raise
standards, share good practice and learn from one another through genuine
partnerships and school-to-school support arrangements. Figure 1 describes
an annual cycle of school improvement, which we believe should be adopted
by all schools. It is a model that many schools will recognise and already
follow.

1
Page 49



Figure 1: Annual cycle of school improvement

School assessment
Schools analyse data and undertake
self-evaluation
System leaders provide challenge
Categorisation of schools agread

Reviewing impact
Schools assess impact of support on:
the guality of teaching and learning

Planning improvement
Schoals [dentify key areas for

pupll progress and attainment improvemant

development of staff, leaders and Schools set improvement targets
governors : Schools plan how ta make improvement

Making improvement
Consartia orchestrate a range of
classroom-based improvement support
‘Sehools use or consortia broker support
— accarding to capacity of school

Step 1: School assessment

Schools need to know themselves and to evaluate their strengths and
weaknesses. Assessment is a constant process for both teachers and school
leaders based upon self-evaluation and school categorisation.

School self-evaluation

Once a year the annual self-evaluation, involving all departments and aspects
of a school’s life, should provide a systematic trigger for a school auditing how
it is performing for all its learners. We need to ensure that schools have the
capacity to do this and that clear systems of core, simple and powerful data
are available to support this process including benchmarking data so that
schools can compare themselves against both the best schools and those
within their family of schools. The more that schools can ‘own’ this process,
with help as necessary, the better it will work, and the more ‘inspection ready’
every school can be. Challenge advisers within consortia will, as their name
implies, provide challenge and assure the integrity of the process —
particularly for those schools who are at risk of causing concern or who cause
concern

National school categorisation

Each consortium has developed its own system for categorising schools.
However, as part of the work on the national model, each consortium has
agreed to work towards and implement a national system for categorising the
schools which will be in place from 1% April 2014. This national approach will
support the school in its self-evaluation assessment.

Page 50



Step 2: Planning improvement

Schools should use their self-evaluation and the strengths and weaknesses it
reveals, to work out what to change in what they do. These ideas will often
naturally come from schools and teachers themselves, but the process can be
facilitated by making available ‘good practice’ from other schools. Schools,
which are at risk of causing concern or who cause concern, will receive the
support they need to do this from challenge advisers.

Schools should set targets by which they can measure their improvement.
The targets should cover both improvement in process — for example, the
quality of teaching and learning, marking of books or feedback — and
outcomes in terms of improvements in attainment and progress. The job of
challenge advisers will be to challenge headteachers and governors to set
aspirational targets that ensure high levels of motivation and significantly
improved pupil attainment.

Step 3: Making improvement

Enabling and supporting schools to access, share and use a range of proven
and new classroom-based approaches should be at the heart of securing the
improvements that schools need to make. This will include development
programmes that align training for teachers with them working in groups to
observe and coach each other on implementing improved practice, and the
deployment of Lead Practitioners. Every school also has within itself good
practice that can be used as the basis for ‘within school’ transfer and school-
to-school improvement activity. More schools will be in federations and still
more in clusters. Executive headship will grow to maximise the value and
potential of our best school leaders. Local authorities may also see benefits of
such changes in organisational and governance terms as part of school
improvement.

Consortia will facilitate and orchestrate this collaboration. There will also be
programmes at consortia level that will draw on the expertise of the best
practitioners and schools in the region. There will be help from the private
sector the voluntary sector and indeed local communities that can be matched
with the needs of schools and their teachers. The higher and further education
sectors will also possess many individuals and courses that can help teacher
and school development. Whatever the source of the help, it is essential that
is tailored to the social, linguistic, cultural and social context of every school.

Schools that have the capacity to do so should be encouraged and
empowered to lead their own improvement and deploy their own resources
accordingly. For those schools that are at risk of causing concern or who
cause concern, it would be the job of the consortia to help match and broker
the support needed to the support available.

School leadership at all levels should be nurtured and developed through
training programmes, coaching, assigning mentors and providing
opportunities for emerging leaders to be seconded to other schools.

3
Page 51



Step 4: Reviewing impact

Schools, teachers and consortia should consider the effects of their actions on
the achievements of all their children, and then decide what changes to make
in their plans and their future actions. Consortia will broadly follow a similar
philosophy in terms of the planning and review cycle as advocated for schools
within Figure 1 above. The annual cycle of school, departmental, individual,
local authority and consortium level plans that align all parts of the system
together.

The role of regional consortia in implementing this model

The delivery of consortia services should be based on co-construction with
schools with a move to common/shared data systems and underpinned by
excellence of expertise in analysing and challenging schools’ improvement
needs. The delivery of consortia services should not be based on employing
large numbers of full time staff — rather a core staff should draw on the skills
of the best headteachers in their regions along with other school improvement
experts and should use budgets flexibly to commission the support schools
require.

Relationships and lines of accountability between local authorities and
regional consortia should be clear so that everyone in the education system
understands who is responsible for what.

The implementation of this model will change over time. As schools and
teachers develop over the next two to three years, and as they gain
knowledge and confidence, they will expect more independence, autonomy
and space to make their own decisions. The measure of success for regional
consortia will be that they cease to exist in their present form over time
because their job is done.

Page 52



2. The scope of regional consortia

The scope of consortia services

It is important that there is clarity about the scope of the functions and
services that regional consortia will provide and what schools and local
authorities can expect of them. Regional consortia services will include:

school improvement — which is defined as intervention, challenge and
support strategies delivered by regional consortia that improve the
teaching and learning in classrooms and lead to improved pupil attainment
and progress at all levels and all contexts, including closing gaps in
attainment, and addressing specific needs (such as the needs of

Special Educational Needs (SEN) or More Able and Talented (MAT)
Learners);

data collation, analysis and application — which is defined as collating from
local authorities and schools the data on school and pupil performance
and progress across each region (based on the core data sets established
by the Welsh Government and Fischer Family Trust projections), using
that data to benchmark and challenge school performance and, with
schools, set challenging targets for improvements;

supporting the development of school leadership at all levels — which
includes developing opportunities for emerging and senior leaders to
develop their experience and expertise by having assignment and
secondments in other schools, in addition to commissioning, and
co-ordinating the provision of training and development programmes;

supporting and promoting the development of school improvement linked
to learner well being, including issues such as behaviour and attendance;

ensuring that the delivery of the national Literacy and Numeracy
frameworks is effective across all schools and co-ordinate and quality
assure the provision of training and development to achieve this;

providing challenge to the performance and delivery of Foundation Phase
settings and assess the need for and then commission, co-ordinate and
quality assure provision of training and development support;

aligning national and local 14-19 strategies across the wider consortium
area to help raise standards in the core subjects of English/Welsh and
mathematics, ensure high quality courses offer relevant training for pupils
and contribute effectively to regeneration strategies;

working with local authorities to ensure that their plans for developing and

implementing strategies for 21%* Century schools go hand-in-hand with
plans for school improvement;

Page 53



¢ enabling the aims of the Welsh Government’s Welsh-medium Education
Strategy (WMES) to be delivered by ensuring the alignment of the
Welsh in Education Strategic Plans (WESP) and the Welsh in Education
Grant (WEG) across each of the local authorities within the regional
consortia, so that there is consistency in the development of excellence in
pedagogy not only across both the Welsh-medium and bilingual sectors,
but also in the delivery of Welsh as a second language;

e commissioning, coordinate and quality assure delivery of high quality
governor training and advice services including the requirements for
mandatory training for governors; and

e providing specialist human resources advice to support headteachers and
governing bodies in dealing with performance management and capability
issues.

All children are important. Schools and colleges have a duty to deliver
appropriate curriculum and personal support for pupils with additional learning
and special educational needs. As part of their school improvement function
consortia will, therefore, help schools to deliver high quality education to these
groups of pupils, drawing on the expertise of the best special schools, and
good practice and systems adopted by the best mainstream

. Consortia procedures protocols and business plans should demonstrate that
they are giving full attention to children who have SEN and data systems
should be designed to demonstrate the progress they make. They may also
need to draw on expert support from local authorities where that is
appropriate.

The delivery of specialist services, the statementing of pupils and the legal
procedures that safeguard the welfare and rights of children with special
needs remain the responsibility of the LA and Consortia should ensure that
their services and LA services for pupils with SEN are closely aligned.

Local authorities will also continue to be responsible for delivering — either by
employing their own staff or by working in partnership with another local
authority — the organisation of schools and school places, special educational
and additional learning needs, school transport, school meals, safeguarding
services, education welfare, behaviour and attendance and employees’ pay
and conditions of service. In some cases local authorities in a region may
choose to commission these functions from their consortium and such
arrangements could strengthen the consortia’s prime responsibility to deliver
school improvement. But it is implicit in the national model that school
improvement must be at the forefront of regional consortia’s efforts and
activity.

The sections that follow explain in more detail how regional consortia and
local authorities will discharge their respective functions and work together to
develop an integrated system that supports schools and avoids duplication.

6
Page 54



3. Delivery of respective regional consortia and local
authority functions

The responsibilities of regional consortia

In relation to school improvement regional consortia will provide challenge
through:

¢ monitoring the work and performance of schools, using all-\Wales

standardised data sets, Fischer Family Trust projections and in-school and

in-year data on pupil progress and the quality of classroom teaching and
learning, to categorise a school’s performance and development needs in
accordance with the nationally agreed categorisation model,

e examining with school leaders and chairs of governors performance and
provision at whole-school level and for different subjects, year groups
and sub-categories of pupils, in order to compare the progress of
individual and or groups of pupils with progress made in other comparable
schools and to identify areas of underperformance and achievement gaps;

e confirming with headteachers and chairs of governors the priority areas for
improvement and the strategies to be deployed to secure improvement;

e agreeing stretching targets that will raise expectations, set the standard for

improving the quality of teaching and learning and provide the success
criteria by which pupil attainment and progress will be judged. Where
agreement cannot be reached [in respect of schools that are in an Estyn
category or monitoring] the consortium will advise the local authority so

that in accordance with current legislation the local authority can determine

the appropriate targets;

e assessing for schools that are in special measures, require significant
improvement, are subject to Estyn or local authority monitoring or
otherwise identified through the categorisation process as causing serious
concern, whether governors and school leadership teams have the
capacity and will to lead school improvement — and making appropriate
recommendations as necessary; and

e advising of those situations where statutory intervention is required and
the form(s) that intervention might take — whether federation with another
school, the deployment of an executive headteacher, the establishment of
an interim executive board or another appropriate measure.

These functions will be applied proportionally — that is to say those schools
most in need of support will be monitored most closely. Conversely where
schools are performing strongly monitoring will be light-touch in nature. These
functions, rather than the delivery of school improvement programmes and
initiatives, will be the main focus of challenge advisers’ activity.

7
Page 55



Challenge advisers may be employed full-time by a consortium or be bought
in on a part-time basis. Challenge advisers will have the following attributes:

 experience of leading in a successful school';
e expertise in analysing and using school improvement data;

e an understanding and experience of how to implement school
improvement; and

e strong interpersonal skills.

This will represent a significant shift in the roles and skills needed. Challenge
advisers should be credible in their challenge role and command respect from
schools. Welsh Government will provide national training for those
undertaking the role of challenge advisers as a matter of urgency. Consortia
will, therefore, need to facilitate this training and also secondments to help
make the transition to this new role wherever possible. Consortia will have
the responsibility of identifying staff to participate in training, and will need to
ensure strong performance management of those undertaking the role of
challenge advisors. Consortia executive boards and the managing directors
will need to urgently assess the capability of their staff to meet the new
requirements and discussion with unions that represent them so that
headteachers and school leaders are challenged and supported by high
quality advisers.

Regional consortia will share monitoring information with local authorities on a
termly basis and more frequently in relation to schools that are in special
measures, require significant improvement, are subject to Estyn or local
authority monitoring or are otherwise identified through the categorisation
process as causing serious concern (see below).

Regional consortia will also co-ordinate, broker and provide improvement
support for schools. These activities will be co-constructed with headteachers
and teachers. The brokerage and improvement support will be differentiated
in relation to a school’s capacity to improve and commission/broker its own
improvement support. Where a school is assessed as performing well or
having the capacity to secure its own improvement it will be free to use its
budgets to draw down and use the services as appropriate to its
circumstances and improvement needs. \Where, however, a school has low
attainment and poor pupil progress — and/or lacks the capacity to promote
improvement in general or in a specific area — the consortium will arrange the
necessary improvement support on behalf of the school in consultation with
the headteacher and governing body and, where charged-for services are
deployed, charge the school accordingly. The objective will be to build up the
capacity of all schools to take responsibility for organising their own
improvement.

! This could include being a member of a senior leadership team.

8
Page 56



Consortium’s brokerage and improvement activities will include:

facilitating the use and interpretation of data as part of this process to
support forensic school self-evaluation and identify gaps in attainment;

publishing anonymised benchmarking data on the performance and
progress of comparable groups of pupils in different subjects and phases
to encourage and enable schools to learn from each other;

supporting school leaders to broker appropriate support from other
schools, consortia-commissioned programmes and other sources, where a
school has the capacity lead its own improvement;

overseeing the implementation of a support programme, including the
deployment of headteachers of Lead Practitioner schools and other
headteachers capable of acting as executive heads, in those schools that
are in special measures, require significant improvement, are subject to
Estyn or local authority monitoring or otherwise identified through the
categorisation process as causing serious concern;

commissioning and quality assuring a range of predominantly
classroom-based training and development programmes to support
improvements in teaching and learning and subject knowledge,;

working with headteachers and other leaders through joint lesson
observations to develop a consistent understanding on what constitutes
excellent teaching and learning;

identifying excellent departments and lead practitioners using nationally
agreed criteria who can be deployed to support other schools for part of
their working week;

providing mentoring support for headteachers and school leadership
teams that need support in leading improvement?;

encouraging, incentivising and steering schools to work on school
improvement together through local clusters of schools;

providing access to evidence of ‘what works’ in terms of closing gaps in
attainment and support schools to implement and assess the impact of
targeted intervention strategies;

supporting the formation and development of federations and interim
executive boards where this is agreed as a way to effect school
improvement;

% This support should come from a serving headteacher (and the wider leadership team) of a
strongly performing school — for example, a Lead Practitioner school

9
Page 57



facilitating the development and work of Professional Learning
Communities, lesson study and other means for teachers to work together
within and across schools to review and improve their pedagogical
practice;

working with university education departments to provide access to
knowledge about teaching and learning and to support research projects
based in schools; and

co-ordinating support and training for teaching assistants and newly
qualified teachers.

In relation to supporting the development of school leadership regional
consortia will, in partnership with leading headteachers:

commission from schools, universities and other specialist providers
development and training programmes for middle leaders to better equip
them to analyse and use data, assess the quality of classroom learning
and coach other colleagues — reflecting the work of the National
Leadership Development Board as it develops;

support succession planning by working with local authorities to aggregate
data on projected turnover and retirements of senior school leaders;

commission from schools, universities and other specialist providers
development and training programmes for emerging senior leaders —
reflecting the requirements and work of the National Leadership
Development Board as it develops;

commission programmes that will empower and enable effective heads to
support other schools through leading a Lead Practitioner School, acting
as an executive headteacher, leading a federation or working for part of
the week as a system leader;

encourage and co-ordinate opportunities for emerging leaders to have
access to leadership secondments in other schools; and

ensure that every new headteacher in their first year of headship shall
have access to an effective headteacher mentor.

Through the challenge process regional consortia will assess the general and
specific needs of schools in each local authority area with regard to the
specific literacy and numeracy training and development they require. In
consultation with headteachers and the Welsh Government’s contractor for
literacy and numeracy training, consortia will commission and facilitate the
delivery of a strategy that will deliver the range of support required at
classroom level.

10
Page 58



Early Years Foundation Phase support will involve providing challenge to
leaders of Foundation Phase settings and liaising with headteachers and
other providers to audit training needs and commission and quality assure an
appropriate range of programmes.

The consortia will co-ordinate and quality assure the delivery of the aims of
the Welsh-medium Education Strategy by ensuring the alignment of the
Welsh in Education Strategic Plans (WESP) and the Welsh in Education
Grant (WEG) across each of the local authorities within the regional consortia,
so that there is consistency in the development of excellence in pedagogy,
and the meeting of agreed targets, not only across both the Welsh-medium
and bilingual sectors, but also in the delivery of Welsh as a second language.

Co-ordination of the regional dimension of the ICT Strategy will include
school ICT self-evaluation, leadership and planning of ICT for learning;
safeguarding, emerging technologies, virtual learning environments, learning
technology and the national literacy and numeracy framework, running
networks for heads of departments and ICT co-ordinators, support for
pedagogy and curriculum development (with reference to the Learning and
Digital World Strategy).

Strategic overview of the regional 14-19 offer, including allocation of
resources to programmes in line with Welsh Government priorities, will
include:

e support for planning the use of grants;

e ensuring school and provider provision is in line to deliver the expected
impact inherent in these grants;

e working with local authorities to provide a strategic overview to challenge
and support all providers, including FE Colleges and private training
providers, to ensure equality of access to the development opportunities;

e administering the relevant grants and co-ordinating and supporting bids for
emerging grant opportunities.

Regional consortia will commission and quality assure delivery of governor
support services and training for governors including the mandatory training
programmes required for new governors, training for chairs of governors and,
in respect of understanding and applying data effectively for all governors.
Consortia will also encourage and facilitate governor networks, enable
governors to observe each other's meetings and deploy able chairs of
governors to mentor other governing bodies that are struggling to undertake
their role effectively. Consortia will jointly develop, in consultation with local
authorities, governors and headteachers a performance data template for
headteachers to use to report to governors on a termly or half termly basis a
school’s in-year performance on:

e pupil performance and standards;

11
Page 59



e pupil attendance;

e pupil exclusions;

o staff sickness absence;

e quality of teaching (as assesses through classroom observations); and
e progress and attainment data relative to targets.

Consortia will also identify a pool of able candidates that are willing to serve
on governing bodies where there is weak governance.

In exercising these roles account will need to be taken of funding for governor
support being delegated to schools in some authorities.

Specialist human resource advice for schools would typically include
training for headteachers and chairs of governors on performance
management and advice on managing those occasions when a teacher’s
performance is such that the capability procedures have to be invoked or a
teacher’s absence or sickness record is such that it requires serious action to
be considered. Welsh Government recognises that consortia may need to
move to this model in stages during their first year of operation where
currently the specialist resources to deliver this requirement do not exist.

Regional consortia and local authorities will not duplicate the work of each
other.

Regional consortia will consider urgently recommendations on statutory
school interventions from local authorities however the statutory powers to
implement intervention remain with the authorities.

The responsibilities of local authorities

Local authorities will retain statutory accountability for school performance
together with the responsibility for the exercise of statutory powers of
intervention and organisation of schools.

Local authorities will designate a lead officer (‘an intelligent client’) to act as
the main point of contact with the regional consortium, in accordance with the
arrangement described below.

Local authorities and regional consortia will have open discussions together
about their plans which should be clear about the respective roles, functions
and intended actions of each. These processes will remove any risk of
regional consortia or authorities duplicating effort. In particular local authorities
should share with regional consortia information on their proposals and
decisions in relation to:

12
Page 60



e the overall vision and social and economic development priorities for their
area, having particular regard to issues that are likely to affect schools;

e school organisation, including plans for federations, amalgamations,
closures and delivery of their 21% century school strategies:

e supporting the delivery of those having special educational and additional
learning needs;

e the organisation of behaviour support and education welfare services;
¢ their youth engagement strategy;
e safeguarding arrangements for children and young people; and

e arrangements to promote effective procurement and the development of
business support services within schools.

Local authorities will provide regional consortia with access to relevant data
systems, including anonymised data sets on pupil performance where this is
held at local authority level, and other information to facilitate their work.

Local authorities will not duplicate the work or activity of regional consortia.

The development of secure local authority and consortia relationships will
mean that both parties will consider urgently and jointly recommendations on
statutory school interventions from any source and, unless there are
exceptional circumstances, agree to implement them. Local authorities and
consortia will follow the jointly agreed ‘escalation’ protocol that is currently
being developed.

13
Page 61



4. Governance and accountability

Joint committees

The work of regional consortia will be overseen by a joint committee® of the
constituent local authorities or an arm’s length company, depending upon the
form which best suits a region’s requirements in order to carry out the
functions and to deliver the outcomes set out within this report. Local
authorities should note that the Joint Committee may make decisions which
affect the delivery of and resources available for improving school
performance. Therefore, local authorities should make sure that the
governance arrangements put in place do not contradict local authority
decision making and democratic accountability. The form is less important
than the capacity and drive to deliver improved outcomes and the ability to
have the consortia functioning in the way agreed by 1% April 2014. The joint
committee will have responsibility for approving the consortia budget
(including remuneration), business planning and performance management of
the regional consortia.

Consortia and local authorities should make sure that the members of the
Joint Committee have
¢ the right skills,experience and seniority to make decisions;
e have a clear understanding of their collaborative regional responsibility;
and
e are clear about their roles and responsibilities and how these dovetail
with the democratic accountabilities

The membership of a joint committee or a board may comprise the leader of
each constituent local authority or education portfolio holder They will be
supported by the lead chief executive. The membership of the company
board, where the arm’s length company option is adopted, should reflect
these arrangements. For company board, see Joint committee. Regional
consortia with company boards should make sure that the arrangements do
not undermine local authority decision making and democratic accountability.

The joint committee will normally meet no more than once a school term to
oversee the work of the consortium. Each year, one meeting will focus on
considering and agreeing the draft business plan and the accompanying
budget. The business plan will also include a report from the regional
consortium’s managing director on the outcomes (based on the factors as
outlined at page 14). Meetings will focus on monitoring progress against the
plan. The managing director and the lead chief executive shall, after

® Sections 101 and 102 of the LGA 1972 (and in the case of Executive Functions sections 19
and 20 of the LGA 2000 and relevant Regulations made under these sections) enable the
work of authorities to be discharged through a variety of internal arrangements, and, in this
context, external arrangements involving, and working with, other authorities. In particular
these powers include the ability of two or more authorities to discharge any of their functions
jointly, and where this occurs, to do so via a joint committee, and/ or by their officers.

14
Page 62



consultation with the chair of the committee, agree the agenda and papers to
be prepared for each joint committee meeting.

The Joint Committee should establish arrangements for appointments of
senior staff and to deal with HR issues such as grievances.

Normally meetings of the joint committee will be open to the public.

15
Page 63



The executive board

Joint committees will delegate the operational decision making of the
consortium to an executive board whose role will be to oversee, support and
challenge the work of the regional consortium®. Welsh Government suggests
that the membership of the executive board, appointed by the joint
committees should comprise:

one representative of the joint committee who will also act as the
champion of the consortium in the region;

¢ a nominee of Welsh Government (observer status);
e the lead director of education;
¢ managing director; and

e no more than [five] individuals who will be appointed, with the approval of
the joint committee, for their expertise in education, leadership and
corporate governance drawn from an approved pool of individuals
assembled by the WLGA and Welsh Government. Those nominated shall
include at least one serving headteacher drawn from a school within the
consortium area.

Reporting regularly to the Joint Committee, the executive board will have
delegated responsibility for setting the direction regarding the implementation
of:

e strategy — executive board members will constructively challenge and
contribute to the development of strategy to enable the organisation
achieving its goals;

e Dbusiness planning — executive board members will consider and
recommend an annual business plan to the joint committee;

e budget — executive board members will ensure that the business plan
agreed is in line with the budget;

e performance — executive board members will monitor and review the
performance of management in meeting assigned goals and objectives
and monitor the reporting of performance;

¢ self-evaluation and risk — executive board members will need to have
arrangements in place to make sure that regional consortia financial

* The legal provisions referred in footnote 4 above also provide for joint committees to
delegate their functions in whole or in part to sub committees. The executive board would be
constituted as a sub committee of the joint committee where authorities chose to operate
though this option. Where they chose to operate through an arm’s length company the
executive board would be constituted as a subcommittee of the main board.

16
Page 64



controls and systems are robust where necessary this will be reported to
individual local authorities;

people — executive board members will recommend to the joint committee
appropriate levels of remuneration for the managing director and top team
and have the prime role in appointing/removing the managing director.

The role of the chair of the executive board will be to:

set the agenda for the executive board in conjunction with the managing
director and ensure that the board operates effectively;

ensure the provision of accurate, timely and clear information for other
executive board members;

ensure that the executive board operates effectively in all aspects of its
role;

ensure the provision of accurate, timely and clear information for other
executive board members;

support effective communication with constituent local authorities and
Welsh Government; and

facilitate effective contributions from all executive board members and
ensure appropriate relationships between executive board members and
between executive board members and officers.

Normally, the managing director and chair of the executive board shall attend
meetings of the joint committee.

An illustration of the governance model can be found in Annex A.

The overall consortium business plan

Each regional consortium will produce an annual business plan, using a
standard template that will set out:

a summary of the consortium’s strategic objectives, priority outcomes and
targets;

a report summarising the performance of the schools in the consortium
over the previous 12 months and an analysis of the main areas of strength
and weakness within the consortium;

the priorities for improvement — both in terms of particular schools and
cross-cutting issues;

the work programmes to be undertaken over the following 12 months,; and

17
Page 65



e the measurable improvement in school performance to be achieved over
the 12 months.

The draft business plan will be submitted to the joint committee for approval.
The managing director will report to the joint committee the outcome of
discussions on the draft plan with individual local authorities and schools,
which will take place as set out below. The business plan as agreed by the
joint committee will be submitted to the Welsh Government for sign-off by the
Minister for Education and Skills by February of each year.

The process of the submission and sign-off of the business plan should be
completed by the end of March of each year.

A business plan for each local authority

Alongside the overarching business plan regional consortia may choose to
produce an annexe for each respective local authority. The draft annexes will
explain what the overarching business plan means in terms of schools, school
improvement priorities, school improvement services and school improvement
targets for each constituent authority.

Each local authority will provide for their consortium a statement of any
changes they propose to make over the coming 12 months in school
organisation and their planned arrangements for delivering services for
special educational and additional learning needs, behaviour support and
education welfare and wider children services that could relate to schools.

The annex and the statement will be discussed individually with each authority
through a meeting with the lead officer, and the elected member with
responsibility for children and education services, and the Leader Local
Authorities will make sure that the governance arrangements for consortia
enable them to maintain oversight of and accountability for their statutory
duties.

The business plan annex will need to dovetail with and not duplicate other
local authority corporate plans and the Single Plan.

Any local authority concerns or requests in relation to the content of the draft
business plan that cannot be agreed between the managing director and a
constituent authority will be reported to the joint committee as part of their
consideration of the draft plan.

The business plan annex for each local authority may, once it is agreed, form
a Service Level Agreement, between the consortium and the local authority.

18
Page 66



Scrutiny and liaison between local authorities and regional
consortia

Regional consortia will nominate a senior officer to liaise with the each
authority’s lead officer. It shall be for the respective officers to agree on the
scope and frequency of their meetings, with contact being more intensive the
greater the number of schools in the authority that come into one of the
categories of concern. A note of meetings, recording issues discussed and
decisions agreed, will be made.

Each Local Authority and their respective regional consortium will make
arrangements for robust democratic scrutiny of the consortium business plan
and activities as it relates to individual local authority area. Each authority’s
scrutiny committee for education services will also need sufficient information
to consider the performance of their schools.

Local authorities undertake to be reasonable in their expectation of consortia
staff and resources and ensure that senior leaders are not required to spend a
disproportionate amount of their time on reporting and scrutiny work.

Accountability and relations with Welsh Government

The Welsh Government, through the Minister for Education and Skills, will
sign-off annual consortia business plans.

The managing director of each consortium will meet jointly with lead officials
of the Welsh Government on a half-termly basis in the spirit of co-
construction, to:

e discuss progress against consortia business plans;
e exchange information on consortia working;

¢ identify factors that are enabling or holding back progress on school
improvement; and

¢ liaise on the implementation of government programmes and initiatives
such as the literacy and numeracy programme or the work of the
School Leadership board.

Challenge and Review Events

The current round of stocktakes will be replaced by challenge and review
sessions. The initial intelligence gathering process will include drawing
together the performance data, Welsh Government and Estyn intelligence on
each region. These findings will then inform a discussion with all four
Managing Directors building on the region’s self-knowledge and the expertise
available regionally. This will then lead to a challenge and review event with

19
Page 67



each consortium, the scope and regularity of which will vary according to need
and risk but as a minimum will be twice a year.

Furthermore, once a year the Minister for Education and Skills will chair a
challenge and review session for each consortium to review progress on
school improvement in each region. The annual report of the consortium’s
Managing Director will form part of this process. The consortium will be
represented by the chair of the executive board, the managing director and
the joint committee.

Priorities and action agreed as a result of these challenge and review
sessions will be actioned by consortia and local authorities as appropriate and
be reflected in the business plan for the next 12 months.

The Minister for Education and Skills reserves the right to make alternative
arrangements for school improvement and consortium functions, in
consultation with the Joint Committee, where a consortium clearly lacks the
capacity or will to deliver its functions.

Relations with schools

Each consortium will establish two panels to consult respectively with school
leaders and school governors. The purpose of the panels will be to discuss
plans and proposals for developing school improvement and to receive
feedback on the quality of service received in respect of both consortia’s’
challenge and support functions.

The panel shall include representatives of primary, secondary and special
schools.

These user panels will meet at least termly and the meeting in the autumn
term will consider the draft business plan for the coming year. Significant
concerns from school leaders and governors regarding the content of the draft
business plan will be reported to the joint committee as part of their
consideration of the draft plan.

Consortia should also make arrangements for collecting systematic feedback
from participants on their programmes and this information should be collated
and presented to the user panels.

Estyn inspection

Estyn has agreed with the Minister for Education and Skills that it will
undertake a remit on the progress being made by consortia. This remit will
begin in late summer 2014 and be published in spring 2015.

The inspection of consortia will begin in late autumn 2015 through to autumn
2016. Estyn will focus primarily on the impact of consortia upon the standards
that learners achieve, the quality of service provided to schools and on the
quality of leadership and management of consortia.

20
Page 68



Estyn has an Advisory Forum on the inspection of regional consortia with
which it consults representatives from SOLACE, ADEW, four consortia, DfES
and Wales Audit Office (WAQ) about the development of its inspection
framework.

Estyn is working jointly with WAO about their role in the inspection of
consortia as part of Estyn’s inspection team.

By the end of November 2013, Estyn will have carried out an inspection of
local authority education services for children and young people in all 22 local
authorities. Between 2013 through to 2016, Estyn will continue follow up
activity through the monitoring of authorities in the category of Estyn
monitoring, in need of significant improvement or special measures. However
Estyn reserves the right to re-inspect any authority that causes significant
concern. Estyn will take particular account of how effectively a local authority
uses its regional consortia to address school performance issues in the
authority’s schools.

Estyn’s framework for the inspection of local authority education services from
2016 through to 2022 will need to take account of the outcomes of the
Williams Commission on Public Service Governance and Delivery, as well as
the future development of regional consortia and the statutory functions of
local authorities not being delivered through consortia or other collaborative
arrangements.

21
Page 69



5. The organisation and operation of consortia

The central organisation of the consortium

Consortia may decide, because of the geographical size of the region or the
need to reflect cultural and language differences, to organise delivery of their
services through hubs. That will be a matter for executive boards to
determine. However, all consortia should ensure that they retain sufficient
expertise at the centre in order to manage the following functions on a
cross-consortium basis:

data collation, analysis and application — which is defined as collating from
local authorities and schools the data on school and pupil performance
and progress across each region (based on the core data sets established
by the Welsh Government and Fischer Family Trust projections);

planning and coordination of the improvement service, quality assurance
of the challenge function and performance management of its
effectiveness in delivering improved outcomes;

strategic leadership of key strands of work such as leadership
development, literacy and numeracy and Welsh medium;

business planning including management of financial resources, risk
assessment, human resource management of consortia staff and
commissioning of services;

commissioning, coordinating and quality assuring delivery of high quality
governor training and advice services including the national requirements
for mandatory governor training; and

specialist human resources advice to support headteachers and governing
bodies in dealing with performance management and capability issues.

The role of the managing director

The key roles of the managing director will include:

1.

Strategic relationship management and collaborative leadership — the
managing director will need to navigate the development of increased
autonomy for schools alongside reporting to and working with constituent
local authorities (which retain statutory responsibilities for education and
school improvement), liaising with the Welsh Government and reporting to
an executive board. The complexity of the arrangements will mean that the
managing director will need to be able to build strong personal
relationships while staying focused on delivering the highest standards
and performance for the region.

22
Page 70



. Ability to analyse data rapidly, read situations, understand and interpret
different local and political contexts and communicate well. In addition, the
managing director must guide and lead innovation, seek and take
advantage of opportunities and take calculated risks in order to strive for
continuous improvement.

. Leadership of school improvement services — the managing director will
provide the strategic leadership and delivery of a sharp and well-defined
model of diagnosis and support for schools. This includes, but is not
limited to, leading a high performing team to work alongside school
leaders, teachers and others engaged in education service delivery in the
rigorous challenge and support for improvement activity based on strong
analysis of data and evidence. The impact of this work can be seen by the
sharp and sustained improvement in outcomes and in the range of
appropriate services included within the consortia.

. Development of system wide school-to-school capacity building measures
— we believe that in the long-term the capacity for system-wide
improvement rests within and across schools. The managing director must
be capable of galvanizing and leading outstanding heads, middle leaders
and teachers and, more broadly, to design a system of school led capacity
building and improvement.

. Development of and engagement with an improvement service which is
flexible and meets the needs of its stakeholders — in line with the changing
demands and needs of schools and local authorities, the managing
director will lead the development of a flexible approach to procuring
school improvement services. The role will require a commercial
sensitivity and an ability to construct a mixed economy of high quality
expertise on which schools will be able to draw.

. Leadership and management of a lean and dynamic central organisation —
the managing director will provide visible and inspiring strategic leadership
and management of the consortium. This will require recognition of the
history and achievements of the organisation to date, whilst reviewing the
staffing and delivery model to ensure it is as efficient and effective as
possible and compliant with Welsh Government and Estyn expectations.
Critical to this is sound and effective people management skills providing
high quality professional development for staff as well as effective brand
management, communication management of resources and building
relationships with stakeholders. In addition, the managing director must
guide and lead innovation, seek and take advantage of opportunities and
take calculated risks in order to strive for continuous improvement.

. The Managing Director shall produce an annual report of performance in
the following year’s business plan.

The skills and experience needed to be a managing director will, therefore, be
of a senior strategic leader, with a strong track record of making an impact in
leading a school improvement organisation that has significantly improved

23
Page 71



educational outcomes. He or she will be ambitious for schools to improve,
capable of providing and managing challenge and willing and able to lead and
steer a coalition of school leaders, staff and local authorities through school
improvement.

The salary and conditions will be set by the joint committee and the line
management and accountability will be to the chair of the executive board.

Funding and finance
Regional consortia will obtain their funding from three sources:

1. Local authorities have given a commitment® to protect funding for school
improvement and transfer it directly to the consortia. Local authorities have
signed up to this agreement formally with Welsh Government and this
agreement has the same status as other agreements such as the
Simpson Compact and the delegation rates targets of 80 per cent and
85 per cent.

From 1st April 2014 the transferred funding will be lodged with the lead
financial authority on behalf of the consortium and made available in full to
the consortium. Further financial resources should be added if further
functions are transferred into the consortium.

Annually, the lead financial officers from each consortium will identify the
regional consortia’s funding in line with the agreement between the WLGA
and the Welsh Government. The level of funding that is proposed to be
transferred from each local authority to consortia will also be subject to
consultation with Welsh Government.

2. Dedicated funding for schools and school improvement routed through
consortia by the Welsh Government. The major Welsh Government grants
and associated Local Authority match-funding will be passported via the
lead authority to the consortium, apart from those elements that are
delegated directly to schools. Centrally retained elements of the major
grants issued on a regional basis will be passported in full and retained by
the consortium.

All funding intended to be delegated to schools must be delegated to
schools. Where schools require additional guidance and support in
spending the funding efficiently, consortia will provide that guidance and
support.

3. Funding generated by consortia as a result of charging for some of the
programmes and interventions that they commission The consortia will be
expected to demonstrate openness and clarity in the use of all elements of
funding, using the business plans as a vehicle for agreeing the full budget

® This commitment refers to the national agreement reached between the WLGA, the
22 leaders of local authorities and the Minister for Education and Skills.

24
Page 72



breakdown and the Managing Director’s annual report to clearly and
transparently report on how funding was spent®.

Timescales

The aim in order to begin to deliver improved outcomes is to transition through
the next few months to the Consortia arrangements set out in this report by
1st April 2014.

However we recognise that some of the school improvement services
contained in this model will not be able to be delivered by 1 April 2014.
Therefore, as part of the business plan and to provide an element of flexibility,
consortia will need to clearly show what will be delivered by April 2014 and
what by April 2015, along with a clear rationale as to why.

25
Page 73



Annex A: Consortia governance model

— Shared vision

Leader from each

constituent local -—>| laint Committee |

authority supported by Nominee of laint
lead chief executive Committee, rep of Welsh
I Executive hoard |(— government, lead
= Retain statutory education director and up
to five schoal

responsibilities

= Consider and
‘negotiate’
business plan as it
relates to their LA

improvement experis

teering group: the 4

&

« “Intelligent client’ MDs & key officials]  \yeleh

Ministerial Government
5)

& when statutory
interventions
needed

*  Hold scrutiny
sessions on impact
of consortia work

stocktakes

liaises on progress

User panels to provide

1
[ feedback on services

in LA area
¥
i(I:;!]rci)tOISalrj]gEg Headteachers
the Jelivery Schools may commission other
relationship Governges additional means of support

26
Page 74



Annex B: National model for regional working

On 28 November, the WLGA Coordinating Committee approved the
National Model for Regional Working.

Prior to this, on the 7 October, the Minister for Education and Skills issued a
written statement outlining his acceptance of the proposal from local
government to protect school improvement funding within the local
government budget settlement and to jointly construct a National Model for
Regional Working.

The agreement replaces the proposal, in the Hill Review, to fund regional
school improvement services through a transfer out of the RSG. It agrees
Local Authority contributions to regional school improvement consortia will be
protected on the basis of the methodology and funding identified in the papers
submitted to the Distribution Sub Group and Finance Sub Group.

Basis of the local authority minimum contributions

The amount is based on the minimum amount originally proposed (£19.2m)
reduced by the average percentage reduction in core revenue funding for
Wales, as announced in the Final Local Government Settlement for 2014-15.
This equates to -3.4%.

The individual authority allocations are based on the ‘Mainstream Schools’
sector Standards Spending Assessment distribution as contained in the
2014-15 Final Settlement. The Mainstream Schools sector comprises the
main service areas relating to primary, secondary and special education
provision. The final Local Authority minimum contributions for 2014-15 are
identified in Table 2.

These figures represent the core Local Authority contributions, which are net
of income and grant revenue. In addition to this core funding, the total funding
for regional consortia includes income generated through trading agreements,
school level and other SLAs, specific grant funding allocated on a regional
basis and any respective local authority match-funding elements for these
grants. Additional funding may also be provided by individual Local Authorities
for specific additional activity. This represents a ‘gross budget’ for consortia
and this revenue will still be made available to consortia.

(where regional consortia take on further functions, the funding will change
accordingly.)

Tables
Table 1 shows the current 2013-14 contributions and the contributions
originally proposed for 2014-15 within the DSG and FSG papers.

Table 2 shows the required Local Authority minimum contributions for
2014 15, reduced in line with the changes to the Final Local Government
Settlement (-3.4%).

27
Page 75



9/ abed

Table 1: Local Authority consortia expenditure and proposed distribution of transfer out based on Mainstream Schools

Sector
Consortia Local Authority Consortia 2013-14 Transfer Out based Difference from Transfer Out based on Difference
budgets net of on mainstream 2013-14 Budgets Mainstream Schools from 2013-
income and grant schools sector distribution scaled in line 14 Budgets
revenue with South East Consortia
(a)
Amount (£) % Amount (£) % Amount (£) % Amount (£) % Share Amount (£)
Share Share Share
Anglesey £360,800 2.2% £367,906 2.3% £7,106 0.0% £435,073.70 2.3% £74274
B Gwynedd £634,304 3.9% £648,257 4.0% £13,953 0.1% £766,607.69 4.0% £132,304
g Conwy £552,640 3.4% £573,346 3.5% £20,706 0.1% £678,020.37 3.5% £125,380
Denbighshire £539,264 3.3% £545,654 3.4% £6,390 0.0% £645,272.71 3.4% £106,009
g Flintshire £788,128 4.9% £818,362 5.0% £30,234 0.2% £967,768.35 5.0% £179,640
Wrexham £644,864 4.0% £681,942 42% £37,078 0.2% £806,442.48 4.2% £161,578
Sub total £3,5620,000 21.7% £3,635,467 22.4% £115,467 0.7% £4,299,185.30 22.4% £779,185
Powys £813,250 5.0% £693,524 4.3% -£119,726 -0.7% £820,138.98 4.3% £6,889
Ceredigion £470,750 2.9% £365,586 2.3% -£105,164 -0.6% £432,330.14 2.3% -£38,420
Pembrokeshire £610,250 3.8% £669,959 41% £59,709 0.4% £792,271.77 4.1% £182,022
E Carmarthenshire £992,000 6.1% £1,000,607 6.2% £8,607 0.1% £1,183,285.37 6.2% £191,285
Swansea £993,250 6.1% £1,197,996 7.4% £204,746 1.3% £1,416,711.19 7.4% £423,461
Neath Port Talbot £707,500 4.4% £754,452 4.6% £46,952 0.3% £892,190.45 4.6% £184,690
Sub total £4,687,000 28.3% £4,682,124 28.8% £95,124 0.6% £5,636,927.91 28.8% £949,928
Bridgend £693,359 4.3% £755,003 4.7% £61,644 0.4% £892,842.05 4.7% £199,483
g Vale of Glamorgan £651,860 4.0% £700,208 4.3% £48,348 0.3% £828,043.26 4.3% £176,183
= Rhondda Cynon Taf £1,250,876 7.7% £1,341,118 8.3% £90,242 0.6% £1,585,962.63 8.3% £335,087
,g Merthyr Tydfil £295,094 1.8% £318,843 2.0% £23,749 0.1% £377,053.39 2.0% £81,959
8 Cardiff £1,525,297 9.4% £1,648,302 10.2% £123,005 0.8% £1,949,228 .46 10.2% £423,931
Sub total £4,416,486 27.2% £4,763,474 29.3% £346,988 21% £5,633,129.78 29.3% £1,216,644
Caerphilly £1,133,580 7.0% £1,026,964 6.3% -£106,616 -0.7% £1,214,454.30 6.3% £80,874
b7 Blaenau Gwent £423,953 2.6% £370,663 2.3% -£53,290 -0.3% £438,334.04 2.3% £14,381
@ Torfaen £760,016 4.7% £531,326 3.3% -£228,690 -1.4% £628,328.89 3.3% -£131,687
Monmouthshire £468,403 2.9% £425,265 2.6% -£43,138 -0.3% £502,904.59 2.6% £34,502
§ Newport £926,421 5.7% £800,576 4.9% -£125,845 -0.8% £946,735.20 4.9% £20,314
Sub total £3,712,373 22.9% £3,154,794 19.4% -£557,579 -3.4% £3,730,757.01 19.4% £18,384
Wales £16,235,859 100.0% £16,235,859 100.0% £0 0.0% £19,200,000.00 100.0% £2,964,141
Notes

Scaling factor of 1.182 used to scale in line with South East Consortia 2013-14 budget levels.



Table 2: Required Local Authority minimum contributions for 2014-15,
based on the 2014-15 Mainstream Schools SSA

SSA Formula
Region Local Authority 2014-15 Percentage
Mainstream distribution
Schools Sector
distribution
Isle of Anglesey 422,621 2.3%
2 Gwynedd 740,733 4.0%
s Conwy 652,994 3.5%
E Denbighshire 623,793 3.4%
‘g Flintshire 933,484 5.0%
2 Wrexham 782,631 4.2%
Sub total 4,156,256 22.4%
Powys 786,048 4.2%
Ceredigion 414 511 2.2%
= Pembrokeshire 759,950 4.1%
E Carmarthenshire 1,141,069 6.2%
Swansea 1,370,773 7.4%
Neath Port Talbot 850,288 4.6%
Sub total 5,322,639 28.7%
= Bridgend 862,092 4.6%
g The Vale of Glamorgan 799,973 4.3%
€N Rhondda Cynon Taf 1,531,657 8.3%
g Merthyr Tydfil 359,863 1.9%
= Cardiff 1,917,619 10.3%
© Sub total 5,471,204 29.5%
Caerphilly 1,169,666 6.3%
2 Blaenau Gwent 417,511 2.3%
'-_'CJ Torfaen 600,536 3.2%
= Monmouthshire 481,642 2.6%
o Newport 934,254 5.0%
Sub total 3,603,609 19.4%
Wales 18,553,708 100.0%

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 78



Agenda Item 6

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014
REPORT BY: DIRECTOR OF LIFELONG LEARNING
SUBJECT: SCHOOL FUNDING FORMULA REVIEW

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To update Cabinet Members on the outcome of the consultation
regarding the Flintshire Schools’ Funding Formula review and to
approve the new formula from April 2014.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  The current school funding formula which is used to delegate funding
to Flintshire schools was inherited from the former Clwyd County
Council with its roots dating back to the introduction of Local
Management of Schools in 1988. Much of the information used is
based on the position of Flintshire schools at that time. Although the
formula has been incrementally updated there are many factors and
elements within the current formula that lack a clear educational or
operational rationale.

2.02 Many changes have taken place within schools since the formula was
developed. The Welsh Government has introduced new initiatives and
whilst more distribution methods have been added to historical
arrangements, there has been no fundamental review by the Authority
of the overall methodology for funding schools until recently. It has
long been acknowledged by schools, officers and members that a
review of the formula was long overdue.

2.03 A long and detailed process has been undertaken in Flintshire to
review both the Primary and Secondary formulae. A key role has
been played by project groups. These groups were established to
drive the development of a new set of principles which would underpin
the allocation of resources to schools. The groups comprised officer,
headteacher and governor representation. In addition to this there
has been ongoing consultation and discussion with stakeholders
through the Schools Budget Forum and Heads Federation Groups.

Page 79



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

CONSIDERATIONS

Consultation documents were issued for primary and secondary schools which
set out the proposed key principles and cost drivers which had been
considered and developed by the project groups. Schools and other
stakeholders were encouraged to complete a questionnaire which formed part
of the consultation document.

We received 35 responses to the primary consultation from 27 schools. A
summary of the responses is shown at Appendix 1.

We received 11 responses to the secondary consultation from 10 schools. A
summary of the responses is shown at Appendix 2.

The majority of responses to both the Primary and Secondary consultations
were supportive of the proposals.

In addition to the formal consultation a significant amount of informal
consultation has taken place through attendance at consortium meetings, 1:1
meetings with Headteachers, and attendance at governor and union meetings.
Both informal and formal consultation have been invaluable in developing the
final design of the funding models.

Some key funding policy issues were discussed through the primary
consultation. Firstly, respondents were generally in favour of restricting
headteacher teaching commitment to 0.5 even in the smallest school and
reducing headteacher teaching commitment to 0 in bigger schools from 240
pupils to 210. Secondly, some respondents raised concern that Planning,
Preparation and Assessment time would be costed at HLTA rates in the
funding model. Some schools have provided cover through Higher Level
Teaching Assistants and specialist coaching arrangements whilst others have
provided cover through teachers since the National Workload Agreement in
2003. In each case, there is no clear view on where funding could be
withdrawn to reallocate to these areas.

Whilst we acknowledge the responses raised in 3.03 above to the consultation
points, at this time there are insufficient funds available to provide additional
funding to schools on this basis. However, the formula review has provided an
opportunity to highlight and debate these issues and we would propose that
they should be taken forward as a policy debate in the future as funding
becomes available for additional investment.

Primary sector formula impacts were issued to Headteachers on Monday 27
January 2014. Officers attended the Primary Heads Federation on the 28
January 2014 to discuss the impacts of the formula review. Appendix 3 shows
the detailed impact on individual schools. The graph below provides a
summary of impacts.

Page 80



3.06

4.00

20.0%

Formula Impact

4 Change %

— ——-Linear (Change %)

15.0% A%
10.0% =
S A
g o
©
=
S 50% .
[ A AA 4
S L, A 4
3 T o . .
A B S S
0.0% x Pt : e —e :
4180 200 4800 Zolo R - 500
a A at P A
A, A A .
-5.0%
A A
-10.0% - Pupils

Secondary schools formula impacts were issued to schools before Christmas
and a number of meetings have been held with the Secondary Heads
Federation to consider the outcome. Table 1 below shows the total impact on
Secondary schools of the new formula based on 2013/14 funding values and
the effect in year 1 after the 75% transitional dampening for each school. The

maximum negative impact in year 1 is 0.6%.

Table 1: Secondary Impacts Due To New Formula

Year 1
Change | Change | Year 1 %

School £ % Impact | Impact
Elfed High, Buckley 1,861 0.1% 465 0.0%
Connah's Quay High -4,268 -0.1% -1,067 0.0%
John Summers High 542 0.0% 136 0.0%
Flint High 26,296 1.0% 6,574 0.3%
St Richard Gwyn 28,791 0.9% 7,198 0.2%
Hawarden High -20,941 -0.6% -5,235 -0.1%
Holywell High -16,923 -0.8% -4,231 -0.2%
Castell Alun 14,693 0.4% 3,673 0.1%
Mold Alun -115,677 -2.5% | -28,919 -0.6%
Maes Garmon 14,260 0.7% 3,565 0.2%
Argoed 49,281 20% | 12,320 0.5%
St David's High 22,087 1.1% 5,622 0.3%

RECOMMENDATIONS

Based on 13/14 values

Page 81




4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.02

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

Cabinet approve the implementation of the revised funding formulas for
primary and secondary schools, inclusive of proposed transitional dampening
arrangements.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The revision to the formula is modelled within existing resources and so has no
impact on the Council budget. Individually schools may see an increase or
decrease in their budgets in comparison to the current formula. Transition
arrangements will be implemented over a three year period to allow schools
with reduced levels of funding to make the necessary adjustments.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

The formula allocates funding to mitigate the impact of deprivation. Pupil
Deprivation Grant (PDG) also allocates funding to support individual learners
from local income families.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

The aim of the formula is to ensure that all schools received a ‘fair’ share of the
funding available.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Schools will have to consider the impact of any changes in funding. The
redistribution of resources is mitigated in individual schools through transitional
arrangements. Schools do need to plan their provision within allocated
resources through the formula, specific grants and other sources.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Schools Budget Forum 11/2/14
Lifelong Learning Overview & Scrutiny 30/1/14
Cabinet 18/02/14

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Secondary Consultation Document issued 2/10/13
Primary Consultation Document issued 21/10/13

School Budget Forum 23/01/14

Lifelong Learning Scrutiny Overview & Scrutiny 30/01/14
Flintshire Governors Association

Elected Member Workshop

Page 82



12.00

12.01

Primary and Secondary Heads Federations

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Responses to Primary Consultation
Appendix 2 - Responses to Secondary Consultation
Appendix 3 — Primary Impacts by School

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None.

Contact Officer: Lucy Morris
Telephone: 01352 704016
Email: Lucy.morris@flintshire.qov.uk

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 84



PRIMARY FORMULA CONSULTATION ANALYSIS

Appendix 1
Flintshire County Council
Schools Funding Formula Review
Primary Consultation Response Analysis

This document sets out the responses to the consultation document that was issued by
Flintshire County Council on the proposals for the primary schools funding formula. A
summary of the key comments is also included.

There were 35 questionnaires returned.

Consultation Point 1

Transitional arrangements should be applied to reduce the impact of any changes in funding
to schools in accordance with the table set out in 1.13 of the report.

Agree | 25 (71%) | Disagree | 10

Comments

This facility would give schools the time to restructure if needed.

If stability is maintained in our school, all well and good. We need further explanation
regarding this. It depends if you are a 'winner' or a 'loser', without figures it is difficult to give
an honest comment. Transitional arrangements must be set out clearly if all parties are to
understand the implications

A table showing the potential monetary value of the percentage affect, would have helped to
guide response

It is important to be fair but schools should be told as soon as possible of the impact of the
changes.

Question as to ability to handle Single Status and Formula change at same time.

Transition should be 2 year max to encourage schools to make difficult decisions.

Consultation Point 2

The two date pupil count will be retained for Primary schools.

Agree | 33 (94%) | Disagree | 2

Comments

A two count system is essential.

Two date count would mean that the monetary support needed for an increase in pupil
numbers would be timely.

Could date be altered, to allow for late admissions during October - seems to be a common
trend over past years.

Single Count allows for quicker budgeting, and trends may allow for identification of growth.

Page 85



PRIMARY FORMULA CONSULTATION ANALYSIS

Consultation Point 3

It is proposed that all primary pupils are recognised in the funding formula at their full-time
equivalent value.

Agree | 33 (97%) | Disagree | 1

Comment

If the school is able to maintain current staffing levels, then | would agree. We are working at
the bare minimum at the moment. But would welcome this proposal, but also would welcome
clarification regarding reception weightings.

Several comments querying the gap between Year 6 and Year 7 (KS2 vs KS3) funding. (188,
203)

This should also include the part time pupils because they need all the facilities including staff
in order to operate effectively.

Would urge that the new formula takes account of the need for higher ratios of staff and
increased number of 'consumables' used in the FP.

Providing this means that Reception is counted as 1

Consultation Point 4

The Primary School formula should include an element for leadership and management. This
will comprise a lump sum for the baseline costs which are not linked to the size of a school.

In addition there will be an amount per full time equivalent pupil recognising that the cost of
leadership and management increases with the size of the school.

Agree | 33 (97%) | Disagree | 1

Comment

If it allows us to have the current members of staff stabilised on current leadership spine and
funding matches this to allow us to operate on current levels - difficult to be fully in agreement
without having the figures

Consultation Point 5

The formula should recognise that headteachers require management time. In larger schools
with non-teaching headteachers there is a requirement for additional non-teaching
management time.

The scale of protected management time is subject to variation dependent on the size of
school.

Agree | 32 (94%) | Disagree | 2

Comment

Most definitely
Small school should be encouraged to federate to enable an increase in management time for
their own school. Large schools dealing with high pupil levels have increased workload.

Page 86



PRIMARY FORMULA CONSULTATION ANALYSIS

Option 1

The maximum amount of time that a headteacher should be presumed to be teaching
should be 0.7 for a school of up to 30 pupils, reducing to zero at 240 pupils.

Agree | 4 (13%) | Disagree | 262

Comment

Not at all possible: Paid as 0.7 HT but actually they are 1.0HT and 0.7 CT.

A teaching load of 0.7 would make it very difficult to carry out HT functions.

There are four aspects to consider — curriculum management; building management and
Health & Safety attached, staff management and home contact.Although curriculum
management imposes similar pressures on everybody — large buildings require more
attention H&S, maintenance etc and a large team of staff puts pressure on leaders (as
managing people is the most challenging aspect).

On minimum HT commitment: An alternative of 0.7 up to 30 pupils, going down to zero at 200
pupils, (but at the same time appreciate that this may reduce the amount of funding available
to distribute under other elements).

Don't want to funds coming from elsewhere. | have a .5 teaching commitment with 142 pupils
on roll. This is not really going to reduce my commitment, unless | have an influx of 80 pupils.
What about schools in the middle? Will any concessions be given? The wording implies a
sliding scale and we would like to have the figures confirmed.

Option 2

The maximum amount of time that a headteacher should be presumed to be teaching
should 0.5 for a school of 30 pupils reducing to zero at 210 pupils.

Agree | 27 (77%) | Disagree | 8

Comment

The HT of a small school has the same admin as that of a large school and often without full
time clerical support.

Also supported: Maximum teaching time for a Headteacher should not exceed 0.5 and
preferably should be a lower maximum.

Consultation Point 6

Split Site and federated schools to receive additional non-teaching allowances for the
leadership team.

Agree | 27 (77%) | Disagree | 8

Comment

Fully agree. But will the quality of leadership within school be effected?

Only if this had an overall cost saving effect on the budget.

Distance between sites should be taken into account.

There are huge challenges to leading a school in two buildings. These can be largely
addressed by full time admin and reception support in each building and leadership non-

Page 87



PRIMARY FORMULA CONSULTATION ANALYSIS

contact time when head is off site.

Travel time between sites may be factored in but otherwise should not attract additional
funding.

The HT should not teach and also any leadership/ management team should receive non-
teaching allowance to assist HT.

Essential for the success of amalgamated schools.

Consultation Point 7

Teacher funding should be allocated to Primary schools based on the number of classes
required to accommodate their pupil numbers.

Agree | 22 (69%) | Disagree | 10

Comment

Proposal seems cumbersome, not transparent and not facilitating longer term forecasting.
Schools will be penalised for having classes with less than 30 pupils if they have appropriate
school places. A hybrid solution would be a fairer alternative.

This needs more discussion as it may force schools to have combinations of year groups
which would be difficult to manage due to a large physical space.

Unfair - this would result in some schools getting significantly more per pupil than others.
Although we agree with this proposal we would like to see the MCSW updated as well as
recalculated on a regular basis

Cannot agree on a formula for calculating teacher staffing costs without the figures. | am only
concerned with being able to keep current staffing levels and hopefully have a little flexibility
to increase in the future.

Classroom assistant support should be enhanced where there are more than two mixed age
classes e.g. 3/4/5/6.

This would be much fairer to schools that have small dimension classrooms and so have had
their admissions numbers cut. No class should be for more than 2 age groups, but the old
formula causes small schools to put Years 3, 4, 5 and 6 together or all the 4 year groups of
Foundation Phase.

There should be a recognised formula for this instead of a case by case basis.

The governors and head disagree with this proposal. A unanimous decision that all money
should be distributed on pupil numbers only. Not on class or class sizes.

As long as the data used is accurate and upto date - there are anomalies.

Consultation Point 8

Cross phase classes will be assumed in the funding model in accordance with current
practice and funding availability.

Agree | 21 (64%) | Disagree | 12

Comment

As long as the data used is accurate and up to date - there are anomalies.

Equal Opportunities / Equality and Diversity — All schools should avoid cross-phase classes.
Difficult due to the different curriculum in FP and KS2.

All schools should avoid cross-phase classes.

We would prefer the Review to state clearly that while such arrangements are necessary in

Page 88



PRIMARY FORMULA CONSULTATION ANALYSIS

some situations they should not be the norm.

Should only be used as a last resort and only if the same applies to ALL schools both Welsh
and English medium.

This should not be JUST for Welsh medium - NO school should have cross-phase.

Consultation Point 9

Welsh Medium schools to be funded to avoid the necessity of cross-phase classes.

Agree | 17 (50%) | Disagree | 17

Comment

As per Equal Opportunities / Equality and Diversity — All schools should avoid cross-phase
classes, not just Welsh Medium schools.

There should be equality across all schools.

Equality is required

Most welcome proposal as it recognises that Welsh medium schools have to operate
differently from other schools.

Welsh medium should be given extra funding in order to ensure that these pupils have to be
of an equal standard in both Welsh and English by the time they leave the primary school -
i.e. their English on par with English medium schools although Welsh is not on par in English
schools.

Teaching English within a cross-phase class poses problems.

Consultation Point 10

Teacher Funding will be at M6, with an adjustment if average teacher costs are higher, but
not penalising a school where the average cost is lower.

Agree | 29 (85%) | Disagree | 5

Comment

This principle should go a long way to avoid the current discrimination on grounds of
age/experience. i.e. appointing a NQT rather than an experienced teacher on cost grounds.
Similarly, teachers should not be denied access to the UPS on cost grounds.

For the long term, this proposal does not encourage movement of teaching staff, however in
the short term avoids possible redundancies.

Agreed if schools not penalised for having experienced staff.

Some comments urged funding for the staff they have, and that Leadership posts counted as
UPS 3 in determining average.

All schools should be given the funding to pay the actual staff in the school.

Need confirmation that current leadership, UPS & TLR costs will also be honoured.

Page 89



PRIMARY FORMULA CONSULTATION ANALYSIS

Consultation Point 11

It is proposed that the Foundation Phase grant is incorporated into the formula funding and
allocated on the required ratios and grades of staff required to meet the Foundation Phase
regulations.

Agree | 33(97%) | Disagree | 1

Comment

If not agreed to, this could affect the effective implementation of the Foundation Phase.

We agree on the basis that the funding that is currently allocated to FP should be the
minimum amount added to the current budget to maintain the allocations and provision.

As long as we can maintain our current Foundation Phase staffing levels. We do not want to
go into a situation where we have to make redundancies. This has always been recognised
under the present system. The different grades needed in FP needed to be more
transparent.

Would prefer it to remain as a separate grant until such time as the funding is absorbed into
Flintshire's annual financial Welsh Government settlement.

Concern that funding would not be maintained at current levels.

Consultation Point 12

Funding for PPA cover is based on the number of classes deemed necessary and is based
on HLTA rates.

Agree | 14(42%) | Disagree | 19

Comment

PPA cover has always been a high priority and when possible all classes have been taught by
qualified teachers.

As PPA is statutory the funding should be statutory.

Teacher to cover teacher

We feel it should be based on teacher rates in KS2 with the additional funding not being
diverted from another element within the budget

Teacher rate at KS2 and HLTA in Foundation Phase.

Not based on the number of classes deemed necessary but on NOR. Better to base on
number of teachers than number of classes. However no problem with proposal to being
funded on H.L.T.A pay rate basis.

In reality classroom assistants cannot maintain behaviour and standards in many KS2 classes
— therefore we have to place a TEACHER in the class. Is it possible to have funding for 2-3
teachers initially for schools with over 100 children in the KS2, and then fund HLTA
afterwards.

Page 90



PRIMARY FORMULA CONSULTATION ANALYSIS

Consultation Point 13

Key Stage 2 Classroom support to be based on a per pupil (KS2) allocation.

Agree | 31(94%) | Disagree | 2

Comment

We welcome this, especially in our school where we are unable to employ a permanent
teaching assistant in KS2 - We would also welcome the ratio of pupil per teaching assistant in
KS2.

Broadly welcomed on a per pupil basis.

This should be on a per class basis as every class needs classroom support.

If it is just per pupil then - disagree. If it reflects the wide spread of age groups within a KS2
class then -agree. Yrs 3, 4, 5 & 6 together regardless of number of pupils needs 2 TAs to help
provide effective differentiated activities.

Consultation Point 14

The formula recognises the need for schools to be able to provide an administrative point of
contact at all times.

Agree | 34 (97%) | Disagree | 1

Comment

Minimum requirement — H&S considerations.

Health & Safety Issues

This should enable ALL schools no matter what size to have a full time secretary / admin
support on a full time basis. This is especially true in smaller sized schools (like ours) where
the Head is teaching at times when no secretarial support is available. When secretary is part
time the HT also has to carry out admin tasks. Is this a good use of their time? s it
academically viable?

This would be a major factor in reducing disruption to teaching / learning. It should not mean
the HT in small schools having to provide that point of contact - all schools should have full
time admin especially if HT release is less in schools under 50.

Seen as an important principle and also addresses Health & Safety Issues.

Dependent on the size of school. Federated schools could have one call point.

This should enable ALL schools no matter what size to have a full time secretary / admin
support on a full time basis. This is especially true in smaller sized schools where the Head is
teaching at times when no secretarial support is available. When secretary is part time the
HT also has to carry out admin tasks.

Will larger schools have commensurate increases to their admin budget as smaller schools as
the workload increases exponentially?!

Page 91



PRIMARY FORMULA CONSULTATION ANALYSIS

Consultation Point 15

Funding for administration (including meals) and mid-day supervision be merged. The funding
to be allocated to Primary schools through a lump sum allocation and a per pupil amount.

Agree | 28 (85%) | Disagree | 5

Comment

Much of the work involved in organising the provision of mid-day meals and their supervision
could be provided by the agency that supplies the meals.

If we are able to maintain current staffing levels - difficult to agree or disagree without figures.
Could ratio for mid-day supervision be clarified and not reduced? Sufficient supervision must
be provided no matter the size of school to meet H&S regulations and protect the breaktime
of staff.

As long as funding is allocated on the basis of full time admin point of contact; plus other
administrative costs as well as mid-day supervision. Sufficient supervision must be provided
no matter the size of school to meet H&S regulations and protect the break-times of staff.
Governors don't agree with an unknown lump sum percentage.

The evidence provided to support this proposal is insufficient and there appears to be no
recognition of the importance of ensuring that the staff ratios for supervision at lunch times
are adequate.

Consultation Point 16

A deprivation indicator is established comprising the following factors:

e FSM
e WIMD data - absolute ranking of schools
e WIMD data — ranking based on pupils on roll

Each factor would have equal weighting.

Agree | 25 (76%) | Disagree | 8

Comment

This is an improved mechanism for identification of pupils in accordance with Equality and
Diversity policies and H&S.

Categories needed financial explanation with figures. Rationale for WIMD needs clarification
Why? This creates less transparency.

Page 92



PRIMARY FORMULA CONSULTATION ANALYSIS

Consultation Point 17

Deprivation funding is allocated to all Primary schools using the deprivation indicator.
[Consultation point 18 offers an alternative allocation].

Agree | 29 (91%) | Disagree |3

Comment

In accordance with point 16 above.

Would funding be allocated per pupil or by post code of the school?

Some comments point out that the proposal is complex for relatively small amounts of
funding.

Support for both FSM and WIMD (alone) distribution.

An allocation on the basis of FSM eligibility / entitlement is all that is required as this would
then tie in with how the Welsh Government allocates their Pupil Deprivation Grant.

FSM should have 50% weighting, WIMD data (absolute ranking) 25% and WIMD data (pupils
on roll) 25%.

Using FSM as the only basis for allocating expenditure is misleading.

Preference for funding to be allocated to all schools in proportion to deprivation indicator
(whichever is used).

The PDG would support those schools in areas of deprivation.

Some schools already benefit from PDG, while all schools have a degree of deprivation.

Consultation Point 18

Deprivation funding is targeted to Primary schools with the highest level of deprivation as
identified by the deprivation indicator. [Consultation point 17 offers an alternative allocation].

Agree | 4 (13%) | Disagree | 28

Comment

The most deprived schools should get the most funding

It should be targeted at where it will have the most impact.

The funding is aimed at schools operating in areas with high incidences of deprivation 'Leafy
suburb' schools have many streams of funding not available in deprived areas - professional
sponsorships through local businesses / industry / parental links, contributions from PTA
raising significant amounts of money etc.

Consultation Point 19

There will be a single formula for the premises allocation.

Agree | 28 (93%) | Disagree | 2

Comment

We agree to this under the assumption that this is just for day to day maintenance and
utilities, not fabric of the building.

Considerable concern expressed that without seeing the impact on budgets it would be
difficult to understand the implications.

Page 93



PRIMARY FORMULA CONSULTATION ANALYSIS

As long as it takes into account the needs of the building - eg we have to have lights on all
year round due to the lack of natural daylight in the building.

The simplicity is persuasive.

As long as lump sum and top up is going to cover expenditure on repairs and maintenance,
grounds, caretaking, cleaning and utilities with some to spare. Need to be aware of age of
premises and condition.

The age and adaptability of any premises should be considered at all times - new buildings do
not need the maintenance that older buildings need, and should be more energy efficient.
Will the energy efficiency rating of the building be factored in, and the location?

Please allow for schools which have to buy costly LPG for their mobile classrooms.

School building will always remain the same size regardless of pupil numbers!

Consultation Point 20

The formula for the premises allocation will be a combination of a lump sum amount, a per
pupil allocation and an allocation based on area.

Agree | 24 (83%) | Disagree | 5

Comment

We feel this is an inappropriate question as part of a consultation process.

Definition of 'area' needed

As long as it is able to cover all our costs as it currently stands - again difficult to agree or
disagree without figures. Clarification needed on allocation based on area

The caretakers have been given contracts agreed on floor space historically, this will need to
be covered especially in light of single status.

Consultation Point 21

There will be an enhancement to the utilities allocation for Primary schools providing meals to
other schools, and for those not having access to mains heating fuel.

Agree | 30 (91%) | Disagree | 3

Comment

This needs to be considered on an individual basis as schools have very differing
circumstances even under these headings as a school may provide only ten meals to another
school, whereas some schools may provide 100, these are very different amounts of costing
to take into account.

Case for case consideration needed

With the escalating costs of energy, the proposed arrangement is far more equitable than the
current position.

We suggest that the allocation is based on actual costs.

Page 94



PRIMARY FORMULA CONSULTATION ANALYSIS

Consultation Point 22

There will be a single formula allocation for supplies and services.

Agree | 31 (97%) | Disagree | 1

Comment

Simplification broadly welcomed.

Consultation Point 23

The formula for the allocation of Supplies and Services to Primary schools will comprise a
lump sum and a per pupil allocation.

Agree | 29 (91%) | Disagree | 3

Comment

Difficult to agree or disagree without figures.

Some concern expressed that without seeing the impact on budgets it would be difficult to
understand the implications.

As long as lump sum covers at least minimum requirements.

Single allocation better as if pupil numbers reduce then there will still be the same amount of
services needed for those pupils that are left. Will this be based on size?

Consultation Point 24

KS2 pupils will attract a premium per pupil in recognition of additional curriculum
requirements.

Agree | 33 (97%) | Disagree | 1

Comment

Very welcome

For amalgamations of Junior and Infant departments, there should be a buffering of base
funding whilst the new funding formula is introduced. These would be special circumstances
and applied in the event of schools which may lose a significant amount of funding from the
new funding formula.

An additional allocation of administration and Leadership has already been given so no
further additional amount would be required.

KS2 consistently underfunded in comparison to FP.

Although we agree we are mindful of the costs of the FP where staff ratios are high and more
‘consumables' required.

Page 95



PRIMARY FORMULA CONSULTATION ANALYSIS

Consultation Point 25

Welsh Medium schools will receive a premium for supplies and services.

Agree | 21 (75%) | Disagree | 7

Comment

We recognise the additional costs incurred for providing Welsh medium resources through
translation etc., however we feel that additional funding should be provided from WG for this
so as not to penalise other schools within the county by a reduction in their budgets as a
result.

Again the fact that Welsh medium schools are bilingual and that the pupils learn both Welsh
and English to the same degree, additional resources are need for such schools.

Children who receive free school meals, LAC or EAL children should also be taken into
account as expensive extra resources are also required for them.

English medium schools do have to purchase supplies and resources for Welsh as a second
language curriculum need. EAL children also need support and resources in their own
languages.

What additional costs do they have?

Translation and Welsh books are expensive.

We deliver 2 curriculums and 2 literacy and numeracy framework! Also all our documentation
is bi-lingual prospectus, policies etc and therefore admin costs are higher.

Need to consider doubled costs for Welsh medium requirements — combine this with the lump
sum and allocation per pupil.

Agree in relation to teaching and learning resources only.

Why? Can this be clarified?

Consultation Point 26

There will be a formula allocation for Additional Needs to include a lump sum for the ANCO.

Agree | 34 (97%) | Disagree | 1

Comment

Governors don't agree with an unknown lump sum percentage. This should be given based
on need.

Consideration must be given to schools in deprived areas as they have significantly higher
incidences of pupils with SEN. This will be particularly important as school support becomes
allocated to schools. This is a future time-bomb for SEN Tribunals.

Agree to an extent but it seems as if statemented children will be losing out. However,
funding is needed for each ALNCo.

It is very much to be deplored that some schools do not recognise the ALNCo in salary terms.
The more children on the ALN register, the more paperwork associated with this and the more
contact with external agencies — so more ALNCo TIME is required (Time = Costs).

Page 96



PRIMARY FORMULA CONSULTATION ANALYSIS

Consultation Point 27
The remaining funds to be allocated by the weighted numbers of :

¢ Pupils on the Special Needs Register at stages : School Action, School Action
Plus, and Statemented

o Pupils on the EAL register at each stage of language acquisition

e Pupils who are in care (LAC).

Agree | 28 (88%) | Disagree | 4

Comment

Including School Action would possibly create an increase in fund allocation unless there
were independent criteria allocated.

Should consider pupils from the Gypsy and Traveller communities which tend to be transient.
Traveller pupils should also have a weighting equal to EAL.

As School Action is not moderated, using School Action Plus, Statemented, LAC and EAL
would be better measures.

Funding should be available when required and assessment undertaken quicker.

Will there be adjustment during the school year (our school has just had to take 3 SEN pupils
which have a huge impact).

Weighting should be higher for SAP then less for statemented as they already have support in
place. SAP are regulated numbers as they must have outside agency involvement.
Currently significantly underfunded. Many children with specific learning difficulties are not
supported appropriately due to lack of funding.

There needs to be additional funding.

Don't statemented pupils receive funding from elsewhere?

Funding should be available when required and assessment undertaken quicker

Consultation Point 28

There will be a formula allocation for Split site / Federated schools, based on the lump sum
elements within the overall formula.

Agree | 25 (81%) | Disagree | 6

Comment

Although we agree we recognise that this is complicated and will require more in depth study
in the future.

Page 97



PRIMARY FORMULA CONSULTATION ANALYSIS

Consultation Point 29

Additional travel costs associated with a split site or federated schools will be recognised by
an allowance based on the separation of the premises.

Agree | 27 (84%) | Disagree | 5

Comment

The potential additional costs (which are not directly associated with teaching and learning) of
operating federated or split site schools needs to be fully considered when determining such
arrangements in future.

This would need to be dependent on the spread of schools, ones that have sites close
together would not need additional funding.

At the County mileage rate

Other Comments
Important that review facilitates forecasting for years 2 and 3.

Recognition that each school contributes to the available resources within the County, and
that could be encouraged by a limit on the number of children that can attend larger
schools, and the promotion of smaller settings as a sound alternative for pupils who can
fare better in smaller classes with more individualised attention.

Introduction — Paragraph 1.6 says that the funding formula is a mechanism for distributing
funds to schools and by so doing provides a single total budget. It goes on to say that it is
not intended to fund or set budgets for individual categories of expenditure within schools.
However, under the proposals a number of the Elements in paragraph 2.1 in my opinion
would appear to contradict these statements as they appear to allude to specific areas of
expenditure. Whilst | can appreciate the need for greater transparency in letting schools
see how the new formula is to be calculated we also need to strike a balance so as not to
take away from schools their autonomy in deciding how they wish to spend this budget.

Approach — Paragraph 1.10 talks of consultation on the principles and not of the impact of
the new proposals on individual school budgets. If more time was available, bearing in mind
that these Consultation Documents were over 3 weeks late in coming out, | could perhaps
accept this concept but unfortunately we have not been afforded this luxury and we now
find ourselves in a position where we, as schools, could be agreeing to a new formula
which could seriously affect our funding and our ability therefore to achieve the 4 main
objectives outlined in the Introduction. | acknowledge that to mitigate this effect you
propose to introduce Transitional Arrangements over a 3 year period.

In conclusion, whilst | commend the vast amount of work that has been undertaken in
getting the Formula Review to the stage where it is currently at | firmly believe that there is
still an awful lot of work to be done over the next few months if a new Formula is to be
agreed and implemented by April, 1% 2014. The decision by Flintshire to consult only on
principles and not on the impact on individual schools will only add to this workload and in
my opinion was not the right decision.

Page 98



From the information provided within the Consultation Document and also from information
gleaned from the few Working Group meetings that | attended | am still not 100%
convinced that this proposed new Formula is going to help Flintshire achieve its desired
aims as stated in Paragraph 1.7 of the Introduction i.e. transparency, simplification and
greater predictability of resources for future years. | fear that the proposed formula is still
too complicated and will not meet the needs of schools who wish to understand fully how
their budgets are calculated and also will not provide schools with the means to predict any
changes to their budgets in future years which may arise from changed circumstances
within the school e.g. a major change in pupil numbers.

A further point | would like to make is with regard to the Authority’s Section 52 Budget
Statement. The Welsh Government Regulations state that at least 70% of all Primary &
Secondary funding must be on the basis of pupil numbers. Is Flintshire confident therefore
that with the introduction of this proposed new Formula it will be able to achieve this limit?

Comments on Welsh Medium

Again, | hope consideration is given to the views of people who UNDERSTAND the
requirements of Welsh medium education and the system that exists in our Welsh medium
schools — often people who are connected to non-Welsh medium schools don’t really
understand the requirements of being COMPLETELY BILINGUAL on all levels.

It is vital that Flintshire LA show that it DOES fully understand the NEEDS of Welsh
Medium Schools.

It is not only funding for quality first language WELSH materials that is needed, but also
second language Welsh materialsacross ALL aspects of the curriculum —the
‘subjects/learning areas’ and the Welfare and Emotional Development (PSE) aspects; then
in to Language and Speech work — copies/books and exercises are needed in Welsh and
English — and all aspects of the Additional Learning Needs area also require equal
materials in both languages. In terms of the school’s every day resources — double the
paper etc is required for policies / letters / parent contact leaflets/ Governors’ reports and
termly Staff to parents reports. The TIME used by school staff — especially the Head to
complete the whole task is endless (often having to do translation work to the early hours of
the morning to fulfil the statutory requirements only). Time (Head and UDA) means money
— in order to seek quality daily translation/typing/admin support in the office to improve
‘work demands’ on school leaders.

Duplicating all policies and school letters is double the cost — paper and time — this has
never been recognised by Flintshire — and this consultation is a real opportunity to change
the way of thinking (which corresponds with and understands the Welsh Medium Education
Strategy).

As Welsh medium schools are bilingual schools and therefore, all documentation at all
levels are produced bilingually, which means that this takes double the time, double the
paper to produce them, double the number of copies e.g. for parents.

Curriculum resources are required in both Welsh and English as the pupils in Welsh
medium schools are completely bilingual by the time that they leave the school, and one of
their predominant skills is to be able to gain knowledge in one language and transfer it to
the other.

Therefore, these additional factors need to be identified and acknowledged when the
budget review is considered — especially so in this day and age when there is so much
emphasise on a bilingual Wales.

Page 99



PRIMARY FORMULA CONSULTATION ANALYSIS

January 2014

Page 100



SECONDARY FORMULA CONSULTATION ANALYSIS

Appendix 2
Flintshire County Council
Schools Funding Formula Review
Secondary Schools Consultation Response Analysis

This document sets out the responses to the consultation document that was issued by
Flintshire County Council on the proposals for the secondary schools funding formula. A
summary of the key comments is also included.

Consultation Point 1

Transitional arrangements should be applied to reduce the impact of any changes in
funding to schools in accordance with the table set out in 1.13 of the report.

Agree | 11 | Disagree |0
Comments

Need to show that any gain would be phased in as well.

Transitional arrangements as a requirement of this process, suggests that most schools
will have a reduction in budge

Given the fact that the maximum variation in schools' budgets will be 1% these are less
important. However, we agree with the principle that a dampening arrangement should
apply but only for a 1 year period.

We agree with this because any changes to school budgets have the potential to
destabilise a schools' staffing arrangements and curriculum offer.

Transitional arrangements should be applied to reduce the impact of any changes in
funding to schools in accordance with the table set out in 1.13 of the report

For 2014/15 there should be protection to address the Sept/April/Aug funding
arrangements. There should be no job losses as a result of the formula review.

Consultation Point 2

A single pupil count will be adopted for secondary schools.

Agree | 11 | Disagree |0
Comments

How will the change from 11 - 18 to 11 - 16 be managed in those schools with statutory
notice?

This is logical as there is limited variation in secondary school populations between
September and January.

The collection of this data in September will assist budget planning.

This is better than the adjustment model that existed in the past. Nevertheless
secondary school numbers are not always stable and some thought needs to be given to
how sudden and significant reductions in roll can impact a school's delivery of the
curriculum and its staffing levels.

Sensible minimises workload

Page 101



SECONDARY FORMULA CONSULTATION ANALYSIS

Consultation Point 3

The current AWPU values of 1.31 for KS3 and 1.72 for KS4 will be retained.

Agree | 11 | Disagree |0
Comments

Would have preferred using STPCD KS3/KS4 ratio, as this has external value

Given the limited information provided for 2014-15 within the consultation document
Governors would value further evidence of the accuracy of these ratios when considering
budgets for future years.

This makes sense as it links to the values that used in the STPCD

There is no rational for them to be changed

Consultation Point 4

The Secondary School formula should include an element for leadership and
management

Agree | 11 | Disagree |0
Comments

Good to see that consideration is given to the point that leadership / management are
equally required in small schools as well as larger ones!

Given the fact that, irrespective of their size, all schools require a headteacher and
leadership structure, the inclusion of this element is supported

This is more desirable and it should include leadership at all levels within the school's
staffing structure so middle as well as senior leaders. Does there need to be a
leadership and management element for support staff as well?

Leadership and management costs should be identified so that schools can benchmark
themselves on their spending for this element

Consultation Point 5

Secondary Schools should receive a lump sum and an amount per AWPU for leadership
and management.

Agree | 10 | Disagree | 1
Comments

There should be some incentive here to structure properly to manage cost.

Should be AWPU only. Would mean schools would need to rationalise their management
structures to be more efficient/cost effective. There are schools that are overstaffed in
terms of management where as others have made necessary changes.

The principle is cautiously supported. Funding must include a small base element to
recognise the needs of small schools, although this should be modest to encourage
federalisation. However, the funding should largely be based upon pupil numbers to
recognise the more complex leadership structure which is required to manage a large

Page 102



SECONDARY FORMULA CONSULTATION ANALYSIS

school efficiently.

t makes absolute sense to have a lump sum element as a school has to have a HT and a
DHT or AHT to act as HT in the HT's absence

It seems sensible to recognise the need for all schools to have a leadership and
management structure, whilst also taking account of the size of the school.

Consultation Point 6

Teacher funding should be allocated to secondary schools on an AWPU basis.

Agree | 11 | Disagree |0
Comments

This methodology for the allocation is logical to maintain pupil teacher ratios at their
current level
Teaching costs should be directly linked to pupil numbers

Consultation Point 7

There should be a top slice of teacher funding in the secondary sector of 1.5% which is
reallocated to schools by reference to the largest school to reflect that a lower PTR is
achievable in smaller schools at KS4.

Agree | 7 | Disagree | 4
Comments

Request for an explanation as to how this is calculated

If funding is on AWPU, no necessary slicing should be required. That would favour
smaller schools, and disadvantage larger schools, also it would de incentivise larger
school, support small school and not encouraging them to move to a position of attracting
better pupil numbers

This disadvantages larger schools. | do not agree with a 'top slice’, certainly not of this
magnitude.

Yes if School is small and fully subscribed, No if school is small and under-subscribed
Governors do not agree that top slicing is the correct mechanism to fund smaller schools
If this comes from the quantum should the smaller schools' allocations be deducted
before the top slice is made

| would need to see data and calculations to establish if the 1.5% figure is appropriate
Whilst this is agreed in principle, the size of the top slice should not adversely impact
upon the opportunities for pupils in all schools to be taught in broadly similar class sizes
irrespective of the size of the school.

Define largest schools and smaller schools as it is not clear how this will impact.

Consultation Point 8

The Welsh Medium school should continue to receive funding based on one additional
teacher for each of years 7 to 9 to facilitate teaching of children where Welsh is not their
first language.

Agree | 8 | Disagree | 3
Comments

Page 103



SECONDARY FORMULA CONSULTATION ANALYSIS

The level of funding in Welsh medium schools is already significantly higher than English
medium so this should be sufficient to meet this requirement.

Are the AWPU values of 1.31 for KS3 and 1.72 for KS4 the same for Welsh medium
schools? If you do the slicing as above, this also benefits the smaller Welsh medium
schools. What about other schools where resources are provided for pupils whose first
language is not English or Welsh

Immersion course provision at YMG is separate to Welsh Med. Provision and must be
staffed and timetabled differently. Clarification is required for the following points: 1. Pay
Scale for additional teacher; immersion course teaching is very specialist discipline and
requires an experienced practitioner. 2: WESP; In the light of Outcome 1 stating 'the
target is to achieve an increase in size by 100%' is anticipated that the numbers on the
immersion course will rise. The maximum class size is 15 according to the Welsh
Language Board. If pupil numbers increase beyond this figure in a particular academic
then funding for an additional teacher will be required.

Whilst it is acknowledged that there should be an element of enhancement to support the
'immersion' groups within the Welsh medium school, consideration should be given to the
scale of this enhancement

Consultation Point 9

Funding currently allocated as workload is amalgamated with support staff funding.

Agree | 10 | Disagree | 1
Comments

Would still like to see this line as remaining separate

The clarity of the budget will be supported by this funding being incorporated into support
staff funding

We agree. This makes absolute sense given that the funding is used for support staff to
ensure that the workforce reform arrangements are in place

A welcome simplification

Consultation Point 10

The funding identified for support staff is allocated to secondary schools through a lump
sum allocation and an AWPU amount.

Agree | 11 | Disagree |0
Comments

This principle is cautiously supported. Funding must include a small base element to
recognise the needs of small schools, although this should be modest to encourage
federalisation.

This needs to happen as well and this is clearly explained in the rationale in the
introduction to the formula review

Agree in principle, but in every secondary school pupil numbers should generate the
necessary funding and so any lump sum allocation should be kept small.

We are in broad agreement although English medium schools are facing the challenge of
increasing numbers pupils joining the school as EAL pupils and some provision needs to
be made for these.

Single status will have implications, even after the 2 year protection. This will need
reviewing.

Consultation Point 11

Page 104



SECONDARY FORMULA CONSULTATION ANALYSIS

The Welsh Medium school will receive an amount in respect of translation costs.

Agree | 11 | Disagree |0
Comments

Other high schools should therefore be able to access this service free of charge for
translation issues

This allocation is endorsed. It is presumed that this allocation will be based on a per
capita basis.

In order to promote clarity and consistency, and to assist schools in checking budget
allocations, it is proposed that the same methodology is used for the allocation of the
deprivation funding as is used for the allocation of the Pupil Deprivation Grant - based on
FSM numbers only,

This can be costed accurately using Single Status for a translator and the staff member
that provides specialist ICT/Admin support to produce translated documents

A balanced indictor would be appropriate

Consultation Point 12

A deprivation indicator is established comprising the following factors:

e FSM
e WIMD data - absolute ranking of schools
e WIMD date — ranking based on pupils on roll

Each factor would have equal weighting.

Agree | 10 | Disagree | 1
Comments

We broadly agree with this as using the three factors provides a better overview of
deprivation.
A long overdue element. Strongly agree.

Consultation Point 13

Deprivation funding is allocated to all secondary schools using the deprivation indicator.

Agree | 10 | Disagree | 1
Comments

All schools contain a proportion of pupils from deprived backgrounds; consequently, all
schools should receive a share of this limited amount of money.
Strongly agree that funding should be available to all schools to target at the appropriate

pupils

Page 105



SECONDARY FORMULA CONSULTATION ANALYSIS

Consultation Point 14

Deprivation funding is targeted to secondary schools with the highest level of deprivation
as identified by the deprivation indicator.

Agree | 4 | Disagree | 7
Comments

This would not provide an equitable distribution of funding to schools to support young
people from deprived circumstances.

We disagree strongly with this option. The adoption of this option would divert funding
from schools whose populations are slightly more advantaged overall

Deprivation must be targeted in ALL secondary schools if it is a factor

Strongly disagree - all schools will have individual pupils from deprived backgrounds and
therefore all schools should receive an appropriate share of the funding.

The objectives in 1.8 focus on narrowing the attainment gap. In schools where there is
greater deprivation reducing the gap is more of a challenge. If the proportion of deprived
children in school is greater than there needs to be adequate resource to support these
children and their families.

Consultation Point 15

There will be a single formula for allocating funding to secondary schools under the
heading of premises.

Agree | 10 | Disagree | 1
Comments

This opportunity to simplify this element of the budget is welcomed.

This makes sense, however this will need to be examined more closely when
modernisation is complete as in Holywell the primary and secondary schools will share
some facilities

A welcome simplification

Consultation Point 16

The formula for the premises allocation will be a combination of a lump sum amount, a per
pupil allocation and an allocation based on area.

Agree | 7 | Disagree | 4
Comments

All secondary schools should have an energy rating (DEC) as proposed by EU directive;
this should be used to drive utility bills costs on a sliding scale relating to outcome of the
assessment. The effect of a low energy rating outcome is not consistent or equitable for
the school and is only in the control of the authority. Area and pupil numbers take no
account of this factor.

The condition of a building based on suitability survey should be taken into account as
well as energy efficient ratings. This will be more complicated but would incentivise LA to
tackle unsuitable buildings more quickly.

Page 106



SECONDARY FORMULA CONSULTATION ANALYSIS

Whilst we support the principle of funding based on a lump sum allocation, and an
element based upon the number of pupils, care has to be exercised in relation to area.
Noting the current circumstances in some schools, where areas have been 'mothballed’
as a result of demographics, the element of the allocation related to area should
specifically relate to the area currently used for mainstream education

Should 'full' schools subsidise those that have spare capacity/area? Per pupil allocations
much fairer in my view

A balanced approach to the formula seems fairest

The area of a school should not be included in the formula

Consultation Point 17

There will be an enhancement to the premises allocation for secondary schools providing
meals to other schools.

Agree | 8 | Disagree |3
Comments

This should be a separate contract between the two schools

The cost of this service should be met but why is additional 'premises allocation' needed?
Yes - this is needed to reflect additional costs

It is proposed that there should be an adjustment to the SLA costs for catering for schools
which provide a service to other schools.

Consultation Point 18

There will be a single allocation for supplies and services.

Agree | 10 | Disagree | 1
Comments

This opportunity to simplify this element of the budget is welcomed
This makes sense
A welcome simplification

Page 107



SECONDARY FORMULA CONSULTATION ANALYSIS

Consultation Point 19

The supplies and services allocation to secondary schools will consist of a lump sum plus
an AWPU allocation.

Agree | 11 | Disagree |0
Comments

Whilst this is supported, it is proposed that the lump sum allocation for this element is
modest, with the majority of the funding being allocated on an AWPU basis.

This makes sense

A balanced approach is fairest

Consultation Point 20

Examination costs will be on a fixed cost per Year KS4 pupil.

Agree | 11 | Disagree | 1
Comments

Can consideration be also given to raising the allocation threshold in view of externally
driven rising costs which are beyond the control of schools?

Whilst this is supported, it is suggested that due regard is given to schools' historical entry
policies, as some schools enter pupils for more examinations.

The fixed cost will need to take into account the varying costs for a range of qualifications
and the varying costs of awarding bodies

Agreed, and they would hopefully be set at a more realistic level that doesn't require
subsidy from other budget headings

KS4 examination costs at YMG are higher. Pupils sit full course GCSE Welsh Lang. and
Welsh Lit. are in addition to the average cost of a Flintshire KS4 pupil

Cost of exams at KS3 - implications of this invigilation and administration costs.

January 2014

Page 108



B E O P Q R S T
201314 Impact after
Pupil AL Current Change 75% Change %
School New Formula Change £ . After
NumberFTE . Formula % Transitional o
Allocation . . Transition
Allocation Dampening
1
2 |BRYNFORD C.P. 57.29 239,260 202,664| 36,596 18.1% 9,149 4.5%
3 |BUCKLEY (WESTWOOD C.P.) 205.6 644,498 629,330| 15,168 24% 3,792 0.6%
4 |BUCKLEY (SOUTHDOWN C.P.) 382.9 1,016,254 1,047,152 -30,898 -3.0% -7,725 -0.7%
5 |BUCKLEY (MOUNTAIN LANE C.P.) 429.0 1,162,889 1,160,451 2,438 0.2% 610 0.1%
6 |CAERWYSV.P.(YSGOL YR ESGOB) 60.7 229122| 213,004 16,118 7.6% 4,030 1.9%
7 |CARMEL C.P. 163.2 479,631 481,412 -1,781 -0.4% -445 0.1%
8 |CILCAIN (YSGOL Y FOEL C.P.) 741 255,022| 250,776 4,246 1.7% 1,062 0.4%
9 [YSGOL PARC Y LLAN 83.7 320,272 279,056 41,216 14.8% 10,304 3.7%
10 |CONNAH'S QUAY (BRYN DEVA CP.) 282.7 793,985 779,731 14,254 1.8% 3,564 0.5%
11 |CONNAH'S QUAY (GOLFTYN CP.) 413.8 1,096,419 1,096,209 210 0.0% 53 0.0%
12 |CONNAH'S QUAY (WEPRE LANE CP.) 321.7 914,695 890,777 23,918 2.7% 5,980 0.7%
13 |YSGOL CAE'R NANT 335.8 925,693  943,840| -18,147 -1.9% -4,537 -0.5%
14 |DRURY C.P. 132.0 374,797 376,773 -1,976 -0.5% -494 -0.1%
15 |EWLOE GREEN C.P. 384.4 1,018,840 1,021,443 -2,603 -0.3% -651 0.1%
16 |FFYNNONGROEW (YSGOL BRYN GARTH) 86.2 276,412| 279,085 -2,673 -1.0% -668 -0.2%
17 |FLINT (CORNIST CP) 289.3 790,439 798,559 -8,120 -1.0% -2,030 -0.3%
18 |FLINT (YSGOL CROES ATTI) 196.8 591,404 567,030 24,374 4.3% 6,094 1.1%
19 |FLINT GWYNEDD C.P. 377.2 1,063,057 1,091,215 -28,158 -2.6% -7,040 -0.6%
20 |FLINT R.C. (ST.MARY'S) 3275 910,763 901,256 9,507 1.1% 2,377 0.3%
21 |FLINT MOUNTAIN CP (MAES EDWIN) 46.8 181,054 181,412 -358 -0.2% -90 0.0%
22 |MAES GLAS 2041 594,879| 610,698 -15819 -2.6% -3,955 -0.6%
23 [GRONANT C.P. 57.25 206,964 219,693| -12,729 -5.8% -3,182 -1.4%
24 |GWERNAFFIELD C.P. (YSGOL Y WAEN) 71.92 258,353 251,943 6,410 2.5% 1,603 0.6%
25 [GWERNYMYNYDD C.P. 47.79 177,408 183,477 -6,069 -3.3% -1,517 -0.8%
26 |GWESPYR PICTON (YSGOL MORNANT) 56.96 197,479| 205,051 -1,572 -3.7% -1,893 -0.9%
27 [New HAWARDEN VA 423.0 1,131,290 1,138,054 -6,764 -0.6% -1,691 0.1%
28 |HAWARDEN PENARLAG C.P. 200.8 554,464 550,126 4,338 0.8% 1,085 0.2%
29 [HIGHER KINNERTON (YSGOL DERWEN) 206.3 568,311 572,046 -3,735 0.7% -934 0.2%
30 [HOLYWELL JUN (YSGOL Y FRON C.P) 137.3 402,390 416,629 -14,239 -3.4% -3,560 -0.9%
31 |[HOLYWELL INF (PERTH Y TERFYN) 113.3 352,416] 359,690 -7,274 -2.0% -1,819 -0.5%
32 |[HOLYWELL RC.(ST.WINEFRIDES R.C.) 151.0 463,874 450457 13417 3.0% 3,354 0.7%
33 |[HOLYWELL (YSGOL GWENFFRWD C.P) 209.8 597,700| 610,857 -13,157 -2.2% -3,289 -0.5%
34 [HOPE C.P. 203.0 603,621 585,328| 18,293 3.1% 4,573 0.8%
35 |LEESWOOD C.P. 129.2 391,295| 383,644 7,651 2.0% 1,913 0.5%
36 [LIXWM C.P. 57.13 236,418  205,574| 30,844 15.0% 7,711 3.8%
37 |LLANFYNYDD C.P. 40.88 183,774 186,136 -2,362 -1.3% -591 -0.3%
38 |[MOLD (YSGOL GLANRAFON CP) 282.3 785,367 792,869 -7,502 -0.9% -1,876 -0.2%
39 [MOLD (BRYN COCH C.P.) 571.3 1,557,670 1,592,277 -34,607 -2.2% -8,652 -0.5%
40 |MOLD (BRYN GWALIA C.P.) 215.7 607,692 627,066 -19,374 -3.1% -4,844 -0.8%
41 |MOLD (ST. DAVIDSR.C.) 104.8 338,304 335,118 3,186 1.0% 797 0.2%
42 |MOSTYN (BRYN PENNANT C.P.) 102.5 354,366 352,108 2,258 0.6% 565 0.2%
43 [NANNERCH V.P. 68.9 252,196| 234,855 17,341 74% 4,335 1.8%
44 INERCWYS V.P. 42.63 174,125 178,898 4,773 -2.7% -1,193 -0.7%
45 [NORTHOP C.P. (YSGOL OWEN JONES) 95.0 312,697  301,949| 10,748 3.6% 2,687 0.9%
46 INORTHOP HALL C.P. 142.5 405,685 404,938 747 0.2% 187 0.0%
47 |New PENYFFORDD SCHOOL 2195 715,686 658,510| 57,176 8.7% 14,294 2.2%
48 |PENTROBIN AIDED SCHOOL 103.6 311,715|  300,922| 10,793 3.6% 2,698 0.9%
49 |QUEENSFERRY C.P. 143.0 449,332| 416,402 32,930 7.9% 8,233 2.0%
50 [RHOSESMOR (RHOS HELYG C.P.) 140.0 406,548 407,246 -698 -0.2% -175 0.0%
51 |SALTNEY (ST.ANTHONY'SR.C.) 155.9 438,781 429,543 9,238 2.2% 2,310 0.5%
52 [SALTNEY FERRY C.P. 112.6 368,404 368,294 110 0.0% 28 0.0%
53 |SALTNEY WOOD MEMORIAL C.P. 175.8 508,767|  525,082| -16,315 -3.1% -4,079 -0.8%
54 [SANDYCROFT C.P. 305.7 858,452 860,799 -2,347 -0.3% -587 -0.1%
55 |SEALAND C.P. 1862 540,428] 562,168 -21,740 -3.9% -5,435 -1.0%
Fage 1uy
12/02/14 $1d5tayok.xls




B E O P Q R S T
201314 Impact after 0
Pupil AL Current Change 75% Change %
School New Formula Change £ . After
NumberFTE . Formula % Transitional "
Allocation . . Transition
Allocation Dampening
1
56 [SHOTTON (ST. ETHELWOLD'S V.P.) 84.7 271,718| 278,493 6,775 -2.4% -1,694 -0.6%
57 |SHOTTON INFANTS C.P. 134.5 401,674| 426,291 -24,617 -5.8% -6,154 -1.4%
58 [SHOTTON (TALIESIN JUNIOR C.P.) 107.8 354,332 356,285 -1,953 -0.5% -488 -0.1%
59 |SHOTTON (VEN. EDWARD MORGAN R.C)) 276.0 732,714 736,732 -4,018 -0.5% -1,005 0.1%
60 |SYCHDYN C.P. 1334 410,742 397,157 13,585 3.4% 3,396 0.9%
61 [TRELAWNYD V.P. 89.0 291,662 283,159 8,503 3.0% 2,126 0.8%
62 |TRELOGAN C.P. 61.17 230,056| 209,793| 20,263 9.7% 5,066 2.4%
63 [TREUDDYN (YSGOL TERRIG C.P.) 69.3 250,864| 241,058 9,806 4.1% 2,452 1.0%
64 |WHITFORD V.P. 101.8 309,925| 312,678 -2,753 -0.9% -688 -0.2%
65 [ABERMORDDU CP 205.0 581,669] 575,118 6,551 1.1% 1,638 0.3%
66 |BAGILLT (YSGOL GLAN ABER C.P.) 108.6 349,718| 335377 14,341 4.3% 3,585 1.1%
67 [BAGILLT (MERLLYN C.P.) 172.9 538,700  513,145| 25,555 5.0% 6,389 1.2%
68 |BROUGHTON C.P. 4315 1,165,443 1,163,965 1,478 0.1% 370 0.0%
69 [MYNYDD ISA C.P. 501.7 1,401,072| 1,373,854 27,218 2.0% 6,805 0.5%
Page 110

12/02/14

$1d5tayok.xls




Agenda ltem 7

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: COUNCIL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2014/15

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To present the final 2014/15 revenue budget proposals for the Council Fund
for recommendation to County Council.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 Detailed revenue budget proposals for 2014/15 were presented to Cabinet on
21% January 2014 for draft approval. The budget proposals were also
referred to Overview and Scrutiny Committees for consideration and feedback
to Cabinet.

2.02 The following Overview and Scrutiny meetings were held as planned:-
28" January — Joint Housing (CF only) and Social & Health Care
28" January — Environment
28" January — Corporate Resources
30" January - Lifelong Learning
3" February — Corporate Resources (open to all members to review feedback

on the Council Fund and consider the Capital Programme).
2.03 The budget strategy and the development of the Organisational Change and

Redesign Programme has been reported to members (together with quantum
targets) in previous updates to the Medium Term Financial Plan (as at May
and October) and in the January Cabinet report. This has been done in the
context of the following expectations as commissioned by Cabinet:

o the protection of local services as a first priority
the more challenging reduction of operating costs and overheads

¢ the reorganisation of the Council with a marked reduction in management
costs

e the reduction of overall workforce costs
the remodelling of some functions

¢ building a longer-term financial plan based on optimal efficiency

Page 111



2.04

2.05

3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

The budget strategy and proposals and their implications for school budgets
were discussed with the School Budget Forum on 23rd January 2014. The
budget strategy and proposals were also shared with Flintshire Joint Trades
Union Committee on 23" January 2014.

The formal Council Fund budget setting for 2014/15 and setting of the Council
Tax for the year will take place at County Council this afternoon.

CONSIDERATIONS

The report to Cabinet on 21% January 2014 advised of a remaining shortfall of
£0.915m to be identified to establish a balanced budget for 2014/15. The
report formed the basis for the presentations to the Overview and Scrutiny
Meetings held on 28" and 30" January 2014.

Each of the meetings began with the Head of Finance providing a corporate
overview of the budget and a reminder of the national and local strategic
context within which the budget was being set. The Chief Executive then
provided an update on the latest position with regard to the four sub-
programmes of the Organisational Change and Redesign Programme:-

Organisational Design: Structure & Operating Model
Organisational Design: Workforce
Corporate Value for Money (VFM)
Functional Value for Money (VFM)

This was followed by a portfolio specific presentation of the detailed service
proposals by the respective Director incorporating:

Inflationary impact

Transfers into the settlement
Pressures and investments
Efficiency proposals

Impact of prior year decisions

A further Corporate Resources meeting, open to all members, was held on 3™
February 2014. The purpose of this meeting was to:-

Provide feedback from the individual scrutiny committees
Respond to the information requests from the meetings
Identify the latest position on balancing the budget

Set out the issues still under discussion

At the meetings, a number of specific comments and issues were raised and
responses provided. Appendix 8 provides a summary of all of the comments
and responses for each individual committee, and also incorporates any
outstanding responses supplied after the meetings. At the meeting on 3™
February 2014, supplementary information was provided to all members
attending in relation to the questions raised at the previous scrutiny meetings.

Page 112



3.06

3.07

3.08

3.09

3.10

3.11

Closing the Budget Gap

At the final Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny meeting on 3™
February 2014, members were advised that the budget shortfall had reduced
from the £0.915m to £0.540m as a result of the net effect of the following
items identified as part of the emerging Month 8 budget monitoring position.
These amounts are now confirmed following completion of the Month 8
monitoring report which is also on this agenda.

Corporate Services — Housing Benefit Subsidy and Discretionary Housing
Payments

An efficiency of £0.380m has been identified following a review of the Housing
Benefit Subsidy profile and the level of funding required to meet Discretionary
Housing Payment demand.

MATRIX — Agency Rebates

The Council receives budgeted income (rebates) in relation to efficiencies
made due to the utilisation of a centralised system for procuring agency
appointments. Now that the Council is successfully reducing the number of
agency appointments, the level of income (rebates) will also reduce
proportionately. Therefore, it is anticipated that there will be an ongoing
pressure of £0.115m from the loss of income and this has been reflected in
the budget.

Flintshire Futures Programme — Assets Review

An efficiency target of £0.060m was previously included in the budget in
relation to soft facilities management as part of the Assets Programme. This
efficiency has now been reported as unachievable in 2013/14 and has
therefore been removed from the 2014/15 budget.

Specific Grants Adjustment

A review of specific grants has enabled a positive adjustment of £0.170m to
be made on the net movement in the overall level of specific grants for
2014/15 over 2013/14.

Members were also advised at the meeting on 3™ February that the following
items were still under consideration in an attempt to achieve a balanced
budget:-

Further corporate efficiencies (procurement and back to basics)
Workforce — costs of employment

Council tax level

Ongoing review of budget assumptions and intelligence

Page 113



3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

Following detailed consideration of the above the budget proposals for
2014/15 are now balanced as a result of the inclusion of the items in the table
below:

£m £m

Shortfall as per draft budget report 21 January 0.915
Add:
MATRIX - Agency Rebates 0.115
Flintshire Futures Programme - Assets Review 0.060

0.175
Less:
Housing Benefit Subsidy/Discretionary Housing Payments -0.380
Specific Grants Adjustment -0.170

-0.550
Shortfall as shown at CROSC 3rd February 0.540
Corporate Efficiencies
Procurement 0.060
Back to Basics 0.064

0.124
Functional Efficiencies
Central Loans and Investment Account - based on in-year underspeng 0.145
Library Book Fund - reduction based on previous year underspends 0.050
Youth Service - further reduction in management costs 0.049
Inclusion Service - further reduction in management costs 0.012

0.256
Workforce: costs of employment (See appendix 6c) 0.160
Shortfall 0.000

The Procurement and Back to Basics efficiencies are additions to the
amounts identified in the draft budget proposals and are now included in the
summary shown in Appendix 6a.

The Central Loans and Investment Account amount of £0.145m reflects an
efficiency in 2013/14 which is recurring and is now included in Appendix 6b.

The Library Book Fund reduction reflects spending levels in previous years
and is now included in Appendix 6b.

The Youth Service and Inclusion Service efficiencies are additional
management cost reductions to those included in the draft proposals.

The cost of employment efficiency of £0.160m relates to a reduction in costs
in a number of areas as detailed in Appendix 6c¢.

The level of Council Tax increase remains unchanged at 3%.

Page 114



3.19

3.20

3.21

Risk Assessment and Assurance

In line with the financial strategy, a risk based approach has been taken to the
potential items of additional cost as to the likelihood and level required and
assessments made of the provision to be included for 2014/15, taking a
balance between the challenge of the overall budget position and the potential
for variations in demand.

The budget has been set based on the very latest information available at this
time, whether it be via national intelligence or local activity as reflected in the
latest monitoring report. Despite this fact however, there will inevitably be
other risks associated with the budget that will need to be managed should
they occur, as it is not possible, particularly in the current financial climate, to
provide for every risk and eventuality.

Some of the risks that will need to be monitored closely in 2014/15 include:-

e Pay Inflation — the pay award is subject to national negotiations and is not
confirmed at this time. The budget proposals currently assume a 1% uplift
for non-schools staff.

e Single Status — the budget assumes an implementation date of 1% April
2014. However, it is now anticipated that this will change to 1%t May 2014
which will result in some efficiencies not being able to be achieved in the
first month. The shortfall arising from this will be met from the Single
Status/Equal Pay Reserve which is consistent with the way this has been
dealt with for some of the 2013/14 efficiency proposals that are dependent
upon the implementation of Single Status.

e Out of County Placements — this highly volatile area has the potential for
significant movement in costs (up and down) due to the impact of client
demand.

e Care Fees — the annual uplift in care fees payable to providers is subject
to negotiation and consultation and will not be known at the time of setting
the budget.

¢ Insurance premiums — these are due for renewal during 2014/15 which are
subject to volatility, and will not be known until after the budget is set.

e Member Allowances — the annual increase in these allowance will not be
confirmed until after the budget is set.

o Euticals Site — the ongoing issue around the decommissioning of this site
is being reported through the current year's monitoring report. If the
conclusion of this issue was to be delayed there would be a financial
impact in 2014/15 that would need to be dealt with.

Page 115



3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

3.26

3.27

All of the above will be closely monitored throughout the year and any
variations from the approved budget reported to members through the
monthly budget monitoring report.

Schools Budget

The budget report to Cabinet on 21%' January 2014 provided details on the
impact of the proposed budget on schools. There have been no further
changes made to the schools budget and the budget has been set at an
overall increase of 0.9% in line with national expectations of protecting
investment in schools. Welsh Government have been notified of the schools
budget for 2014/15 in line with the statutory deadline of 14" February 2014.

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT (EIA)

The Council has an obligation to assess the potential equalities impacts of its
budget proposals and it is important that all aspects of the Organisational
Redesign and Change Programme are subject to an appropriate Equalities
Impact Assessment to ensure that there is no potential for discrimination or
disadvantaging of either service users or employees. An update on this work
is detailed below.

Corporate and Functional Efficiencies (VFM)

As previously reported, the initial efficiency proposals were equality impact
assessed as part of a high level filtering exercise undertaken by Directorate
Management Teams and supported by both Policy and Finance team
members. Each proposal was identified as having a high, medium or low
impact on individuals with protected characteristics and whether the impact
may increase poverty for vulnerable groups.

The outcome of this work was that 62 were screened as low impact, 8 as
medium impact and 1 as high impact. For the medium and high assessed
impacts more detailed impact assessments are being undertaken to identify
any potential negative impacts and to ensure that robust arrangements are in
place to mitigate them.

The proposal with an initial high impact assessment relates to the closure of
some youth clubs and a full equality impact assessment is currently being
undertaken. This will involve wider consultation with employees and service
users to look at ways of reducing the impact and exploring opportunities to
facilitate a wider range of service provision which is not dependent upon
traditional youth clubs.

Page 116



3.28

3.29

4.00

4.01

Workforce Efficiencies

For the workforce programme, the Council has commissioned some
independent support from Northgate, similar to that commissioned for the
Single Status EIA work. This is to ensure that the proposals, including any
entitlement policies that might apply, do not have any adverse consequences
for any groups of employees.

This work will cover the Council's approach to a voluntary redundancy
scheme including the criteria for the consideration of applications received
and changes to discretionary compensation provisions. Although this work is
still in progress, the potential impacts have been discussed verbally with
Northgate and no significant issues are anticipated. This work will also
incorporate the workforce impacts contained within the VFM reviews.

FINAL BUDGET PROPOSALS

Proposed Budget

As a result of the changes outlined above, total expenditure and funding now
equates to £296.945m and the total budget build up is outlined below. Details
of the figures making up the total budget are attached as Appendices 1-7.

It is recommended that the 2014/15 Council Fund Revenue Budget

Requirement be set at £253,718,291 (which is £1,423,025 below the
calculated Standard Spending Assessment).

Page 117



4.02

4.03

Funding £m

Aggregate External Funding (RSG & NDR) 192.942
Council Tax 60.776
Budget Requirement 253.718
Outcome Agreement Grant 1.458
Use of Reserves - Investment Strategy 6.250
Specific Grants (Estimated) 35.519
Total Funding 296.945
Expenditure

Total Budget 2013/14 293.346
Previous Year's Growth / Items Dropping Out Appendix 1 1.138
Pay & Price Inflation Appendix 2 2.425
New Responsibilities and Transfers into the Setiement  Appendix 3 0.092
Pressures and Investments - Ongoing Appendix 4 4872
Pressures and Investments - One-Off and Time Limited Appendix 5 4.800
Efficiencies Appendices6a-c (11.950)
Less Specific Grants 2013/14 Appendix 7 (33.297)
Plus Specific Grants 2014/15 (Estimated) Appendix 7 35.519
Total Expenditure 296.945
Shortfall 0
Income

The budget proposals in this report set a budget requirement of £253.718m.
At this level of spend, the increase on the Band D Council Tax Rate
(excluding Police and Town/Community Councils' precepts) is 3%. This
equates to an increase of £28.78 on 2013/14 and a Band D rate of £988.21.

The Council Tax system in Wales contains nine property bands ranging from
Band A to Band |. In order to ensure consistency between councils when
reporting Council Tax information it is agreed practice that all related
information is expressed in terms of Band D equivalents.

Members are requested to confirm that there is a 3% increase in Council
Tax at Band D and an assumed 99% collection rate.

The amount of Outcome Agreement Grant available for 2014/15 has been
advised by Welsh Government. As always the achievement of this is subject
to assessment against agreed performance. The Council has been
successful in achieving 100% of its grant in previous years and the same
assumption has been made for 2014/15.

Members are requested to confirm the inclusion of the Outcome
Agreement Grant of £1,458,151 in the budget.

Page 118



4.04

4.05

4.06

4.07

4.08

4.09

Expenditure

Inflation

Pay and Price Inflation of £2.425m is included in the budget proposals as
detailed in Appendix 2. The proposals include pay inflation of £1.316m which
assumes a 1% increase for non-schools staff from April 2014.

Price inflation of £0.590m has been included which represents a targeted 1%
to 3% increase for all services as required. In addition to the standard level of
price inflation outlined above, non-standard inflation of £0.670m has been
included, as detailed in Appendix 2, to reflect the increasing costs of energy,
fuel, business rates and food for which inflation is anticipated to be at higher
levels based on national intelligence. This sum will be held centrally until it is
demonstrated that there is a requirement for the funding to be released. This
will be reported in budget monitoring reports during the year.

It is recommended that items of non-standard inflation are only
allocated out to services when the actual increase in cost is known.

Inflation on income amounting to £0.151m has been assumed on the yield
from existing fees and charges which has generally been applied at 3%.

Members are requested to confirm the levels of inflation assumed in the
budget.

The final settlement included one transfer into the settlement in respect of
administration subsidy for the Council Tax Reduction Scheme which was
previously received through a specific grant and it is proposed that £0.092m is
‘passported’ to the relevant service area.

Members are requested to confirm that the amount of £0.092m be
‘passported’ to the Revenues and Benefits service to administer the
Council Tax Reduction Scheme.

Appendix 4 sets out recurring pressures totalling £4.872m recommended for
inclusion in the budget. These pressures are proposed to be funded from the
base budget.

Members are requested to confirm the inclusion of £4.872m of pressures
in the budget for the purposes set out, and that any proposals to vary
the use of the sums allocated are to be the subject of a further report to
Cabinet for consideration.

Appendix 5 details estimated one-off costs of £4.800m which will be funded
by way of the Investment Strategy detailed in section 6.

Members are requested to confirm the inclusion of estimated one-off
costs totalling £4.800m in the budget.

Page 119



410

5.00

5.01

5.02

5.03

5.04

5.05

5.06

5.07

Appendix 6 a-c sets out the efficiencies, totalling £11.950m, recommended for
inclusion in the budget.

Members are requested to confirm the inclusion of efficiencies of
£11.950m in the budget. It is recommended that the achievement of all
efficiencies be monitored monthly and reported through the budget
monitoring report with any corrective action taken in-year as has been
the case in previous years.

UNEARMARKED BALANCES AND EARMARKED RESERVES

Base Level of Unearmarked Reserves

The Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy confirms the Councils
commitment to maintaining a base level of reserves of 2% of turnover. The
current base level of reserves is £5.834m as reported in the monthly budget
monitoring reports. Despite the fact that funding has reduced in 2014/15 over
2013/14, it is proposed that unearmarked reserves are maintained at the
same level for 2014/15 which will provide an additional safeguard in the
current uncertain financial climate.

Contingency Reserve

When the 2013/14 budget was set, the Contingency Reserve was estimated
to be £0.200m at 31 March 2013. As a result of the net underspend reported
in the final outturn for 2012/13 the actual amount in the Contingency Reserve
at the year end was £3.159m after taking into account commitments in
2013/14.

Cabinet approved in the final outturn report, that the amount held in the
contingency reserve of £3.159m be held and considered within the context of
the Medium Term Financial Plan and 2014/15 budget strategy.

The 2013/14 Month 8 Budget Monitoring report which is also on this agenda,
shows an estimated balance of £3.709m in the Contingency Reserve as at 31
March 2014.

Whilst the base level of reserves is a known sum which is set aside, the level
of Contingency Reserve is based on the current estimate and is subject to the
final outturn for the financial year.

Council Fund Earmarked Reserves

Council Fund Earmarked Reserves include service balances, corporate
balances and schools balances.

Service balances are made up of those balances held by departments which

Cabinet has agreed can be carried forward. Corporate Balances are held to
meet commitments which fall in future years on specific items of expenditure.

Page 120



5.08

5.09

6.00
6.01

6.02

6.03

6.04

6.05

The Council also holds Specific Reserves which are set aside for a specific
future purpose.

Appendix 9 details the estimated closing balances for 2013/14 and 2014/15 in
respect of all reserves and balances. The Head of Finance is satisfied that the
level of these reserves is appropriate (see also section 7).

INVESTMENT STRATEGY

As reported to Cabinet in January the scale and ambition of the
Organisational Change and Redesign Programme will require significant initial
investment to make the changes happen. Therefore it is critical that the
Council has a robust investment strategy in place to provide the level of one-
off monies required to achieve:-

e Up front investment costs e.g. cost of reducing workforce numbers,
investment in technology.

e Transitional Funding for change which recognises the timing of
implementation in the first year.

The base budget is utilised to support the recurring costs of the Council and
the investment strategy is utilised to support the one —off costs to deliver the
budget proposals. Although these are two distinct elements of the budget,
they need to go hand in hand to both enable change and provide a robust
sustainable budget.

The total estimated one-off funding required to support the 2014/15 budget is
£6.250m and includes £4.800m (as detailed in appendix 5) to support the ‘up
front’ invest to save costs and £1.450m to provide the transitional funding to
take account of the timing of the implementation of some of the efficiency
proposals.

Review of Reserves and Balances

In order to maximise the resources available to the Council for future
investment costs, a review of all reserves and balances held has been
undertaken. The outcome of this review has identified additional potential
resources of £3.1m which are a mixture of items that have previously been set
aside that are no longer required and items whereby historical grant income
has not been entirely drawn down to match the eligible expenditure incurred.

Affordability

It can be seen from the table below that a combination of the utilisation of the
Single Status/Equal Pay Reserve and the Contingency Reserve will provide
total funding of £7.450m which is more than is required to fund the estimated
one-off funding requirement of £6.250m for 2014/15 as detailed in para 6.03.
In addition the council also holds the £3.1m identified through the review of
reserves and balances which will be a first call to mitigate the risks associated
with the contingency reserve and Single Status and Equal Pay Reserve.

Page 121



7.00

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

£m

Funding

Contingency Reserve (ME) 3.700

Use of Single status/Equal Pay Reserve 3.750
7.450

Investment Costs

Warkforce and WFM 4800

Transitional Funding 1.450
6.250

Balance 1.200

Review of Reserves & Balances 3.100

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER REPORT ON ESTIMATES AND RESERVES

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 includes a specific duty on the
Chief Finance Officer to report to the Authority when it is considering its
Budget and Council Tax on the robustness of the estimates and the adequacy
of reserves. The Act requires the Council to have regard to this report in
making its decisions (the reference to the first person which follows is to the
Head of Finance in this role).

The 2014/15 budget has been set within the context of the Medium Term
Financial Plan which recognises a significant reduction in the funding
available to the Council from Welsh Government and the continuing effects of
the economic downturn on the local economy and citizens. The year on year
reduction of 4% in funding, is a real terms cut of some 6% or greater. The
Council's Organisational Redesign and Change Plan in response to the
financial pressures has been set out in detail for Members in successive
reports over the budget period.

The financial strategy for 2014/15 has been to robustly challenge need and
the cost of new pressures, target inflation and optimise all efficiency options.
This has been done through a risk based approach taking account of a
balance of risk and certainty. Central to the overall financial strategy has
been establishing an investment strategy to provide resource to deliver
change and recognise the timing of its implementation.

I confirm the reasonableness of the estimates contained in the proposed
budget, having regard to the Council’'s spending needs in 2014/15 and the
financial context within which the budget is being set. | also confirm that the
investment strategy is reasonable and affordable and supports the Council’s
ability to deliver an ongoing programme of change which will deliver
efficiencies in the base budget.

Inevitably in managing a budget of this scale across a large and diverse
organisation variances will occur, but | believe that the budget assumptions
represent a measured and acceptable level of risk. A robust programme for
the delivery of the £11.950m of efficiencies within the budget and to the
timescales anticipated is essential. In addition, effective and disciplined in-

Page 122



7.06

8.00
8.01

8.02

8.03

8.04

8.05

year financial management will be key to ensuring that budgets are managed
effectively and prompt action taken to mitigate the impacts should variances
occur.

Within the context described above, | recommend that the Council should
maintain the level of general balances of £5.834m to safeguard its position
and be in a strong position to plan ahead to meet the financial challenges in
future years as set out in the Medium Term Financial Plan and to underpin its
ongoing programme of change. The level of reserves and balances is set out
in Section 5.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE REPORT

The budget strategy for 2014/15 is very different to that in previous years
given the unprecedented efficiency return which is required. The budget relies
in significant part on the implementation of major organisational change
programmes on time and to financial target.

The Council needs to be satisfied that these levels of financial efficiency are
achievable in proportion to the overall budget, and that the programmes of
organisational change are sufficiently advanced to achieve a financial return
by the second quarter of the new financial year.

The programmes of organisational change are not without risk and will require
decisive organisational action and careful management to be guided through
to fruition. The twin programmes of (1) the review of the corporate operating
model and senior management structure, followed by wider senior
management review, in two phases and (2) workforce review, are proceeding
on time and are being planned to achieve their respective financial targets.
The consultation on the first phase of (1) is underway for a final decision in
March.

There is a sufficient level of confidence that the efficiency targets are
achievable subject to the organisation meeting the deadlines set, and being
decisive at each step.

The budget strategy is based on the significant 'front-loading' of internalised
organisational efficiencies within 2014/15. For the medium-term strategy to be
achievable a broader base of service reform and prioritisation will be required
for 2015/16 onwards.

Page 123



9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Cabinet makes the following recommendations to County Council on
18 February 2014:-

1.

9.

That the 2014/15 Council Fund Revenue Budget Requirement be set at
£253.718m (which is £1.423m below the calculated Standard Spending
Assessment) (4.01).

That there be a 3.0% increase in Council Tax at Band D and an assumed
99% collection rate (4.02).

The inclusion of the Outcome Agreement Grant of £1.458m in the budget
(4.03).

The levels of inflation assumed in the budget (4.04-4.06).

That items of non-standard inflation are only allocated out to services
when the actual increase in cost is known (4.05).

The amount of £0.092m included in the budget relating to a transfer into
the settlement (4.07).

The inclusion of £4.872m of recurring pressures in the budget (Appendix
4) and that any proposals to vary the use of the sums allocated are to be
the subject of a further report to Cabinet for consideration (4.08).

The inclusion of estimated one-off costs totalling £4.800m in the budget
(Appendix 5), to be funded in line with the Investment Strategy (section 6).

The inclusion of efficiencies of £11.950m in the budget (4.10).

10.The inclusion of efficiencies of £11.950m and that the achievement of all

efficiencies be monitored monthly and reported through the budget
monitoring report with any corrective action taken in-year as has been the
case in previous years. (4.10).

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out throughout the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

Individual growth and efficiency items may have specific anti-poverty impacts.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Individual growth and efficiency items may have specific environmental
impacts.

Page 124



13.00

13.01

14.00

14.01

14.02

14.03

14.04

14.05

14.06

15.00

15.01

16.00

16.01

EQUALITIES IMPACT

As set out in 3.18 — 3.23 of the report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

There will be significant people implications arising from the workforce
elements of the Organisational Change Programme.

The Discretionary Compensation provisions have been reviewed to ensure
that redundancy entitlements offered are fair, are likely to incentivise
employees to express an interest in Voluntary Redundancy or Early Voluntary
Retirement, and are affordable for the Council.

Employees who are either displaced, or who leave the Council voluntarily, will
receive outplacement advice to support their transition into alternative
employment or a new career, or into retirement, which may include
opportunities to up-skill or retrain, business 'start up' advice, career
counselling and retirement planning guidance, depending on the
circumstances.

The Council will ensure that appropriate consultation arrangements are in
place, in conjunction with the Joint Trade Unions, for all affected employees in
line with statutory requirements and the Council's Organisational Change and
Redundancy Policy.

As detailed in section 6 there is a robust Investment Strategy in place to
ensure that the one-off costs associated with the workforce programme are
affordable within the context of the overall budget.

As detailed in section 3.18 — 3.23 work is also ongoing in relation to assessing
any equality impacts in relation to the workforce programme.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Overview and Scrutiny, Business Ratepayers, School Budget Forum,
Flintshire Joint Trades Union Committee.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Member Workshop (open to all members) held on the afternoon of 28t
January to consider the budget overview followed by Overview and Scrutiny
Committees held as follows:

28" January - Joint Housing (CF only) and Social & Healthcare

28" January - Environment

28" January - Corporate Resources (for Corporate Departments)

30" January - Lifelong Learning

3" February - Corporate Resources - Open to all members (to receive
feedback from other scrutiny meetings).

Page 125



16.02

16.03

16.04

16.05

17.00

17.01

Formal consultation held with the School Budget Forum on 23rd January.

Statutory consultation with Business Ratepayers undertaken in writing after
the Cabinet meeting with the largest businesses within Flintshire.

The budget proposals were discussed at a meeting with the Flintshire Joint
Trades Unions on 23w January, as part of ongoing dialogue and information
sharing.

Formal consultation on review of corporate operating model underway and
consultation on other workforce proposals will be in accordance with the
detailed plans and timescales of the workforce programme taking account of
statutory requirements and local policy.

APPENDICES

As set out in the report.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Gary Ferguson
Telephone: (01352) 702271
Email: gary_ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 126



Budget 2014/15
Council Fund - Revenue

Previous Years' Growth / ltems Dropping Out

APPROVED 2012/13 BUDGET

Community Services

Homecare - Increased complexity of care

Transition to Adulthood

Housing Renewal Agency - income

Management Efficiencies Through Collaborative Working

Environment

Rental Income Shortfalls and NNDR charges for vacant properties
Environmental Waste Management - reduction in grant funding
Revenue Lost due to phased disposal of Agricultural Estates
Ground Water monitoring at former Castle Landfill site
Continuation of 2011/12 Landfill Tax efficiency

Food Waste - increased diversion from landfill

Lifelong Learning
Transport Policy Review - rationalisation of non statutory entitlement
Saltney Library - Lease

Corporate Services

Business Systems - Software Maintenance Costs
Prudential Borrowing Requirement for Capital Investment
Procurement Review

HR Management Information System (Phase 2)

APPROVED 2013/14 BUDGET

Community Services

Mental Health - Additional Social Work support

Transition to Adulthood

Disabled Facillity Grants / Aids and Adaptations

Homelessness - timing of presentations

Children's Services - Removal of one team manager post
Development and Resources - Rationalisation of Management Team

Environment

Loss of Car Park Income

Highways Asset Management Plan (HAMP) -rephasing of full implementation
Review Management Recharge to the Communities First Programme
Agricultural Estates - balance not required

Licensing / Health & Safety - balance not required

Lifelong Learning

Staffing Budget Shortfall following restructure
Free School Meals - increased demand
Review of post 16 distance limit

Review of Denominational transport provision
Youth Service - Building rationalisation
Reduction of Postage within the Library Service

Page 127

2014/15
£m

0.100
0.975
0.104

(0.025)

1.154

0.050
0.047
0.026

(0.005)
0.000
0.004

0.122

0.000
(0.010)

(0.010)

0.021
0.169
0.000

(0.003)

0.187

0.000

0.010
0.129
0.016
0.106

(0.013)

(0.050)

0.198

0.068
0.000
0.000
0.025
0.025

0.118

(0.017)
0.003
0.000

(0.070)

(0.005)

(0.001)

2014/15
£m

1.453

Appendix 1

2015/16
£m

0.000
1.239
0.000
0.000
0.000
0.000

(0.002)
0.225
0.000
0.000
0.000

0.000
0.003
0.000

(0.030)
0.000
0.000



Appendix 1

Budget 2014/15
Council Fund - Revenue

Previous Years' Growth / Items Dropping Out
2014/15 2014/15 2015/16

£m £m £m

School Transport Service - Operational efficiencies (0.040) 0.000

(0.130)
Council Wide
Revised Effect of Prudential Borrowing costs for agreed Capital Projects (change due
to revised interest rates and receipt of grant funding) 0.017 0.916

0.017

Corporate Services
Emergency Planning - collaborative working (0.025) 0.000
Information & Business services - use of LLPG (0.014) 0.000
Supplies and Services 0.010 0.000
Joint Working - costs reduction 0.002 0.000
Alterations / Improvements reductions - future agile working 0.002 0.000
Employee Safety Measures - reduced demand on budget (0.005) 0.000
Community Strategy / LSB partnership - reduction in planned requirements (0.005) 0.000

{0.035)
Flintshire Futures Programme
E-Procurement and Improved Processes (0.109) (0.056)
Assets Workstream - Office Rationalisation (0.077) 0.000
Customer Workstream - Channel Shift 0.000 (0.050)

(0.186)
Council-Wide
Income reduction - Vacation of former Council Offices , Ewloe 0.000 0.500

0.000
(0.018)

ONE OFF AND TIME-LIMITED PRESSURES
Lifelong Learning
School Modernisation Programme (0.025)
Schools Service Level Agreements (SLA's) (0.172)
Play Areas - Match Funding (0.035)

(0.232)
Corporate Services
Base Level of Reserves - 2% of Turnover (0.065)

(0.065)

(0.297)

Total Previous years items 1.138 2.745

Page 128



Appendix 2

Budget 2014/15
Council Fund - Revenue
Inflation
£m £m
Pay
Pay Inflation from April 2014 (1%) 1.316
1.316
Price
Targeted General Price Inflation (1.5% - 3%) 0.590
0.590
Non Standard
Energy - Street Lighting (8%) 0.093
Energy - Other (8%) 0.173
Fuel - (11.2%) 0.179
Food (5.8%) 0.188
Non Domestic Rates (2%) 0.037
0.670
Income (0.151)
Total Inflation 2.425

Page 129



Page 130



Budget 2014/15
Council Fund - Revenue

Transfers Into the Settlement

Transfers In to the Settlement

Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS) Administration Subsidy

Transfers Into the Settlement

Page 131

Appendix 3

£m £m
0.092
0.092
0.092



Budget 2014/15
Council Fund - Revenue

Pressures & Investments - Summary

Recurring Items

Total Welsh Government Policy / Legislative /

Regulatory (Appendix 4a)

Total Demand / Local Policy Decisions

(Appendix 4b)

Total

Page 132

Appendix 4

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
£m £m £m

2.844 5.094 6.651

2.028 3.633 10.159

4.872 8.727 16.810




Appendix 4a

Budget 2014/15
Council Fund - Revenue

Pressures & Investments - Welsh Government Policy / Legislative / Regulatory

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

£m £m £m
Community Services
Independent Living Fund (ILF) estimate of
impact of transfer into RSG 0.000 0.450 0.450
Total Community Services 0.000 0.450 0.450

Environment
Reduction of Sustainable Waste Management Grant 0.308 0.308 0.308

Landfill Tax - increase cost per tonnage 0.256 0.309 0.362
Total Environment 0.564 0.617 0.670

Lifelong Learning
Free Swimming Initiative replacing reduction in grant 0.036 0.036 0.036

Total Lifelong Learning 0.036 0.036 0.036
Central & Corporate

Council Tax Reduction Scheme 0.633 0.633 0.633
Impact of Actuarial Valuation 0.991 2.738 4.242
Carbon Reduction Scheme 0.120 0.120 0.120
Fire Levy increase in contribution 0.063 0.063 0.063
Local Government Pension Scheme Reform 0.245 0.245 0.245
Highways Agency Programme (Year 3) 0.192 0.192 0.192
Total Central & Corporate 2.244 3.991 5.495
Total 2.844 5.094 6.651

Page 133



Appendix 4b

Budget 2014/15
Council Fund - Revenue

Pressures & Investments - Demand / Local Policy Decisions

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

£m £m £m
Community Services
Increase in Direct Payments for Social Services for
Children 0.060 0.060 0.060
Increase in Foster Care Placements 0.250 0.250 0.250
Children's Out of County Placements 0.250 0.250 0.250
Well Check Increased contribution to service 0.040 0.040 0.040
Transition to Adulthood 0.000 0.000 0.700
Total Community Services 0.600 0.600 1.300
Lifelong Learning
Investment in Youth Service Provision 0.046 0.046 0.046
Remission Payments for School meals, trips &
uniforms 0.000 0.025 0.050
Leisure Centres 0.962 0.962 0.962
Total Lifelong Learning 1.008 1.033 1.058
Corporate Services
Additional cost of Child Protection cases 0.044 0.044 0.044
Total Corporate Services 0.044 0.044 0.044
Central & Corporate
Pensioners Grant 0.201 0.201 0.201
Matrix reduction of previous efficiency 0.115 0.115 0.115
Flintshire Futures Asset Programme reduction of
previous efficiency 0.060 0.060 0.060
Single Status Agreement 0.000 0.000 5.801
Investment in Organisational Change 0.000 1.580 1.580
Total Central & Corporate 0.376 1.956 7.757
Total 2.028 3.633 10.159

Page 134



Budget 2014/15
Council Fund - Revenue

One off Investment Costs
Summary
Senior Management

Phase 1 - Tier1 & 2
Phase 2 - Grades M1-M9

Workforce Scale Review
Grades Sc1-S02

VEM related
Community Services
Environment
Lifelong Learning
Corporate Services

Total one off costs

2014/15
£m

0.440

1.204

1.734

1.211

1.211

0.202
0.273
0.511
0.869

1.855

4.800

Page 135

Appendix 5



Budget 2014/15
Council Fund - Revenue

Organisational Change Corporate Value for Money Programme

Procurement

. 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17
Directorate

£m £m £m

Community Services 0.107 0.107 0.107
Environment 0.456 0.456 0.456
Lifelong Learning 0.297 0.295 0.295
Total Corporate Services 0.237 0.237 0.237
Total Procurement 1.097 1.095 1.095
Back to Basics
Community Services 0.043 0.043 0.043
Environment 0.052 0.052 0.052
Lifelong Learning 0.068 0.068 0.068
Corporate Services 0.041 0.041 0.041
Total Back to Basics 0.204 0.204 0.204
Total Efficiencies 1.301 1.299 1.299

Page 136

APPENDIX 6a




‘sjualjo diysasjuiodde Joj Juswabeuew BawooUl - S32IN0SaY
090°0 0900 0£0°0 [eloueuy Joy Buibieyo jo |enuajod ay) aloidx3 pue juawdojarag $80I1MaS AJlunwwio)| LI
aWOoIU| - S92IN0SaY
¥¥0°0 00 ¥v0°0 ssao0ud uonesylienb 4O ay) jo yed se Buibieyd pue juawdojana s$92IM9S AJlunwwo)| ol
sanunuoddQ Aeq
€100 €100 €100 Salouaidiyg — sapjiqesiq buiwea saoIMg Aunwwo)| 6
juawubijeal [eanjoni)s —
¥90°0 +90°0 Z£0°0 s)sod Juswabeuew Ul uononpay [S)NPY Joj SAOIAISS [BID0S saoIneg Ajunwwo)| g
saolnes Ajjigesip
pue ajdoad 1ap|0 ‘|SAd 10} S82IAISS |BUORIPEL]} UBY) sjuawAed 10a11q —
9600 2100 8v0°0 Jayjel saoinles JuswAed j0auip Jo ajepdn ay) aseaiou|[S)NPY J0j S80IABS [BI00S saoIAeS AJunwwiod| /
"S80IAI8S MalAa) pue bulpuny juelb 921G 321)SN[ YINOA
0S0°0 0S0'0 0S0°0 aSIWIXBW 0} 92IAI8S 8211SN[* YINOA 9y} JO mBIAal Y - §92IAI8G SUaIP|IYD saoIneg Alunwiwo)| 9
Sal1ouaIo1y]
LTV ETRITIE] UOEPOWWODDY
/€00 1€0°0 6L0°0 Buiye)s — saO Aenp syeuuoy Jo uonedsep - S90IAIBS SUaIp|IyD saoIMeS AJIUNWIWOD| §
‘Jobeuew a2IAISS B JO Juawainal juawubijeal ainyoni)s
£50°0 £50°0 £50°0 ay) Buimo||oj Loyoo J1ao1jo 131} pig ay) ainbyuoosay — S32IAI9S Suaip(Iyd $80IM9S AJIUNWWo) |
SaoIAIRG |BlUapISaY
‘Alleusaxa papiroid Aunwwon pasueyuy
/€00 /€00 LEO0 sasnoy Buial papoddns y jo Japual-as Jo Buizisiybry|  — senijiqesig buiuies saoIneg AJlunwwo)| €
‘Aioeded pue pasu adlAI9s ale) wiaj Hoys
€200 €200 €200 uo paseq s|aAs| buiye)s saxiom joafoid Buizisiybry(  — senigesiq bujuies saoIMeg AJlunwwio)| 2
"}SOO [BUOIIPPE OU }e UOISIA0Id 382IA19S Mau a8y} ulym
pagiosge aq ued s}so9 ||eo uo jey) uojdwnsse ayj
UM 15092 186pnq [e)0} JO %6 Jo Aousioya pajewns3
*auo 0} 9aiy) woilj sysod Jabeueyy awoH aonpal
‘synpy uiI Apeaije Ajjioe} ||eo uo Buial papoddns ay) alen) ula] yoys
0,00 /500 Sv0°0 Buisinn siebeuepy awopH woJj s}so9 ||eo uo ajeulw|g| - saniqesiq buiuies saoIneg Aunwwo)| |
w3 3 w3 Arewwng [esodoud RTINS ajel0}2alig pea|joy
L1/91L02 91/510¢ 1714374 ) )

qg xipuaddy

swuwesboid Asuopy 10} anjep Jeuonoung abuey) jeuonesiuebiQo

anuaAay - pund [1ouno)
SL/ivL0Z ¥9bpng

Page 137



000'C 000'C £88°L juswiuoliaug jejo
awweiboid }sii4 sapunwwo) 1sd14 sapIuUNWWo)
0200 0200 0200 10} 93} Juswabeuely '1e3A JULIND JO UOHBNURUOD - uonessusbay juswuoliaug| g2
"S90IAIBS U)0q
ssouoe sjuswabuele Buiyels pue Juswabeuew pue Buiuuelq
oS0 oS0 800 |enuajod swooul ‘sassasoid Bunesado ay) Jo maisl pue uolj98j0id 21|9nd juswuoaaug| vz
S]S00 9onpal pue Ajliqixa) sdmas|  sjoenuo) juswAoldwg
oS0 0St'0 oSy 0 asealoul 0} sjoenuod JuswAoldwse |euonesado mainay — 8UdOS)eaANS jswuolaug| €2
0€0°0 0€0°0 0£0°0 sobleydal UoI}03||0D 8)SEM |BIIUIIO JO MBIASY 3)SEM\ - BUSDS)eaNS juswuoliaul| zz
llenooy yodjew o3 sinoy Bujuado Buimaiaal
pue ays yosohpueg mau ay) Buiuado saye Asujes
0810 08L°0 08L°0 Buisolo ybnouy) uoisiaoid ajis DYH osijeuoney 9]SEeM\ - Buads)PaNS juswuolaug| 1Lz
0€0°0 0£0°0 0£0°0 yodsuel) a)sem 10} spoyiaw juswainodold asiwndo 9)SEeM\ - BUBOSIBaNS juswuosaug| oz
0600 060°0 0600 IWwe)||y 18 uonesijesjuad pue jodaq uAy|eH Jo ainso|) S}OSSY - 8UdIs)ealS wawuolaug| gl
‘lapow bunesado
pasiwndo ay) pue sjaas| buiyels palinbal ‘sa|bisuls
UO SUOIIEPUSLILIOIS] S)EW ||IM Seale 80IAI8S S90OINBS
om] ay} Jo onsoubelp Buiobuo ay} - uonepodsues | pajejoy sAemybiy
Y S)J9SSY puUB 8usas)eallS UIyIM Ajuaiind — uoneyodsuel |
00€0 00€°0 T AAL) saoines pajejal sAemybiH Jo malnal Buidoos aoinss s)assy ' suaos}asns juswuoliaug| gL
0S€0 0S€°0 0S€°0 (GL-¥10Z) MaIAaI 193] WOJ) S81oUaIls Jo aduejeg }99|4 - |auads)aallg juswuoiiaugz| /|
AaAlap 821A8S pEOY Yuni]
ay} Jo Aouaolys ay) asealoul pue Juawalinbal yeys
ay} aonpal |jIm AJBAl|ap 82IA8s Jo malaal Buiobuo sy
‘QnH PY Yundp
0S0°0 0S0°0 0G0°0 S8jep IN 8Y) YIIM JUSLUSBA|OAUI WO J8UBQ |BldueUld|]  VHLMN - 8uddsiaalls juswuoliaug| 91
$]S00 aonpal pue AjjIqixa) @oInas|  sjoenuo) uswAoldwg
0500 0S0'0 0S0°0 9SE8I0UI 0] SJORJUOD JuswAojdwa je)s mainay — 8UdIS)eBIS juswuoliaug| G|
£€59°0 9190 €S0 s@olA18g Ajlunwwio) [ejoL
sadialeg woddng
/£0°0 /€00 6100 ampnissy|  Aunwwo) — Bujsnoy $892I1M8S AJlunwwo)| 1
¢c00 2200 ¢¢00 MBIADY 82IM8g| uolessIulWpY - BuisnoH s80lAMag Ajunwwo)| g|
sjassy —
Lv0°0 L¥0°0 ¥20°0 Ppi0}4 1| 0} syes) Alenis3 Jo uoieoo|ay |SYNPY J0j SBJIAIBS [BID0S saoIMag Ajunwwod| z|
3 3 3 Arewwng jesodoud CLTTVETS ajes0)2aliq pea|soy
LL/I91L02Z 91/61L02 512143114 ) )

q9 xipuaddy

Page 138



ssas0.d onjesoowap pue Bunum podas ‘s10|(19Unod
0} uonewuojul pue poddns ‘Aunniog ‘uswaebeuepy S2IAIBS dljeioowag
L1 0 L0 LE00 Joluag pue diysiapeaT 0} yoddns Jo uoisiaoid mairnay pue aAndax3 JaIyd saoiAlag ajelodio)| O
0¥0°0 0v0°0 0¥0°0 [I2UN0Y) INOA Alunwiwo) INoA Jo uolonpoid paonpay aAIIN23X 3 JaIy)D aoIn8g djelodio)| 6€
‘uonesiuebio ay) ssoioe saljiAloe
¥£0°0 $€0°0 ¥€0°0 SUONEDIUNWWOD pue Bulja)JEW/SJUSAS JO MBIASY aANoax3 JaIyd sooIAeg ajelodio)| ge
siessibal -
0100 0LO0 0100 sjuswabuele BuIoM JO MBIASY | S9IASS JaWOoIsN) @ 1D sooIneg ajelodio)| /€
L'l Lyl 82’ Bujusea Buojsyi |eloL
GzZ00 GZ0'0 GzZ00 S2I0UBIOIYYS Saljluawe pue spunolb [euolesiosy ains|aT Buiuiea buojay| o¢
$80IN0S8Y
0100 0L0°0 0L0°0 poddns ssauisng pue juawdo|aaaq Buiuiesa buojay| e
$82IN0SaYy
G100 G100 SL0'0 alleay] YinoA pue juswdojaaeg Buiusea Buojay| v¢
$82IN0S9Y
£00°0 £00°0 €000 saloualolye yoddns jidnd pue uswdojaaaq Buiuiea Buojay| €€
$90IN0S3Y
¥00°0 $¥00°0 $00°0 saloualole yodsuely |00yos pue juswdojara Buiuiea buody| €
0220 0420 020 sjuswabuelle JBA0D pue sejol 0} ssbuey) aimnsiaT Buiusea buojdyi| Le
0500 0500 0500 pund yoog AJeiqiT ul uoionNpay 9oIMBg Aleuqi Buluiea buojayy| o€
20IM8G AleiqlT
0€EL'0 0€L’0 LEL0 |00YOS SS|BAA }seT YUON 0} uoingqujuod JO M3IASY @o1nag Aeaqi Bujuiea buojeyi| 62
‘Awouojne jooyos pue Buuom Ajjeso| buisesasoul
ybnouyy ajdoad BunoA pue ualp|iyd s|gessunA
LL90 LL9°0 £6€°0 10} UoUBAIB)UI DAIIOBYS pue [eao] ‘Aljes Buunoag S80IAI8S UOoISN|ou| Bujusea) buojay| 82
uspJeMBH puUE JUBUOIS)
‘uojelue|s) "AIBAIIBP BUI| JUOL) SSIWIXEW O) SPE3YIaA0
swabeuew pue Buiping Buionpas ‘Burpom a)1be S92INBS
€LL0 eLL0 2900 ybnouy) AiaAliap a21A8s YnoA aulf Juoly Buiseasou) Alunwwo) pue YynoA Buiuiea Buojey| 22
"SWI00ISSE|D 3|IqOI\ pue aouelnsu|
‘19D] ‘801nI8S JISN| ‘uswapus e "sawoono
Juapnys aalisod Joy Ajjigejunosde o) yoeosdde
}snqoJ Jnq pauljweal)s e ulyym Awouojne [ooyos pue
o¥e o0 ove o 062°0 Bunjyom Ayjeoo| Buiseasou ‘Asuoyy 1o} anjep Buunoeg S|00YOS 0} S9OIAIBS Buiuiea buo| 9z
w3 '3 w3 Alewiwing [esodoud ERITVETS ajeloyoaulq pea|ioy
21/910¢ 9115102 SLvL0Z ) ]

qg xipuaddy

Page 139



(414 Svv'8 6€S5°2 W4A |euoljoung jejo)
S6lL°¢ G61°C 68’1 €1/Z1L0Z 10} UIN}-INO |eulj JO MIIASY $90IM8S Ajlunwwod| 0g
g€9L'c €91°¢ £60'C sadlAlag ajesodio) [ejo ]
Sy1L0 S¥1L°0 SHL'0 VIO Ul SWODdU| JUBLWISOAUI JO MBIASY aoueul saoIM8g ajelodio)]| 68
‘sjuawAied Buisnoy Aleuoi}aliosiq Jo |9A3)
08¢0 08€°0 08¢0 palinbai j9aw 0} Aouaios Apisqns Jyauag Buisnoy aoueul4 saolMag ajelodio)| gy
1200 1200 1200 S210U3I01)}3 JUBLAO|SASP BDI0PHOAA ao 8 9H s901MBG ajesodio)| Ly
0L0'0 0100 0L00 ssauisnq YjjeaH [euonednoad() wod) Swodul 9seslou| ao ® 4H $80I1A8G ajes0dio)| oy
CERINER
090°0 090°0 090°0 ao1n8s BuioueAaAuod paleys onesoowsa( pue [ebaT saoinIag ajelodio)| G
G600 G500 GG0'0 uononpal Apisgns NJWAD Jjeay) pAm|D BAINI3X3] §BIYY $80IMBG djelodio]| pi
suonenobaual }oB1JUOD pue UoHEUIWIS)
Z6L°0 2610 2610 asea)| Juswdinba 0} paje|al sa1ouBIdYT 92IASS|S82IAIBG JawWosN) @ 1 DI sa0InBg djelodio)| €F
[12un0)) ay) ssosoe ABojouyos) panoidwi jo Jnsal| uonesiueblo ayj ssoloe
000°L 000°L 000°L e sk $9ss3001d / $9]01 UOHRIISIUIWPY ||B JO M3IASY |  Hoddns uonessiuliwpy saoI1M8g sjelodio)| Zy
aoueULIOHSd
Ylom ,@oueuopad, Buipoddns ul paAjoAul s8dJnosal pue sdiysisuped
/00 .00 .00 pue uoljeulpi0-09 ‘ssa20id Ul S3IOUBIOYS MBIASY | ‘AdIjod — 8ANdax3 JaIyD sao1nag ajelodio)| Ly
‘3 3 3 Arewwng |esodoud CRITVET ajeso)oaliq pea|joy
LL/I9102 91L/5L02 Skivioe ) ]

qg9 xipuaddy

Page 140



Budget 2014/15
Council Fund - Revenue

Workforce Efficiencies
Organisational Design

Structure and Operating Model
Phase 1 - Tier1 & 2
Phase 2 - Grades M1-M9

Workforce Scale Review

Total Organisational Design

Cost of Employment

Professional Subscriptions
Disturbance Travel

Subsistance Allowance

Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS)
Overtime

Total cost of Employment

Total Workforce Efficiencies

Appendix 6¢

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
£m £m £m
0.460 0.600 0.600
0.990 1.400 1.400
1.500 1.500 1.500
2.950 3.500 3.500
0.024 0.024 0.024
0.005 0.005 0.005
0.054 0.054 0.054
0.030 0.030 0.030
0.047 0.047 0.047
0.160 0.160 0.160
3.110 3.660 3.660

Page 141



Page 142



Budget 2014/15

Council Fund - Revenue

Specific Grants

Lifelong
Learning
Non Delegated

Delegated

Community

Environment

Corporate
Services

Total

Basic Skills

Community Learning

Community Focussed Schools

Welsh Baccalureate

Families First

Education of Travellers

Foundation Phase

Free School Milk

Free Swimming

Funding for Youth Work Training in Wales
Learning Pathways 14-19

Minority Ethnic Achievement

National Exercise Referral

NE Wales Play Forum

School Effectiveness Grant

Pupil Deprivation Grant

Active Young People

School Uniform Financial Assistance Scheme
Unlocking the Potential of Special Schools
Youth Service Revenue Grant

Welsh Language (Athrowen Bro & WEG)
Welsh Medium Bilingual Grant

Welsh in Education

Welsh Network of Healthy Schoo! Schemes
Flying Start

National Literacy Tests

DCELLS (Post 16 provision in schools)

Social Care Workforce Development Programme

Supporting People

Well Being Activity

Flying Start

Implementation of Mental Health Act 2007
Youth Service Community Service Grants
YOT / Youth Justice Board

Communities First

Concessionary Travel

Crime Reduction and Anti Socia! Behaviour
Domestic Abuse Co-ordinator Funding
Local Transport Services

Planning - Delivering for Wales

Safer Communities Fund

Food Hygiene Rating

Animal Health & Welfare Enforcement
Substance Misuse

Tidy Towns

Sustainable Waste Management

LSB Development Support Grant

Budget Revised Budget Projection Variance to
2013-14 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14
£ £ £ £
316,000 137,526 137,526 0
3,311 3,311 3,311 0
0 97,877 97,877 0
0 61,740 61,740 0
1,735,118 1,735,285 1,735,285 0
89,687 70,673 70,673 0
5,060,777 5,019,976 4,949,746 (70,230)
179,773 179,773 179,773 0
164,807 164,807 156,567 (8,240)
22,000 22,000 22,000 0
664,080 636,937 360,000 (276,937)
106,913 134,434 128,032 (6,402)
125,000 125,000 118,750 (6,250)
61,660 340,086 340,086 0
1,078,580 1,403,508 1,403,508 0
0 1,251,450 2,295,918 1,044,468
0 463,018 439,867 (23,151)
30,080 30,080 30,487 407
45,572 45,572 0 (45,572)
90,330 114,877 126,756 11,879
226,611 0 0 0
46,940 0 0 0
0 224,638 215,374 (9,264)
87,320 87,320 87,320 0
1,652,623 1,652,623 0 (1.652,623)
0 35,450 35,450 0
11,787,182 14,037,961 12,996,046 (1,041,915)
6,025,131 6,085,382 5,935,481 (149,901)
6,025,131 6,085,382 5,935,481 (149,901)
346,969 346,969 356,833 9,864
6,824,935 6,824,935 6,483,688 (341,247)
25,000 10,000 10,000 0
0 0 2,722,790 2,722,790
12,770 12,770 0 (12,770)
60,851 60,851 0 (60,851)
327,280 327,280 327,280 0
7,597,805 7,582,805 9,900,591 2,317,786
708,911 708,911 708,911 0
1,970,427 1,970,427 1,991,843 21,416
144,461 144,461 121,203 (23,258)
27,500 27,500 27,500 0
399,062 399,062 399,062 0
70,000 70,000 20,000 (50,000)
221,882 221,882 76,868 (145,014)
0 0 5,969 5,969
0 0 15,646 15,646
926,141 926,141 293,353 (632,788)
81,742 81,742 0 (81.742)
3,287,189 3,287,189 2,976,172 (311,017)
7,837,315 7,837,315 6,636,527 (1,200,788)
50,000 50,000 50,000 0
50,000 50,000 50,000 0
33,297,433 35,593,463 35,518,645 (74,818)

Page 143

Appendix 7

Confirmed (C)
or Estimated (E)

mommooooomommmommmmommmmmm

m

mooomoon

momoommmommm



Page 144



1JO BUO 188 0} JUSWISAAUI JO |[9A3] 8)enbape ue aney am
aIns a)ew 0] saAlasal ||e Jo Aemuapun maiaal ybnoioy}

B OS|e S| 819y "S}S0D 92I0pIOM |e)0} 0} yoeoidde
BAI109]|090 e Jo ued se uonesijended Aed [enba ay} asi|in
0} S| ABajel)s JusWSaAul 8y "S}S09 X8 Buipnjoul s}sod
JJO BUO }93W O} S| pue S9AI9SAI JO [9A9] 8seq palinbal ay}

"SIy} uo ybnos uonesyue|D
10} pasn aq 0} )l Joj asodind oyoads e assy; s| “Aed [enba

SAOQE PUB JOAO Junowe 8y} si dAasal Aousbunuod syl w/ €3 pue Aouabuijuod w/ g3 JO SOAISSDY WOJ) JUswWiseAUl | L
‘pJemioy} Bujob uoijelapisuod $1ebpnq
SJ9QUIS\ JO} SUOISIOBP BU} JO BUO 3 ||iM SIY} 'S8IAISS oy} ul jey) Jo [ielep ou aiay} sl AYp  uoisiaoid [eussixd
UOISSILIWOD pue apiroid @m moy o} uoheras U] “os bulop A }S0D 8SNOY Ul JO Spew Sem uosliedwod e a1aym aajiluwod
8le pue suol}do ||e e }00] 0} SNUIUOD [|IM 8M BInjn} Sy} U] snoineld B Je passnasip ueaq aAeY SiSOD yjeaH [ejusiy | €L
"90IAI9S 81edaf@ | 8y} S! sy} Jo ajdwexd ¢,9S8Y} 0} SJNO SYeW JOUUBD 8Mm UealW Siy} S80p pue
uB MSIABJ Japun AjJuejSuoD ale SaINJUdA BAljeI0qe||02 ||V Aym —19BpNnq SIY} UIYIM SBINJUSA SAIJBIOJR]|0D JO UOIUSW ON | Z°L
‘gsle Asy} Se sanssi Ssalppe 0} sn sa|jqeus
yoiym aoe|d ul swalsAs aney am ‘Jesk ayj Jnoybnoiyy ;ybnous jsnqou sysu asay) Buuoyuow Joy soe|d
pue peaye JeaA ay} ui oedwi Aew jeyy sysi sy} ul wolsAs 8yl S| "seoMas sualppy) punole Apenoiped
WBIybiy am ‘ssaooid Bumss 186png sy} Jo 9S00 3y} I sysu Jojiuow o} soe|d ul swajsAs sy} Jnoge Jybnos soueinssy | L°L
SONSS| / SjusluWo) [eaduds | L'}
SoNnss| / Sjuaio)) Yj[eaH ¢ [e1d0S '@ buisnoH juior | 0’
:sasuodsay :suonsany pue sjuawWWo) ‘ON

S1/v10Z S|esodoid jobpng [eRiu] - (pIeoH @ [e100S® DUISNOH JUIof

ANILNYOS '8 MIIAYIAO

g xipuaddy

Page 145



‘Hodai 186pnq |euly Joy pasiiobales aq |IM 8say |

‘99i1oe.d jJuswainosoud
panoidwi wWol) SJSOD Ul ©SesId8p B JO JNsal e se
posijeal sem YE££GF Jo Aouaidiye ue ‘sjuswade|d Auno)d
JO IO suaipiiyD ulyipa sdiysuelpsenb  jeioads pue
SOOUDPISSl 10} SISPIO PNOD JO JSOD pasealdoul pue ale)d
19)S04 JO S)S0D pasealdul ay} }Jeew O} Wes} Juawade|d
Aiwe ay} Joj panoidde sem X0 L3 [Buolippe ue /g Ul

"S9IINISS
9Say} JO ainjeu pa| puewap ay} uaAlb ainbiy syjuswaoe|d
Ajuno) Jo IO 8y} pue Siy} JO |9A8| By} UO ud¥e} aq 0}
pey sey yoeoidde paseq ¥}SU ¥ "92IAI8S 8Y} UO puewsp
Jaund uo paseq si ainby syuswaoe|d ale) 19)s04 8yl

£,SIU} St Aym — podai 18bpnq sieaA snoinaid
Jad se sauobajed ojul 1ds Jou S| SJUBWISSAU| pue SaInssald

$1/€1 Ul 8sealoul ay] sem JeypAa

‘puBewap ay} }aaw o} ybnous
sjunowe 8y} aie ‘sjuswadeld Ajuno) Jo INQ s,ualpiiyd
pue ale) J9)s04 Joj sainssaid 8y} O] Sd%uali9el YA

saiNssald

€c

¢¢

L¢

0¢

"S}S02

:sasuodsay

:suoisany pue sjuUaWWOH

‘ON

SL/V10Z s|esodoid jobpng [ERIU[ - (3[eoH @ [e100S BUIsnoH julor

ANILNYEDS ? MIIAGIAO

8 Xipuaddy

Page 146



ON =

papiroid 8q 0} uoljewlsojul Jayund

‘papoddns aq ||im S19sSn 82IAISS pue
Jouiw aq Ajuo [m asayj Ing s)sod podsues) uo joedun ue
aq Aew aJay] °uOI}BO0| 09 8y} O} anp S)s0O Juswabeuew
Ul uoiloNpal B JO }jnsal B Se S| )pZF 8yl 'slesn d2IAI8S
1o} wswuoliaue sjeudoidde aiow pue Jsjeq e ssepinoid
sAOW 8Yy] "89S By} uiypm Buipuny woly papiaoid
usaq sey Buiping a8y} ysiginyes 0} JuswisaAul [elde) =

'S1osn 90IAI9S
10} S8W021N0 aA0IdWIi O} PUB JuBIDIYS aiow aq 0} ‘a|qissod
aloym ‘snoidwi 0} os|e Inq saolAIes Joajoid 0} S| Wie 8yl =

"MdIASI
196png ey woy jdwaxa aq ued Buiyjou pue joeduwi
Ue JNOYNM oW 8q ued ADUSIDIS JO [BAS] BY] "9DIAIBS
8011SNI® YINOA 8y} uiyum Buipuny 0} uonnguiuod juedyiubis
e Buipinoid s ale aiysjul4 ‘92IAI8s ay} ojul Asuow
ajow jnd 0} pajuem Aay} JI SpIOSP O} POdU PINOM SISQUIBIN =

S| juswabeueyy Ui uoonpal Yum ajeas pajuspadaldun ue Jo
selouaIoiye ale aisy) ‘aoiuas Ajigesiq Buiuies ayy Uyl

£,SUOI}OBUUOY) BJ)SeD 0} Jeau Jull4 Ul S)iS Jou pue ppiojd Ul
Aym Inq ‘parow aq o} spasu syes) Aienisg jey) juewsalby

£uolneoo| mau
e 0] 0B 0] P9BU MOU |[IM OYM SIBSN SIIAISS 10} S}S00 Hodsuel}
ay} pue ‘Buipjing ay} Buibueyo jJo 100 8y} Jnoge jeym inq
Mr23 Jo Aousiolyys |lews e si SIYl ‘pploj4 Ul YIM psjedo| 00
aq 0} syeln Asenjs3 Buinow wouy Aousiolje a8y} 0} uojelal uj

£,S92I1MI8S U0 Ajosianpe
1oedwi Jou [IM SSI0UBIOIYS JO |9AS| dsjuelenb em ue)d

éoeq
Ind aq 0} 9|qe aq Il ||IM ‘92IAI8S BY} UO JOaYe 9SIaApe ue sey
JJ| "90IAIBS 8IS YINOA U} UIYIM 30G3 JO Aouaidie WA

sepualdg

Ge

Ve

€€

A

L€

:sasuodsay

:SUOIISaNY) pue SjUaWWOoH

S1/¥10Z S|esodoid 1obpng [ERIU] - (peoH @ [e100S BUISNOH Julof

ANILNYOS '? MIIAYIAO

g xipuaddy

Page 147



aU] Jo} eouspuadapul Buunsus usamiaq aouejeq Y ‘siasn
90IAJSS 10} SBWO02IN0 JO MaiAal YBnoloy) B SaAjoAUl SIYL

‘a|qissod se jusiole se Buieq ale em ainsus 0} "] °| JO asn
Jayaq pue |0Jjuod Jo sueds ay) je Y00| 0} padu e S| alay|
"S)jouaq 99IA9s SS010 awos uieb o} sn ajqeus Aouaioiye
ay} inq Auoedeo sjenbsepe ainsus 0} pesu e si aiayl

*Ajuo s)s09 Buiyels

"aled Jo aseyoind sy} ybnouy} saoinias BuusAidp uo si
ainjpuadxa uiew sy} aie) |eipos U] "gqny Buuoissiwwod
soleM\  YWON ©ayp ybnoiyy sayoeosdde  yjesH
|[eJusy pue eljusweq pue sadinesS Ajjigesiq BuiuwiesT
6o Buiuoissiwwod uo sbuines ayew Saop ale) [e1PoS

suolnoafoid
sileaA 9aiy} xau 8y} Ojul }INng aie Sjudj[O uoljisued)
10} siseoalo) sJeaA aining  CApjuaiayip sbuiyy Buiop
Aq ¥1/€102 ul paasiyoe uaaq Apealje sey Aousioie ayl

‘pabeuew si 82I1AI8S 8y}
Aem ay} pue sejol 0} sabueyd Jnoge si Aouaidiys ay} ‘ON

" Buizisyybu, jo uonjeue|dxs ue pasN

¢£,9SeD 8y} 8 Jey) Ued MOH "8oi1AIas u) uondrusip
ou si aiay) suesw siy} jeyr uopdwnsse Byl BY} UM
sIno Juswabeuew 0} ajejal Jey} salousIod Auew ale alay |

£,81s02 Buipjing
Jo Buiyess 1o} s821))0 Aenp) syeuuo) o} payull Aousioys ay) S|

;aien
[e100g Japun pajsl] s8louaioiys Juswaindold ou aiayy si AYm

£,S92IAI8G JINPY O} S,uaip|iyD wouiy Buirow sjenpiaipui
uo joedwi OU BABY [IM S8DIAISS [eUOllisuel) 0} pajejal
SI Uolym Xzzg3F 1o Aousiois 8y} Jeyl painsse aq am ued

¢£,80IMI8s 8Y) Bulnieoal siasn 891AI9S JO Jaquinu 8y} uo joedwi
ue aAeY 92IAI8S 8JeD) WI9] HOYS 8y} Ul SaIousioyd ay} (I

iaien wia
HOYS yum op 0} osje Juswabeuepy [einjonis, Aousioiys ayy

LL'E

oL'e

6'¢

8¢

L€

9¢

:sasuodsay

ssuonsand pue sjuawwo)

‘ON

SL/v10Z s|esodoid jobpng [ERIU| - (j[eoH @ [e100S® BUISnoH Juiof

ANILNYIS B MIIAYIAO

g xipuaddy

Page 148



"90INIBS ¢,918Y pajsabbns Buiaq si jeym Jes|o
ay) Joj yeom Jad G3 Jo Buibieyo Apeam o} sajelal siyl e |joN ‘sdiysAindeq — swoou; sedinosay pue juswdopaeq | ZL'E
'$s920.d sIy} Jo yed se uaye) ale Ajajes
JIaY] ulelulew o} a1ed9jd} se yons saljiunyoddo Buisinn
pue sasinu jsijeioads pue siayiom [el1o0s BuiajoAul uosiad
:sasuodsay :suUoIISaNY pue sjUsaWWo) ‘ON

G1/710Z s|esodoid 1obpng [ERIU] - 3eoH @ [e100S® BUISNOH JuIof:
ANILNYOS ® MIINGINO0

g xipuaddy

Page 149



Page 150



-gouewopad Bulohosl
uo Aagebou 1oedwi pinoo siyr — Apybiupos uno nd
9Q 0} 9ABY p|NOM BWOS Jey} ueaw pinom uonsabbns siuy
sealoym ‘Apj@am pa}os||0d Apjuaiund aie sajejokoal |e se
olignd 8y} 1o} anss| Ajlue[o e 8)eaid oS|e pjnom }| “juswow
oy} Je Aep ay} JO pud ay} Je |jn} Sie spunod jey) usAlb ‘uo
sojoIyaA exe Bumnd uesw pjnom i se ‘senssi Aousioye
ojeaso pinom sopseld 109|100 am Aem 8y} abueyo o)

Buneaw ayy Jo apisino Buimouioq
0} Buiejey anssi oyioads ay} pasiel oym JaquisiN 8y}
UlIM BNnsSi UO UOoijediie|d }83as ||Im Jojoalig 8yl sy} 0}
uonejas ul syabie) ay) ase os Jnq Buisessoul si Buiohoay
‘sjons| BulpAoal pue jaAs| mau ay) e abeuuoc) uoleolidde
Buiuuejd oy} usamieq UONESMOD OU Si B8y}l ON

‘A1oA1Bp 82IAISS
paaoidwi Ul }nsal pjnoys Yydiym swes} om} JO uoijeuiplo
-00 Japeq ybnoiyy saouejsui yons abeuew o) Jaised
Jl 9jew p|noys Sy} pue udasaloj jou ale swa|qold yons

¢Anybiupoy 0} uonos||0d
ajsem onseld jo Aousanbaiy sy} sbueys 0} dlWIOUOID Biow
aq ) pinom ‘saoud Buyokoal oiseld jo Ajejon ayi o} ang

‘Y0093 J0 sjuawalinbal Buimolioq |enuapnid
snoinaid 0] opew sem adJuaidey ¢ Bulphosl Jo s|aAd)
pajoadxa 8y} Buios)j0d Jou aie am 8sneoaq jey} s| "seuuo)}
sy 4o} sI uopesijdde mau 8y} INg SBUUO) YG'G 10} Sem 6002
u Ajsnoinaid Bujuueld Joy uonesijddy — yoloApues aiS OYH

¢ sojoyjod Bunieday
‘60 sjuepioui 0} sasuodsal ul sAejep 0} pes| SIJIAIBS
dn Buluiol pjnom ‘Jayjeam juswejoul Se yons ssduejsul
UIM  'SOOINIeS usamiaq uoleloge|jod a9s o} Buiseald si }

SONsSS| / SjuslllIo) JuaWLOIIAUT

€l

Al

Ll

0L

:sasuodsay

:SUOIISaNY) pUB SIUBWWOD

‘ON

GL/¥10¢C sjesodo.d yabpng |eniuj - JuswuoliAug

ANILNYOS ? MIIAYIANO

g Xipuaddy

Page 151



anp si a/)iwwo) m:_ccm_n_ 0] uoneoydde ue jng 194 10N ¢,801AI8S 10} Apeal siy} S| — 9)IS YoloApueS OHH | t'E
"UMOUY| S| UOIJBWIOoUI By} UBYM JOjjIouno)) ay)
wJojul 0} Jojoailq "Juswow 3y} Je umouy jou sajuedwod ¢ W0} 811y pINOM M OYM paijijuapi am aAey Ing aAlisod
aliH ", 8JiH 10} Ylomaulel Sajep |, BY} BIA 3Q ||IM SiY L AIBA SI BWIUMOP 9%0€ 9yl Buionpal wol) SaIouaoiyd 19914 | €€
"WSU JO
Buew jyoud eale ue se pasiubooal aq 0] spaaN |osu09 }sad 0} bBuiejes
-UOU 8Qq pue 82IAI9S BY) JO 1SOD 8y} 109}j8] 0} paau so94 swajqold yym Buiesp uaym sjuapisal 0} sabieyd pasealoul
'%§G Uey} Jejealb aq jou ||Im asay} Ing asealdul ||im ses4 ui }jnsal Aew Siy} jeyj pasiel uiaduod — uonpddlold dlldnd | Z°€
"SIY} UO J0jj1ounoD) 8y} 0} jiejap Jayuny apinold
0} JoJoali] 'B|qIXa)} aiow swes) Bupjew pue 89IAI9S 8y} ‘AjaAljoaye pabeuew aq 0} spaau — 92IAISS
uiyim gejs Aousbe jo Jequinu ay} Buonpal uo pasjuad si ay} uo joedwi aAjebau e uesw jou |im i Jey) pue pasodoisd
} "99IAI8S 9y} uo Joedwi 9SIaApE UB JNOYYM palaAlep oq Aousioie Jo |9A9] a8y} noge ybnos si aduelnssy  dn
ued )i ey} 80uapyuod si alay) Ing Aouaioiys Aay e si syl Buiuiol Jo ¥oe| B sem aiay} paonNpoJul SEM BUBIS}9BIIS UBYAN L'¢
sapuadyl | 0°¢
‘v1/2/c Bunesw
Auinuog pue MalAIBAQ 0} Yoeqpasy Jo uwed se papiaold ‘Jeak
sem asuodsal Y ‘papircid 8q 0} uopewlojui Jayun4 1se| uey) ssa| Aym o0} se pauanb junowe uopepyui ABleug | z'g
¢ pasealoul sey auuo}
Jad 1809 ay} ybnoy) usne a)sem |enpisal Jo abeuuo) ay)
SOA Ul uononpal B 109|481 SIY} SO0P — aINSSald OJSEAA [enpisoy A
sainssald | 0¢
:sasuodsay :suopsanyd pue su3awWWo) ‘ON

GL/¥10Z slesodold }abpng |eniu] - Juswiuoliaug

ANILLN™ODS ? MIINYIAO

8 Xipuaddy

Page 152



uieljuew s pue |esodoidd sy 18sw 0} Ajjge
ay} Ul 9ouspyuUOd S| a1y parocidwi sey souewiopad
pue pabeuew Ajosojo si 9o1nI8s ay| "Aj||eouolsly 8oIAIeS
oy} uiyym ainssaid usaq sey aisy) jey} pasjubooal si

"S8I0UBIOIYO
ui Auoalep Buineiyoe jo piodal yoes) poob e aAey
JuswuoliAug pue sabueyd jnoge Buug o) uejd uopoe
ue padojeAsp sey 90i9S 8yl -ojesado am jey} Aem
Byl uiyIMm palaAljap 8q ued Asy) moy o} ul ind usaq sey
1ybnoyy pue awi JaAo padojaasp useq ey s|esodoid

M3IASJ] B} UIYJIM papnjouj aJe SJasse ||y

Buiuies) oyoads
siy} aoeiqwia 0} saiunpoddo dn Buissed Jo piodal ON

‘$994 Buluue|d JO MalAal B 0}
pajIWIWos aAeYy HM ‘|lig Buluueld auj jo Jed sy “|1ouno)
Qy) JO |0JJUOD BY} Jopun jou Os AjJleuoijeu }as 8ie S99

pieog yjesH ay} buibieyosal Apealje
ale 0gn weyxaip\ ‘Aed o) yuswoaibe s| aidy} pue S9A

-uado S| SUO SIY} [RUN BSOJD 10U ||IM SBYIS JBYIQ "YoJe ul

¢ sabueyo asoy) JOAISP UBD OM JUSPHUOD

am aly -ainssaid Jepun usaq Ajeouoisiy sey buiuueld

/8|qeulelsns a9 jou Aew siy} ‘pabueyo jou ale sassaoold
J esnedsaq uayepspun usaq sey Buussuibus-al ssauisng
uo yiom yonw moH -abueyds pides si pasodoud Buieq si FeUp

;awwelbold uoiesijeuoley ay} Jo Yed se paispisuod
aq buiuiea Buojdy] ulyum Aue i "slessy Ajunwwod

‘sjuswialinbal Bujuiel Jsijeioads— s1so9 199|4

¢,dn Buiob aq asay} ||m — saa} uonesljdde Bujuueid jo 3500

¢ pabieyo aq o} buiob
ale Asy} jey) aieme pieog YjlesH sy} aiy — dISEM [edAUlD

oL'e

6°€

8¢

L€

9¢

Ge

:sasuodsay

:SuUOIISaNY) pue SHUBWWOY

‘ON

GLIY10Z s|esodold }abpng [epiuj - JuswiuoliAug

ANILN™OS ® MIIAYIAO

g xipuaddy

Page 153



') S)s090 buiuun. jessuab ¢ Aousioiye ay o) ppe Aay) op moy — syodep Buiso|n | ZL's
‘saiIn ‘salopoOM 9|gIXd)} JO uoljeUIqWOD B S| alay]
"Hoday j8uiqe) ¢10g J8qUIBAON

8y} ul papnpoul sjesodoid ay) jo ¢ aseyd jo ped se ANoey doysyiom Jo pos awos aq a1ay) [IM —199|4 | LL'E
YdJely ul Jsuiged o) xoeq jybnoiq aq jiim yolym suondo
"‘@oueuliouad

:sasuodsay :suonsanpP pue sjuswWo?) ‘ON

GL/Y10¢ S|esodo.d }8bpng |eniuj - JuswuoJiAuz

ANILNAYUIDS ® M3IINYIAO

8 Xipuaddy

Page 154



‘puoAaq pue g1/G10g 10§ SUOleIapISUod
90IAI8s ainjn} Jo yed se MalAal 0} 1o8igns aq ||Im SoIAIBS
a8y} pue uonisod sjgeuleysns e jou si siyl Inq ‘wis}
Moys a8y} Ui 80iAI9s 8y} Hoddns o} w3 Jsowle Bunsaaul
si louno) 8yl “pejosfosd se useq Jou pey aosuepuspe
8INSI9T pue awWoouUl OS pue WNUMOp e palayns sey
Awouo2a ay) ‘uoilisod ainsia |jelaAo 8y} 0} asuodsal u|

‘Aj@1el0dio9 1aw Buieq mou aie s}s02 ay) ‘1ebpng
S92IAI9S 8INsIa 3y} Jnoge suidduod snoiraid Jo asnedag

‘sijeak ain)ny Jo suoijelapisuod Buiobuo
ino Jo Ued se pamajaal aq [iim SIU} Ing sieak aininy 1o}
ul urewsal sjunowe ay| - “deb 106png ay) pesealoui aaey
PINOM SIY} SB UOINQUIUOD Jayuny B Joj paau ay} INoYim
sjesodoud 126pnq G1/¥71.0Z 84} 8A8IYoe 0} S}S0O pajewijse
J99W 0] S82INn0sal Juaiyns sapiroid Yaiym GL/yLozZ Ul
S]S09 Juaw)saAul o} Buipinoid si ABajel}S JuswsaAu| ay L

‘Hodal 196pnq jeuls ayy 1o} pabueyd aq |jim Jeulio}
uoiejuasaid ayj pue payjuspl ussq Apeale sey siyl

‘wevy626L3
JO JUnowe [ej0} 8y} Sapnjoul AjUo JUSWUIBA0D) YS[BM
WOJ) PaAIBOal JUSWDINSS |euld JUSWUIBAOS) [e207 8yl

B |IIM Modai 1auige) 8y} JO /|'Q Bled S9IIAI9S aInsieT] e

Ul JNO S}SOD JuBLW]SBAUI Moys Ino Buiddoip swia)i snolnald e

l1om se sieak aininy uj apew aq uswAed jeydeo ped

¢Aum — £1/910Z Pue 91/G10¢ Ul %oeq Inq GL/¥1L02

Suelb pajeosayjodAyun,,
Buipeay Jopun a( JOu p|NOYS SOAISSSY payjewle] e

‘1sed ay} ui apew uaaq sAemje sey yolym dn spew
s1 Buipun4 |eulaix3 ajebaibby moy Jo umoys JdS ON e

Sonss| / sjuewiwio)) ajerodio)

vl

€l

(Al

L'l

0L

Sa2IA1ag djerodio) - INO LiVd

:sasuodsay

:SUOI}SONY) pue SJUdWWOo)

‘ON

. GLIy1L0Z S|esodold }abpng |eljiu] - S9JIAI8S ajelodlo)

ANILNYOS ?@ MIIAYTAO

g xipuaddy

Page 155



‘pPaiojiuow 8q 0} PasduU |lIM YoIym
aunp ui uopoys ul Buiuels jpai) |esisAlun mau a8yl
JO 10)id B S| @19y} pue palojuow aq 0} pasau |jis sjoedwl
WJoJoy aJBjjop  JuswaAsiyoe aailisod e se pasiuboosl
aQq p|noys ajeJ uoio9jj0d 3y ‘aouewiopad sieak uaund
BU} Yim aul| Ul St YdIym %66 e 18s aq Ajuspiuod ued sjel
UOIJ03Jj0D By} 0S pue umouy sI Buipuny Jo |9AS| 8y} pue
awayds ay} ‘GL/yL0Z 404 (SHYLD) dwayds uononpay
Xe] [Iounos) 8y} JO UOlBWIUOD OU Udaq pey aiay) ‘18s
Sem 3jel uondsjj0d Xe | IDUNo) YL/gL0¢ 83U} swl ay) 1y

"196pnq a|je|oA e se pasiubooal usaq sheme
Sey SIYy| -osealoul ue uaas Se JI uaym Ajuadal |iun
puewap paonpal e usaq os|e pey aiay] ‘sieah ayj Jano
Apueoiiubis paaosdwi sey sjuswaoe|d jo juswaindold

‘'Sl/y10¢ 10} dWBYIs
8y} Jo uonenuluod ay) Joj apinoid sjesodoid 38bpnq a8y
‘siseq pajeosayjodAy B U0 Jou INg ©SY By} ul papnoui
MOU 310JaJ8y} SI SIY] "dwayodsg Juels) Jauoisuad snoiaaid
ayl Jo wnowe ayl Agq (9SY) ueis uoddng anuaray
Jno JO Junowe ay} uj aseasoul ue se paseadde )l Ing ul
Jajsuel), B Se JUBWSNOS JUBWIUIBAOL) |BD0T 8y} Ul UMOYS
JOU SBM SIY] JUBWIDPISS JUBWIUIBA0L) |BI0T By} Ulyim
umoys sem )i Aem ay} jo Ajesluyosl e o) anp si Siyl

¢ paledionue Ajsnoinaud se jealb se

U2a( 10U SBY WIO0JaY SJeloA J0 1oedwi ay) jey) uoioa)|jal
e siyl s| 196pnq ¢1/€10Z @Y} Ul }8S Junowe sy} uo

9,G’ | JO 8Sealoul Ue S| %66 JO 8)ed UOIIDS)|0D Xe] |Iduno)

¢1o1uoo
SS8| 8ABY MOU @M 0 'sJeaA snoiaaid ui puadsiapun
ue usaq sey alay| ‘sjuswaoe|d Aunod 4o IO

¢Xxipuadde juswaes [eul
0} JajSueJ} Ul JOU SIY} SI AUm — BWIBYDS JUBIL) SIBUoISuUdd

L'}

9l

Gl

:sasuodsay

:SUOIISaNY) pue SjUBWIWOo)

SL/V10Z Sjesodold jebpng [eniuf - S9JIAIag ajeiodior)

ANILNYUOS ® M3IAYIAO

g Xipuaddy

Page 156



Ul 18yl SMOUS YdIym Uoljen|eA |elienjoy ay) sjodjjal siyl Bunsixe Wolj SiY) JOA0D dM UBD — S)S0D suoisuad asealou] e | z'Z
¢ s1eak snoinaid Jod
‘Hodal 196pnq jeul jo ped se auop aq ||Im Siy L se sauobajed ay) ojui Ji|ds usaq Jou UoNOas SIYl sey AYAL e L'z
sainssaid
SONnss| / sjusalilio?) SadIAIdS ajetodio) | 0°¢
£1abpnqg ay} souejeq
Saluow JJO U0 Jou pue sBulAes Jualinoal Woly 0} pasnh aq Japujewal ay} {|im ‘S}S0D JJO SUO 10} Pasijiin
papun} aq o} }abpng aseq ay} saisinbas yoiym Absjess 2 0] Junowe ay} uey} Jajealb s| siy} sy "uoijesijelded
jeioueuly 8y} jo sajdipuud sy} o} Alenuod aq pjnom snjels 8jbuig/Aed |enbg wouy wy g3 pue Aousbuipuod
siYy} se Aem siy} ul paosuejeq aq jou pjnom }8bpnqg ay] "oN w/ €3 Jo abueyo jeuonesiueblo 0} SBAISSBI JOBSN o | ||
‘Aluo spedi Joj abesn pajwi] ‘juswaaibe
ylomawel{ 10j08S olgqnd e Jo ued se paseyaind 2JemMyos ,poo9), Jo asn — Buisusol] 8iemyos e | g1y
"S90IAIOS |BI0}08]] 10} S}S09 [ejsod
pasealoul 10} Y| 3 JO asealouj Aueuonejul ue 0} pallsjal S9OINIBS
aAeY p|noys pue pooj se pauissed Ajbuoim sem siy| onjesoowa(] ¥ [eba uiyym uopejul pooj uo pesiel lenp e | g°|
"JeaA |eloueuly ay)
JO pus 8y} ai10joq Juads aq 0} papasu jey] SWns 1o} Yoam
snoinald ay) paAiedal usaq Ajuo pey HA\ WOJj Uoisioap ¢ siuelb puny uoljeloqe||o09
|euy ayl ‘p1/z/c uo Bunesw HSOYD au} je papinoid aq Aue 1o} A|dde am pIp ‘JUBWIUIBA0S) ys|oM Je AeH
0} sjielo@ “AjjenpiAipul piq O} payse uaaq pey saljloyiny Haqoy 0) JopeaT] a9y} wouy Jayd| snonaid e o) Buluaey e | gL
:sasuodsay :suoisany pue sjuawwWo) ‘ON

GL/¥10¢Z Sjesodo.d }1abpng |[eljiu] - S8JIAISG ajelodlo)

ANILNYIS '8 MIIAYIAO

g Xipuaddy

Page 157



‘1senbal
uo papiroid ©q ued Ssaull |enpiAipul UO jielep Jayung

‘OL/S1L0C PUe GL/¥L0C
‘sieak om) 1o} |Ighed ay) 10} 1s00 pasealoul Buusyng o)

a|qe|leAe s| aAJasal 8y "s|aAs] Bulyels Buinsixs uo paseq
si 1obpnq sosoppom sy} uo Jedwi snjels sjbulg syl

uoienjea
[euen)oy xau ay} ybnoiyy mainal 0} joslgns aq |Iim Ing
‘Os|e /1/910Z Joye asiu 0} anuiuog |IM ey} 1S09 Juaunsal
B S| SIYl ‘wg'p3 |euonippe ue AQ swsyos uoisuad sy}
jo Buipuny uno dn da)s 0} pasu |jim am ‘awl) sieak aaly)

LvLieLoe
woJ) sjunowe sy} jJo uosuedwod e aq alsyl pjnod

;sieah z 10}
Buuaynq Jo} a|ge|leAe aAIasal S| ¢ S|oAd] Buiyels uaund
uo psseq jey s! ‘/1/90z wolj joedwi snjels ojbuls

i SonI9sal

&4

€¢

:sasuodsay

:SUOJ}SaNY pue SjUBWWOY)

‘ON

GL/Y10¢C s|lesodold jobpng [eniu] - SediAlag 9jeiodior)

ANLLNYOS ® M3IIANYIAO

8 Xipuaddy

Page 158



‘suonesiuebio Jo abuel Japim e 0] 80IAI8S
ay) Buuayo Ag siy} uo pjng o} Bupjeas ale op ‘siesh
om} Auesu Joj DgD weyxaipy 0} somuss diysisuped
e papinoud sey juswpedsq yjesH (euoilednddQ 8yl

“}iom Jo adaid
ajelodioo se uayeuapun Buidq malnal jeuolesiuebio
Sss0I0 Jueoylubls B SI MaIAeY uojeJisiuiwpy 8yl

‘Junowe
fousoige ay) ui pesiubooal usag Sey Yoiym NOoL3
jo uoiBai ayy ui aq o} Aj@yY st Inq pasijeuy Buteq si siyL

"$319UBID1YJ8 J8YJ0 Ag paoejdal aq Isnw %G| JaYjo ay} jey)
sesiubooal Jng ‘salousiole By} JO %G8 ISed)| Je oAsiyoe
0} SI 9%Gg O} 9ouaIdjal 8y |in} Ul paAsiyde aq ued Aay)
jey; uondwnsse a8y} uo piemio} nd aie salOUBIOIYS ||V

£SIY} pUIyaq [Iejep
oy} SI 1eym ‘y)esH |euonednoad( WO} SWOdUI PasSealou|

¢ sajeioyoalig
uiyum o} pesoddo se aiay umoys siy} st Aym ‘sbuines
aAljeJisiulIpe wWol) saualpyg abuey) jeuonesiuebiQ

¢Aenbip siyy buonpoud
JO 1800 B8y} SI Jeym ,|Iouno) JnoA Ajunwiwio) JInoA,

£%G8 196 0}
108dxa AJUO |jim am ‘salousioiya A JO W83 8yl Jo eyl
uesw Jey} saoq /102 AQ Soiousiolya ||ei8A0 INO JO %68
JO JuswaAalyoe ue 0} Jajal am ‘ue|d Juswanocidwi ay) uj

ETRIEIRITE

SoNssS| | SjUsWIIO)) S83JN0Say ajelrodio)

ve

€e

A

L€

0°¢

:sasuodsay

:SUOIISaNY) pue SjUsaWWo)

"ON

SLIY1L0Z s|esodold }abpng [eljiu] - S3JIAISS ajelodlo)

ANILNAEOS ® MIIAYIAO

g xipuaddy

Page 159



Page 160



0} @oueualuiew pue siiedal 1o} ajqejieae Buipuny ay} Jo JnoO

0} ©NuURUO? |IM pue wa|qoid e usaq sey Sjooyds 1o}
196pnq aoueusjuie)y pue siieday By} Jey) uiaduo) e

asn 1saq sy} 186 am Moy e oo| 0} pasu am Jey) peaiby 9l
*S9I)IUNWIWOD
Buiuies| 4By} ul papoddns oq O} podau  sisuiedT '9|04 Jivy} woly
's|idnd 1o} sswoono j}saq ay) uieb jey) ssbueyo syew pajoajap 8q Jou pjnoys sisyoes)} peay se S|ooyds
p|NoYys am ey} ale ukls3/siayoealpesy woij suoneloadx3 ojui Ind jou S| YIOM [euOlippe Jey} paulsouo)d e Gl
‘9|qissod
se AjaAoaye 1s00 se os Buiop si pue a@ouspuadspui 1o} ¢SJUB)NSU0D UesWw S|y} seog "0} palisjal 8diApe
ySe} siy) ayeuapun o) pajuiodde uasq sey Bunnsuod AeH Juspuadepu] padx3 — ubisepay |euonesiuebiQ e 'L
196pnq pajebajap sjooyds ayj 0} sesealoul ybnoayl jsw
aq |Im %G#'0 Bujuiewas sy -ueis) uoieaudsq fidnd ayy "Juels) uoljeaudaq |idnd ay}
Ul 8seaJoui ay} ybnoly) W aq ||IM SjOOYIS 0} JUSWIIWLIWOD 0} aseaJoul 8y} ybnoiy) pasijess Huiag JusWLIOD
Buipun} ay} JO %GO 1Byl pajedipul sey JUSWUIBA0S) US| Buipuny 9%GH'0 8y uo Bnos uonedylE|) e el
1M jielsp
ay) pejussaid aAey si92I0O eyl pue AjpAnisuss
pajpuey uaaq sey }1abpng sy} jey} apew uoieis)iay e Z'l
"S|O0YDS O} 9pew Jno ||BISA0 Ue uda( Jou sey alay)
1ey) apnyjelb plodas 0} pajuem SIOUISAOS) |O0YDS e L'L
SaNSS|/SjuawWo) [eldudn
Sonss| / sjualuluo?) buiuiea| buojaji 0L
:sasuodsay :SUOIISaNY) pue suUaWWo) ‘ON

S1/v10Z Siesodoid jobpng [eniu| - buluies| BuojajI

ANILNYIS '8 MIIAYIAO

g Xipuaddy

Page 161



‘v1/2/€ Bunesw
Aunniog pue MaIABAQ 0] Yoeqpaa) Jo ped se papiaoid

e3
JO junowe uoisioap Jeah Joud e Aym Inq G102

sem osuodsas y  papinoid aq 0} asuodsal uspupA ur uoissiwal 1oy painbai }96pngq ou jey} psjoN e e
ilie
Je 196pngq ou uesw Jou S80P Gl/i7L0Z Ul palinbai
GL/1L0Z Ul 8SBSIOU| OU 8 [|IM 318y} Jey} suesw SIy} ON 019z Jey} Jybnos uoyesylie|d — aiNssald UOISSIWLSY e 2
‘Aousioiye |jlews
"SI8}J0M YInoA alow Jng Juswabeuew ul uoionpal B os|e pajou Ing ainssaid e se pasiubooal si yaiym
B SOA|OAUI yoiym ABajesys adiAlas mau 0) sajejal siy | uoisinold 90IA8S UINOA Jnoge pasied uiaouo) e 12
sainssaid
SONSS| / sjuawiwio) bujuieaT buojaji 0¢
"S|O0YDS [|e JO JjBuaq 8y} 0} pasn aq ued ysiym
saoinosal Buisesjas ainjny ayj ul 1@86png asueusjulel\ pue
Jleday ay} uo puewsap ay} aonpal [Im swwelbold s|jooyoss "*§|00YOS Mau
Anus)y Lz 8y ybnouyy uswiysiginjaljuawase|dal 401500 yBiy sy} pue sjooyas Ainua) 1z 104 386pnq
s|ooyos ay} ey} M Jyeuaq aup ayj ui jJunowe [eydeo ayj Jnoge paybiybiy uiaouo) e 'l
‘ainssald sIy} 0} ppe
abueyo olydeibowap 0} anp Juswysiginial se yons
"S|O0YDS 0} S}IIauUaq ay} asiwixew sobueyo JBY}O ¢Je payoo| 8Q SIy} ue) ‘suo aq
:sasuodsay :suolsany pue sjuUd3WWoH ‘ON

S1/v10¢ S|esodold Jabpngd [eniu] - Buiuiea| Buoja}r

ANILNYIS B MIIAYIAO

g Xijpuaddy

Page 162



0} JuEM ABW OUM SalJlIoYINy JAYJ0 0} NP SAOIAISS
ay} JaA0 uonsanb Japun s| adualjisal uua) buo| ay) Jersmoy

paliajsuel) buiaq si SIY} J| "90IAISS 8y} WO} MBIPYUM
0] Buiob sem D9 aaysybiquag usym psjjiedal wa|qoid
‘WL EL 03 UOIINGUIUOD JO MIINSY — SBJINIBS Aueiqi] e

‘pasijeas 8q ued Aouaidiys Sy} 1Byl 80USPYUOI S| 81dY | ye
£1INSal B SB 92IAISS JO [9A9)
awles ayj ulejuiew O} djge aq M ||IM pue siy} ayew
JuswAojdap Buijels pue mainal Juswabeuew 0} enp si pue 0} woij Buiwoo sysod ay) ale aleyp) aunssaud e osje
MBIASY SOOIAIDS 2INSI9T Y} JO }Nsal e se sl WQ/.Z 03 8yl 1INqQ WQgZ 03 Jo Aoualdiye ue AYm — S80IAIBS aINs|a c'e
"alejjam uoisnjouj pue yoddng
Jnoineysg ‘woddng Buiuies] ‘pun jesssy iIdnd ayy
0} Juswjsnipe sapnjoul osje siyl ‘10z Jaquieldas wol}
pajuswajdwi aq o} ale sjesodold “Ajuaund uey) Ajipsads
aJow poddns pajeoojje o} way} Jo) Buipun) ejnuLIo}
BIA pajebsjeq "Jayjeboy Jasojo Buiom BILOSUOD [00YIS
pue speaylono aAjjesisiuiwpe Buionpal Jo uoleuiquiod "90IAI8S 8y} Buijosye Inoyum paasiyoe aq ueo
e ybnoiyy paraiyoe aq [jim yolum Aousioiye siy} MOy 98s 0] piey SI }I Ydiym eale ajeoljap e bulaq siyy
Inoge jauiqe) 0} Jybnolq aq o} pauueid aie spodal Jsyun4 0} anp pasiel S| UIaouod pue sjooyods ojul Apjigisuodsal
Buuiajsuel) JNoge SI SIYL ‘W 8L 0F SOOIAIBS UoISNiou| e Z'c
‘¥1/2/€ Buneaw Auniog pue maiABAQ
0] Yoeqpas} jo yed se papinoid sem Aouaioiye siy} ‘Bunasw s Aepuopy o} joud
Jo umopyealq y * pajuswaldw Apeauje seibsjel)s o} anp papasu S| umopyealg ‘w062 03 SI00YIS 0} SSOIASS
paJaAlap 8g UBD SBJ0UBIdIYS By} Jey) 80uUdpluod S| aiay | :Bumoljos ay} uo Jybnos uonesyue|d L€
CEIREIRIITE]
Senss| / Sjusuwio) buiuiea| buojayi 0’
:sasuodsay :suolISaNY pue sudAWWo) ‘ON

G177 102 S|esodoid jobpng [eniu] - Bujuiea| BUO[SH']

ANILNYOS '?@ MIIAYIAO

g xipuaddy

Page 163



sjuswalinbal 186pnqg Ajjiqeuleisns
paseq spaau pue Bujuiel) JO S|9AS| 8y} JO JuUSWISSASSe
[njaied pue uoleoojje juelb aseyd uoljepuno ay} Jo

‘wybnos
uoljesle[d aiow — 82IASS SN @ Juaws|ug Ape3

JuawAojdap jo uonesiwixew ybnoiy) painodas aq |jIm siyL g'c
‘sabueyo ¢uodai 186pnq ay) 0} swiy Jey)
jeuonjesado pue sejou 0} sabueyod ybnoayy Aousioe wouj sjsod pue siaquinu pue sainbiy ul 9ouUsIBYIp By}
1O |9A9| Jojealb e ases|al pue asi|euoljel 0} usyeuapun AYm ‘(papinoud siaded pajiejap ul) uoisioap jauige)) oy
uaaq sey YJom Jaypuny Jey} palesipul aAinNoax3 Jaiy) ayl 90UBI9Ja. SBY 9InjonJ}say 90IAag Jo uoneuswsa|dw| IR
"82IAI8S 2ISNW 3y} 10} "sJasn
payijuapl aq pjnom sjuswabuelie aaleuss)je uoisinold siy} 90IAISS J8YJ0 puB SBIIAISS JISNW Y} 0} pasn S| 81Juad
Jo Buluoissiwwoosp ay} Jo Yed se Jey) pawuuod Sem | SIY} ‘uojelue|s) Jo BulUOISSILIWOI3P — BJIAIBS YINOA 9'¢
"1obpnq ay} Bumas 0} uolnquiuo Juepodw
INg [lews Yy ‘JusIolyjd aiow sn axew 0} 3oeq jnod bulaq
ale yoiym Ausuonjess ‘1aded ‘Bunuud ioy syabpng Aep 0} Aeq ¢ueaw S|y} saop jeym — soiseg 0} yoeq g'e
"80IAI8S 84} WO} MBIPUYIM ‘wajqold e awo2aq Aew )l S|o0Yos ojul
:sasuodsay :suolsaNY pue su3WWo) ‘ON

G1/V10Z Slesodold 3abpngd [eRIu[ - Buiuiea| Buoo}I

ANILN™IS ® M3IIAY3AO

g Xipuaddy

Page 164



‘WZJF 89 pjnom salouaidila bulunoal
wolj puy o} s deb sy ‘Abajens jusulseAul dyl
ybnoiyy woly papuny asueuly Buibpug jo asn sy} INOYIM
‘gsay] Jo Buiwi ay) 0} sajejas sanssal wody Buipuny
[euonisuel} Jo Buibpuq ayj -siesh Jsje| ul Buuinoal aq
lm Aayy ybnoyy uaas (GL/1L0Z) JeaAh jeroueuly isiy 8y} ul
[IN} Ul BASIYOE JOU [[IM 8M Jey} SoI1oualdljje 0} sajejal sy

196pnq 8y} Buiouejeq jo Aem |ensn
By} 10U SI }| ¢,SIU} Op 0} dARY am op Aym ‘soueul4 Buibpug

el
‘salbajeus 196pnq ‘uonyisod pua JeaA |enjoe ayj joaye
sieak snoinaid ul usye} yoeosdde sy} yim Jusisisuod si PINO2 Yoiym Z| YIUO — 6 Yuopy ul uaddey pjnod sjuany
pue paAsIyoe aq ||IM [2A3] SIY} Jey} uo xJom o} uoidwnsse "ajqejieAe wns Aouabunuod sy} o} uonejas u uolisod
s|qeuoseal e S| Siyl '8 Yo Je ajepdn 8y} s w3 pajoaloid e 0} Buuiajel ale am jey) pasiel uIaduod )
‘awooul Jjsuag BuisnoyH jo Buijiyoidal e pue
psledionue uey) puewsap Jamoj Jo }nNsal e Se sjuswAied Zlunowe siy} Jo umopyeaiq au} Jo sjiejap aaey
BuisnoHq Aseuopnaiosiq 1o} 196png 8y} Ul S8I0UBIOLIS am ue) ¢siy} op 0} uonisod Buuojuow g YIuo 8y} woly
Buunoas yum Jayaboy sjgeasiyoe Buidq jou (NGLL3I) 35023 Buisinn jo ABajess paysabbns e aiay} si alojaiay)
swuweibold 19SSy Sainjn4 alysjull4 sy} pue Xujepy wolj Aym “Ajuo sway Bupinoal woly GLEF Apusino s
solousIoIye sieak snonaid ul uononpas B Jo dn spew yoiym deb 3o6pnq ayj aoue|eq A|uo p|noo am jey) pasiape
se aJe sjie}ag ‘sway Buwinoas Jo dn apew S| )G0Z3F dYL alam slaquialy “Yaam Jse| sbuieaw Aunniog auy uj L'l
suosanY pue sU3WWOY [eIdUdD) 0L
:sasuodsay :suoljsanyd pue sjudawWWo) ‘ON

GL/710C UOISSOS MIIASY }obpng aNU3A3Y — SOJIAIBG ajelodlo)

ANILNYDS B MIIAYIAO

g Xijpuaddy

Page 165



's196pnq jo Juswubijeal
ay} pue juswsaalbe snjels 9buig 8y} Jo uononposul
ay} Bumojjo} ajqissod aq im [0J3u0d JaYbI Yo "SIy} 0}
[BUSSSD SI |0JJUOD JuBWYSI|gRe}ST "P8jj0Jju0d 8q 0} pasu
saop siyl pue abueyd 0} pasu saop uonesiuebio ayl

"SIy} s109jjal Buibpuq ay) pue sajeosswi} paaibe
UIYUM palaAllap @q ued YoM N4A 94l Jey} asueinsse
sapinoid 1abpng ay} 03 yoeoisdde juswebeuew MsuU ay|

196png aseq woiy uolNgUIUoD B ayew
0} poau Jou B Jou S| aJay) pue ABajelis JUSWISaAUl By} 10}
92In0saJ papinoid sey Saoue|eq pue SaAI9SaI JO MBIASBI
8] wol} a|ge|ileAe s92I1n0sal 8y) se palinbai jJou s siy}

GL/¥L0Z U] "SIS00 JuswissAul 10) /1L/910C PUE 91/510¢
Joj suondwinsse 8y} 0} Ul }INg WOYS L3 S a1ay) Apuaun)

‘uoiisod Jau 8y} 8ABY 0} SN 10} J8pJo Ul
aWayog uononNpay Xe| [1ouno) ay} Jo 10aya a8y} ajejnojed
0} psau am Jnq WG'Q3 Jo unowe ssoib e ul Buuq
PINOM 8SBaIOUI % | Jayun} ¥ "Xe} |Iounod Ul 8SEaJdul
%,¢ e Jo uopdwnsse ue sapnjoul ApuaLng uonosfosd ay |

£awWI} SIY} paJaAljap
8¢ UeD )l 80UBINSSE JBUM OS USY} JNO }IOM Jou pIp
Sy} 1By} pue GOOZ Ul S8injonJ)sal snoiaald o} aoualia)ey

¢8oueuyy Buibplq jo junowe ay}
POWNSSE JOAO JOU SABY OM Jey} MOUY| S1aquiaj\] Op MOH

éainny
8y} 1o} sanlasal ysiua|dal o} aoeld ui buiyihue aiay) S|

¢£SIUY} U0 BUOp Uaaq YoM Jayuny
Aue sey ‘deb ay aso|o 0} ABajel)s sy} Jo Hed se |aAs| Xe |
[1ouno) pasodoud ay} JO MaIAaL B 0] 90Ual9jal S| 818y |

L'l

o'l

Gl

vl

:sasuodsay

:SUOISaNY pue SUWWOo)

GL/710C UOISSaS MalAay Jabpng onuaAay — SodIAIag 9)jeiodio)

ANILNYIS B MIIAYIAO

g xipuaddy

Page 166



aJnjonl}s Aed mau ay} pue
Juswaalbe sniels ajbuls ayl ybnoiy) paajosal usaq sey
sIYy} se swie|o Aed |enba [euoiippe 0} pes) Jou ||Im siy} Ing

‘suoljen|eAs qol pasinal pasu Aew 9240J0M paonpal
e ul Ya| ale oym a|doad pue swied Aed |enb3
uo sabuajjeys Jayuny 0} usdo aq ||IM am |njaled jou

sebueyo 9|0l J1vY) )| pajenjeAs-al aq 0} paau Aew sqor ale om JI ‘uonesiuebioal ainny pue snjels s|buls UM e 6l
"030D Uim pajsanbal
Bunoayy "siesk Jo Jaquinu B Joj S}S0D Jejs uo Juadsiapun

‘pabue.ie aq 0} Bunes|y aney D04 1Byl SMOUS YdIiym uoljeullojul 0} 8oualajay 8’1

:sasuodsay :suosany pue susWIWO)H ‘ON

G1/V10Z UOISSOS MoIAay Jobpng onudAady — S8JIAlag ajelodio)

ANLLNYOS ? MIIANYIAO

g xipuaddy

Page 167



SLIPLOZ 10} sjesodoid 1obpnq oy}
Ul paluap! SAAUSD BINSIST 10} WZ96'0F SY} UIYNIM Siseq
Bulunoal B UO papnjoaul sI junowe siy] -uejd ssauisng
saljua) ainslo] pasinal 8y} Jo suopeddwn jebpng
Jeak-ul ay) ssaippe 0} yL/SL0Z Ul 8pew Sem SAIasal

¢ainssaud
SIY} UO jIBJop Jayun) 9ABY aM UED pue jey) sl

yonw moH ‘juawAed |eydes e o} pajejal Ajued s| siy}

AouaBunuoo a8yl wol) WGES 03 JO  uonedoje  uy ‘ainsia 1o} WZ96 03 40 ainssald ay) o) piebal yupn e 1'Z
SjusW}saAU|/sainssald | 002
:sasuodsay :suolsany) pue SjUAWIWO) N

G/ 10Z UOISSeS MaIAdYy Jobpng enuaAady — SoJIAI9S a)elodio)

ANILNAEOS ® M3IAYIAO

g Xipuaddy

Page 168



uoIsnjoul Joj payluapl
seale 99IA9S Ul SNJA JOUUN) ou ale aIsy] o|geAslyoe
sI jeym Amuspt 0] usye} Buisq s yoeoudde paseq
3¥SU Y pedueleq s!386png 8y} (UN BNUKRUOD ([IM YOIYM

¢papnjoul buieq
aje sapuaIys Jo sadA) Jayjo jeypyy  swwesboud
INAA BUl Japun Saloualje Jayun) 0} doualsjel

sseo0id BuloBuo ue SI S8loUBIOIYD JO UONEIYNUSP! By soyew deb 1896png ay) Buneaw o} Buluses aplis ayy e e'e
* sUoluM 38Ul YUM pjay usaq aney
SUOISSNOSI(] 'SUOIJIPUOD pue SWId) ¢ Ued O} pajejal jou duswAojdwg
sl J| 010 |9AeJysuondlOSqNS [BUOISSBJ0Id O} Sdjejal SIyL JO 1S00D) 92JOPHIOAN SU) JO |IB}Sp SI0W SABY 9M UBD e Z'e
*904N0S SIY} woly s|qissod se i papnoul usaq Apealje
yonw se pulj o} Buiauls aie am pue Bulobuo si yiom siy} JOU Jey) Sey ‘soiseq 0} YOBE/AUBWAINI0IH WOJj s|gejieAe
INg papn|oul uaaq Sey Jej 0S HIOM 3y} JO SwooNo ay | aq Aew jey) ssloUSIOIYS [BUOIIPPE O} 8dUdIdj8I YIM L'
sepusdYd | 0°C
Sonss| / Sjuelilo)) S92JN0Say ajelodio)
:sasuodsay :suolsaNY pue sjuUaWWo) N

GL/V10Z UOISSOS MIIADY Jobpng SNUBAIY — SBDIAISS ajelodion

ANILNYIS '® MIIAYIAO

g xipuaddy

Page 169



Page 170



Appendix 9

Budget 2014/15
Council Fund - Revenue

Summary of Council Fund Earmarked Reserves

Estimated Estimated

Balance Balance
01/04/14 31/03/15
£m £m

Service Balances

Community Services 0.029 0.000
Environment 1.140 0.413
Corporate Services 1.319 0.000
Total 2.488 0.413
Corporate Balances

Equal Pay / Single Status 27.618 10.767
Total 27.618 10.767
Specific Reserves

Insurance Fund - Asbestos 0.160 0.160
Benefits Equalisation 1.200 0.300
Supporting People 1.493 1.293
Building Control 0.200 0.150
Milk Quotas 0.077 0.081
Waste Disposal 0.518 0.418
Flint Castle Landfill Site 0.030 0.030
Flintshire Business Services 0.089 0.039
Winter Maintenance 0.250 0.250
Design Fees 0.120 0.120
County Elections 0.092 0.092
Third Party Insurance Claims 0.087 0.087
Flintshire Insurance 0.600 0.600
Minor Reserves under £0.050m 0.038 0.028
Total 4.954 3.648

Page 171



Page 172



Agenda Item 8

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET
DATE: TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014
REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE, CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR

OF ENVIRONMENT

SUBJECT: COUNCIL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2014/15
AND INDICATIVE FUNDING TO 2017/18

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 The purpose of the report is to propose the Council Fund Capital
Programme for 2014/15 (with indicative funding estimates for future
years), following consultation with the Corporate Resources
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The Council plans on a 4 year capital programme timescale. Each
year, the Council sets it capital programme for the coming year and
provides an indication of the estimated level of resources available
and has historically shown the potential allocation to service areas in
future years.

2.02 Indicative amounts for 2014/15 were shown in the Capital
programme 2013/14 report which was agreed by Council on 1%
March 2013.

2.03 Capital programme and capital monitoring reports over recent years
have highlighted the growing pressure being experienced by all
councils in relation to capital. The specific background to the setting
of the Council's 2014/15 capital programme was discussed with
Members at the Budget Workshops on December 16" and 18" 2013,
who supported the proposed approach to the capital programme for
2014/15.

2.04 A meeting hosted by Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee was held on 3™ February to enable all Members to
consider the 2014/15 capital programme. Members raised various
comments and questions and responses were provided and a
summary of these are detailed in Appendix 3.

Page 173



2.05

3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

This report covers the Council Fund only. The initial Housing
Revenue Account (HRA) capital programme proposals were
considered alongside the HRA revenue budget proposals for
2014/15 by Cabinet and the Housing Overview and Scrutiny
Committee in January and the final proposals are also on this
agenda.

CAPITAL STRATEGY

Flintshire, along with all Councils, has experienced significant
pressure on the capital programme in recent years. This results from
reduced funding available through the annual financial settlement
from the Welsh government (WG) and the impact the economy has
had on the generation of capital receipts. Furthermore, as WG
seeks to manage its own budgets, the specific grants available to
Councils for capital investment in particular services has become
more limited; with WG switching its support for Highways
Maintenance and 21%' Century Schools to revenue support for
Council borrowing in place of capital grant.

The pressure on capital resources comes at the same time as
significant financial pressure on revenue budgets and is a situation
which is set to continue until at least the end of the decade. The
combination of the two means that it is more important than ever that
the Council's revenue and capital service delivery and financial
planning are fully integrated.

Against this backdrop, it was recognised, during the lead into the
setting of the capital programme for 2013/14, that there was a need
to review:-

e The approach to the management of assets to ensure that they
meet Council priorities in terms of service delivery, community
development, income generation and capital receipts; and

¢ The development and management of the capital programme to
ensure it most effectively meets the Council’s aspirations, with a
Capital Financing Strategy as an integral part of the overall
Medium Term Financial Strategy.

Significant work has been undertaken by officers in 2013 to review
capital assets and how and where services are delivered from. The
information from this review is being brought together for detailed
Member consideration and public engagement in the spring of 2014.

The availability of this review information is crucial to decisions on

future service delivery, prioritising investment, aligning resources
and achieving value for money in the longer term.

Page 174



3.06

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

Whilst this work on planning for the longer term is developing, it is
important that the Council sets its core capital programme and puts
in place funding to meet urgent needs for 2014/15 to enable the
resources to be in place to:-

e Support key services e.g. schools maintenance;

e Support investment which enables change e.g. ICT networks;

e Provide funding for property related costs e.g. DDA, Health &
Safety; and

o Meet essential contractual commitments and health & safety
issues.

FUNDING THE CAPITAL PROGRAMME

The capital programme includes the following elements which are
funded as shown below:-

(a) A core capital programme resourced by:-

e The funding mechanisms within the WG financial
settlement (general capital grant and supported borrowing
where WG recognise the cost of repaying the borrowing in
the revenue financial settlement); and

e Capital receipts from the sale of Council assets in
accordance with the disposal programme.

The Council has discretion to allocate both of these
resources as it determines to meet local priorities and needs.

(b) Capital schemes funded from specific grants which are for
specific purposes as directed by WG or other grant
providers;

(c) WG supported borrowing through the Local Government
Borrowing Initiative (LGBI) for highways and 21 Century
schools (WG element); and

(d) Locally determined unsupported (prudential) borrowing which
is met from the Council’'s revenue budget without support
from WG.

CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME

The total projected core funding available over the 4 year period
2014/15 to 2017/18, by way of the sources in 4.01 (a) above, is
shown in the table below and amounts to £31.898m.

Page 175



5.01.1

5.02

5.02.1

5.02.2

5.02.3

ESTIMATED AVAILABLE CORE FUNDING 2014/15 - 2017/18

2014115 2015116 2016/17 201718 | Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Funding (Excluding Specific ltems)
Unhypothecated Supported Borrowing (USB)1 4299 4299 4299 4299 | 17196

General Capital Grant (GCG) 1 2616 2616 2616 2616 | 10464
Capital Receipts 1250 1250 1250 1250 | 5.000
(Shortfall) / Surplus from 2013/14 (0.762) (0.762)
Total 7403 8165 8165 8165 | 31.898

1 As per 14/15 Final Settlement.

This shows that the total resources available in 2014/15 to fund the
core capital programme are £7.403m.

Funding

The basis for the estimates of funding levels are as follows:-
USB and GCG

The final financial settlement received from WG in December 2013
provided a total of £6.915m, £4.299m through USB and £2.616m via
GCG. This has been assumed to be consistent throughout the
reporting period.

Capital Receipts

The issue of capital receipts continues to be a problematic one for
the Council. In the current economic climate it is difficult to predict
with certainty when disposals will be effected and the funds therefore
realised to support the capital programme. This led to the Council’s
decision to withhold 20% of the core programme in the current
financial year. The Month 6 report to Cabinet on 17" December
recommended that this 20% continue to be held back in 2013/14.

As a consequence of this continued position it is considered to be
imprudent to set capital budgets where the funding may not be
realised. It is therefore recommended that the 2014/15 core capital
programme budget be set based on a minimal capital receipts target
of £1.250m, which the Council is confident can be achieved. This
will have the effect of reducing the overall core programme by c30%
(£3.083m) in 2014/15 from that indicated last year.

Page 176



5.02.4

5.02.5

5.02.6

5.02.7

5.03

5.04

Any receipts generated over and above the target figure of £1.250m
could either be:-

e Released in year to supplement the programme; or

e Allocated in 2015/16 by adding them to WG funding to fund the
core capital programme or utilised to fund capital works arising
from the asset review.

It is further recommended that any such additional receipts in
2014/15 be kept until the 2015/16 financial year, so that going
forward each subsequent year’s budget is based on actual receipts
from the previous year, placing the Capital Programme on a more
secure footing during difficult economic times.

As a result of the uncertainty about receipt levels, the forecast of
receipts in this report is limited to four years rather than the 10 years
which has been provided in reports in previous years and is forecast
at a consistent level over the period.

Whilst it is appreciated that this approach may cause short term
operational challenges, this process will allow future core capital
programmes to be set based on known levels of funding and will
remove the uncertainty over capital planning that has been inherent
in previous years.

Shortfall from 2013/14

As previously reported in capital monitoring reports, the final shortfall
carried into 2013/14 was £3.028m as a result of receipts in previous
years not reaching anticipated levels. This was mitigated by the 20%
holdback in year and the capital receipt received on the liquidation of
AD Waste and increased by a shortfall in in-year capital receipts and
new budget pressures, resulting in a revised shortfall of £0.762m
carried into 2014/15 (Section 3.05.5 of the Month 6 monitoring report
to Cabinet on 17" December 2013 refers).

Allocation of the available funding

As indicated in 5.01.1, the total amount available to fund the core
capital programme in 2014/15 is £7.403m.

In taking a broadly one year approach to the capital programme,
pending the longer term planning described in 3.04, it is important to
adopt a risk based approach to identify any urgent capital needs
which need to be addressed in 2014/15 to avoid known and
unavoidable pressures arising and causing pressure on the
programme in year. This has been restricted to contractual and
health & safety matters only.

Page 177



5.05

5.06

5.07

6.00

6.01

As a result, two items for inclusion have been identified and it is
recommended that these be met from the core programme
resources before allocating the remainder to core schemes:-

CAPITAL BUDGET 14/15 - ADDITIONAL ITEMS

SCHEME DESCRIPTION VALUE
£m
Glanrafon Centre, Queensferry ~ Health and safety works to roof and 0.060

internal facilities

A548 Highways Works Contractual claim re additional works 0.085
0.145

This leaves £7.258m to be allocated to the remaining core schemes.
Heads of Service from all three operational Directorates and
Corporate Services carried out an in-depth review of the core
schemes to recognise any statutory/contractual obligations and
inherent risks in reducing funding from previously indicated levels. In
addition, consideration has been given to the timing of programmes,
client groups, links with external funding partners, the level of funding
in prior years and specific funding needs for 2014/15.

The resulting recommended allocations for 2014/15 can be found in
Appendix 1. Detailed programmes for future years will be drawn up
in the light of actual levels of receipts becoming known.

ESTIMATED TOTAL COUNCIL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME

The total projected funding available (including the core programme)
over the 4 year period 2014/15 to 2017/18, by way of the sources in
4.01 (a) to (d) above, is shown in the table below and amounts to
£101.361m.

Page 178



6.02

6.03

6.04

6.05

ESTIMATED AVAILABLE TOTAL FUNDING 2014/15 - 2017118
2014115 201516 2016/17 201718 | Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Funding (Total)
General Funding
Unhypothecated Supported Borrowing (USB)1 4299 4299 4299 4299 | 17.196
General Capital Grant (GCG) 1 2616 2616 2616 2616 | 10464
Capital Receipts 1250 1250 1250 1250 | 5.000
(Shortfall) / Surplus from 2013/14 (0.762) (0.762)
Sub Total 7403 8165 8165  8.165 | 31.898
Specific Funding
Specific Capital Grants 5215  0.747 0576 6.598
Unsupported (Prudential) Borrowing 1960 21558 4043 0504 | 28.065
Local Govt Borrowing Initiative - Highways 2.700 2.700
Local Govt Borrowing Initiative - 21st C Schools 3635 22698 5263 0504 | 32100
Sub Total 13.570  45.003 9882  1.008 | 69.463
Total Funding Available 20973 53168  18.047  9.173 | 101.361
1 As per 14/15 Final Settlement.

This shows that the total resources available in 2014/15 to fund the
capital programme are £20.973m.

Appendix 2 sets out the estimated total capital programme for
2014/15, taking account of all funding sources referred to in Section
4. These are detailed below.

The core allocations, as funded by those sources referred to in
Section 5, can be found in the column ‘General’.

Specific allocations can be found in the column ‘Specific’. In 2014/15
this adds further investment of £13.570m (See 6.06 to 6.09 below).

Page 179



6.06

6.07

6.08

6.09

6.10

7.00

7.01

Specific grants amount to £5.275m and include £1.7m Regional
Transport Grant, £1.542m Transition to 21C Schools and £0.950m
for Land Drainage. The amounts included are based on historical
allocations and information available at the time of writing the report,
any subsequent variation in the level of individual grants will be dealt
with by amending the budget as necessary in year. These allocations
are for specific time durations hence the variation in amount year on
year.

Unsupported (prudential) borrowing of £1.960m relates to funding for
schemes approved in previous years.

A further £4m is to be made available across Wales by WG in
2014/15 under the Local Government Borrowing Initiative (on top of
the £4m provided in 2012/13 and 2013/14) to support the borrowing
charges (revenue) of highways capital works. This equates to £2.7m
for Flintshire in 2014/15.

In addition to the above, WG has recently announced an extension
of the LGBI to include schools; this will bring forward funding
(between 2014/15 and 2016/17) of £200m across Wales, which will
be used to support the borrowing charges (revenue) that fund the
WG element of the 21st Century Schools Programme. This equates
to £3.635m for Flintshire in 2014/15.

It can be seen that the indicative funding for 2015/16 includes
£44.176m related to 21%' C schools. Whilst preliminary expenditure
on the 21%' C schools programme has taken place in 2013/14, the
programme is for significant expenditure to commence from 2015/16
to deliver on the £64m of investment in Flintshire schools under the
21% C programme which is funded equally by Flintshire and WG.

CONSULTATION

A meeting of the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny
Committee was held on 3rd February 2014, at which the capital
programme proposals as set out in this paper were considered. The
scrutiny meeting was open to all Members of the Council and the
feedback from the meeting is incorporated at Appendix 3

Page 180



8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

13.00

13.01

14.00

14.01

15.00

15.01

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet is asked to recommend to Council on 18" February that
they:

(a) Note the report.

(b) Approve the allocation of funding to the core capital
programme in 2014/15, as shown in Appendix 1, including
the additional items referred to in Section 5.05, and note the
indicative funding available for future years.

(c) Approve the setting of a minimal capital receipts target for
2014/15 and the process whereby receipts generated in one
financial year are used to fund expenditure in the next (See
Section 5.02.3 and 5.02.4).

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI-POVERTY IMPACT

Individual Capital Programme Schemes may have specific anti-
poverty impacts.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Individual Capital Programme Schemes may have specific
environmental impacts.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

Individual Capital Programme Schemes may have specific equality
impacts.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

All Members through Overview & Scrutiny.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Initial discussion took place at the Member workshops on 16" and
18" December, 2013.

Page 181



15.02

16.00

16.01

Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 3™
February.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Core Capital Programme Schemes 2014/15
Appendix 2 — Total Capital Programme 2014/15
Appendix 3 — Feedback from Overview and Scrutiny

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer:  Gary Ferguson
Telephone: 01352 702271
Email: gary.ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 182



CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 1

2014/15
Estimate
£m

SUMMARY

COUNCIL FUND

COMMUNITY SERVICES 1.885
ENVIRONMENT 2.345
LIFELONG LEARNING 2.035
CORPORATE SERVICES 1.135
TOTAL - COUNCIL FUND 7.400
FINANCING

Unhypothecated Supported Borrowing (USB) 4299
General Capital Grant 2.616
Capital Receipts 0.488
(Unallocated - Headroom)) / Under Financing (0.003)
TOTAL - FINANCING 7.400

Page 183



CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 1 (Cont.)

2014/15
Estimate
£m
COMMUNITY SERVICES
Grants
Various Private Sector Renewal and Improvements 1.730
Shotton Housing Renewal Area Support 0.155
TOTAL - COMMUNITY SERVICES 1.885
ENVIRONMENT
Administrative Buildings
Various Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) Works 0.175
Various Energy Efficiency Measures 0.100
Various Renewable Energy Installations 0.100
Various Asbestos Removal 0.070
Various Legionella Monitoring 0.070
Various Upgrading Fire and Intruder Alarms 0.055
Various Fire Safety Order Works 0.100
Various Corporate Property Maintenance 0.350
Queensferry Glanrafon - Health & Safety Works 0.060
Engineering
Various Land Drainage Works - General 0.045
Various Coast Protection Works - General 0.070
Highways
Various Highways Infrastructure 0.520
Various Bridge Assessments and Replacement 0.100
Various Street Lighting Replacement 0.120
Various Structural Maintenance 0.120
Gronant A548 Contractual Claim 0.085
Regeneration
Various Town Centre Regeneration 0.130
Flint Townscape Heritage Initiative 0.075
TOTAL - ENVIRONMENT | 2.345 |

Page 184



CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 1 (Cont.)

2014/15
Estimate
£m
LIFELONG LEARNING
Education - General
Various School Buildings Repairs and Maintenance 1.700
Various Disability Discrimination Act - Individual Pupils 0.250
Various Furniture and Equipment 0.045
Primary Schools
Various Learning Environments (Foundation Phase) 0.040
TOTAL - LIFELONG LEARNING 2.035
CORPORATE SERVICES
ICT and Customer Services
General ICT Infrastructure 0.170
General Agile Working Investment 0.070
General EDRMS Implementation 0.065
General ICT Infrastructure 0.140
General Microsoft Enterprise Agreement 0.350
Flintshire Connects
Various Flintshire Connects 0.250
Corporate Finance
General Minor Capital Works - Health & Safety 0.075
General Corporate Provision - Feasibility Studies
Clwyd Theatr Cymru
General Provision 0.015
TOTAL - CORPORATE SERVICES 1.135
| TOTAL - COUNCIL FUND | 7.400 |

Page 185



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 186



TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 2

Estimate 2014/15
Estimated Financing
Payments General | Specific
£m £m £m

SUMMARY
COUNCIL FUND
COMMUNITY SERVICES 2.461 1.885 0.576
ENVIRONMENT 8.146 2.345 5.801
LIFELONG LEARNING 9.228 2.035 7.193
CORPORATE SERVICES 1.135 1.135 0.000
TOTAL - COUNCIL FUND 20.970 7.400  13.570
FINANCING
Unhypothecated Supported Borrowing (USB) 4.299 4.299
General Capital Grant 2.616 2616
Capital Receipts 0.488 0.488
Specific Capital Grants 5.275 5.275
Unsupported (Prudential) Borrowing 1.960 1.960
Local Government Borrowing Initiative (LGBI) - Highways 2.700 2.700
Local Government Borrowing Initiative (LGBI) - 21C Schools 3.635 3.635
(Unallocated - Headroom) / Under Financing (0.003) (0.003) 0.000
TOTAL - FINANCING 20.970 7.400  13.570

Page 187




TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES

APPENDIX 2 (Cont.)

Estimate 2014/15
Estimated Financing
Payments  General | Specific
£m £m £m

COMMUNITY SERVICES
Grants

Various Private Sector Renewal and Improvements 1.878 1.730 0.148

Shotton Housing Renewal Area Support 0.433 0.155 0.278
Travellers' Sites

Queensferry Riverside Caravan Site 0.150 0.150

TOTAL - COMMUNITY SERVICES 2.461 1.885 0.576
ENVIRONMENT
Administrative Buildings

Various Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) Works 0.175 0.175

Various Energy Efficiency Measures 0.100 0.100

Various Renewable Energy Installations 0.100 0.100

Various Asbestos Removal 0.070 0.070

Various Legionella Monitoring 0.070 0.070

Various Upgrading Fire and Intruder Alarms 0.055 0.055

Various Fire Safety Order Works 0.100 0.100

Various Corporate Property Maintenance 0.350 0.350

Alltami Depot Rationalisation 0.075 0.075

Queensferry Glanrafon - Health & Safety Works 0.060 0.060
Engineering

Various Land Drainage Works - General 0.995 0.045 0.950

Various Coast Protection Works - General 0.070 0.070
Highways

Various Highways Infrastructure 2.220 0.520 1.700

Various Bridge Assessments and Replacement 0.100 0.100

Various Street Lighting Replacement 0.120 0.120

Various Structural Maintenance 0.120 0.120

Various Local Government Borrowing Initiative (LGBI) 2.700 2.700

Gronant A548 Contractual Claim 0.085 0.085
Regeneration

Various Town Centre Regeneration 0.137 0.130 0.007

Flint Townscape Heritage Initiative 0.309 0.075 0.234
Ranger Services

Connahs Quay Wepre Park Development 0.135 0.135

TOTAL - ENVIRONMENT 8.146 2.345 5.801

Page 188




TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES

APPENDIX 2 (Cont.)

Estimate 2014/15
Estimated Financing
Payments | General = Specific
£m £m £m
LIFELONG LEARNING
Education - General
Various School Buildings Repairs and Maintenance 1.700 1.700
Various Disability Discrimination Act - Individual Pupils 0.250 0.250
Various Furniture and Equipment 0.045 0.045
School Modernisation
Various 21st Century Schools 5.268 5.268
Shotton Taliesin Junior/Shotton Infant 1.794 1.794
Primary Schools
Various Learning Environments (Foundation Phase) 0.040 0.040
Various Flying Start Capital Expansion Programme 0.131 0.131
TOTAL - LIFELONG LEARNING 9.228 2.035 7.193

CORPORATE SERVICES
ICT and Customer Services
General ICT Infrastructure 0.170 0.170
General Agile Working Investment 0.070 0.070
General EDRMS Implementation 0.065 0.065
General ICT Infrastructure 0.140 0.140
General Microsoft Enterprise Agreement 0.350 0.350
Flintshire Connects
Various Flintshire Connects 0.250 0.250
Corporate Finance
General Minor Capital Works - Health & Safety 0.075 0.075
General Corporate Provision - Feasibility Studies
Clwyd Theatr Cymru
General Provision 0.015 0.015

TOTAL - CORPORATE SERVICES

| 1435 1.135 0.000 |

TOTAL - COUNCIL FUND

| 20.970 7.400  13.570 |

Page 189



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 190



T6T abed

APPENDIX 3

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Corporate Resources — Council Fund Capital Programme

2 Comments and Questions: Responses:
1.0 | School Modernisation
e Is the £5.268m in Appendix 2 in addition to the No, the £3.635m makes up part of the £5.268m.
£3.635m in the Table in 6.01 of the Report?
e Who decides which schools are in the 21 Century Tranche 1 schemes in Holywell, Connah’s Quay and
Schools Programme? Queensferry have already been agreed by WG and by
Council (December 2011). Details of Tranche 2
schemes are currently being worked on by officers.
2.0 | School Repair & Maintenance
e There is still a large backlog of repairs and the The maintenance backlog is reducing by more than the
2014/15 allocation is down to £1.700m. If annual allocation from the core programme.
deterioration in our school buildings continues at more
than this level, we are not even addressing the
backlog.
3.0 | Highways

e What is the £0.085k in Gronant?

This is part of ongoing contractual negotiations and is
therefore commercially sensitive, details will be
provided outside of the meeting.




26T abed

APPENDIX 3

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Corporate Resources — Council Fund Capital Programme

No.

Comments and Questions:

Responses:

4.0

Local Government Borrowing Initiative (LGBI)

¢ Relating to paras 6.08 and 6.09 of the report, is it
correct that we are borrowing on WG’s behalf?

¢ |s the LGBI revenue support for principal and interest
repayments or interest only?

¢ |If the revenue support is in the Revenue Support
Grant (RSG) and that reduces in future years, does
the support reduce also? Could it not be ringfenced
as it is a known commitment?

e Will the Leader of the Council take this up with WG for
future settlements?

WG are providing the revenue support to enable the
Council to borrow on their behalf. This revenue support
is in the RSG for the period of the borrowing (20 years
in the case of highways).

The response to this will be part of a more
comprehensive response to a similar query raised
recently at County Council. A copy of the response will
be sent to all Members.

RSG is unhypothecated and no ringfencing of amounts
within the settlement takes place, though that does not
mean that the Council cannot ringfence these funds
when setting the annual revenue budget. WGA is call
for more hypothecation in the future.

Research since the Scrutiny meeting has identified that
the amount for LGBI is shown specifically in the make
up of the RSG amount, although the total sum remains
unhypothecated.




€6T abed

APPENDIX 3

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Corporate Resources — Council Fund Capital Programme

No.

Comments and Questions:

Responses:

5.0

General

Shortfall - What is the explanation for the projected
shortfall of £0.762m?

Capital Programme - There are a number of
schemes where the stated location is ‘various’. Why is
this?

Are there already programmes drawn up for those
items marked as ‘various’?

This shortfall is the estimated under-funding of
committed capital schemes as at the year end as a
result of capital receipts being lower than estimated in
prior years. This shortfall has first call on the resources
for 2024/15.

Many of the allocations in the Core Programme are not
site or area specific but are there to address issues as
they arise in year e.g. DDA works.

Programmes are developed based on identified needs
and priorities once the funding has been approved by
Council.




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 194



Agenda Item 9

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014

REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE, HEAD OF FINANCE, DIRECTOR
OF COMMUNITY SERVICES, HEAD OF HOUSING

SUBJECT: HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 2014/15 & CAPITAL

PROGRAMME 2014/15

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To consider the Housing Revenue Accounts (HRA) budget as set out
in 1.02 and 1.03.

1.02 Revenue budget proposals for the 2014/15 financial year, including
proposed rent and service charge changes, key areas of income and
expenditure, and the level of closing balance at the year end.

1.03 Budget proposals for the HRA Capital programme 2014/15, which is
year three of a six year improvement programme.

1.04 To note the impact of the proposed revenue budget and capital
programme on the HRA 30 year Business Plan.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  As the Council has a stock of Council housing, it is required by the
Local Government and Housing Act 1989 to keep a HRA in
accordance with proper accounting practices, and to budget to avoid
an end of year deficit.

2.02 The HRA is a “ring-fenced” account of certain defined transactions
relating to Local Authority Housing. The ring-fenced nature of the
account means that funding cannot be transferred between the
Council Fund and HRA or vice versa, other than in certain prescribed
circumstances.

2.03 Although there is a legal requirement to avoid an end of year deficit, it
is also considered to be good practice to budget for a closing balance
of at least 3% of total expenditure of the HRA.

2.04  Prior to the start of each financial year, the Welsh Government (WG)
consults with Local Authorities on the draft HRA subsidy and Item 8
determinations. These are the key financial determinations set each
year by WG which influence Local Authority rent increases, and also
the amount of HRA subsidy payable by the council. The two main

Page 195



2.05

2.06

2.07

2.08

2.09

2.10

elements of the consultation are the “guideline rent increase” and the
Management and Maintenance (M&M) element of the HRA subsidy.

The management and maintenance allowance element of HRA
subsidy is the amount which WG considers each Local Authority
requires per HRA dwelling to manage and maintain the housing stock
held within the HRA.

Initial budget proposals for 2014/15 were approved by Cabinet on 21
January 2014 and considered by the Housing Overview and Scrutiny
Committee later the same day. The revenue budget and capital
programme proposals were welcomed by scrutiny and no changes
were requested to the initial budget proposals set out by the Cabinet.
A summary of the questions raised at the scrutiny meeting and
responses provided is included as Appendix 6.

New Rent Policy for Wales and exit from the HRA subsidy system

The new rent policy will be introduced in April 2015 and will allow for
the convergence of rents for both local authority and registered social
landlords. The rent policy sets a target rent band for each landlord
and landlords will be required to operate with average weekly rent
levels that fall within the scope of those bands. The banding is 5%
above or below the target rent.

Where a landlord’s weekly rent is higher than the target rent band, the
landlord will be expected to increase its rents more slowly e.g. at 0.5%
less than the rate of rent increases for the sector as a whole until the
average weekly rent falls within the target rent band.

Where a landlord’s weekly rent is lower than the target rent band,
transitional protection will apply to tenants. In any year a landlord will
not be permitted to increase the rent for any individual tenant by more
than £2 per week in addition to the agreed average annual rate of rent
increases for the sector as a whole.

The introduction of the new rents policy will also mark the end of the
current subsidy system where the HRA returns an element of its rents
back to WG (Currently £6.0m for Flintshire) each year. Stock owning
local authorities will ‘buy out’ of the system via a one off payment to
HM Treasury funded from HRA prudential borrowing. It is anticipated
that the change will be advantageous for Councils. WG agreed the
principle of the exit from the subsidy system in June 2013 and the
details of how this will be brought into place across Wales are being
developed. Further reports will be brought to Members, when the
details are known.

Page 196



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

CONSIDERATIONS

REVENUE BUDGET 2014/15

The final Housing Revenue Account subsidy and Item 8
determinations were received from WG on the 3™ February 2014.
There was one minor adjustment to the proposed guideline rent for
Flintshire to the Draft determinations that were received 20"
December 2013, with all other aspects of the determinations
unchanged.

Guideline Rent Increase
The final determinations from WG are to increase the all-Wales
average weekly guideline rent by 4.2%.

e using the previous September CPI inflation figure of 2.7% and

e and apply a 1.5% real increase to the average local authority
guideline rent for 2014-15.

The guideline rent increase is the amount by which WG considers
each Authority should increase weekly rents in order to make
progress towards achievement of the key WG objective of
“benchmark” rents, where Local Authority and Registered Social
Landlords (RSL) rents for similar properties in similar areas are
broadly the same.

The final guideline weekly rent increase for Flintshire 2014/15 is £3.32
per week, (on a 52 week collection basis). This is a percentage
increase of 4.63% (4.60% at provisional stage) to rents compared to
the all Wales average of 4.2%. The difference mainly due to a factor
that is applied to all councils for economic value of the stock, this is
however a reduced increase compared to the 2013/14 budget which
saw an increase in rents of 5.0%. Currently 9% of Flintshire social
rents are at the benchmark level.

The current levels of benefit claimants amongst Flintshire housing
tenants are illustrated in the table below :-

Flintshire Tenants - Housing Benefit
Claimants
Tenants
Benefit Status Number %
Full/Partial Benefit 4985 67.1%
Full Rent 2441 32.9%
Total 7426 100.0%

Page 197



3.05

3.06

3.07

3.08

3.09

3.10

3.11

3.12

As illustrated above, approximately 67.1% of the Councils 7,426
tenants would face no additional hardship as a consequence of the
proposed rent increase. This will be met by housing benefit subject to
claimants personal circumstances remaining the same and their
households being unaffected by Welfare Reform. Those tenants who
are not currently in receipt of benefit will naturally have to meet the full
increase in rent, unless they become eligible for housing benefit.

It is proposed to reduce the bad debt provision which will create
savings of £0.208m. Welfare reform has not impacted on arrears as
severely as anticipated in 2013/14 and this has been reflected in the
2014/15 budget proposals.

Management and Maintenance allowance

The Management and Maintenance allowance element of Housing
Revenue Account Subsidy increases to £2,769 per dwelling for each
local authority, reflecting an increase of £159 per dwelling (6.1%) on
2013/14.

Rent Increase — Garages

The 2014/15 increased rent level for all HRA garages is £5.75 per
week, an increase of £0.25 per week (4.63%) compared to 2013/14
(and in line with rent increases for homes).

General Income

The HRA budget has been realigned for 2014 to follow the same
format of the 30 year business plan which is submitted to WG. This
includes showing all areas of income under one heading.

£0.734m general income has been included in the plan reflecting
£0.531m for water bill collection and other smaller items of general
income. It also includes increased income of £0.126m following a
new charging policy for the tenants gardening service.

HRA — Key areas of expenditure

Appendix 1 sets out a summary of the proposed HRA budget for
2014/15 and compares it to the 2013/14 budget.

Appendix 2 shows the assumptions which have been made in
calculating the figures.

Appendix 3 shows the detail of proposed savings and efficiencies,
and investment for service improvements.

The approach to developing the draft budget has been to maximise
the efficiencies which could be made and to invest in service
improvements as set out in the Choices document. Overall the
proposed budget provides £0.536m of additional investment in
services and £0.789m of additional funding for the capital programme
over the levels in 2013/14 and makes savings of £1.144m. The total
savings figure equates to 6.9% of total operating costs.

Page 198



3.13

3.14

3.15

Estate Management
Estate management has identified efficiencies of £0.021m against the
2013/14 budget following VFM and back to basic reviews.

The funding for 2 full year Anti Social Behaviour (ASB) posts is
proposed as agreed in the Choices Document and also opening of the
ASB out of hours service to direct referrals is proposed. This will be at
a cost of £0.017m.

Service improvements totalling £0.038m are proposed to introduce a
Handy Person Service in Flintshire which is designed to aid tenants
with minor property repairs.

The funding for 2 posts to support tenants at risk of financial exclusion
is proposed at a cost of £0.052m as agreed in the Choices Document.

Landlord Services
The Landlord service is reflecting an increased spend of £0.336m
compared to 2013/14.

£0.324m is a realignment of the garden service including communal
land which is now reflected under landlord services rather than Estate
management. The gardening service has also created a saving of
£0.125m on 2013/14 costs following a review of the contract.

WG expects landlords to introduce charging for services that are only
available to specific tenants to maximise income through the HRA and
enable improvements to stock. As agreed at Cabinet, on 17"
December 2013, it is the intention to provide a chargeable service for
grass and hedge cutting from 1% April 2014. The new contract costs
of £0.126m will be recovered via a chargeable service to the tenant
creating additional income in the HRA.

Repairs and Maintenance

The housing repairs service is continuing its drive to develop into a
modern and efficient customer focused service. Repairs and
Maintenance is the largest element of expenditure within the HRA at
£8.467m. It is proposed to spend an additional £0.074m compared to
2013/14 a unit cost of £1,170 per property in 2014/15, compared to
£1,138 in 2013/14.

Repairs and maintenance have created savings of £0.070m following
value for money reviews on fleet and back to basics. The budget on
subcontractors has also been reduced by £0.050m.

An increased cost of £0.300m has been anticipated on materials.
This budget has been adjusted to reflect an increase of approximately
2,000 repairs per year and the requirement for subcontractors to
utilise the stores to enable greater control over material costs charged
via subcontractors.

Page 199



3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

Capital Expenditure financed from Revenue Account

Capital expenditure financed from the revenue account (CERA)
enables additional investment in the HRA Capital Programme. The
use of this additional source of financing for capital improvements
helps to progress the work to achieve the requirements of the Welsh
Housing Quality Standard (WHQS). An investment of £6,581m has
been included in the 2014/15 budget which is an increase of £0.789m
on the 2013/14 budget.

Finance and Support Services

Finance and Support have identified an efficiency of £0.102m against
the 2013/14 budget. These savings have been identified through the
reduction of support recharges, one year temporary staff efficiencies
and a review of the admin service.

Closing Balance
A closing balance of 3.20% is recommended for 2014/15 as per
2013/14. This enables the Council to maximise investment in WHQS.

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2014/15
Executive approved a 6 year capital improvement programme
commencing in 2012/13, on 19th July 2011.

At the end of the programme all council homes will have:-

A WHQS standard kitchen

A WHQS heating system

Smoke detectors

1300 homes will have WHQS standard bathrooms

This is year 3 of the original 6 year programme and Appendix 4 sets
out the proposed capital expenditure for 2014/15. The total proposed
capital funding for 2014/15 is £12.106m as set out below. This figure
is reduced marginally by £0.275m from the initial proposals in the
January report to Cabinet and Scrutiny. A further assessment of the
likely level of capital receipts in 2014/15 has been made which takes
account on market conditions. As a result the estimate for capital
receipts has been reduced from £0.600m to £0.325m. Should further
land receipts materialise in 2014/15 then further work can be
undertaken as agreed at scrutiny.

A revised Asset Management strategy is under development and will
be implemented from April 2015, subject to approval. This revised
strategy will ensure that all stock achieves the WHQS by 2020, and
will therefore involve the introduction of a number of new work
streams to address all investment needs both internal, external and
estate based environmental improvements.

Page 200



3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

3.24

4.00

4.01

Home Ownership
Zero sales have been assumed for Right to Buy in 2014/15 for budget
purposes.

30 YEAR BUSINESS PLAN

It is a requirement of WG for all stock owning local authorities to
produce a robust business plan showing how they will meet WHQS by
the target of 2020.

Appendix 5 sets out the most up to date estimate of Flintshire’s 30
year HRA business plan, based on the proposed 2014/15 revenue
budget and capital programme as set out in this report. The plan
shows a projected funding shortfall of £8.005m to meet WHQS by
2020 a reduction of £6.520m on the funding shortfall projected in the
2013/14 business plan submitted to WG.

This is a slight change from initial proposals in the January report to
Cabinet and Scrutiny which reflects the reduced level of capital
receipts. A draft business plan was submitted on 17th January 2014
as required to access the MRA and a revised Business Plan and a
slightly revised capital programme will be submitted following Council
approval.

The Council’s preference in relation to achieving WHQS is to seek to
avoid borrowing for this purpose, but the Council has indicated to WG
that should this be necessary in order to achieve WHQS by 2020 then
it would do so. It can be seen that the gap has reduced significantly
because of the efficiencies within the HRA and additional revenue
income. The shortfall could potentially be met by prudential borrowing
if the gap is not closed over the next three years from savings
anticipated following rent reform and the exit from the subsidy system
along with driving through ingoing efficiencies to create more
resources for investment.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are asked to approve and recommend to Council :

i.  The proposed HRA budget for 2014/15 as set out in Appendix
1, incorporating the financial assumptions in Appendix 2 and
the service Improvements and Efficiencies in Appendix 3.

ii. The level of rent and service charges for 2014/15 as set out in
paragraphs 3.01 to 3.07

iii.  The level of projected balances at 31% March 2015 at 3.20% of
total expenditure.

iv.  The proposed HRA Capital Programme as set out in Appendix
4.

Page 201



4.02

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

Members are asked to note the impact of the proposed revenue
budget and capital programme on the 30 year Business Plan.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Council has a statutory duty to review the income and
expenditure of the HRA, and to set a budget for the forthcoming
financial year which avoids a deficit closing balance position. This
report sets out how this can be achieved for the Council in 2014/15.
The key financial assumptions on which this is proposed are set out in
Appendix 2. The proposed budget estimates a closing balance of
3.20% to total expenditure.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

HRA activity helps alleviate poverty by providing safe and secure
homes that are energy efficient and economical to run. The ongoing
programme maintains the impetus to upgrade heating etc., to
minimise fuel use and thereby boost disposable income.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

There are no direct environmental impacts arising from the HRA
budget as outlined in the report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

There are no direct equalities impacts arising from this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct personnel implications arising from the report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Consultation with all tenants over any rent increase must take place
and must be at least 28 days before any rent increase is due to come
into effect.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Consultation with tenants on the draft budget and proposed rent
increase was undertaken at the tenants’ conference on 3™ February
2014. The Housing Scrutiny committee considered the draft budget
proposals at their meeting on 21% January 2014 and fully supported
the proposals.

Page 202



12.00 APPENDICES
Appendix 1 — HRA budget 2014/15 Summary
Appendix 2 — HRA financial assumptions
Appendix 3 - HRA budget pressures, savings & service
improvements.
Appendix 4 — HRA capital budget 2014/15
Appendix 5 — HRA 30 year business plan summary
Appendix 6 — Summary of Questions and Responses

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Nicola Spencer
Telephone: 01352 703431
Email: Nicola.Spencer@Flintshire.gov.uk

Page 203



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 204



G0g abed

HRA BUDGET 2014/15

2013/14 2014/15 Variance Variance
Budget Budget £ to 2013/14 % to 2013/14
INCOME £ £ £
Rents (Council Dwellings & Garages) -26,918,901 -27,712,804 -793,903 3%
Capitalised Salaries -1,138,661 -1,111,523 27,138 -2%
General Income -590,756 -734,242 -143,486 24%
-28,648,318 -29,558,570 -910,252 3%
EXPENDITURE £ £ £
HRA Subsidy (Negative/Deficit) 6,166,805 6,403,697 236,892 4%
Capital Financing - Loan Charges 2,044 557 1,909,344 -135,213 7%
Estate Management 2,318,001 1,887,596 -430,405 -18.6%
Landlord Services 500,632 836,225 335,593 67%
Repairs and Maintenance 8,392,993 8,466,870 73,877 1%
Welsh Housing Quality Standard - CERA 5,792,000 6,580,997 788,997 14%
Finance and Support 2,791,460 2,689,804 -101,656 -3.6%
Capitalised Salaries 1,138,661 1,111,523 -27,138 -2%
29,145,108 29,886,056 740,948 3%
(Surplus) / Deficit for the year 496,790 327,486 -169,304
Opening Balance -1,930,630 -1,283,840 646,790
HRA Closing Balance -1,433,840 -956,353 477,486
% of Total Expenditure (Guideline 3%) 4.92% 3.20%




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 206



HRA FINANCIAL ASSUMPTIONS - Appendix 2

S o 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Q
¢ Description 2014/15 % % %
1 |Guideline Rent av. Rent based on 50 weeks £ 74.96 1.000 1.000 1.000 Prices
2 |Guideline Rent applied, this level assumed for future years 104.6% 1.000 1.000 1.000 Pay
3 |Empty Properties rent loss 1.70% 1.030 1.030 1.030 Income
4 M and M allowance average per property £ 2,769 1.080 1.080 1.080 Energy
5 |Mand M allowance 106.1% 1.030 1.030 1.030 Insurance
;J@ Increase applied to Garage Rents. Charge per week. £ 0.25 1.046 1.042 1.042 Garage Rents
«Q
@ Empty Garages rent loss 21.2% 1.061 1.055 1.055 M and M Allowance
N
o - .
~3 |CERA contribution to Capital £6.581m 0.020 0.020 0.020 Empty Property
1.000 1.000 1.000 Bad Bebt Provison
1.112 1.112 1.112 Fuel
1.000 1.000 1.000 Price non inflation
1.050 1.050 1.050 Aerial Systems
1.023 1.023 1.023 Rates




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 208



60¢ abed

HRA BUDGET PRESSURES, SAVINGS & INVESTMENT OPTIONS- Appendix 3

Code Bid Ref ADDITIONAL CAPITAL INVESTMENT 2014/15 Notes
HRP/HRR CERA 788,997 [Increased contribution to the Capital programme
Code Bid Ref Increase in Rents 2014/15 Notes
HRP/HRR 4.63% Rental Increase as per Welsh Government Guidance -342,622
Code Bid Ref EFFICIENCY SAVING OPTIONS 2014/15 Notes
HRX 15 Support Recharges 106,702 ::glt;t;tiilce)n“izrsk?np;pon recharges to the HRA following a review of costs
HRM/HRX 25/4P  |Salary savings 14,954 girr;:rel:e review implemented. Vacant posts reflected at Single Status
HRE/HRM/HRX | 7S/12S/2P |Consolidation of general costs -16,015|Realignment of general costs under "Back to Basics"
HRX/HRM 13S/20S |Software review -155,448|Review of software costs and licences, reversal of one off expenditure.
HRR/HRP 218 Capital Financing costs -135,213|Review of costs
HRE 8S/6P  |Tenant Garden works -129,147 |Contract tendered
HRE 9S Cleaning of Walks/Leas -28,560|Contract cancelled due to demolition
HRE 108 Strand House -2,793|Property handed back to HRA
HRE 118 Housing News printing -7,305|Printing costs lower than previous years
HRM 16S Subscriptions -3,368|Review of costs
HRM 158 Subcontractors -50,000|Less sub contractor spend
HRM 178 Call out monitoring -3,000|Saving in the contract costs
HRM 258 Fleet Review -50,000|Savings as a result of the corporate fleet review
HRX/HRM 26S Admin Review -71,941|Review of Admin service
HRD/HRL 48/5S  |Void properties -31,306|Savings due to a decrease in number of void properties.
HRL 22S Right to Buy fees -3,275|Reduction in RTB fees
HRD 248 Income from Garden Service recharges -126,000|Charging of service to tenants
HRD 18S Bad Debt Provision - Welfare Reform -208,216|Calculated on Pd8 arrears figures, impact not as severe as expected.
Total Savings -1,143,242 6.8% of Total Operating Costs
Code Bid Ref Budget Realignment/One off pressures reversed 2014/15 Notes
HRL 6S Adhoc aerial costs -8,500|Reversal of 1yr budget
Total Savings -8,500 0.1% of Total Operating Costs




0T¢ abed

Code Bid Ref BUDGET PRESSURES/SERVICE IMPROVEMENTS 2014/15 Notes
HRD 14P Garage Voids 16,276 |Increase in garage voids and removal of Castle Hgts
HRX 1P Maisonette Decants 7,442|Council Tax and Utility costs
HRX 3P Handy person service as per Choices Document 37,360|{Agreement for handy person services.
HRX 4P Total Mobile IT Support post 26,271|1 yr additional IT post to implement Total Mobile
HRX 4P 2 posts to support tenants at risk of financial exclusion - Choices Document 52,542|Currently have 2 people short term funded, this funding is ending.
HRE 10P Court Costs 6,000|Increase in court action taken by Rents and ASB
HRE 13P ASB posts as per Choices document 16,200|Salary 13/14 part year only
HRL 5P Launderette Machine Rental 18,798 |Contract reviewed for 5yrs
HRE 9P/11P  |Agile working 17,525|Costs to implement agile working
HRM 16P Materials 300,000|More repairs completed and more expenditure through stores
ALL Inflation 37,648|Average %
Service Improvements 536,062 2.0% of Rental Income




Appendix 4
Draft HRA Capital Programme 2014/15

HRA Capital programme 2014/15
WHQS £'m
Smoke Alarm Installations 0.100
Planned urgent works 0.150
Bathroom replacements 0.500
Heating Replacement - Programme and survey 2.000
Kitchen Replacements - Programme 4.000
DDA Audits 0.100
Fire Risk Assessments Work 0.400
Off Gas Programme 0.400
Environmental Works (footpaths and fences) 0.300
UPVC 0.200
Asbestos Survey and Removal (Ongoing Programme) 0.150
Envelope Works - Roofs, Fascias, Rendering 0.250
Electrical periodicals and rewires 0.150
Capitalised Salaries 0.478
Eco Funding 0.428
Welfare Reform - Remodelling 0.150
Total WHQS 9.756
Non WHQS
Planned urgent works 0.150
Vacant Properties 0.300
Maisonettes 0.575
Disabled Facilty Grants (DFG) - Mandatory/ Minor Adaps 1.000
Total Non - WHQS 2.025
RingFenced Work
Envelope Works - Roofs, Fascias, Rendering -
Vacant Properties 0.100
Eco Funding 0.150
Maisonettes 0.075
Total Ring Fenced Work 0.325
Total Spend 12.106
Funding - Base Programme
M.R.A 5.200
CERA 6.581
Total Base funding 11.781
Capital Receipts
RTB's 13/14 0.000
Land Receipts 0.325
Capital receipts 0.325
HRA Capital Funding 2014/15 Programme 12.106

Unallocated Funds

Page 211




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 212



Flintshire Housing Capital Operating Account

Major Usable HRAS
Year Capital Funding Repairs Capital Supported | Prudential Funding Cumulative | Shortfall
No Year Expenditure B/fwd Allowance | Receipts | Borrowing | Borrowing | CERA C/IFWD Shortfall Shortfall |Exc Inflation
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

1 2014.15 12,379 0 5,200 600 0 0 6,581 0 -2 -2 -2
2 2015.16 15,901 0 5,200 0 0 0 7,550 0 3,151 3,149 3,102
3 2016.17 15,461 0 5,200 0 0 0 8,121 0 2,139 5,288 5,133
4 2017.18 15,693 0 5,200 0 0 0 8,884 0 1,609 6,897 6,596
5 2018.19 15,928 0 5,200 0 0 0 9,674 0 1,054 7,951 7,492
6 2019.2 16,167 0 5,200 0 0 0 11,095 0 -128 7,823 7,262
7 2020.21 16,409 0 5,200 0 0 0 11,344 0 -135 7,689 7,032
8 2021.22 7,073 0 5,200 0 0 0 14,068 0 -12,195 -4,507 -4,061
9 2022.23 4,319 0 5,200 0 0 0 14,951 0 -15,832 -20,339 -18,055
10 |2023.24 11,315 0 5,200 0 0 0 15,760 0 -9,644 -29,983 -26,223
11 2024.25 7,396 0 5,200 0 0 0 16,593 0 -14,397 -44,380 -38,241
12 |2025.26 7,507 0 5,200 0 0 0 18,179 0 -15,873 -60,253 -51,150
13 |2026.27 11,883 0 5,200 0 0 0 18,338 0 -11,654 -71,907 -60,142
127J |2027.28 12,062 0 5,200 0 0 0 19,251 0 -12,390 -84,297 -69,463
1‘Q 2028.29 12,242 0 5,200 0 0 0 20,192 0 -13,150 -97,447 -79,112
1\% 2029.3 12,426 0 5,200 0 0 0 21,163 0 -13,937 -111,383 -89,090
1% 3 |2030.31 12,612 0 5,200 0 0 0 22,163 0 -14,751 -126,134 -99,398
1; 2031.32 11,971 0 5,200 0 0 0 24,063 0 -17,291 -143,426 -111,354
160 |2032.33 12,151 0 5,200 0 0 0 24,259 0 -17,308 -160,733 -122,947
20 |2033.34 12,333 0 5,200 0 0 0 25,355 0 -18,222 -178,955 -134,862
21 2034.35 12,518 0 5,200 0 0 0 26,486 0 -19,168 -198,123 -147,101
22 |2035.36 12,706 0 5,200 0 0 0 27,653 0 -20,147 -218,270 -159,664
23 |2036.37 10,515 0 5,200 0 0 0 28,856 0 -18,222 -241,811 -174,270
24 |2037.38 10,673 0 5,200 0 0 0 31,133 0 -20,147 -267,471 -189,914
25 |2038.39 10,833 0 5,200 0 0 0 31,375 0 -23,541 -293,214 -205,116
26 |2039.4 10,995 0 5,200 0 0 0 32,695 0 -25,660 -320,113 -220,624
27 |2040.41 11,160 0 5,200 0 0 0 34,056 0 -25,743 -348,209 -236,441
28 |2041.42 8,495 0 5,200 0 0 0 35,459 0 -26,900 -380,373 -254,464
29 |2042.43 8,622 0 5,200 0 0 0 36,907 0 -28,095 -413,857 -272,773
30 |2043.44 8,752 0 5,200 0 0 0 39,637 0 -32,164 -449,942 -292,174

APPENDIX 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 214



GT¢ abed

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Housing Revenue Account - Initial Budget Proposals for Revenue and Capital 2014/15

No.

Comments and Questions:

Responses:

1.0

1.1

1.2

Housing Revenue Account (Revenue) - Comments /
Issues

General Comments/lssues

e What will we get back by exiting the subsidy system?

e How does agile working work?

The working figure is approx.£1m per annum. An exit
from the HM Treasury subsidy system will benefit the
HRA. It will be during next year financial year that we
will be better placed to talk through the figures and report
on the amounts as the work to exit the subsidy system
progresses. With regards to the borrowing, this is still
under review about whether the terms of the exit is fixed
term or repayment term as with a mortgage.

The borrowing cap may allow potential building of new
homes in the future.

M&M allowance — WG guidelines were always
conservative in terms of what could be included within the
Council’s Business Plan, but, year on year, the Council
has received more than was allowed to be reported in
the business plans. The previously reported gap for
achieving WHQS by 2020 was £14m now. This has
halved to £7m as a result of these budget proposals and
it is hoped this will be a future trend.

Rather than staff being based at a desk in a specific area,




9T¢ abed

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Housing Revenue Account - Initial Budget Proposals for Revenue and Capital 2014/15

No.

Comments and Questions: Responses:
they are able to work more flexibly. This reduces mileage
and- office costs and allows the service to be more flexible
with the aim to get better value from staff for customers.
1.3 | ¢ Communications was an issue with repairs and A new phone system has been installed and calls are
maintenance, has it been resolved? now answered quicker and we also have the facility to
monitor all calls.
14 | e Whatis being done with the old Canton depot? This is being marketed but it is not owned by HRA. Any
capital receipt from its sale will be General Fund resource
1.5 | e Gardening service, will the rate be reduced for disabled The gardening service will come into effect on April 1%
tenants? There will be a lower rate for disabled tenants claiming
benefits.
1.6 |e Eco energy — what is the criteria on which‘houses are Areas of deprivation are targeted, although the criteria
“cased”, does the Council have any.input? has just changed. Further details to be sent to Clir Curtis
ion the selection process, work to be carried out etc
17 This will involve a multi skilled person and vehicle. Costs

e Handy person service — can you please clarify?

are being looked at on whether this is delivered in house
or externally. Firm proposals will be presented to
members before implementation




/T¢ abed

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Housing Revenue Account - Initial Budget Proposals for Revenue and Capital 2014/15

No.

Comments and Questions: Responses:
2.0 | Housing Revenue Account (Capital) - Comments / Issues
General Comments/issues
2.1 e UPVC, we would like to see more budget spent on this Housing would like to increase the budget on UPVC. The
work due to cold weather, will this happen? Repairs Service are receiving more complaints and are

aware that there is a problem. £200k was allocated to
the budget to carry out repairs until they are replaced. In
the new 2016/177Programme there is significant budget
for the replacement of UPVC.

2.2 Potential land receipts, would the money raised from a No. The money that is raised from land receipts is put

specific site stay within that area?

back into the HRA Capital Programme all HRA properties
benefit from the proceeds according to the priorities
agreed to address need across the whole Council.




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 218



Agenda Item 10

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014
REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2014/15

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To present proposals for setting a range of prudential indicators in accordance
with the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the
Prudential Code).

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  The Prudential Code has been developed by the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) as a professional code of practice to
support local authorities in determining their programmes for capital investment
in fixed assets. Local authorities are required by Regulation to have regard to
the Prudential Code when carrying out duties under Part 1 of the Local
Government Act 2003.

2.02 The framework established by the Prudential Code is intended to support local
strategic planning, local asset management planning and robust option
appraisal. The objectives of the Code are to ensure, within a clear framework,
that the capital investments plans of local authorities are affordable, prudent
and sustainable, and that treasury management decisions are taken in
accordance with good professional practice.

2.03 The Prudential Code sets out the indicators that must be used, and the factors
that must be taken into account in preparing such.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  The prudential indicators required by the Prudential Code are designed to
support and record local decision making; they are not designed to be
comparative performance indicators - the use of them in this way would be
likely to be misleading and counter productive. They are considered in parallel
with the treasury management indicators required by the CIPFA Treasury
Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral
Guidance Notes, as reported elsewhere on this agenda.

Page 219



3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

The Prudential Code recognises that in making capital investment decisions,
and in reviewing the prudential indicators, the Council must have regard to the
following:

e Service objectives, e.g. strategic planning for the authority

o Stewardship of assets, e.g. asset management planning

¢ Value for money, e.g. option appraisal

o Affordability, e.g. implications for Council Tax and Council housing rents
¢ Prudence and sustainability, e.g. implications for external borrowing

¢ Practicality, e.g. achievability of the forward plan

The Code does not specify how the Council should have regard to these
factors, but instead concentrates on the means by which it demonstrates that
the proposals are affordable, prudent and sustainable.

Affordability is the ultimate constraint on the amount that a local authority can
spend or borrow. In practice, when making a decision to invest in a capital
asset, the authority must do more than simply determine whether it can afford
the immediate cost. In order to ensure long term affordability, decisions have
to be prudent, and in the long term sustainable. Borrowing has to be prudent
because, since future interest rates and revenue streams are uncertain, it must
involve an element of risk. Furthermore, if the Council is unable to deliver its
capital programme, or to afford the cost of running and maintaining the new
facilities, the chosen level of capital investment will not be sustainable in the
long term. Prudence and affordability are related concepts.

The Prudential Code specifies that prudential indicators are required to be
calculated for the forthcoming financial year and two subsequent financial
years, this process links in with the Medium Term Financial Plan.

Based on those resources currently allocated (including specific grants, but
excluding any rephasing of expenditure from 2013/14 to future years), the
estimates of capital expenditure to be incurred in 2014/15 (and the following
two years), are as indicated in the table below; unsupported (prudential)
borrowing of £27.561m has been assumed in the three year period for Council
Fund purposes. This is in line with the capital programme proposals
recommended to commence in 2014/15 in the Council Fund Capital
Programme 2014/15 to 2017/18 report which is included elsewhere on this
agenda.

Page 220



3.06

3.07

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m £m £m
Council Fund 20.970 53.168 18.047
Housing Revenue Account 12.381 15.901 15.461
Total 33.351 69.069 33.508

The capital expenditure totals essentially provide the base financial data from
which all other indicators follow.

Prudential Indicators for Affordability

Estimates of the ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream for 2014/15
based on those expenditure assumptions outlined in the Council Fund and
Housing Revenue budget report (both included elsewhere on this agenda), are
as included in the table below; these indicators of affordability address the
revenue implications of the Council’s financial strategy.

RATIO OF FINANCING COSTS TO NET REVENUE STREAM

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Estimate Estimate Estimate

% % %
Council Fund 6.004% 6.932% 7.432%
Housing Revenue Account 6.755% 5.923% 5.434%

The Council Fund net revenue stream is the amount to be met from Welsh
Government (WG) grants and local taxpayers, and the HRA equivalent is the
amount to be met from WG grants and from Rent payers. The estimate of
financing costs includes the current commitments and the proposals included
in the capital programme report. The HRA, as calculated, reflects a reducing
financing cost attributable to the continuing reduction in HRA debt outstanding
as a percentage of an increasing level of revenue stream income.

The Prudential Code requires that the estimate of the incremental impact of
capital investment decisions as proposed in the capital budget report for the
period 2014/15 to 2016/17, over and above capital investment decisions that
have previously been taken by the Council are reported in terms of their impact
on Band D Council Tax and Housing Rents. The 2014/15 Council Fund and
HRA capital programmes contain no new capital investment decisions (only
those decisions previously approved by Council).

Page 221



3.08

3.09

3.10

Prudential Indicators for Prudence

Estimates of the capital financing requirement, as described in section 3.09
below, for 2014/15 are:

CAPITAL FINANCING REQUIREMENT
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m £m £m
Council Fund 166.707 189.626 212.582
Housing Revenue Account 24.701 24.207 23.722
Total 191.407 213.833 236.304

The capital financing requirement measures the Council’'s underlying need to
finance capital expenditure by borrowing or other long-term liability
arrangements. In accordance with best professional practice, The Council
does not associate debt with particular items or type of expenditure. The
authority has an integrated treasury management strategy and has adopted
the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and
Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes. The Council has, at any point in time, a
number of cash flows both positive and negative, and manages its treasury
position in terms of its debt and investments in accordance with its approved
Treasury Management Policy and Strategy. The Treasury Management Policy
Statement 2013 — 2016 and the Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15
appear elsewhere on this agenda following consideration by the Audit
Committee in January 2014. In day to day cash management, no distinction
can be made between revenue cash and capital cash. External debt arises as
a consequence of all the financial transactions of the Council and not simply
those arising from capital spending. In contrast, the capital financing
requirement reflects the Council’'s underlying need to finance capital
expenditure by borrowing or other long-term liability arrangements.

CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities includes the
following; gross debt and the capital financing requirement, as a key indicator
of prudence.

‘In order to ensure that over the medium term debt will only be for a capital
purpose, the local authority should ensure that debt does not, except in the
short term, exceed the total of capital financing requirement in the preceding
year plus the estimates of any additional financing requirement for the current
and next two financial years’.

Page 222



3.11

In November 2012 CIPFA issued an amendment to the Prudential Code
changing the indicator from net debt (total borrowing and other long-term
liabilities less any investments held) to gross debt. Following reflection that
comparing the capital financing requirement to the net position i.e., net of
investments, could potentially mask a position where an authority had
borrowed other than for a capital purpose and then subsequently invested the
surplus funds.

The Head of Finance reports no difficulty in meeting this requirement for the
future period to which the prudential indicators apply. This view takes into
account current commitments, existing plans, and all budget proposals.

Prudential Indicators for External Debt and Treasury Management

In respect of its external debt, it is recommended that the Council approves the
following authorised limits for its total external debt gross of any investment for
the next three financial years. These limits separately identify borrowing from
other long term liabilities such as finance leases. The Council is asked to
approve these limits and to delegate authority to the Head of Finance, within
the total limit for any individual year, to effect movement between the
separately agreed limits for borrowing and other long term liabilities, in
accordance with option appraisal and best value for money for the authority.
Any such changes made will be reported to the Council at its meeting following
the change.

AUTHORISED LIMIT FOR EXTERNAL DEBT
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m £m £m
All Borrowing (Cap/Rev) 202.300 247.300 257.300
Other Long Term Liabilities 20.100 21.100 22.100
Total 222.400 268.400 279.400

The authorised limits are consistent with the authority’s current commitments,
existing plans and the proposals in the capital programme report, and with its
approved Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15. They are based on the
estimate of most likely, prudent position with, sufficient headroom over and
above this to allow for operational management, for example unusual cash
movements. Risk analysis and risk management strategies have been taken
into account, as have plans for capital expenditure, estimates of the capital
financing requirement and estimates of cash flow requirements for all
purposes.

Page 223



3.12

3.13

3.14

Council is also asked to approve the following operational boundary for
external debt for the same period. The proposed operational boundary for
external debt is based on the same estimates as the authorised limit but
reflects directly the estimate of the most likely, prudent provision, without the
additional headroom included in the authorised limit to allow for example for
unusual cash movements, and equates to the maximum of external debt
projected by this estimate. The operational boundary represents a key
management tool for in year monitoring. Within the operational boundary,
figures borrowing and other long term liabilities are separately identified.
Council is also asked to delegate authority to the Head of Finance, within the
total operational boundary for any individual year, to effect movement between
the separately agreed figures for borrowing and other long term liabilities, in a
similar fashion to the authorised limit. Any such changes will be reported to
Council at its next meeting following the change.

OPERATIONAL BOUNDARY FOR EXTERNAL DEBT
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m £m £m
All Borrowing (Cap/Rev) 182.300 227.300 237.300
Other Long Term Liabilities 10.100 11.100 12.100
Total 192.400 238.400 249.400

The figure for all borrowing has increased in line with the assumption made in
3.05 that for Council Fund purposes there is a requirement to borrow
£27.561m through unsupported (prudential) borrowing over the three year
period.

It should be noted that actual external debt is not directly comparable to the
authorised limit and operational boundary, since actual external debt reflects
the position at a point in time.

Council is asked to note that the authorised limit determined in 2014/15 (see
section 3.11 above) will be the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of
the Local Government Act 2003.

The prudential indicator in respect of treasury management is confirmation that
the Council has adopted the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public
Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes (as reported
elsewhere on this agenda). The aim of this indicator is to ensure that treasury
management is led by a clear integrated forward treasury management
strategy.

Page 224



4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Members approve and recommend to County Council on 18" February

2014:

(@)  the prudential indicators as detailed in Section 3 of the report

Capital expenditure (3.05)

Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream (3.06)

Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on the council tax
(3.07)

Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on housing rents
(3.07)

Capital financing requirement (3.08)

Gross debt and the capital financing requirement (3.10)

Authorised limit for external debt (3.11, 3.13)

Operational boundary for external debt (3.12)

Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services:
Code of Practice ad Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes (3.14)

(b)  delegated authority for the Head of Finance to effect movements
between the separately agreed limits within the authorised limit for
external debt and the operational boundary for external debt (3.11, 3.12)

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

Page 225



11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None directly as a result of this report.

APPENDICES

None.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Various Welsh Government and CIPFA Papers.

Contact Officer: Liz Thomas

Finance Manager - Technical Accounting
Telephone: 01352 702289
E.mail: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 226



Agenda ltem 11

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION 2014/15

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To present proposals for the setting of a prudent minimum revenue
provision for the repayment of debt in 2014/15, as required under the
Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (Wales)
(Amendment) Regulations 2008 (‘the 2008 Regulations’).

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  Local Authorities are required each year to set aside some of their
revenue reserves as provision for the repayment of debt ie. a
provision in respect of capital expenditure financed from borrowing or
credit arrangements.

2.02 Regulation 22 of the 2008 Regulations requires an authority to each
year make an amount of Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) which it
considers to be ‘prudent’, but the regulation does not itself define
‘prudent provision’. However, the Welsh Government (WG) has
provided guidance which makes recommendations to authorities on
the interpretation of the term; the guidance was last updated in April
2010.

2.03 Authorities are required to prepare an annual statement of their policy
on making MRP, which mirrors the existing requirements on the
prudential borrowing limit and investment policy.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

Meaning of ‘Prudent Provision’

3.01 The WG guidance provides for a number of options for making
‘prudent provision’. It explains that provision for the borrowing which
financed the acquisition of an asset should be made over a period
bearing some relation to that over which the asset continues to
provide a service.

Page 227



3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06

Options for Prudent Provision
Option 1 — Regulatory Method.

For debt which is supported by Revenue Support Grant (RSG),
authorities may continue to use the formula specified in the Local
Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (Wales) Regulations
2003 (the regulations which preceded the 2008 Regulations), since
the RSG is calculated on that basis, i.e. authorities are able to
calculate MRP exactly as if the 2003 Regulations were still in force.

Option 2 — Capital Financing Requirement Method

This is a technically simpler alternative to option 1 and may also be
used in relation to supported debt. While still based on the concept of
the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), which is easily derived
from the balance sheet, it avoids the complexities of the formula in
Regulation 22. However, for most authorities it will probably result in
a higher level of provision (and subsequent impact on service
budgets) than Option 1, as it would for Flintshire County Council.

Option 3 — Asset Life Method

For new borrowing under the Prudential system for which no
Government support is being given and is therefore self-financed,
there are two options. Option 3 is to make provision in equal
instalments over the estimated life of the asset for which borrowing is
undertaken. This is a possibly simpler alternative to the use of
depreciation accounting (Option 4), though it has some similarities to
that approach.

Option 4 — Depreciation Method

Alternatively, for new borrowing under the Prudential system for which
no WG support is being given, Option 4 may be used. This means
making MRP in accordance with the standard rules for depreciation
accounting.

Conditions for using the options
The intention is that Options 1 and 2 should be used only for WG
supported borrowing. Options 3 and 4 should be used in relation to all

capital expenditure which is to be financed by unsupported borrowing
or credit arrangements.

Page 228



4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

5.02

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

RECOMMENDATIONS

That members approve and recommend to the County Council on 18"
February 2014:-

Option 1 (Regulatory Method) be used for the calculation of the
minimum revenue provision in 2014/15 for all supported borrowing;
this represents a continuation of the approved and adopted policy
for 2013/14.

Option 3 (Asset Life Method) be used for the calculation of the
minimum revenue provision in 2014/15 for all unsupported
(prudential) borrowing; this represents a continuation of the
approved and adopted policy for 2013/14.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The 2014/15 Council Fund revenue budget provides for the minimum
revenue provision in respect of all supported borrowing, on the basis
of Option 1 — Regulatory Method calculation.

Any planned use of unsupported (prudential) borrowing, will need to
take account of the revenue consequences of the Option 3 — Asset
Life Method calculation, as part of the overall options appraisal and
budget setting processes.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

Page 229



12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 None.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Liz Thomas

Finance Manager - Technical Accounting
Telephone: 01352 702289
Email: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 230



Agenda ltem 12

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2014/15

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To present to Members the draft Treasury Management Strategy for
2014/15 for recommendation to Council.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The Local Government Act 2003 requires all local authorities to have
due regard to both the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy’s Treasury Management in Public Services: Code of
Practice (The CIPFA Code of Practice) and Welsh Government
guidance on Local Authority Investments.

2.02 The Council has adopted The CIPFA Code of Practice which

requires:-

o The Council to create and maintain a Treasury Management
Policy Statement which states the Council’s policies, objectives
and approach to risk management of its treasury management
activities.

o The Council to create and maintain suitable Treasury
Management Practices (TMPs) and accompanying schedules,
stating how those policies and objectives will be achieved and
prescribing how those activities will be managed and controlled.

o The Council to receive reports on its treasury management
policies, practices and activities, including, as a minimum, an
annual strategy and plan in advance of the year, a mid-year
review and an annual report after its close, in the form
prescribed in its TMPs.

o Responsibility for Treasury Management to be clearly defined.
The Council delegates responsibility for the implementation and
regular monitoring of its treasury management policies and
practices to the Cabinet, and for the execution and
administration of treasury management decisions to Head of

Page 231



2.03

3.00

3.01

Finance, who will act in accordance with the organisation’s
policy statement and TMPs and, CIPFA’'s Standard of
Professional Practice on Treasury Management.

o A body to be responsible for the scrutiny of Treasury

Management Policy, Strategy and Practices. The Council has
nominated the Audit Committee to be responsible for ensuring
effective scrutiny of the treasury management function. The
Audit Committee has previously agreed to include treasury
management as a standing item on each quarterly agenda to
receive an update.

A training session open to all Members on treasury management was
run by Arlingclose, the Council’s Treasury Management advisors on
the morning of 27" January. The aim of the workshop was to aid
Members’ understanding of the Treasury Management Strategy.

CONSIDERATIONS

The draft Treasury Management Strategy for 2014/15 is attached at
Appendix 1. The changes made from the 2013/14 strategy are
summarised below:

o Section 3 — Local context.
A new section bringing together current levels of borrowing and
investments, along with the Council’'s projections for capital
expenditure and use of reserves to estimate either the level of
borrowing required, or the level of investments the Council will
have, over the medium term.

o Section 5 — Investment Strategy.
Additional counterparties have been added to the list of
organisations which the Council can invest its surplus funds
with.
In preparation for amendments to building society regulatory
framework, changes have been made to investments with
building societies.

o Section 6 — Borrowing Strategy.

In 2013/14 the borrowing strategy was to create short term
revenue savings by not undertaking any new borrowing and
funding capital expenditure internally from reserves. In all
probability the situation will remain the same in 2014/15 and
possibly beyond, however this is not sustainable in the
medium term. The borrowing strategy for 2014/15 will be to
regularly review the level of internal borrowing against the
potential for incurring additional revenue costs by deferring
borrowing into future years when long-term borrowing costs
are forecast to rise.

Page 232



3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

4.00

4.01

At a meeting of the Audit Committee on 29" January 2014 Members
reviewed the draft Treasury Management Strategy for 2014/15.

Discussion was as follows:

Investments

Members debated the inclusion in the 2014/15 Strategy of the ability
to invest in any other organisation (that is, unrated organisations).
There was recognition that this exposed the Council to additional
risks, and in response Officers will develop an additional policy
framework for consideration by Members before any investments of
this type are made, these changes have been reflected in the
strategy. Members also recognised that this could be an opportunity
to support local organisations such as credit unions, and potentially
meet economic development or other policy aims, subject to striking a
balance with the security, liquidity and yield of the Council’s surplus
funds. The Committee recommended that the enquiry be put before
Cabinet.

Debt

Queries had been raised regarding the Council’s level of debt and the
interest costs of the debt at the training session on 27" January 2014
and County Council on 28" January 2014, and a discussion regarding
debt ensued at the Committee.

Members of the Committee recognised that in absolute terms the
figures for debt and interest on debt are significant, however must be
viewed in proportion to the level of assets that the Council has
invested in over a very long period of time. There was recognition that
the rate of interest charged on some loans were high by today’s
standards, however these loans were taken out at a time when those
interest rates were the best available. The Committee is satisfied that
processes are in place to review debt and to take debt rescheduling
opportunities when appropriate (higher rated loans could be replaced
by new loans at lower rates when the premium charged is not
prohibitive).

On 1% March 2013 the Council approved the current Treasury
Management Policy and Treasury Management Practices with both
documents covering 3 financial years, 2013 to 2016. It was agreed
that these documents would not require annual approval by Members,
unless any significant changes was required. No changes need to be
made to the Policy, and only minor changes need to be made to the
Practices simply to bring them in line with changes approved to the
Strategy.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Cabinet considers the enquiry put forward by the Audit
Committee outlined in 3.03.

Page 233



4.02

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

That the Cabinet approves and recommends to the Council the
Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Arlingclose Ltd as Treasury Management Advisers.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Arlingclose Ltd as Treasury Management Advisers.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Draft Treasury Management Strategy 2014/15

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer:

Telephone:
Email:

Liz Thomas — Finance Manager,
Technical Accounting

01352 702289
liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 234



Slry Fflint
“* Hintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

TREASURY MANAGEMENT
STRATEGY

2014/15

Page 235

Appendix 1



Section

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

CONTENTS

Introduction

Economic Context

Local Context

Current and Expected Treasury Portfolios
Investment Strategy

Borrowing Strategy

Policy on the use of Financial Derivatives
Treasury Management Indicators

Other Matters

APPENDIX A — Debt Maturity Profile

Page 236

12

13

13

15

17



Treasury Management Strateqy Report 2014/15

The Council is recommended to:
e approve the Treasury Management Strategy for 2014/15
o approve the Treasury Management Indicators for 2014/15

1.0 Introduction

In April 2012 the Council adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance
and Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of
Practice 2011 Edition (the CIPFA Code) which requires the Council to
approve a treasury management strategy before the start of each financial
year.

In addition, the Welsh Government (WG) issued revised guidance on local
authority investments in March 2010 that requires the Council to approve an
investment strategy before the start of each financial year.

This report fulfils the Council’'s legal obligation under the Local Government
Act 2003 to have regard to both the CIPFA Code and the WG Guidance.

The successful identification, monitoring and control of risk are central to the
Council’s treasury management strategy as the Council has borrowed and
invested substantial sums of money and is therefore exposed to financial risks
including the loss of invested funds and the revenue effect of changing
interest rates.

2.0 Economic Context (including Interest Rate Forecast — as provided by
Arlingclose Ltd, November 2013.

Economic background: The Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee
(MPC) through its recent forward guidance is committed to keeping policy
rates low for an extended period using the Labour Force Survey
unemployment rate of 7% as a threshold for when it would consider whether
or not to raise interest rates, subject to certain knock-outs. Unemployment
was 7.7% in August 2013, but is not forecast to fall below the threshold until
2016, due to the UK’s flexible workforce.

The flow of credit to households and businesses is slowly improving but is still
below pre-crisis levels. The fall in consumer price inflation from the high of
5.2% in September 2011 to 2.7% in September 2013 will allow real wage
increases (i.e. after inflation) to slowly turn positive and aid consumer
spending.

Stronger growth data in 2013 (0.4% in Q1, 0.7% in Q2 and 0.8% in Q3)
alongside a pick-up in property prices mainly stoked by government initiatives
to boost mortgage lending have led markets to price in an earlier rise in rates
than warranted under Forward Guidance and the broader economic backdrop.

1
Page 237




However, with jobs growth picking up slowly, many employees working
shorter hours than they would like and benefit cuts set to gather pace, growth
is likely to only be gradual. Arlingclose forecasts the MPC will maintain its
resolve to keep interest rates low until the recovery is convincing and
sustainable.

In the US expectations for the slowing in the pace of asset purchases
('tapering') by the Federal Reserve and the end of further asset purchases will
remain predominant drivers of the financial markets. The Federal Reserve did
not taper in September and has talked down potential tapering in the near
term. It now looks more likely to occur in early 2014 which will be supportive
of bond and equity markets in the interim.

Credit outlook: The likelihood of banking failures has diminished, but
remains a significant risk. Regulatory changes in the UK, US and Europe are
underway to move away from the bank bail-outs of previous years (e.g. Lloyds
Banking Group and RBS in 2008) to bank resolution regimes in which
shareholders, bond holders and unsecured creditors are the first port of call to
re-capitalise an institution via bail-in. This is already apparent to holders of
subordinated debt issued by the Co-operative Bank, which will suffer a haircut
and conversion to alternative securities and/or equity in the bank’s liability
management exercise. There are also proposals for EU regulatory reforms to
Money Market Funds which will, in all probability, result in these funds moving
to a VNAV (variable net asset value) basis and losing their ‘triple-A’ credit
rating wrapper. Diversification of investments between creditworthy
counterparties to mitigate bail- in risk will become even more important in the
light of these developments.

Interest rate forecast. Arlingclose’s projected path for short term interest
rates remains flat. Markets are still pricing in an earlier rise in rates than
warranted under Forward Guidance and the broader economic backdrop. The
MPC will not raise rates until there is a sustained period of strong growth.
However, upside risks weight more heavily at the end of our forecast horizon.

Arlingclose continue to project gilt yields on an upward path through the
medium term. The recent climb in yields was overdone given the soft
fundamental global outlook and risks surrounding the Eurozone, China and
us.

Table 1: Interest rate forecast

Bank 3 month | 12 month | 25-year

Rate LIBID LIBID gilt yield
Q12014 0.50 0.45 0.90 3.35
Q2 2014 0.50 0.45 0.95 3.40
Q3 2014 0.50 0.50 0.95 3.45
Q4 2014 0.50 0.55 0.95 3.50
H1 2015 0.50 0.55 1.00 3.55
H2 2015 0.50 0.75 1.05 3.60
H1 2016 0.50 0.75 1.15 3.75
H2 2016 0.50 0.75 1.25 3.95

2

Page 238



For the purpose of setting the budget, it has been assumed that new
investments will be made at an average rate of 0.5%, and that new long-term
loans will be borrowed at an average rate of 4.3%.

Local Context

As at 31%' December 2013 the Authority had £172.1m of long term borrowing
and £59.7m of investments. This is set out in further detail in section 4.
Forecast changes in these sums are shown in the balance sheet analysis in

the table below.

Table 2: Balance Sheet Summary and Forecast

31.3.13 31.3.14 31.3.15 31.3.16 31.3.17
" Actual Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£m £m Em £m £m

1,Non-HRA CFR 159 163 169 209 216
j HRA CFR 26 25 24 24 23
Motal CFR 185 188 193 233 239
A ess: Other long-term liabilities * -8 -8 -8 -8 -8
Z'Borrowing CFR 177 180 185 225 231
d.ess: External borrowing ** -172 -172 -172 -172 -172

Internal (over) borrowing 5 8 13 53 59
ieLess: Usable reserves -63 -60 -31 -24 -22
g-ess: Working capital 3 3 3 3 3
sinvestments (or New borrowing) 55 49 15 -32 -40

e
*  finance leases and PFI liabilities that form part of the Authority’s debt

** shows only loans to which the Authority is currently committed and
excludes optional refinancing

The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), while usable reserves and working
capital are the underlying resources available for investment. The Authority’s
current strategy is to maintain borrowing below their underlying levels,
sometimes known as internal borrowing.

The table shows the Authority’s CFR increasing steadily until 2015/16, this is
linked with the capital programme which increases sharply in 2015/16 due to
the 21% century schools building programme. The level of reserves the
Authority has is expected to fall in 2014/15 following the implementation of the
Single Status Agreement. The combination of the increase in capital
expenditure and a reduction in reserves, results in, an expected reduction in
investments in 2014/15, and a projected new borrowing requirement in
2015/16.

3
Page 239



CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities recommends
that the Authority’s total debt should be lower than its highest forecast CFR
over the next three years. Table 1 shows that the Authority expects to comply
with this recommendation during 2014/15.

Current and Expected Treasury Portfolios

Current portfolio
The Council's treasury portfolio as at 31% December 2013 was as follows:

Table 3: Current Treasury Portfolio

Principal Interest

amount £m rate %
Investments:
Call accounts 6.0 0.57
Money market funds 12.6 0.41
Short-term deposits 37.3 0.61
Long-term deposits 2.0 0.95
Landsbanki (Iceland) 1.8
Total Investments 59.7 0.57
Borrowing:
Short-term loans - -
Long-term PWLB loans (fixed) 143.16 5.86
Long-term PWLB loans (variable) 10.00 0.55
Long-term market loans (LOBOs) 18.95 4.53
Total Borrowing 172.11 5.42
Net Borrowing 114.21 7.85%

Expected changes in portfolio

Current cash flow forecasts show net borrowing increasing to £126m by 31°
March 2014, as borrowing is expected to remain at this same level but
investments reduce. Net borrowing will further increase during 2014/15, when
the single status agreement is implemented and the reserve created
specifically is used.

Budget implications

The budget for investment income in 2014/15 is £248k, based on an average
investment portfolio of £60m at an average interest rate of 0.50%. The
budget for loan interest paid in 2014/15 is £9.3m, based on an average debt
portfolio of £172.11 million at a weighted average interest rate of 5.4%. If
levels of investments borrowing, and interest rates differ from those forecast,
performance against budget will be correspondingly different.

4
Page 240



Investment Strategy

The Council holds surplus funds, representing income received in advance of
expenditure plus balances and reserves held. In the past 12 months, the
Council’s investment balance has ranged between £57.9 and £83.3 million.

Both the CIPFA Code and the WG Guidance require the Council to invest its
funds prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its
investments before seeking the highest rate of return, or yield. The Council’s
objective when investing money is to strike an appropriate balance between
risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults and the
risk of receiving unsuitably low investment income.

Investment criteria and limits

The Council may invest its surplus funds with any of the counterparties in the
table below, subject to the monetary and time limits shown.

Table 4: Investment criteria and limits

Fitch | Moody’s | S& P | Cash Limit | Time Limit
Banks, Building Societies, other | AAA Aaa AAA £7m each 5 years*
organisations and securities whose | AA+ Aa1 AA+ 5 years*
lowest published long-term credit rating AA Aa2 AA 4 years*
from Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & AA- Aa3 AA- 3 years*
Poor’s is: A+ A1 A+ 2 years
A A2 A 1 year
A- A3 A- £5m each 1 year
The council’'s current account bank £5m next day
(NatWest Bank plc) if rated below A-
UK Building Societies without credit £1m each 1 year
ratings
Money Market Funds' and similar £7m each N/A
pooled vehicles
UK Central Government (irrespective unlimited 5 years
of credit rating)
UK Local Authorities? £7m each 5 years

1
Regulations 2003

2 as defined in the Local Government Act 2003

as defined in the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (Wales)

* but no longer than 2 years in fixed-term deposits and other illiquid instruments

5

Page 241




Additional counterparties, new to the 2014/15 Treasury Management
Strategy, which the Council may invest its surplus funds with, are shown in
the table below, subject to the monetary and time limits shown.

Table 5: Investment criteria and limits

Fitch | Moody’s | S& P | Cash Limit | Time Limit
UK Registered Providers of Social A- A3 A- £7m each 5 years
Housing whose lowest published long-
term credit rating is:
UK Registered Providers of Social | BBB- Baa- BBB- £1m each 1 year
Housing without credit ratings or those
whose lowest published long-term
credit rating is:
Any other organisation, subject to: £1m each 1 year
e an external credit assessment
and specific advice from the £100k each 5 years
Authority’s treasury
management adviser
e a further policy framework for
investing with any other
organisations being developed

To manage the risk of a single default, the maximum that will be lent to any
one organisation (other than the UK Government) will be £7 million. A group
of banks under the same ownership will be treated as a single organisation for
limit purposes.

There is no intention to restrict investments to bank deposits, and investments
may be made with any public or private sector organisations that meet the
above credit rating criteria. This reflects a lower likelihood that the UK and
other governments will support failing banks as the bail-in provisions in the
Banking Reform Act 2014 and the EU Bank Recovery and Resolution
Directive are implemented.

In addition, the Authority may invest with organisations and pooled funds
without credit ratings, following an external credit assessment and advice from
the Authority’s treasury management adviser.

Current account bank

The Council’'s current accounts are held with NatWest Bank plc, which
currently meets the above credit rating criteria. During the year should its
rating not meet the above criteria he Council will treat NatWest as “high credit
quality” for the purpose of making investments that can be withdrawn on the
next working day, subject to the bank maintaining a credit rating no lower than
BBB-.

Building societies

The Council takes additional comfort from the building societies’ regulatory
framework and insolvency regime where, in the unlikely event of a building
society liquidation, the Council’'s deposits would be paid out in preference to
retail depositors. The Council will consider investing with unrated building

6
Page 242




societies where independent credit analysis shows them to be suitably
creditworthy. The Government has announced plans to amend the building
society insolvency regime alongside its plans for wide ranging banking reform,
and investments in lower rated and unrated building societies will therefore be
kept under continuous review.

Money market funds

Money market funds are pooled investment vehicles consisting of instruments
similar to those used by the Council. They have the advantage of providing
wide diversification of investment risks, coupled with the services of a
professional fund manager. Fees of between 0.10% and 0.20% per annum
are deducted from the interest paid to the Council.

Investments in money market funds involve the acquisition of share capital,
and are therefore counted as capital expenditure under WG regulations.
However, since withdrawals from funds count as capital receipts, these will be
used to fund the capital expenditure, leaving no overall impact on the
Council’s capital programme.

Registered Providers

Formerly known as Housing Associations, Registered Providers of Social
Housing are tightly regulated by the Welsh Government or the Homes and
Communities agency and retain a high likelihood of receiving government
support if needed. The Council will consider investing with unrated
Registered Providers with adequate credit safeguards, subject to receiving
independent advice.

Other Organisations

The Authority may also invest cash with other organisations, for example by
making loans to small businesses. Because of the higher perceived risk of
unrated businesses, such investments may provide considerably higher rates
of return. They will however only be made following a favourable external
credit assessment and on the specific advice of the Authority’s treasury
management adviser.

Foreign countries

Investments in foreign countries will be limited to those that hold an AAA or
AA+ / Aa1 sovereign credit rating from all three major credit rating agencies,
and to a maximum of £10 million per foreign country. Investments in
countries whose lowest sovereign rating is not AAA will be limited to one
year's duration. No country limit will apply to investments in the UK,
irrespective of the sovereign credit rating.

Overseas subsidiaries of foreign banking groups will normally be assessed
according to the country of domicile of the parent organisation. However,
Santander UK plc (a subsidiary of Spain’s Banco Santander) and Clydesdale
Bank plc (a subsidiary of National Australia bank) will be classed as UK banks
due to their substantial UK franchises and the arms-length nature of the
parent-subsidiary relationships.

7
Page 243



Sovereign credit rating criteria and foreign country limits will not apply to
investments in multilateral development banks (e.g. the European Investment
Bank and the World Bank) or other supranational organisations (e.g. the
European Union).

Risk assessment and credit ratings

The Council uses long-term credit ratings from the three main rating agencies
Fitch Ratings Ltd, Moody’s Investors Service Inc and Standard & Poor's
Financial Services LLC to assess the risk of investment default. The lowest
available credit rating will be used to determine credit quality.

Long-term ratings are expressed on a scale from AAA (the highest quality)
through to D (indicating default). Ratings of BBB- and above are described as
investment grade, while ratings of BB+ and below are described as
speculative grade. The Council’s credit rating criteria are set to ensure that it
is unlikely that the Council will hold speculative grade investments, despite the
possibility of repeated downgrades.

Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by the Council’s treasury advisers,
who will notify changes in ratings as they occur. Where an entity has its credit
rating downgraded so that it fails to meet the approved investment criteria
then:
e no new investments will be made,
e any existing investments that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be,
and
o full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other existing
investments with the affected counterparty.

Where a credit rating agency announces that a rating is on review for possible
downgrade (also known as “rating watch negative” or “credit watch negative”)
so that it is likely to fall below the above criteria, then no further investments
will be made in that organisation until the outcome of the review is
announced. This policy will not apply to negative outlooks.

The Council’'s investments are normally senior unsecured liabilities of the
borrower, and the credit rating of the investment is therefore normally identical
to the credit rating of the counterparty. However, where a credit rating agency
awards a different rating to a particular class of investment instruments, the
Council will base its investment decisions on the instrument credit rating
rather than the counterparty credit rating.

Other information on the security of investments

The Council understands that credit ratings are good, but not perfect,
predictors of investment default. Full regard will therefore be given to other
available information on the credit quality of the organisations in which it
invests, including credit default swap prices, financial statements and reports
in the quality financial press. No investments will be made with an
organisation if there are substantive doubts about its credit quality, even
though it may meet the above criteria.

8
Page 244



When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of
all organisations, as in 2008 and 2011, this is not generally reflected in credit
ratings, but can be seen in other market measures. In these circumstances,
the Council will restrict its investments to those organisations of higher credit
quality and reduce the maximum duration of its investments to maintain the
required level of security. The extent of these restrictions will be in line with
prevailing financial market conditions.

If these restrictions mean that insufficient commercial organisations of “high
credit quality” are available to invest the Council’'s cash balances, then the
surplus will be deposited with the UK Government, via the Debt Management
Office for example, or with other local authorities. This will cause a reduction
in the level of investment income earned, but will protect the principal sum
invested.

Specified investments
The WG Guidance defines specified investments as those:
e denominated in pound sterling,
e due to be repaid within 12 months of arrangement,
¢ not defined as capital expenditure by legislation, and
e invested with one of:
o the UK Government,
o a UK local authority, parish council or community council, or
o a body or investment scheme of “high credit quality”.

The Council defines ‘high credit quality’ organisations as those having a credit
rating of A- or higher that are, domiciled in the UK, or a foreign country with a
sovereign rating of AA+ or higher.

Non-Specified Investments

Any investment not meeting the definition of a specified investment is classed
as non-specified. The Council does not intend to make any investments in
foreign currencies. Non- specified investments will therefore be limited to long
term investments, i.e. those that are due to mature 12 months or longer from
the date of arrangement; those that are defined as capital expenditure, such
as money market funds; and investments with bodies and schemes not
meeting the definition on high credit quality. Limits on non-specified
investments are shown in table 5 below.

Table 6: Non-Specified Investment Limits

Cash Limit
Total long-term investments £10m
Total shares in money market funds £30m
Total investments without credit ratings or rated below A- £10m
Total non-specified investments £50m

Approved Instruments
The Authority may lend or invest money using any of the following
instruments:

9
Page 245



 interest-bearing bank accounts,

 fixed term deposits and loans,

» callable deposits and loans where the Authority may demand
repayment at any time (with or without notice),

» callable deposits and loans where the borrower may repay before
maturity

« certificates of deposit,

e bonds, notes, bills, commercial paper and other marketable

instruments, and

shares in money market funds

Investments may be made at either a fixed rate of interest, or at a variable
rate linked to a market interest rate, such as LIBOR, subject to the limits on
interest rate exposures below.

Liquidity management

The Council uses purpose-built cash flow forecasting software to determine
the maximum period for which funds may prudently be committed. The
forecast is compiled on a pessimistic basis, with receipts under-estimated and
payments over-estimated to minimise the risk of the Council being forced to
borrow on unfavourable terms to meet its financial commitments.

Limits on long-term investments are set by reference to the Council’'s medium
term financial plan and cash flow forecast.

Planned investment strateqgy for 2014/15
The economic climate improved slightly during 2013/14 and several longer
term investments were made.

However, following discussions with the Council’'s treasury management
advisors after their review of building society risk, the focus has turned away
from building societies and returned to placing money “on call” with banks,
depositing with other local authorities and extensive use of Money Market
Funds.

Treasury management staff will continue to seek out investments that meet
the criteria detailed within this strategy whilst having full regard for the
Council’s cash flow requirements, in particular the expectancy to meet single
status and equal pay obligations during the 2014/15 financial year.

The cash flow forecast will be used to divide surplus funds into three
categories:
e Short-term — cash required to meet known cash outflows in the next
month, plus a contingency to cover unexpected cash flows over the
same period.

e Medium-term — cash required to manage the annual seasonal cash
flow cycle, including amounts to cover forecast shortages, planned
uses of reserves, and a longer-term contingency.

10
Page 246



e Long-term — cash not required to meet cash flows, and used primarily
to generate investment income.

Short-term funds are required to meet cash flows occurring in the next month
or so, and the preservation of capital and liquidity is therefore of paramount
importance.  Generating investment returns is of limited concern here,
although it should not be ignored. Instant access money market funds and
bank deposit accounts will be the main methods used to manage short-term
cash. It is estimated that about 35% of surplus monies will be short term for
cash flow purposes, although this may vary depending on changes to the
interest rate yield curve.

Medium-term funds which may be required in the next one to twelve months
will be managed concentrating on security, with less importance attached to
liquidity but a slightly higher emphasis on yield. The majority of investments
in this period will be in the form of fixed term deposits with banks and building
societies. A wide spread of counterparties and maturity dates will be
maintained to maximise the diversification of credit and interest rate risks. Itis
estimated that about 55% of surplus funds will be medium term. However,
again this may vary depending on changes to the interest rate yield curve.

Cash that is not required to meet any liquidity need can be invested for the
longer term with a greater emphasis on achieving returns that will support
spending on local authority services. Security remains important, as any
losses from defaults will impact on the total return, but fluctuations in price
and even occasional losses can be managed over the long term within a
diversified portfolio. Liquidity is of lesser concern, although it should still be
possible to sell investments, with due notice, if large spending commitments
arise unexpectedly. A wider range of instruments, including structured
deposits, certificates of deposit, gilts and corporate bonds will be used to
diversify the portfolio. The Council will consider employing external fund
managers that have the skills and resources to manage the risks inherent in a
portfolio of long-term investments. However, in the current economic and
financial environment it is likely that only a small percentage, about 10% will
be invested longer term, probably over two years in fixed term deposits or
callable deposits.

With short-term interest rates currently much lower than long-term rates, due
consideration will also be given to using surplus funds to make early
repayments of long-term borrowing. In addition to the savings on the interest
rate differential, this strategy will also reduce the Council’s exposure to credit
risk and interest rate risk.

Borrowing Strateqy

The Council currently holds £172.11m of long-term loans, as part of its
strategy for funding previous years’ capital programmes. The balance sheet

11
Page 247



forecast in section 3 shows that the Council does not anticipate undertaking
any long term borrowing during 2014/15.

The Council’'s chief objective when borrowing money is to strike an
appropriately low risk balance between securing low interest costs and
achieving cost certainty over the period for which the funds are required. The
flexibility to renegotiate loans should the Council’s long-term plans change is
a secondary objective.

Given the significant cuts to public expenditure and in particular to local
government funding, the Council’'s borrowing strategy continues to address
the key issue of affordability without compromising the longer-term stability of
the debt portfolio. With short-term interest rates currently much lower than
long-term rates, it is likely to be more cost effective in the short-term to either
use internal resources, or to borrow short-term instead.

By doing so, the Council is able to reduce net borrowing costs (despite
forgone investment income) and reduce overall treasury risk. Whilst such a
strategy is most likely to be beneficial over the next 2-3 years as official
interest rates remain low, it is unlikely to be sustained in the medium-term.
The benefits of internal borrowing will be monitored regularly against the
potential for incurring additional costs by deferring borrowing into future years
when long-term borrowing costs are forecast to rise. Arlingclose with assist
the Council with this ‘cost of carry’ and breakeven analysis. Its output may
determine whether the Council borrows additional sums at long-term fixed
rates in 2014/15 with a view to keeping future interest costs low, even if this
causes additional cost in the short term

In addition, the Council may borrow for short periods of time (normally for up
to one month) to cover unexpected cash flow shortages.

Sources of borrowing
The approved sources of long-term and short-term borrowing will be:
e Public Works Loan Board
e Uk local authorities
e any institution approved for investments above
e any other bank or building society approved by the Prudential
Regultaion Authority to operate in the UK
¢ UK public and private sector pension funds (except the Clwyd Pension
Fund)
e capital market bond investors
e special purpose companies created to enable joint local authority bond
issues.

Planned borrowing strategy for 2014/15
The Head of Finance will:

¢ Manage the Council's debt maturity profile, i.e. to leave no one future year

12
Page 248



with a high level of repayments that could cause problems in re-borrowing
with the limits stated in this Strategy Statement. Appendix A analyses the
debt portfolio of the Council, as at 31st December, 2013.

e To effect any borrowing that maybe required in 2014/15 at the cheapest
cost commensurate with future risk based on interest rate forecasts.

e To monitor and review the level of variable interest rate loans in order to
take greater advantage of interest rate movements, within the limits stated
in this Strategy.

e Continue to monitor options for debt-restructuring and debt re-payment.

The Head of Finance will monitor the interest rate market and adopt a
pragmatic approach to any changing circumstances, reporting any decisions
and actions taken under delegated powers to Cabinet via the Audit
Committee.

The Council has previously raised the majority of its long-term borrowing from
the Public Works Loan Board, but it continues to investigate other sources of
finance, such as bond issues and bank loans, that may be available at more
favourable rates.

Loans that present additional risk to the authority, such as lender's option
borrower’s option (LOBO) loans and variable rate loans will be restricted to
the limit on the net exposure to variable interest rates in the treasury
management indicators below.

Policy on Use of Financial Derivatives

In the absence of any legislative power, the Council’s policy is not to enter into
standalone financial derivatives transactions such as swaps, forwards, futures
and options. Derivatives embedded into loans and investments may be used,
and the risks that they present will be managed in line with the overall
treasury risk management strategy.

Treasury Management Indicators

The Council measures and manages its exposures to treasury management
risks using the following indicators. The Council is asked to approve the
following indicators:

13
Page 249



Interest rate exposures

This indicator is set to control the Council’'s exposure to interest rate risk. The
upper limits on fixed and variable rate interest rate exposures, expressed as
an amount of net principal borrowed will be:

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Upper limit on fixed interest rate exposures £200m £200m £200m
Upper limit on variable interest rate £40m £40m £40m
exposures

Fixed rate investments and borrowings are those where the rate of interest is
fixed for the whole financial year. Instruments that mature during the financial
year are classed as variable rate.

Maturity structure of borrowing
This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to refinancing risk. The
upper and lower limits on the maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing will be:

Lower Upper
Under 12 months 0% 10%
12 months and within 24 months 0% 10%
24 months and within five years 0% 30%
Five years and within 10 years 0% 50%
10 years and above 0% 100%

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of
borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment.

Principal sums invested for periods longer than 364 days

The purpose of this indicator is to control the Council’'s exposure to the risk of
incurring losses by seeking early repayment of its investments. The limits on
the total principal sum invested to final maturities beyond the period end will
be:

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Limit on total principal invested beyond year £10m £10m £10m

end

Any long term investments carried forward from previous years will be
included in each years limit.

14
Page 250




Borrowing limits

The Council is being asked to approve these Prudential Indicators as part of
the Capital Programme report. However they are repeated here for
completeness.

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Operational boundary — borrowing £182.3m | £227.3m | £237.3m
Operational boundary - other long-term | £10.1m £11.1m £12.1m
liabilities £192.4m | £238.4m | £249.4m
Operational boundary — TOTAL
Authorised limit — borrowing £202.3m | £247.3m | £257.3m
Authorised limit — other long-term liabilities £20.1m £21.1m £22.1m
Authorised limit — TOTAL £222.4m | £268.4m | £279.4m
Other Matters

The WG Investment Guidance requires the Council to note the following three
matters each year as part of the investment strategy:

Treasury Management Advisers
The Council’s treasury management adviser, Arlingclose continues to provide
advice and information on the Council’s investment and borrowing activities,
although responsibility for final decision making remains with the Council and
its officers. The services received include:

e advice and guidance on relevant policies, strategies and reports,
advice on investment decisions,
notification of credit ratings and changes,
other information on credit quality,
advice on debt management decisions,
accounting advice,
reports on treasury performance,
forecasts of interest rates, and
training courses.

The quality of this service is controlled by Financial Procedure Rules

Investment training

The needs of the Council’'s treasury management staff for training in
investment management are assessed as part of the staff appraisal process,
and additionally when the responsibilities of individual members of staff
change.

Staff regularly attend training courses, seminars and conferences provided by
Arlingclose and CIPFA. Relevant staff are also encouraged to study
professional qualifications from CIPFA, the Association of Corporate
Treasurers and other appropriate organisations.

15
Page 251




Investment of Money Borrowed in Advance of Need
The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs, purely in
order to profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed.

The Head of Finance under delegated powers may borrow in advance of need
if it is within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates, and
if there is a clear business case for doing so.

Risks associated with any advance borrowing activity will be subject to
appraisal in advance and subsequent reporting through the mid-year or
annual reporting mechanism. The Council would not look to borrow more
than 12 months in advance of need.

The Council will only invest money borrowed in advance of need for known
debt maturities or to finance the borrowing requirement for the vyear
concerned.

Other Options Considered

The WG Investment Guidance and the CIPFA Code of Practice do not
prescribe any particular treasury management strategy for local authorities to
adopt. The Chief Financial Officer, having consulted the Cabinet Member for
Finance, believes that the above strategy represents an appropriate balance

between risk management and cost effectiveness. Some alternative
strategies, with their financial and risk management implications, are listed
below.

Alternative Impact on income and Impact on risk

expenditure

management

Invest in a narrower range of
counterparties and/or for shorter
periods.

Interest income will be lower

Reduced risk of losses from
credit related defaults

Invest in a wider range of
counterparties and/or for longer
periods.

Interest income will be higher

Increased risk of losses from
credit related defaults

Borrow additional sums at long-
term fixed interest rates

Debt interest costs will rise;
this is unlikely to be offset by
higher investment income

Higher investment balance
leading to a higher impact in
the event of a default;
however long-term interest
costs will be more certain

Borrow short-term or variable
loans instead of long-term fixed
rates

Debt interest costs will
initially be lower

Increases in debt interest
costs will be broadly offset by
rising investment income in
the medium term, but long
term costs will be less certain

Reduce level of borrowing if debt
rescheduling costs weren’t
prohibitive

Saving on debt interest is
likely to exceed lost
investment income

Reduced investment balance
leading to a lower impact in
the event of a default;
however long-term interest
costs will be less certain

16
Page 252




APPENDIX A — DEBT MATURITY PROFILE

Debt Maturity Profile
£m

17
Page 253



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 254



Agenda Item 13

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY 18 FEBRUARY 2014

REPORT BY: DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENT

SUBJECT: REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL'S HOUSEHOLD WASTE
COLLECTION POLICY AND HRC/BRING SITE
ARRANGEMENTS

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To seek Cabinet approval of the Councils Household Waste Collection
Policy and the arrangements at the Councils HRC and ‘Bring sites’

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  On 15" March 2011 the Council's Executive formally approved its
Household Waste Collection Policy which supported the introduction
of a Managed Weekly Collection (MWC) service, fundamentally
changing the way the Council collected all domestic waste in the
County. The new MWC service was designed to increase participation
in recycling and reduce the Councils reliance on landfill in order meet
the challenging targets set out in the all Wales National Strategy
‘Towards Zero Waste'.

2.02 Failure to meet the WG National Strategy targets could result in
infraction charges being levied against the Council totalling £200 for
each tonne of waste land filled above the defined allowance. In
addition, a further £200/tonne infraction charge could be levied if the
Council fails to achieve the Statutory Waste Recycling target in the
same period. Therefore if the Council fails to meet the target by (say)
1,000 tonnes (roughly equivalent to just 1% of the Councils current
Municipal Waste Arising), this could result in a financial penalty of
£400,000 for that year alone.

2.03 Since the introduction of the policy and the new collection
arrangements, recycling levels across all areas of the County have
increased, allowing the Council to achieve the 2012 — 13 statutory
target of 52% and to be well on track to achieve the subsequent
targets - which are shown below:

Page 255



2.04

2.05

2.06

3.00

3.01

Table 1 - Summary of municipal waste targets

TARGET FOR EACH INDIVIDUAL | TARGETS FOR

LOCAL AUTHORITY: EACH TARGET

YEAR

12-13 | 15-16 | 19-20 24-25

Minimum levels of reuse and|52% |58% |64% 70%
recycling / composting (or AD)

Minimum levels of AD (or composting | 12% | 14% | 16% 16%
if currently committed to this
technology) of source separated food
waste from kitchens as part of the
combined recycling/ composting
target above

Minimum proportion of 80% 80% 80% 80%
reuse/recycling/composting that must
come from source separation
(kerbside, bring and/or civic amenity

(CA) site

Maximum level of energy from waste | - 42% | 36% 30%
per annum

Maximum level of landfill - - 10% 5%

Maximum level of residual household | 295kg | 258kg | 210kg 150kg

waste per inhabitant per annum

The service is partly funded by WG though the Sustainable Waste
Management Grant (SWMG). The level of the grant was reduced by
approximately 5% or £149,470 during the financial year 2013-14 and
indications are that further reductions are to be expected in 2014 — 15
and beyond.

It is good practise to review all formal Council policies to ensure they
are still appropriate and meet the needs of both the residents and the
Council. It is also important to ensure that by the application of the
policy, the Council avoids any financially damaging infraction charges
in future years. In addition there are a number of elements within
current waste policies which are not being implemented and that
therefore require amending i.e.

¢ Side waste collection policy — Changes detailed in new policy
e HRC provision

To provide clarity and a single document which provides detailed
information on the Councils complete waste collection service, the
new policy has been extended to include detailing operations at the
Councils Household Recycling Centres (HRC’s) and ‘Bring Sites’.

CONSIDERATIONS

The proposed policy relies heavily on the continuing participation of
Flintshire residents to ensure that recycling levels remain high and the
further development and promotion of the new collection service is
considered essential, if the Council is to achieve the incremental

Page 256



3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06

3.07

targets set by WG.
A summary of the main changes to the Policy are as follows:

The new Collection Policy provides greater clarity for collection
arrangements allowing curtilage rather than kerbside collections to
take place. It also provides clarity on the liability issues in respect of
containers placed for collection.

Residents can continue to purchase a second garden waste bin.
However the number of garden waste bins at individual properties will
be restricted to a maximum of two. Properties currently with more than
this number will continue to be serviced.

The collection of side waste will continue in order to avoid littering and
the process for residents who continue to present side waste is
clarified in the new Policy. Properties presenting excess side waste
will be noted by the crews and staff from the service will then call on
the resident to investigate the level of waste being produced at the
property. If the resident continues to present side waste and refuses
to reduce their waste by recycling, a formal notification process will be
followed to ensure the resident is aware of the collection
arrangements and the need to recycle. Continued failure to follow the
advice issued during this process may result in action being taken
under the powers within the Environment Protection Act 1990.

The number of HRC sites will be considered further as one element of
the broader Assets Review and the proposed changes resulting from
the completion of the Sandycroft HRC site are detailed in the Policy.
This will require closure of the current facilities in Saltney and
Queensferry once the new facility in Sandycroft opens

The opening times for all HRC sites have been amended to reflect the
footfall levels at the sites. The opening hours will also prevent
overtime working for staff and remove the need for lone working at the
sites during the evening and morning periods.

The Council Van Permit Scheme, which allows residents with vans to
use the HRC site’s has been amended to limit all van owners to the
HRC sites in Greenfield and Mold, which are more suited to receiving
these vehicles. The proposal is intended to reduce the risk from
confrontations with staff at the remaining sites, where a clear
instruction will be advertised informing all users that vans are not
accepted into the public areas of the facility. Additional resources will
be allocated to the Greenfield and Mold sites to manage van usage
and ensure compliance with the policy. The proposed arrangements
will be further monitored by operators based in Alltami using the new
CCTV system and the complete van ban in all public areas of the
remaining sites will therefore be easier to manage and will improve
the safety of Council staff

Page 257



3.08

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

5.02

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01
9.00

8.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

11.02

11.03

The Council will continue to offer Trade customers in the County the
opportunity to dispose of their garden waste and general waste in
Greenfield HRC site. This will be a chargeable service with details of
the charges available on the Council’'s Fees and Charges listing.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Cabinet approve the Council Household Waste Collection
Policy.and the proposed arrangements at Council operated HRC and
‘Bring Sites’

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The service is part funded by the Welsh Government through the
Sustainable Waste Management Grant. There has been a reduction in
this grant in the current year of approximately 5% and further
reduction are expected in future years.

The remaining service is budgeted within the Environment Directorate
budget

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

Not applicable

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Achieving the recycling targets will reduce landfill and also reduce the
Council carbon footprint.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

No impact
PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

No impact

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Notification to all HRC site users of revised opening hours

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

With Cabinet Member

With Local Members in respect of Saltney and Queensferry HRC site
closure

A report was presented to the Environment Overview and Scrutiny on
January 22" 2014 detailing the changes to the policy. The report

Page 258



12.00

12.01

12.02

received positive comments from Members of the Committee and a
copy of the Minutes of the meeting are attached at Appendix 2.

APPENDICES

The Councils Waste Collection Policy

Minutes of Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting on
January 22" 2014

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Steve Jones
Telephone: 01352 704700
Email: Stephen.o.jones@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 259



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 260



CYNGOR

a Oir Y Filint
“* Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Flintshire County Council
HOUSEHOLD WASTE COLLECTION
POLICY.

HOUSEHOLD RECYCLING CENTRE
OPERATIONS.

AND

THE COUNCIL’S BRING SITE SERVICE

December 2013

@ recycle for Flintshire
ailgylchu dros Sir y Fflint

Page 261



1.0

11

2.0

21

2.2

3.0

3.1

4.0

41

POLICY FOR HOUSEHOLD WASTE COLLECTION
Legislation

Under the terms of the Environmental Protection Act, 1990, Flintshire
County Council (the “Council”’) is classed as a Waste Collection and
Disposal Authority, and as such has a statutory duty to collect household
waste from all domestic properties in the County. Under Section 46(4) of
the Act, the Council has specific powers to stipulate:

The size and type of the collection receptacle(s);

Where the receptacle(s) must be placed for the purpose of collecting and
emptying;

The waste types which may or may not be placed within each of the
receptacle(s).

Household Waste Collection Eligibility

Each household in Flintshire registered on the Council Tax Register will be
entitled to receive a waste collection service.

Places of religious worship, registered charities and community halls
(where no business activity takes place for profit) may be entitled to the
standard waste collection service offered to householders.

Collection Frequency

The Council operates a Managed Weekly Collection (MWC) service
offering the following:

A weekly collection of all recyclable material which should be cleaned and

separated by the residents. This includes — Glass, Plastics, Card/Paper

and Cans

A weekly collection of food waste

A fortnightly collection of a 180 litre general domestic waste container
Alternating with:

A fortnightly collection of 140litre green/garden waste container

Containers for the Storage of Waste Materials

Where operationally possible all households have been included in the
MWC service and the properties will receive curtilage collections. However
in some locations specific collection points have been identified by the
Council and in some locations (particularly flats) local collections will be
provided from communal wheeled bin(s) which are provided for the
purpose of storing waste materials prior to collection.

Page 262



4.2

4.3

44

4.5

4.6

4.7

All containers supplied to householders for the purpose of the
waste/recycling collection service shall remain in the ownership of the
Council. When householders move home they will be required to leave all
wheeled bins and recycling boxes at the property for the new occupant to
use. The only exemptions are additional garden waste bins (Brown Bins)
that have been purchased by the householder from the Council.

Householders are responsible for the storage, safe keeping and cleaning
of waste containers provided by the Council.

Each householder in the scheme shall be provided with the following
containers free of charge in which to store their waste:

1 x 180 litre black wheeled bin for non recyclable waste. Only waste
produced by a household on a normal day to day basis should be placed
in this wheeled bin (i.e. it should not contain non standard items such as
bulky waste, commercial waste or recyclable waste).

1 x 55 litre blue recycling box (for plastic bottles, mixed cans and mixed
glass). Households requesting additional recycling capacity shall be
provided with reusable weighted woven sacks for separating plastic
bottles and mixed cans (the box will then be used for glass only).
Recycling products placed in these receptacles should be rinsed and be
free of the material originally stored in them.

1 x 60 litre blue reusable plastic sack (for paper and cardboard). Additional
sacks will be available on request.

1 x 25 Litre caddy for the storage of food waste and a smaller 7 Litre
caddy for use in the kitchen. Householders will also be supplied with a roll
of 52 biodegradable bags for food waste. Householders will be supplied
with additional bags (free of charge) when the notification sticker within the
roll is presented by residents on collection day.

1 x 140 litre brown wheeled bin for green garden waste. If an additional
bin is required please see paragraph 4.12

All containers supplied by the Council should only be used for the storage
of items as prescribed by the Council. Failure to do so may result in the
Council retrieving the container(s) from the households.

Households must separate their waste items into the appropriate
containers as per the advice provided by the Council. If the householder
fails to correctly segregate their waste materials into the prescribed
containers as required, the waste may not be collected and this shall not
be classed as a missed collection. Following such an incident the
householder must place the waste items in the correct container which will
then be collected at the next scheduled collection.

Any request to provide a new wheeled bin, recycling box (e.g. due to
damage or if a new property has been built etc) shall be made by initially

Page 263



4.8

4.9

4.10

411

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

contacting the Streetscene service through the Streetscene Contact
Centre (01352 701234) or through the Councils web-site. Food bags
should be requested by placing the sticker within the roll on the food
caddy on collection day

Deliveries will be made by Streetscene staff within the operating standard

Where a household has 6 or more permanent occupants, they may make
a request for a larger, 240 litre wheeled bin for the storage of non
recyclable waste. This service shall be subject to annual review and the
240 litre wheeled bin will be exchanged for a standard 180 litre wheeled
bin once the number of permanent occupants reduces below 6.

Where a household with fewer than 6 permanent occupants believe they
have a need for a larger bin (240 litres) than the standard 180 litre
wheeled bin supplied, applications can be made to the Council for
consideration

Only 1 wheeled bin for non recyclable waste will be supplied and emptied
per property.

Where a household produces large quantities of green garden waste, they
may purchase one additional 140 litre wheeled bin for the storage of this
material. The provision of additional wheeled bin for this purpose shall be
subject to availability and households will be restricted to a maximum of 2
wheeled bins for garden waste. The charge for additional brown bins will
be reviewed annually and details of current charges are available on the
Council's Fees & Charges listing. Households with more than two bins will
be continue to receive a collection service subject to further notice..

Collection Points

All wheeled bins, food containers and recycling boxes/bags must be
placed on the drive or footway within one metre of the curtilage or
boundary of the property and be easily accessible to the crews without the
need to open gates etc. Where this is not possible the containers should
be placed on the footway/verge outside the property, at a point causing
minimal obstruction to the highway users

The collection point for householders with long private drives will be the
point where their drive meets the adopted highway.

Where appropriate collection vehicles will travel along un-adopted roads
allowing residents to present their waste containers at the same point on
their property as though the road were adopted (5.1). This does not mean
that the Council will maintain the road and should the road be deemed
unsuitable for the vehicles involved or if the owner of the road refuses to
allow the vehicle to use the road, the residents will be required to bring
their containers to the nearest adopted highway

Where required, site specific arrangements will be made for collections at
flats or properties with narrow or difficult access arrangements. These

Page 264



5.5

5.6

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.0

71

7.2

specific collection arrangements will be advised to the householder by the
Council.

Wheeled bins and recycling containers will be returned to their point of
origin by the collection crews immediately after collection with the lid of the
container closed

The householder must collect their wheeled bins/recycling boxes after
they have been emptied and return them to within the boundary of their
property on the day of collection. Containers should not be permanently
stored on the public highway.

Collection Day and Time

Wheeled bin and recycling collections will generally take place on the
same day each week

Wheeled bins, food containers and recycling boxes/bags should be
presented for collection by 7.00 am on the day of collection and removed
after collections have taken place (which could be up until 5pm).
Containers may be placed at their collection point on the evening before
collection however the Council will not accept liability for any injury or
damage to third parties as a result of any incidents occurring with a
container left on the public highway outside of these periods unless
caused by the acts or omissions of its employees, contractors or agents.

It may be necessary for the Council to change collection days from time to
time e.g. over the Christmas and New Year period and on some occasions
the waste collection service will have to be suspended due to a service
disruption (e.g. during heavy snow, fuel shortage etc). The Council will
make every effort to minimise the level of disruption to householders
during these periods and will try to rectify any missed collections as soon
as the cause of the disruption comes to an end. Notification of changed
collection days in these instances will be available on the Councils website
and from the Councils Streetscene Contact Centre.

Where the Council is unable to collect any missed waste collections due to
a service disruption, householders should retain their waste materials until
the next scheduled collection when the all of the material will be collected.
The Council would encourage residents to use their nearest HRC for the
disposal of all waste types in these instances.

Presentation

All waste must be presented in Council supplied containers to ensure its
safe collection. Lids on wheeled bins must be shut when the waste is
collected in order to ensure the health and safety of the collection crews
and prevent damage to the containers and the vehicle lifting equipment..

Any waste jammed in a wheeled bin that does not fall out following the
normal mechanical emptying process on the waste collection vehicles will

Page 265



7.3

7.0

71

7.2

8.0

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

not be taken. In these cases householders will have to loosen the
materials themselves ready for the next scheduled collection.

All non recyclable waste must be contained within the Council supplied
black wheeled bin. Properties presenting excess side waste will be noted
by the crews and staff from the service will then call on the resident to
investigate the level of waste being produced at the property. If the
resident continues to present side waste and refuses to reduce their waste
by recycling, a formal notification process will be followed to ensure the
resident is aware of the collection arrangements and the need to recycle.
Continued failure to follow the advice issued during this process may
result in action being taken under the powers within the Environment
Protection Act 1990. The side waste will however be collected to reduce
littering in the locality.

Assisted Collections

Where, through frailty or incapacity, a householder cannot present their
180 litre wheeled bin or recycling boxes at the curtilage, and subject to
there being no other able bodied adult person living at the property, the
householder may make a formal request to the Council for an Assisted
Collection. If an Assisted Collection is approved a suitable collection point
on the property shall be agreed with the householder and collections will
then take place from this point. All containers will be returned to the
collection point by the waste teams once they have been emptied.

Assisted Collections will be restricted to those households who are in
genuine need following approval of an application to the Council. The
Council will review every individual case every two years.

Missed Kerbside Collections

If a wheeled bin or recycling container is placed out ready for collection at
a collection point as specified in section 5 and on the correct collection
day and time, and is not picked up by the Council, then this will be classed
as a missed collection. As the Council undertakes almost one million
individual collections each month in the County, inevitably there will be
some missed collections each day

Where a genuine missed collection is reported the Council will endeavour
to return and collect the waste the following working day after receipt of
notice.

Where it is proven that the householder has failed to place the bin out for
collection at a collection point as specified in section 5 or on the
designated day and time; the Council will not return for the collection and
the resident will be required to place their waste for collection on the next
collection date.

Missed collections can be reported through the Streetscene Contact
Centre or through the Councils web-site

Page 266



10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

11.0

1.1

11.2

11.3

1.4

11.5

11.6

11.7

Clinical Household Waste Collection

The Council provides a collection service for clinical household waste from
householders upon request from the relevant Health Care provider, via a
prescribed application form.

The Council shall provide a suitable container for the householder to store
their clinical waste.

An agreed collection point, day of collection, frequency of collection and
any other specific instructions regarding this service, will be agreed
between the Council and the householder.

Bulky Household Waste Collection

The Council provides a bulky waste collection services for householders.
This is a chargeable service for 1 to 5 items (or up to 10 bin bags). Extra
items, up to a maximum of 5, are also collected at an additional charge.
The cost for each of these services will be shown in the Council’s Fees &
Charges listing which is reviewed each year. Fridges and Freezers are
collected free of charge

Householders in receipt of Income Support, Unemployment Benefit,
Disability Living Allowance, State Pension or Guaranteed Pension Credits
will be provided with up to two free collections per year if required. Proof of
benefit will be required.

Following a request for a bulky household waste collection service, the
collection shall take place within the prescribed Streetscene standard
period.

Typical examples of bulky waste that will be accepted include the following
- mattress’s, bed frames, chairs, tables, TV’s, carpets, hi-fi's, cupboards,
standard cookers, sideboards, lamps, children’s toys, computers,
bookcases etc. A three piece suite will count as three items.

Small waste objects should be placed into a box, sack or suitable
container and this will then be counted as one item. Only the items listed
during the original request to the Council will be collected and additional
items will not be collected.

No commercial or industrial waste will be collected however trade waste
will be accepted at Greenfield HRC site with the appropriate permit.

All items must be presented for collection by 07.00 hours on the specified
day of collection. All items of waste must be left in the front of the
nominated property and clearly visible from the highway. They should be
presented in a safe fashion which does not cause any obstruction or
danger to the public. The Council will not enter houses to collect waste
items. The collection point for properties with difficult access e.g. flats shall
be agreed with the Council at the point of request and before collections
are made.

Page 267



11.8

11.9

12

121

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

The Council reserves the right to refuse the collection of any waste items
that may cause harm or may have an affect on the health and safety of
waste collection staff.

Home Improvements including kitchen/bathroom renewals, fitted
wardrobes and any soils & rubble from landscaping works will not be
collected as part of a bulky waste collection and households should make
the appropriate arrangements with their contractor to ensure they comply
with their own duty of care for the safe disposal of the material.

Household Recycling Centres (HRC’s)

Flintshire County Council operates 8 HRC sites at the following locations
across the County:

- Greenfield

- Flint

- Mold

- Hope

- Connahs Quay

- Saltney & Queensferry — To be replaced by Sandycroft
- Buckley

The number of HRC sites required across the County will be
considered further as one element of the broader Council Assets
Review.

In recent years and in line with the Councils Waste Management Strategy,
the emphasis at the sites has changed from a simple tipping facility to one
which allows the Council to recycle the majority of material that residents
take to the sites. This change has been driven by the targets set by Welsh
Assembly Government (WAG) for the amount of municipal waste recycled
by each Council in Wales.

Approximately 30% of the total domestic waste currently produced in
Flintshire is collected at the HRC sites and the average recycling rate
achieved at the sites is approximately 58%. All residents using the
facilities will be met by a member of the staff on the site and provided with
guidance on the disposal of their material. The intention will be to ensure
that as much of the waste as possible is recycled. Black bag or residual
waste will then be opened on the sites by the staff and any recyclable
product removed from the bag and then placed in the appropriate
recycling container.

Space at the sites limits the number of waste types that can be recycled
however every attempt is made to maximise the number of waste types
that can be recycled at each site.

Due to Health and Safety concerns Asbestos products will only be

accepted at Greenfield and Buckley HRC sites. The material should be
presented in sealed plastic bags (which are supplied at the HRC sites if

Page 268



12.7

12.8

12.9

required) and place in the designated skip for storage prior to disposal.
Flintshire County Council recommends that specialist advice on handling
asbestos should be sort before handling this material.

Similarly building rubble and soil can only be accepted at Buckley, Mold
and Greenfield.

The opening hours for the facilities will be as follows:

Summer (March — Sept) Opens 09.00 hours
Closes 19.00 hours
Winter (Oct — Feb) Opens 09.00 hours
Closes 17.00 hours

Residents with privately owned vans wishing to dispose of their
household waste at HRC’s will only be accepted at the Greenfield and
Mold facilities and will be required to obtain a permit in order to do so.
This is in order to reduce conflict with staff at other sites and
compliance will be monitored using CCTV cameras which are situated
on all of the sites

Trade or commercial waste will only be accepted at the Greenfield
HRC site with a permit which should be issued before the site is visited.

12.10 Resident Van Permits at HRCsites

Why are permits necessary?

To stop illegal use of the sites by businesses
To meet the requirements of environmental legislation.

To reduce congestion at the sites making general visits safer, quicker and
easier.

What types of vehicles are restricted?

Residents owning the following vehicles must be in possession of a permit to
dispose of their waste at HRC sites. This restriction applies to company
vehicles, hired vehicles and borrowed vehicles and includes:

e Lorries
e Vans
e Pick-ups

e Trailers (with more than one axle)
e Mini-buses
¢ Any vehicle that might be seen as ‘commercial’

Page 269



Criteria for issuing permits

If a Flintshire resident can satisfy three simple criteria they can apply for a
permit from Flintshire County Council and continue to use Greenfield and
Mold HRC sites for the disposal of their household waste.

e The vehicle must be registered to the resident, not a business or other
organisation.

e The vehicle must be registered to an address in Flintshire.
e The vehicle must not be sign-written or display advertising.

If the resident cannot satisfy the above conditions, they will not be permitted
to bring the vehicle into the nominated HRC

How to apply for a Residents Van Permit
There are 2 ways to apply for a permit:

Email the completed permit application form (available on the Councils
website) to Streetscene@flintshire.gov.uk along with scanned copies of the
required documents, or

Post the completed permit application form to Streetscene, Flintshire County
Council Depot, Alltami CH7 6LG together with copies of the required
documents,

The following documents should be included in the application:
e Vehicle registration Document (V5) Section 4, 5,6 & 7 and
e Two recent utilities bills/Council Tax demands

Photocopies or scanned copies of documents are acceptable and we will
return any originals sent.

Permits will then be collected from Alltami depot when the suitability of the
vehicle will be assessed by staff

There is no charge for these permits.

Process

1. The van permits will only apply in the Greenfield and Mold HRC sites
and no other sites will accept vans with permits.

2. Once the application is approved the applicant will receive a card with
vehicle details noted and 12 numbered boxes around the edge, these will
be hole punched by the attendant on site each time you visit.

3. The permit can be used for a maximum of 12 visits per year. The HRC
staff will not allow you access to the site if you do not have a permit.

4. If the vehicle is changed during the year a new permit for the new vehicle
will be required.

12.13 Hired Van ‘One Off’ Permits

If the van is hired or borrowed and taking household waste to a Flintshire
County Council HRC a “one off” permit will be required. ‘One Off’ permits are
available from the Streetscene Contact Centre (031352 701234) and directly

Page 270



from the Greenfield and Mold HRC sites at weekends. Hire documents and
proof of address (through utility bill) will be required and this information will
be checked by site staff when the vehicle visits the site. Hired or borrowed
vans will only be accepted at the Greenfield and Mold HRC sites and for
three visits only over a two week period. Vehicles should not display any
commercial markings other than that of the Hire Company.

12.14 Commercial Waste HRC permits

The Council will provide permits for Commercial waste to be disposed at
Greenfield HRC site only. This includes commercial disposal of green garden
waste at the Councils composting facility.

For details of commercial disposal costs and application arrangements
please contact Flintshire County Council Streetscene Contact Centre
01352 701234 or visit the Councils web-site.

13 The Councils ‘Bring Sites’

13.1 In addition to the HRC sites the Council also operates 23 strategically
placed Bring Sites' which allow residents to recycle locally. The sites
are in the following locations.

Bagillt, The Stag Car Park
Broughton, Village Centre
Buckley, Potters Wheel
Caergwrle, High Street
Caerwys, Caerwys School
Caerwys, Marian Lucy Common
Connah's Quay, Somerfield
Halkyn, Blue Bell Inn
Hawarden, Tinkersdale

Higher Kinnerton, The Royal Oak
Higher Kinnerton, The Swan

Holywell Tesco Car Park
Leeswood, Community Centre
Mold, Somerfields Car Park
Mold, Tesco Car Park

New Brighton, Beaufort Park Hotel
Queensferry, Asda Car Park
Rhydymwyn, Antelope Inn
Saltney, Morrisons

Saltney, Sports & Social Club
Shotton,Charmleys Lane Car Park.

Page 271



13.2

13.3

The sites will be include a single unit providing storage for separated
glass, cans, plastic and paper/card and a separate unit for recycled
textiles. The textile bank will be emptied and managed under contract
by a nominated contractor. The single glass, plastic etc storage facility
will be managed by the Councils own staff.

The provision of Bring sites are subject to review and provided subject
to the level of demand in a particular area

Page 272



53.

54.

55.

ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
22 JANUARY 2014

Minutes of the meeting of the Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee of
Flintshire County Council held in the Delyn Committee Room, County Hall, Mold
CH7 6NA on Wednesday, 22 January 2014

PRESENT:
Councillors: Haydn Bateman, Peter Curtis, Chris Dolphin, David Evans,
Veronica Gay, Ray Hughes, Colin Legg and Nancy Matthews

SUBSTITUTES:
Councillors: Glyn Banks for lan Dunbar, David Wisin
Hampson for Ann Minshull and Alex Aldridge for Paul

Cindy Hinds, Ron
APOLOGIES:
Councillors Matt Wright and Carolyn Thomas

ALSO PRESENT:
Councillor Bernie Attridge was present as

CONTRIBUTORS:
Cabinet Member for Econom binet Member for Waste
Strategy, Public Protection and Le i i
Head of Streetscene for minute nu
Head of Regeneration & ‘ inute number 57

Member Engage

APPOINTME

attend today’s meeting. Therefore, he sought
or the meeting. Councillor David Evans was
on Hampson, which was duly seconded.

RESOLVED:

That Councillor David Evans be Chairman for this meeting.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING DECLARATIONS)

No declarations of interest were made.
MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 16 December 2013
had been circulated to Members with the agenda.

Page 273



56.

Matters Arising

Councillor Nancy Matthews indicated that she had tried to sign on to
Superfast Cymru but had been advised that it was not available in the area. She
said that she would try again and would provide an update in the future.
RESOLVED:

That the minutes be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

THE COUNCIL'S HOUSEHOLD WASTE COLLECTION POLICY

The Head of Streetscene introduced a report t rm Members of the

2015/16 was 58% and this year the Cou ing 57%. The
Head of Streetscene reminded Member:
was extremely high and that failing to
. The Sustainable Waste
Management Grant was decreasin e targets were increasing so
it was good practice to review the proc icies in place. The following

side waste w
would be set area to educate residents on what could or could not be
recycled to enco > them to recycle. Visits from officers may also be required
and enforcement action would be undertaken as a last resort. He explained that
plans for the new site in Sandycroft, which now did not include steps, would be
submitted to Planning in March 2014.

Councillor Nancy Matthews expressed concern about side waste and
queried whether reports could be submitted to future Committees about the levels
of side waste to allow the Committee to monitor whether it was reducing. She
welcomed the provision of the van permit scheme at two sites and queried
whether the permits would be available at the Alltami depot in future. The Head of
Streetscene advised that he could provide a summary about side waste in his six
monthly performance report to the Committee. It was intended that the van
permits would be available at Alltami and that renewals could then be undertaken
through the Contact Centre.

Page 274



Councillor Colin Legg raised concern about the number of complaints he
had received from residents about collections of waste during the Christmas
period. He also asked if a smaller bin for residents who lived alone could be
considered and queried why other authorities such as Liverpool asked that all
waste be placed in one bin and not separated into recyclable/non-recyclable
waste. Councillor Legg also asked that thanks from residents be passed on to the
refuse collectors.

In response, the Head of Streetscene said that the number of complaints
during the Christmas period was very low, which was encouraging, and that a
99.3% collection was now being achieved. Processes w in place for missed
collections but he reminded Members that the Council w. t always to blame for
missed collections. He said that the suggestion smaller bin could be
explored. The Cabinet Member for Waste Strateg rotection and Leisure
said that there had been a significant number of he past 12 months
and he highlighted that supervisors would be ilities for rounds
and HRC sites to ensure that they were d .. On the issue of
separating waste, the Head of Stree cycling by
residents was the preferred option from as likely
to become a legal requirement for Councils

Councillor David Wisinger w rt but asked how many van
permits had been issued (743) anc Id have preferred the two
sites to be Greenfield and Queen : [ d Mold. The Cabinet
Member for Waste Stre ic Pra sisure said that the sites had

been chosen becaus ial 2 e issue would be monitored
er implementation. In response to a
question from C ) ad of Streetscene said that residents
would be notified y bi ) or lost during the collection of waste.
Councillor Wisi 1sferry and Saltney HRC sites remain

Dolphin asked questions about the provision of
replacement gree d bags and the returning of bins to their point of origin and
suggested that the noting and monitoring of properties that put out side waste
should be undertaken by the supervisors. The Head of Streetscene advised that
the properties leaving out side waste were recorded onto a device in the cab and
were fed back to supervisors automatically. He agreed that supervisors should
take more control and have a greater role in the area that they were responsible
for.

Councillor Peter Curtis welcomed the report and the changes proposed to
the policy including curtilage collections. He raised concern about shopkeepers in
town centres that put out their waste on a Saturday for early morning collections
on a Monday and asked if collections could be undertaken later on Mondays so
that the waste could be put out that morning instead of over the weekend. On the
issue of Christmas collections, he said that information was issued about changes

Page 275



during that period and he welcomed the collection rate in his area. Councillor
Curtis also welcomed the inclusion of Disability Living Allowance in the list of
benefits that householders could receive to qualify for up to two free collections
per year of bulky household waste. The Head of Streetscene advised that he
would look at the issue of town centre waste collections.

On the issue of black bins, Councillor Ron Hampson said that they were not
big enough for some families and therefore the issue of side waste would
continue; he queried whether the bins used in Chester were larger. The Head of
Streetscene responded that a significant amount of time and effort had gone into
deciding the correct size for the black bins. The Cabinet Member for Waste
Strategy, Public Protection and Leisure said that it was hoped that the amount of
side waste would continue to reduce and therefore the cil would continue to
use the size of bin that was currently in place.

In referring to the comment that bins w d to their place of

bins. She also welcomed the proposals
HRC and asked if advertising would be

sites’ and asked it these were
Cabinet Member for Waste

e recycled would be welcomed in his

a presentation on v
' at Talacre had a Saturday collection

ward. On._the

ks asked if it could be reviewed. The Head of
eas that received presentations were chosen
e waste and he added that the Local Members
such an event took place in their ward. There were
ge the rounds but the issue of collections in Talacre
could be reviey

In response to a question from Councillor Haydn Bateman about black bags
no longer being able to go to landfill, the Head of Streetscene said that the
Environment Act was being reviewed and it referred to residual waste not being
permitted in landfill so was not referring to the use of black bags. Following a
further query from Councillor Bateman, the Head of Streetscene said trade waste
was only permitted into the Greenfield HRC site with the necessary permit.

Councillor Ray Hughes referred to the collection of waste during the
Christmas period, which he welcomed, and queried whether the weekly collection
of black bins during this period could be extended to the end of January. The
Head of Streetscene responded that the brown bin service was suspended for four
weeks to allow weekly black bin collections during the Christmas period and it was
felt that this was a sufficient timeframe. Councillor Alex Aldridge felt that the

Page 276



57.

diligence of residents should be highlighted as the Council would not achieve its
targets without them. He asked if regular visits were made to schools to educate
children as he felt that this was essential and the Head of Streetscene confirmed
that these were undertaken. Councillor Aldridge raised concern about areas in the
county where litter including cans and bottles were left and asked how those
responsible for this were dealt with.

The Chairman referred to rows of terraced properties where the bins were
left out all week as there were no areas to store them and said that he felt that the
residents needed to be educated about this. On the issue of bulky waste
collection, he asked if this applied where a child in the property was in receipt of
Disability Living Allowance. The Head of Streetscene ponded that it was
intended to apply to householders in receipt of the list nefits so the service
would not be free if only the children in the property receipt of the benefits
listed.

RESOLVED:

(a)

regeneration.

Following a ) nittee in July 2013 to give further
consideration C nance town centres and high streets, a

art of the Quarterly Performance Report for
that met on 12 December 2013 felt that a joined up
ross the Council including planning, housing, social
h the many stakeholders which were listed in the outline
attached as an appendix to the report.

enterprise and
project plan whi

Councillor Alex Aldridge expressed his support for the proposals and said
that it was important that all areas were given the same opportunity to put
suggestions forward. He asked if information including anecdotal evidence would
be provided for all areas so that the Committee could have an overall view of the
town centres and high streets across the County.

The Cabinet Member for Economic Development indicated that he had
attended the meeting in December 2013 and said that the Chairman and Vice-
Chairman had suggested that the Committee needed to be made aware of what
was taking place in town centres and then prepare a mini strategy to take forward
as good practice for all areas. Councillor Aldridge believed that a ‘bottom up’
approach was required. The Head of Regeneration said that it was important to

Page 277



work with local communities and that each town would have different priorities and
would require a different solution. The project plan approach adopted by the
County Council was about developing a strategy that was appropriate for the local
communities.

Councillor Chris Dolphin agreed with more involvement of Overview &
Scrutiny in Town Centres but said that ideas that he had tried to put forward for
Holywell Town Centre regeneration had not been welcomed. The Chairman felt
that there was a need to look at the County as a whole and not at individual wards.

Councillor Nancy Matthews referred to two issues that affected small
businesses which were rent and business rates. Councill eter Curtis said that
the Clerk of the Town and Community Council could tacted if there were
certain projects that other Town and Community C s wanted to submit an
opinion about. He also referred to the Holywell P Board. The Head of

Regeneration said that the partnerships referre ormally constituted
bodies, they were open meetings and decisi ere a matter for
the bodies themselves. On the issue of he said that

these were collected by the Council bu ent and he
spoke of a review in Wales about rate reli
on a small shop scheme which he detaile
had been unable to reach agreement with
strategic approaches, he felt tha ;
and suggested working alongside
in the area, for example, the Deesic
Enterprise Zone Board

id that the County Council
op. On the issue of wider
ertake a joined up approach
initiatives were operating
y linked to the Deeside

eed and said that there was an intrinsic link and
highlighted the Fli ects office which would also house the Police and the

Councillor Glyn Banks asked how tourism fitted into the scheme and
commented on the areas of Talacre and Gronant. The Director of Environment
felt that Tourism was a separate issue and felt that this could be included in the
Forward Work Programme for discussion at a future meeting.

Councillor Curtis queried whether the Partnership Board meetings were
open to the public and said that he understood that people were invited to attend
but that the meetings were not public meetings. The Head of Regeneration said
that the boards were unconstituted bodies and confirmed that they were not
closed meetings and that they had initially been set up as open meetings.

Page 278



58.

The Chairman agreed with the recommendation in the report but added that
he would like the issue to be included on the Forward Work Programme and
brought to the next meeting for discussion in more detail.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Committee agree in principle to undertake a scrutiny review of
Town Centres and High Streets, as identified in the report; and

(b)  That the Project plan be further developed for consideration at the next
meeting.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Member Engagement Manager introduc
Forward Work Programme of the Committee.

report to consider the

February 2014. The Director of Envir i i the North
Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project Joi held the
following week and until this meeting ha ce, he could not confirm
whether a report would be available to subm e meeting of this Committee
at if the report was to be
submitted, then it should be the o ion on the agenda for that
meeting and that there would be rmation that would be
available for Member: iew prio eeting. The report on
Streetscene — next > available due to the forthcoming

organisational res ' on C Roads could be deferred to a

ditional meeting be scheduled for April
were not unduly delayed and that the Member
this and the possibility of moving items from the 26
hair and Vice Chair.

\ ommented on the suggestion in the Williams Report to
merge Flintsh r ouncil and Wrexham County Borough Council (WCBC).
Councillor Nancy ews sought further information about the amount of debt
| (Private Finance Initiative) and what affect this had on the
project. She felt that this issue needed to be sorted before any decision was
made and added that there was a need to be prepared that this very important
project might not happen because of it. On the issue of the Williams Review, the
Director of Environment said that political discussions would take place at all
levels and until these had been undertaken, the Authority could only deal with the
information before it. He commented on the Inter Authority Agreement (IAA2)
which talked of the potential for a local government review and said that there
would be the opportunity to look at the document as the process progressed.

In response to a question from Councillor Matthews, the Member

Engagement Manager said that an item on Deeside Enterprise Zone could be
included in the Forward Work Programme. He also advised that the following had

Page 279



59.

been suggested by the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee as
items for consideration by this Committee:-

e Issue of changing legislation on local authorities responding to flood relief
¢ Responsibilities of a third Dee crossing, and its maintenance

Councillor Veronica Gay suggested that Natural Resources Wales be
asked to provide a presentation on their flood maintenance programme. The
Chairman indicated that this could form part of the item which was showing in the
‘items to be scheduled’ section. The Member Engagement Manager suggested
that the Facilitator liaise with the Chair and Vice-Chair to be authorised to vary the
programme between meetings. Following a discussion flood strategies for
evacuation of residents, the Chairman suggested that shop on the subject
be held for Members.

It had also been suggested earlier in th
Tourism in the County be submitted to a futur

further report on

RESOLVED:

(@)  That the Forward Work Programme d to reflect the discussion
which took place at the meeting; and

(b)  That the Facilitator, in cons ir and Vice-Chair be given
authority to alter the Forward C N een meetings.

MEMBERS OF TH : NDANCE

There was
attendance.

ss and no members of the public in

Chairman

Page 280



Agenda Iltem 14

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY 18 FEBRUARY 2014

REPORT BY: HEAD OF HOUSING

SUBJECT: HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  This report seeks approval from Cabinet for a Council Housing Asset
Management strategy. This document covers the period from 2014 to
2020; and will see the stock meet the WHQS at the end of that time.
Programmes of work will also be developed to ensure that the housing
stock is able to meet the changing needs of the population and has a
sustainable future; meeting issues identified through Welfare reform
and household income pressures. The strategy will see the creation of
20 apprenticeships and 200 local jobs. In addition, the strategy
considers legislative responsibilities that need to be met and how the
strategy can support delivery of the Council's Improvement Plan
objectives particularly around the alleviation of fuel poverty.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  Flintshire County Council, like all other Welsh social landlords, is
required to comply with WHQS by the year 2020. The Council has
agreed a business plan with Welsh Government to meet this target.
Extensive work has been undertaken following the housing ballot to
reduce costs and identify efficiencies and income generation options,
to maximise the investment resources available.

2.02 The draft Asset Management Strategy has three key goals;
e To achieve the WHQS by 2020
¢ To make the most efficient and effective use of funds available
e To maximise job creation and training opportunities for local
people.

2.03 The draft strategy is based on the levels of funding available through
the Major Repairs Allowance (MRA), Capitalised Expenditure from the
Revenue Account (CERA), and contributions from sales of housing
land and properties. The investment strategy is currently based upon
the latest projections arising from resources within the existing
subsidy system. The revised business plan requires an expenditure of
circa £103 million to be incurred over a 7 year period to achieve

Page 281



2.04

2.05

2.06

3.00

3.01

3.02

WHQS. Currently, the Council can provide funds of circa £12 million
per annum and this will need to rise to £15 million per annum in the
last few years of the investment plan to fully achieve the standard by
2020. This gap could be met either by limited prudential borrowing or
further income maximisation or serve cost efficiencies (other than
those identified in the current business plan).

The Council commissioned a comprehensive Stock Condition Survey
(SCS) in 2007, which was updated in 2011 for the ballot purposes. A
25% representative sample of the whole stock formed the basis of the
survey. A new SCS is currently being undertaken, to provide an
additional 10% representative sample, and the remaining 65% of the
stock will be surveyed externally. This will provide the Council the
opportunity to confirm or adjust its business plan to achieve WHQS by
2020.

The current delivery plan, as approved by cabinet and following tenant
consultation, consists mainly of internal elements of work such as
kitchens, bathrooms, heating and smoke alarms. The new delivery
plan is required to consider completion of these elements and in
addition new work streams including further internal works; Envelope
treatments, (see 3.02); External and Environmental work programmes
(to fully meet the WHQS).

The Asset Management Strategy also describes the need to address
other important factors such as, energy efficiency, estate re-modelling,
regeneration and actions to aid the management of Anti Social
Behaviour and the impacts of Welfare Reform.

CONSIDERATIONS

The Asset management team are formulating ideas around working in
broader geographical areas, (perhaps estate by estate), in lieu of the
current system of working in many ward areas each year and only
completing one or two streets within those areas.

In addition the range of work streams now needs to be extended to
achieve all the investment needs by 2020.

The four main work stream requirements can be clustered as follows:

» Internal work — Kitchens, Bathrooms, Heating, Re-wires,
Smoke Alarms etc.

» Envelope works — Roofing, Chimney work, Roofline works
(Gutters, fascias etc), Windows / Doors, Re-pointing / re-
rendering etc.

» External works — Fencing, Paths etc

» Environmental works — Estate wide projects to include off street
parking and larger environmental projects.

Page 282



3.03

3.04

3.05

4.00

4.01

The Council will be looking at the potential cost savings of grouping
elements together within a work stream, such as kitchens and
bathrooms being completed at the same time (whole house). This
approach is different from the existing method used, (individual
elemental approach). This would achieve potential cost savings
against both contractor and council contract management costs. This
is because the council would be administering a smaller number of
projects as opposed to managing a large number of contracts at the
same time.

The Council will be tackling area specific issues and projects in the
Asset Management Strategy through its Environmental schemes.
Consultations will be required with Tenant groups, Members and other
stakeholders to identify issues and solutions in specific areas and
wards.

In addition the investment programme can be utilised to address
housing management issues such as design issues which exacerbate
ASB, or stock which needs to be changed to deal with issues such as
Welfare reform or the changing needs of the local population.

The Asset Management Strategy aims to continue providing job
creation and other community gain through the expenditure of the
WHQS programme, (supporting the Welsh Government objective to
maximise community benefit though investment programmes). The
council is developing an ambitious goal to provide 200 local jobs and
20 apprenticeship schemes through its commitment to spend circa
£100 million over all the streams of work to achieve WHQS during
2014-2020.

To help achieve this aim, the council will adopt the i2i model
(developed by the Chartered Institute of Housing) within contracts for
targeted recruitment and training and will be monitored through the
Community Benefits Toolkit supplied by WG.

It is the intention to work closely with other organisations namely
Coleg Cambria, Job Centre Plus, the CIH and other councils with
similar investment programmes to pursue the option of developing a
local training/jobs “Academy” to facilitate and manage the placement
and training of individuals on apprenticeship schemes.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet is asked to

e Approve the Asset Management strategy attached to this report
as Appendix 1

e Agree and support the detailed consultation work needed with
local councillors and tenants during the Spring and Summer of
2014 to produce an investment plan to achieve WHQS for each
of the programme years up to 2020.

Page 283



4.02

5.00

5.01

5.02

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

e Cabinet is asked to note that 14/15 programme will continue as
previously agreed.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The HRA business plan allows for the full costs to achieve WHQS by
2020 with some further efficiencies and/or some prudential borrowing.
The plan also allows for 6% costs to manage and deliver the work
streams. Current costs are circa 3%.

The 2014/15 HRA budget proposes savings and efficiencies of £1.1m
against service improvement costs of £0.5M. This supports an
increased revenue contribution to the Capital programme of £0.7m
over 13/14 and demonstrates that the council is stretching capacity in
the HRA each year to maximise the investment programme. This
approach will continue.

The results of the stock condition survey may have a financial
implication on the costs to achieve WHQS by 2020, though this is not
expected to have either a negative or significant impact.

The current pan assumes that MRA will continue to be provided un
changed post exit from the HRA. Should this not be the case this
could have a detrimental impact on the resources available for
investment.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

There will be local job creation through these significant investment
programmes. Work streams to improve the housing stock provide a
direct benefit to the lives and living conditions for some of the poorest
Flintshire residents.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

The agreed approach will have impact on the external environment of
all areas affecting both the aesthetics of the landscape.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

A large percentage of the housing stock is allocated to older people,
therefore, the proposals in this paper will have an impact on this
customer group.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

A small number of additional staff members will be needed to deliver
the programme as investment levels and work stream areas increase.

Page 284



9.02

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

These have been accounted for in the management fees to deliver the
project as a whole, and agreed with Welsh Government.

In addition, the investment programme will create 200 local jobs and
20 apprentices.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

The Asset management team will complete a consultation programme
with elected members, tenants and other stakeholders to develop a
revised investment plan commencing in April 2015.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Scrutiny committee considered the draft Asset Management strategy
at its January meeting and welcomed the strategy and the plans to
achieve WHQS by 2020 and create local jobs. The committee were
broadly in support of all internal elements being completed together as
long as the service was sensitive to the needs of vulnerable tenants
and made provision for this. There was unanimous support that all
envelope works should be done as a single work programme. Finally,
there was a recommendation that officers draw up the draft
investment plans on the basis of stock condition data and with the
principles of equitable investment streams in mind and bring this to
members for final consideration/approval.

A Tenants conference in January considered the draft strategy and
investment plan proposals and those attending were broadly
supportive of the suggested approach, with similar issues raised to
those of scrutiny committee.

APPENDICES

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020).

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None

Contact Officer:  Tony Jones
Telephone: 01352 701650
Email: tony.jones@flintshire.qov.uk

Page 285



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 286



Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

CYNGOR

T i Y Filint
“* Hlintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Community Services Directorate
Housing Services
Housing Asset Management Strategy

2014-2020

Last Review: 16/12/2013 Housing Asset Management

Next Review Date: 14/12/2014 Housing Asset Management Meeting

fage }287



Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

(010 O 1 =] S 2

0.0 EXecutive SUMMArY ...cciiiiiiiiiiinnnneeiiiiiieccssssssesssnssssssssssssssscccscnns 3
RO TR [+ o T 18Tt o o 5
2.0 Aimof the Strategy ...ccceeeeeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiissesesssssssssssscccscssssssnsnsnns 6
K T80 T -1 3 - T o -3 7
4.0  PrOMiSES ceviiiiiinetiieiiennetiesienssteesesesssecssssssssscssssssssssssssssssssssnnnns 7
5.0 Customer INVolvemeNnt ......ciiiiiiiniiiiiiiinniiiiiiinsrieccssensssecsssnsssscssnns 8
6.0  ASSEt Profile c..cccviuiiiiiniiiiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiintiiiiniennns 9
7.0 Sustainability cccceeeiiiiiiiiininiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiereeetettttteeettttannnns 14
8.0 Neighbourhoods ....ccciiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeesssnnnnnnssasssssscccccns 22
9.0 Financial Investment .....ccciviiiiiiiinniiiiiiintiiciisinsectcsssnsssscssnnnsees 23
10.0 DEIIVEIY ciiiiiiiiiieititiieeeeeeeesnnsnnsnnsnnsssssssseccessssssssssssnnnnnnnns 25

Pag!e 2’2858



Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Asset Management Strategy sets out Flintshire County Council’s plan for
maintaining its housing stock, taking into account the investment needs of homes
across the County and the money available for improvements.

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

The Council commissioned a comprehensive Stock Condition Survey (SCS) in 2007,
updated 2011 for the ballot purposes. A 25% representative sample of the whole
stock formed the basis of the survey. A new SCS is currently being undertaken over
the winter months to provide an additional 10% representative sample of the whole
properties and the remaining 65% of the stock will be surveyed externally. This will
provide the Council with the opportunity to confirm or adjust their business plan to
achieve WHQS by 2020.

Current estimates indicate that it will cost £103 million to bring all homes up to
the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS). Traditional funding arrangements will
give £86 million to invest leaving a current shortfall of £17 million. The Council
will meet the WHQS by 2020 with either some form of prudential borrowing or
further cost efficiencies and/or extended income generation.

The original strategy included a six-year plan showing how and where the available
financial resources would be used to repair and improve the stock and contribute
towards achieving the WHQS to ensure that the stock is effectively managed and
well maintained.

The original plan will be completely overhauled after the results of the new SCS
are reviewed and a new seven year plan will be formulated to achieve WHQS over
the period 2014-2020. The Council will review the level of resources required to
deliver the new seven year plan and will ensure that adequate resources will be
made available to deliver the programme of works.

The new seven year plan will have to encompass other work streams beside the
Kitchens, Bathrooms, Heating and Smoke Alarm projects currently being
undertaken. Other work streams such as Window/Door replacements; Roof line
works; Re-roofing; Re-pointing / Rendering; Paths and Fencing; environmental
projects will have to be addressed to upgrade properties to the WHQS.

A new approach will be required to ensure coverage of all workstreams, ensuring
the Council maximises the finances that are available. Items that need to be
considered are; whole house approach to Internal workstreams (e.g. Kitchens and
bathrooms together); Re-evaluate geographical areas for various workstreams
instead of pepper potting as at present; Re-consider choice and size of
Contractors, including Housing Asset Management’s in house team working on some
Capital Works projects. The Councils new approach will be developed after various
consultation exercises have been completed with Tenants Federation and local
Members.

fage '1289



Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

Consideration will be given to the local labour market, through the Welsh
Governments i2i initiative, ensuring where funds incurred on WHQS expenditure
will be kept in the local economy wherever possible. The Council aims to produce
opportunity for local SME’s tendering directly for various work streams and larger
contractors are encouraged to employ the local SME contractors on the larger
projects. The Council aims to provide 200 local jobs and 20 apprenticeship
schemes through their commitment of spending circa £100 million over all the
streams of work to help achieve WHQS during 2014-2020.

The Authority has a housing stock as at December 2013 of 7,417 (including
maisonettes not yet demolished), 1766 garages and 94 homes in which the Council
has a leasehold interest. The Council needs to implement an Asset Management
Strategy to ensure that its stock meets the WHQS, within the cost constraints
available and the needs and aspirations of its tenants now and in the future.

The strategy is based on the levels of funding available through the Major Repairs
Allowance (MRA), Capitalised Expenditure from the Revenue Account (CERA),
contributions from sales of housing land and properties. The overall investment
strategy therefore is based upon the latest projections arising from resources
within the existing subsidy system.

Over 59% of the Councils housing stock is houses in the form of detached, semi-
detached and terraced homes; the remaining 41% of the stock consists of
bungalows, flats and maisonettes. 46% of the stock was built between the years
1945 and 1965. There are a total of 346 non traditional dwellings, of which 270
(6.4%) of the stock are concentrated in the Flint area in the form of concrete high
rise flats and maisonettes.

The Flint Regeneration scheme will provide an opportunity for the Council to
review its housing stock within the regeneration area. A major consideration is the
structural condition of the Maisonettes, in particular the Lea’s and the Walks
Maisonettes In the light of the recommendations by Adams Structural Consulting
Engineers who undertook a recent structural survey, decisions have been taken to
demolish the Lea’s and The Walks Maisonettes and working collaboratively with
Local Housing providers to redevelop the area providing a mixture of housing to
meet today’s demographic trends. As a consequence, there will only be 270 non
traditional properties left in Flint in the high rises.

The Councils Asset Management Strategy has been re-aligned to accommodate
Welsh Governments initiative, ensuring all Welsh social housing providers achieve
WHQS by 2020. The strategy has also been re-aligned to accommodate the Tenants
overwhelming decision in the recent Ballot, voting against stock transfer in May
2012 and retaining the stock within the Council.

There are many challenges ahead due to the unstable economic situation and
constant changes in legislation. All these challenges will be addressed as they
appear and the Asset Management Strategy will be constantly updated to reflect
any new issues that the Council is presented with.

Pag!e 2950



Slry Fflint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020)

F

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1  What is Asset Management?

“This is the activity that ensures that the land and buildings asset of an Authority
is optimally structured in the best corporate interest of the Authority concerned”
(Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors)

The Council understands asset management to be a technique for managing its
stock and investment to maximise the utilisation of its land and property assets. It
requires careful management of the Authority’s stock portfolio to benefit present
and future tenants, including:

» Maintaining accurate and up to date information on the condition and
sustainability of all properties to enable considered management decisions
to be made.

» Reinvesting in dwellings and other properties in the right way and at the
right time through Capital Works and routine maintenance programmes.

» Disposing of or redevelopment of dwellings/garages that are uneconomic to
maintain and/or which no longer meet the Councils strategic objectives.

» The Housing Service Priorities seek to ensure that over the next 7 years, all
our Houses will be refurbished to the WHQS. Working with the private
sector, Central Government and the Welsh Government in embracing new
initiatives and attracting the maximum available funding.

1.2  Why have an Asset Management Strategy

Local Authorities have a number of statutory and non statutory responsibilities in
relation to housing. There is a responsibility to make sure that the Councils
resources are used in the most effective way making sure they accord with their
tenant’s aspirations and provide good value for money; incorporating robust yet
flexible financial models and integrating these with the Housing Revenue Account
(HRA) business plan.

This Asset Management Strategy is a live document and will be subject to an
annual review incorporating any significant changes impacting over the previous
year.

fage '1291



Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

2.0 AIM OF THE STRATEGY

2.1 What are we trying to achieve

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

The Authority has a limited budget to reinvest into its housing stock. The Councils
Housing Investment plan 2014/20 is committed to invest in a series of
improvement Capital Works to meet statutory objectives and to reflect tenant
expectation and aspirations.

A £103 million pound investment, spread out over 7 years, is required to provide
home improvements that reflect tenant key priorities and achieving the WHQS.

2.2 Current Position against these objectives

Recent investment levels of approximately £10m spent annually have primarily
concentrated on the original 6 year plan including packages of improvements that
have included new heating installations, fitting of hard wired smoke detectors,
bathroom replacements and kitchen replacements.

These packages of work have been completed over the financial years 2012/13 and
2013/14 and formed the first 2 years of the original 6 year plan.

2.3 How will we achieve our goals?

The remaining works from the 6 year plan will be integrated into a new 7 year plan
to achieve WHQS from 2014 to 2020. This new plan will be developed from the
results taken from the new Stock Condition Survey.

Procuring the works in partnership with other housing providers, local Authorities
and utilising partnership procurement methods such as the North Wales
Procurement Partnership, (NWPP), London Housing Consortium (LHC), Procure Plus
or Fusion 21 Framework Agreements will ensure on going gains in efficiency and
value for money.

2.4 How will we affect Local Employment?

The Council is committed to providing local jobs for the local community through
its expenditure of funds spent on WHQS work. The Council aims to produce
opportunity for local SME’s tendering directly for various work streams and larger
contractors are encouraged to employ the local SME contractors on the larger
projects.

The Council aims to provide 200 local jobs and 20 apprenticeship schemes through
their commitment of spending circa £100 million over all the streams of work to
help achieve WHQS during 2014-2020. To help achieve this aim, the Council has
adopted the i2i model within contracts for Targeted Recruitment and Training and
will be monitored through the Community Benefits Toolkit supplied by WG. The

Pag!e 29}2



Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

200 local jobs shall be recruited and defined as - providing 2 persons per £1 million
contract value. Every vacancy on site including those with subcontractors, are to
be notified to the Council during the contract. The 20 apprenticeship schemes
shall be trained and defined as - 0.2 persons (or 11 person weeks) per £1 million
contract value.

3.0 STANDARDS

Government policy and statutory responsibility is an important context for the
delivery of our services. There are a variety of UK and European legislation as well
as national standards and regulations which impact upon our services. Some have
direct and indirect influence upon the way we manage our assets.

The Authority is legally obliged to maintain its properties up to an approved
standard identified in the Appendices & Statutory Guidance listed at the end of
this document. The key objective for the Council is for the housing stock to
conform to the WHQS within the given timescale.

3.1  Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) the Welsh Government (WG) is
committed to bringing all social housing up to the Welsh Housing Quality Standard
by 2020 and in 2002 the National Housing Strategy for Wales “Better Homes for
People in Wales” set out the Welsh Governments vision. That all households in
Wales shall have the opportunity to live in good quality homes which are:

Part 1 - In a good state of repair.

Part 2 - Safe and secure.

Part 3 - Adequately heated, fuel efficient and well insulated.

Part 4 - Equipped with up-to-date kitchens and bathrooms.

Part 5 - Well managed (for rented housing).

Part 6 - Located in safe and attractive environments.

Part 7 - As far as possible suited to the specific requirements of the
household.

YVVVYYY

A measurement of where the Council stock currently stands in relation to achieving
the WHQS. The Stock Condition Survey, which currently indicates 14 dwellings
meet the standard, including 12 dwellings at Glan-Y-Morfa, Connah’s Quay and a
further 10 dwellings at the same scheme that were included in 2011-2012 Capital
Works programme, extends the total number of dwellings meeting the standard to
24.

4.0 PROMISES

The Choices Document presented to customers and subsequently supported,
clearly set out comprehensive promises which are at the core of everything the
Council will focus on over the forthcoming years.

fage }293



Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

The Council will ensure the promises are delivered and in many areas this
document presently plans to exceed the promises laid out in the choices
document, in particular our achievement of the WHQS.

Delivery of the landlord capital improvement programme has outperformed the
targets set in the Choices document in 2012/13, through strong project
management and improved tender prices and is projected to emulate this in
2013/14. The programme itself has been stretched from £11m per annum in

10/11 to £12m in 13/14 and this is expected to increase to £13m per annum for
each of the next 7 years to achieve the WHQS by 2020.

HRA Capital programme 2012/13

» Heating upgrades- 600 homes planned- 1100 delivered
» Kitchen replacements- 922 planned-1100 delivered

» Smoke detectors- 884 planned- 2400 delivered

» Bathroom replacements- 56 planned- 62 delivered

HRA Capital programme 2013/14
» Heating upgrades- 600 homes promised- 1000 in programme
» Kitchen replacements - 922 promised- 1000 in programme

» Smoke detectors- 884 promised- 1000 in programme
» Bathroom replacements- 0 planned- 60 delivered

5.0 CUSTOMER INVOLVEMENT

5.1 Introduction

The Councils Resident Involvement Strategy and Action Plan have been developed
with Residents, Officers and Members working in partnership.

The Council will build on its long standing commitment to work closely with the
Flintshire Federation of Tenants and Residents Associations and will continue to
develop its relationship by consulting on the delivery of its housing services with
all residents and the federation.

The latest Tenants Winter Conference (2013) debated ideas around the new WHQS
delivery programme and the results of this will be analysed and utilised for the
new 7 year WHQS delivery programme.

In 2013 a STAR (Survey of Tenants and Residents) was carried out and asked
tenants a suite of questions. Over half of the tenants and residents felt that
parking was an issue in their neighbourhood. As such, it is necessary to carry out a
more detailed assessment of the requirement to improve parking in the Authority’s
neighbourhoods.

Pag!e ,2911



Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

To what extent are any of the

following a problem in your No Minor Major
neighbourhood? Problem problem Problem
Abandoned or burnt out Vehicle 97% 2% 1%
Racial or other harassment 93% 5% 2%
People damaging property 86% 10% 4%
Vandalism or graffiti 83% 13% 4%
Other Crime 82% 15% 3%
Drunk or Rowdy behaviour 76% 17% 6%
Drug use or Dealing 76% 14% 10%
Noise from traffic 74% 18% 7%
Noisy Neighbours 72% 18% 10%
Problems with pets / Animals 71% 20% 9%
Disruptive children / teenagers 66% 26% 8%
Rubbish or litter 54% 32% 14%
Dog Fouling / mess 46% 31% 23%
Car Parking 43% 26% 30%

> The biggest issues for residents are car parking with 56% finding this to be a
problem to some degree, dog fouling/mess 54% and rubbish/litter 46%.

» There is almost no problem with abandoned or burnt out vehicles or with
racial or other harassment.

5.2 Customer Information

The Tenant Involvement team are currently working with the Asset Management
team developing systems and procedures reviewing contract specifications prior to
inviting tenders. Part of this ongoing consultation process takes into account the
Tenant Involvement team’s comments as well as comments from the resident’s
satisfaction surveys from those who have had works carried out. This is done so
that the Asset Management Team continuously improves its performance.

6.0 ASSET PROFILE

6.1 Introduction

Flintshire is a County in the North East of Wales. It borders the Dee Estuary to the
North, Cheshire to the East, Wrexham to the South and Denbighshire to the West.
Flintshire County Council was formed by the amalgamation of Delyn Borough
Council and Alyn & Deeside District Council in the year 1996, covering over 168

fage }295



Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

square miles. The Council owns 7,417 (including maisonettes not yet demolished)
dwellings as at December 2013.

For the purpose of managing the stock, the County is divided into area’s North
(2533), South (2700) and East (2022), - less Maisonettes to be demolished in Flint
and Homes Shared Occupancy, with strategically located neighbourhood offices for
the purpose if service delivery.

The property portfolio covers a wide geographical area across the County. The
towns of Buckley, Connah’s Quay, Flint, Holywell and Mold have the greater
concentrations of stock, with smaller percentages located near to or within
villages around the County.

6.2 Property Type

The three most common property types are:

» Traditional properties, comprising of detached, semi-detached, terraced
bungalows and flats.

» Solid wall properties.

» Non-Traditional properties, Airey houses, Easi-form, Maisonettes and High
Rise flats.

Percentage of property types are:

Houses 4353 58.6%
Bungalows 1489 20.5%
Flats 1304 17.2%
Maisonettes 271 3.7%
Total 7417 100%
6.3 Age

There is a varied age within the stock which has been split into bands

Pre 1919 120 1.6%
1919-1944 884 11.9%
1945-1965 3458 46.6%
1965-1974 1817 24.6%
Post-1974 1137 15.3%
Total 7417 100%

Pag!elggjﬁ



Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

6.4 Non-Traditional Housing Stock

A key area of focus for stock investment decisions is in relation to the non-
traditional stock that the Council owns and a breakdown of this stock is shown in
the table below.

The non-traditional properties will have a significant impact upon the business plan
due to the structural repair requirements to ensure they have a meaningful future
life. In addition the properties have not always benefited from routine
improvement programmes.

Some of the existing non-traditional houses have already been repaired,
refurbished or their sites re-developed. A summary of these types and numbers are
as follows:

Airey Houses 35 1
Easiform Houses 74 74
Various Timber Houses | 5 1 (11 sunnyside)
Tower Blocks 3 Blocks,
270 Properties 264

Flint High-rise blocks and other non-traditional homes

The regeneration proposals for Flint town-centre do not include the three high-rise
blocks and these homes will remain.

These three blocks require a range of external repairs as well as internal
improvements to bring all three blocks and all the flats up to the WHQS. External
repairs include:

Comprehensive concrete repair programme

Renewal of the mastic in the panel joints and roof finishes

New insulated roof systems

Overhaul of glazing

Application of an over-cladding system to improve thermal performance and
provide weatherproofing.

VVVVYVY

The cost of this external work for all three high-rise blocks is circa £3.5 million. In
addition, other (non-energy related) improvements are required to individual flats
to bring them up to standard.

The measures needed to improve the flats would be suitable for utility company
funding. Estimates indicate that currently around £1.1million could be secured. It
is recommended that a watching brief is maintained to review any increases in
funding and if necessary insert the flats into the domestic energy efficiency work
programme. Funding may increase or decrease over time but is expected to be
available in some form and value for up to eight years.

fage '1297



CYNGOR

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) -Sir y Fflint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

It is recommended that heat metering is also introduced in each of the dwellings in
the flats so that heat usage and billing can be managed more effectively. This
would enable the heating costs to be removed from the current arrangement of
being included within the service charge. This should dramatically reduce heating
use by tenants reducing the Councils carbon footprint and creating more
comfortable and affordably warm homes.

Of the remaining non-traditional homes, 76 require structural improvements to
bring them up to standard and provide them with a thirty-year life. In addition, all
these homes require a range of internal improvements to bring them up to the
WHQS.

6.5 Flint Town Centre Regeneration Scheme

The plan for Flint is based around the following six strategic objectives:
Transform Flint’s physical image

Reconnection of Flint’s assets

Promote the town and it’s opportunities

To better serve the local people

Create economic growth through job creation

To embed Flint into a sub-regional tourism network

ODUTRANWN =

Pag!elgg?



Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

Following approval of the Masterplan and building on its work, a housing
development brief was commissioned for Flint. The significant footprint of the
existing maisonette blocks provides an opportunity to re-build nearly a quarter of
the original medieval planned town - with new houses and streets aligning more
sensitively to the original grid pattern. It is intended that the new build provision
within the redevelopment will provide between 173 and 180 units dependant upon
an agreed final layout. These will be made up of a mix of apartments, and 2 and 3
bedroom houses.

6.6 Deeside Centre Regeneration Scheme

Housing Asset Management are currently working with other Council services in a
joint initiative for WG’s Vibrant and Viable Places programme. If the Council are
successful with the bid then substantial programmes of work can be accelerated in
the Deeside area. The Councils bid aims to tackle long standing regeneration issues
associated with Deeside including aims to tackle traffic issues, regeneration of the
town centre and large scale environment schemes.

6.7 Sheltered Accommodation

The traditional warden support service has transformed into a Community Based
Accommodation Support Service. The support service is no longer linked to
tenure. There are some properties designated for the over 55 group which are not
suited for this group due to design, size, location or access making them low
demand properties and hard to let. There are changing expectations and
lifestyles of older people will impact on the provision required. The development
of a Community Based Accommodation Support Service enabling people to receive
support in their own home and the development of other options for older people
including Extra care may also affect demand for some sheltered properties.

Within its Housing Stock Portfolio, the Council has 55 sheltered schemes in various
mixes of bungalows, flat complexes and bed-sits, which consist of approximately

fage }299



Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

40% of the total stock. Some of which are difficult to let due to there being
insufficient bedroom space, lack of local services or amenities for the less mobile
and inappropriately located

Unsuitable sheltered blocks could be re-designated single persons or general needs
accommodation, the current occupiers being offered more suitable
accommodation.

The Welfare Reform Act and the 'bedroom tax’ have increased demand for one and
two bed properties for the under 55 age group. Consideration around changing the
designated age group for some of these properties will meet a specific housing
need, increase demand for properties and make best use of housing stock.

Aspects to consider are:

» Remodelling to address design/ASB issues.

» Consultation with both present and prospective residents and implement
their affordable aspirations.

» Scheme Remodelling - addition of bedrooms, Lift installation, conversion of
storage areas into mobility scooter storage/charging areas.

» Compliance with the Disability and the Equality Act 2010, in particular the
need to provide investment for the provision of low level access equipment,
ramps and accessible taps etc.

» Ensure that the recommendations of new Fire Risk Assessments
are completed.

At this strategic level there are many other influences including:

Future demographic trends - Single occupation, living longer

Rural transport availability - both present and future.

Availability of other local services - Care and Repair Service

Long term sustainability - “providing homes that meet a variety of needs
and lifestyles for now and into the future”

YV VYV

6.8 Leaseholders

The Council are currently responsible for 94 leasehold properties located within
the County.

Lease holders are fully consulted on any significant issues that might impinge on
their rightful use and access, as required under 520 notices. These leases have
been let historically on different agreements and present challenges to the Council
when refurbishing blocks. Issues such as window replacements, fire risks in
communal areas are just a few of these challenges.

6.9 Garage Sites

Garages are included within the Councils property portfolio. These are situated
around various locations of the County. Curtins report on the condition of Concrete

Pag!e 13050



Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

structures identified maintenance costs to the garage batteries/car parks located
near Bolingbrook and Castle Heights due to corrosion of the reinforcement causing
spalling of the concrete and work needs to be undertaken by a specialist
contractor to maintain their integrity.

Other garage sites across the County are pre-fabricated concrete panels with up
and over doors with an asbestos concrete sheet roof; some garage sites have
become so dilapidated that the only viable option available is demolition, as
demonstrated at Glynne Street, Connah’s Quay and Yowley Road, Ewloe.

The Housing Service is working in partnership with Valuation and Estates in order
to carry out a thorough review of its garage sites.

Site plans are in the process of being developed for the 104 council owned garage
sites. Once the plans have been produced, each site will be assessed to test its
suitability for the following:

» To remain as a garage site

» For demolition

» Housing development

» For other uses such as community garden, play area, parking etc.

The review will be completed by the Spring and will result in a Member Workshop;
participants will be invited to share their views on the development potential for
each of the sites in their ward.

The results of the consultation will influence a final set of recommendations to
Members in preparation for Scrutiny Committee in April 2014.

7.0  SUSTAINABILITY

7.0 Energy Efficiency in the Councils Stock

Significant work has been undertaken since 1997 to improve the housing stock.
Whilst there has been a steady rise in the number of homes meeting the minimum
WHQS heating standard of SAP 65 it has become obvious that there are big data
gaps concerning properties that fall short. The focus within the team addressing
energy improvements in the Housing Service shall be to develop sufficient
information to clearly identify what houses need what measures and at what cost
in order to comply with the WHQS standard. Improvement needs to be seen in
record keeping, stock profiling and in the operation and maintenance of the
technologies being introduced especially in off gas properties. The Council has
been nationally recognised for its work to improve the energy efficiency of its
stock and its focus on reducing tenant’s energy bills. In particular it has been
recognised for its work in combining owner occupied, private rented and Council
stock in programmes which is recognised as the way to deliver best value
programme for communities. Welfare reform has created a substantial challenge

fage 'JBOl



Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

to the Council but through providing energy efficient homes the Council has an
ability to respond swiftly and protect tenants whilst in the process supporting local
labour and suppliers in a developing market.

The £1.3billion a year made available through the latest energy company
obligation funding is a tool that the Council is using to achieve good value in its
programmes. This funding is expected to be around for at least eight years. This
provides the incentive to invest alongside the obligation of the WHQS commitment.

7.1 Statutory commitments

The WHQS dictates that every home must be adequately heated, fuel efficient and
well insulated. In addition there are a number of energy efficiency components,
including:

» Minimum SAP rating of 65 out of 100 must be achieved.

» Landlords should do whatever they reasonably can to minimise the cost of
heating dwellings to a comfortable level.

» All cost effective opportunities to upgrade the thermal and ventilation
performance of the dwelling must be taken.

» Heating systems must be reasonably economical to run and capable of
heating the whole of the dwelling to a comfortable level in normal weather
conditions.

» External doors and windows must be sufficiently well fitting so that they do

not cause severe draughts.

The main entrance door should not open directly into the living room.

The hot water tank must be effectively insulated.

Kitchens and bathrooms should have an adequate amount of mechanical

ventilation.

Y V VY

7.2 Affordable Warmth

Affordable warmth means that a household is able to afford to heat their home to
the level required for their comfort and health. Conversely, households that are
unable to afford adequate heating are said to be living in “fuel poverty”.

A widely used definition of fuel poverty states that households needing to spend
more than 10% of their income on fuel are classed as fuel poor and households
needing to spend more than 20% of the total income on fuel are classed as severely
fuel poor.

Adequate heating is generally accepted as achieving 21°C in the main living
room/lounge area and 18°C in all other parts of the house. The Welsh Government
remains committed to eradicating fuel poverty in all homes by 2018.

Affordable Warmth is the solution to fuel poverty. Fuel poverty occurs when
Households are considered by the Government to be in 'fuel poverty' if they would
have to spend more than 10% of their household income on fuel to keep their home

Pag!e@O}Z



Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

in a 'satisfactory' condition. Households needing to spend more than 20% of their
total income on fuel are classified as severely fuel poor.

It is a measure which compares income with what the fuel costs 'should be' rather
than what they actually are. Whether a household is in fuel poverty or not is
determined by the interaction of a number of factors, but the three obvious ones
are:

> The cost of energy.

> The energy efficiency of the property (and therefore, the energy required to
heat and power the home)

> Household income.

7.3  SAP Rating

A stock condition survey was carried out in 2007 which gave an estimated average
SAP rating of 67.9. which is within the WHQS requirement, however, the
installation of fuel efficient boilers and other measures such as fuel switching from
electric heating to gas and increased loft and cavity insulation, will help to
increase the SAP rating further.

Whilst the heating replacement programme is progressing this may not be enough
in some properties to lift them above the minimum SAP rating of 65. Properties
with solid walls or in off gas areas for example may need additional investment.
The diversification of the programme for the next three years reflects this.
However, the first step is to identify the stock that falls below the 65 level and
identify the measures and respective cost that are needed for full compliance. A
warm and comfortable home is a right of all tenants but a lot of tenants put up
with homes that are cold or draughty. Time will be spent updating and reviewing
records and proactively looking for these hard to treat homes.

For the last few years, the Corporate Energy Unit has been estimating the SAP
rating of Council properties based on the numbers of properties receiving loft &
cavity wall insulation and heating improvements as a key performance indicator. It
is recommended that this function is brought back in to the Housing Service since,
with the improved record keeping that is being recommended, understanding the
current profile of the housing stock and having sufficient control to improve it
should be a core activity of the Housing Service.

7.4 Loft and Cavity Wall Insulation

The energy unit has had a budget since 2000 for installing loft and cavity wall
insulation, and as of 2011/2012, nearly all suitable cavity walls have been
insulated and nearly all suitable lofts have now been topped up to 250-300mm.)
Properties where tenants have previously refused or where there was incomplete
information in the database are being completed where possible. There are also a
few properties where outstanding repairs work must be completed before
insulation can be installed.

fage 'JBO3



Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

Funding has historically been available through the Energy Efficiency Commitment
and Carbon Emission Reduction Target utility funding schemes to help subsidise
this work. The priority now is to identify properties that haven’t had the insulation
installed properly and so aren’t seeing the full benefit of the improvement. Whilst
the numbers of these properties are few it is necessary to do this work since in
some instances bad installation can lead to structural issues with the property
including damp and mould growth.

7.5 Hard to treat cavities / Gas infill projects.

These cavities are still being defined by Ofgem but currently include damp cavities
or cavities that are less than 499mm thick. Whilst consultation into the definition of
these cavities is still ongoing there is significant funding allocated for their
remediation and whilst this funding is available it is worth the Council allocating
resource to coordinate an installation programme.

Additionally, there were approximately 418 ‘infill’ fuel switches from oil, solid
fuel, and mainly electric storage heaters to gas between 1997 and 2010, and the
remaining circa 900 properties should be completed in 2013/17. Gas infill refers
to properties that are near to the gas main but use a more expensive and more
carbon intensive fuel. CESP funding of up to £1805 per property is available during
2011/12 available for gas installation for gas infill projects, and the home energy
conservation officer and capital works are taking advantage of this for current and
future projects.

As energy efficiency, fuel poverty, and carbon reduction measures have been
Government priorities for many years, consequently there are funding sources
available to assist social landlords in making energy efficiency improvements to
their stock. A significant amount of funding (exact figure has been well over
£300,000) has been brought in through the Home Energy Efficiency Scheme.
Understanding and obtaining the different types of funding available requires a
close partnership working between the Home Energy Conservation Officer and the
Asset Management team.

7.6  Solid Wall Insulation/Non-Traditional Housing

Around 825 Council properties are either solid walled or must be treated as solid
walled due to having cavities unsuitable for insulation. These properties,
particularly the semidetached and terraced houses, and those in off-gas areas have
some of the lowest SAP ratings in the stock. It is highly unlikely that a solid walled
property will meet WHQS without being insulated (or achieve a SAP rating of 65).

473 of the 825 solid walled properties are the high-rise flats and maisonettes in
Flint. This leaves 352 properties that are either solid walled or otherwise
unsuitable for cavity wall insulation. Currently the SAP rating of these properties
varies from 50 to 60. 123 of these have now been insulated in Holywell, Connahs

Pag!e 1§Ojl



Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

Quay and Dee Cottages in Flint, with the remaining properties being insulated in
two phases from 2015/16 onwards.

These properties have been improved from an average SAP rating of 57, below the
WHQS minimum, to an average of 67. The lowest SAP rating after installing
insulation is 66 whilst the maximum is 70. All of these properties therefore now
meet the WHQS minimum energy efficiency standards.

Savings to tenants’ bills from these schemes average £252 annually based on
current costs, with total annual savings of £24,873 and an anticipated lifetime CO2
reduction of 2,539 tonnes. As a result the tenants’ risk of fuel poverty has been
significantly reduced.

The Council has secured added value through the service’s continued success in
levering in grant funding through the Welsh Government and Utility Company
funding.

7.7 Ventilation strategy

It is important to consider ventilation alongside the installation of solid wall
insulation. When solid wall insulation is applied, either internally or externally, it
affects the breathability of the property and so moisture from within the property
needs to be able to get out. One option of many is to install mechanical heat
ventilation systems which pump out air much like an extractor fan but recycle up
to 75% of the heat in that air. These products are already being installed as part of
the kitchen and bathroom programme. When a property is considered for
improvements ventilation is one aspect of a complex survey that is carried out nut
provision within programme budgets needs to be made.

7.8 Renewable Energy

The following renewable micro generation systems have been installed in Council
housing since 2007:

21 Ground Source heat pumps (Cilcain and Caerwys).

2 Air Source Heat Pumps (Trelawnyd and Cymau).

61 solar thermal hot water heating systems (Trelawnyd, Shotton).

182 Solar Photovoltaic (PV) Electric Panels Installed & Connected To the
National Grid at Greenfield & Bagillt

YV VYV

The properties selected for heat pump installations and the first solar thermal
installation in Trelawnyd were chosen primarily due to their position off the gas
main (oil-fired central heating that is more expensive than gas and experienced
significant price spikes in 2008 which left many with difficulty paying for
deliveries) and their suitability for the installations.

fage '1805



Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

In Higher Shotton, area-specific CESP and Arbed Phase 1 funding was secured for
the installation of solar thermal systems in FCC properties to further reduce energy
bills in the homes being improved.

In Greenfield, CESP funding has been secured to subsidise photovoltaic
installations. In both Bagillt and Greenfield, the schemes qualify for feed in tariff
income.

In the future more work will be done in areas not on the gas network. This means
that other low carbon ways of heating homes will have to be considered. The
energy programme reflects this move and shows increasing investment in heat
pumps and other renewable technologies over the next three years.

The properties improved with these systems were selected primarily due to their
position off the gas main (oil fired central heating which is more expensive than
gas and the fuel subject to unpredictable price increases) and their suitability for
the installations.

PV systems have an advantage to both tenant and the Council, the tenant receives
a reduction of approximately £150 saving per annum on their electricity bill and
the Council will receive a feed in tariff of approximately £1500 to £2000 for each
registered property per annum for the next 25 years.

7.9 Funding Future Works

The Welsh Government estimates that over £10billion is available for investment in
the Welsh Housing Stock for energy efficiency retrofitting over the next decade.
Annually £1.3billion is available across the UK through the Energy Company
Obligation (ECO). However, the fact that there are no geographical restrictions on
how this money needs to be spent provides a threat as well as an opportunity. This
is the warning issued by the WLGA who recognise that organisations in Wales will
need to work hard to secure a fair share.

Accessing the funding is a complex process and carefully considered strategies are
the only way to prevent higher levels of investment and benefits accumulating
elsewhere in the UK.

The service has developed a strategic programme that supports both the Councils
commitments and national commitments to reduce climate change, help eradicate
fuel poverty and boost economic development and regeneration in Flintshire and
Wales.

In 2012/13 the Council delivered energy efficiency measures to 587 homes securing
sufficient external finance to exceed the Authority’s invest to save ratio of £1
spent for every £5 saved. This achieved average annual heating bill savings of £308
per property or £181,080 annually over all.

Pag!eﬁOjB



Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) Sir y Fflint
-y, .
Flintshire
Over the last 16 years over 41,079 measures have been installed in Council homes

with over £7million being secured in the last few years alone to finance them. This
has resulted in current heating bill savings of over £2.3million.

Over this period the average saving per measure is just over £58 reflecting the
availability of lower cost installations and in particular low energy light bulbs. In
the last five years the move to more expensive but more effective measures has
yielded an average annual heating bill saving per measure of £244.

When considered with the work in privately owned homes and private rented
sector just under £100million in energy bill savings has been achieved over the 16
year period. This is money that is now available to homeowners and tenants
instead of being committed on energy bills or, in the case of the fuel poor, it is
money they don’t have to find to adequately heat their home.

Progress so far:

Estimated

lifetime Current

carbon estimated Income
Measure 1997 to | Average | emission annual generator

2013 per savings heating (FIT / RHI)
year (tonnes) | bill savings
(£)

Roof Insulation 5,147 322 18,272 257,350
Cavity Wall 4,032 | 252 56,448 | 544,320
Insulation
Hot Water Tank 381 24 777 17,145
Insulation
>olid wall 123 8 5,843 60,270
insulation
Double Glazing 2,709 170 36,842 460,530
Door & Window
Draught Stripping 782 49 3,597 43,010
Boiler Replacement
(Standard) 1,175 74 5,523 31,725
Boiler
Replacement/New |, 504 | 149 23,584 | 504,225
Central Heating -
Gas Condensing
Fuel switch to gas 74 5 1776 27,750
Low Energy Lights 23,422 1,464 60,897 351,330
Mechanical heat 700 44 74 38,500 v

fage 'JBO?




CYNGOR

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) Sir y Fflint

Ay ., .
Flintshire

ventilation

recovery

Ground Source 21 672 6,090 v

Heat Pumps

Air Source Heat 9 64 2,610 v

Pumps

Photo-Voltaics (PV) 187 12 5,460 37,400 v

Solar thermal 76 362 4,180 v

Total 41,079 | 2,566 220,191 2,386,435

What are we doing next:

Note: Only three years ahead planned reflecting the current national UK grant

funding timeframe.

Anticipated
lifetime Anticipated
carbon annual Income
Measures 2013- | 2014- | 2015- | emission | heating bill | generator
2014 | 2015 | 2016 | savings | savings (£) | (FIT / RHI)
(tonnes)
Roof Insulation 80 50 50 639 9,000
Cavity Wall 20 | 20 | 20 840 8,400
Insulation
Solid wall 15 | 150 | 150 | 14,725 | 147,250
insulation
Door & Window 0o | 200 | 200 | 1,840 22,000
Draught Stripping
Boiler
Replacement/New
Central Heating - 55 50 50 2,232 46,500
Gas Condensing
Fuel switch to gas 250 50 50 8,400 131,250
Mechanical heat
ventilation 700 700 | 700 2,520 115,500 v
recovery
Ground Source 0 0 0 0 0 v
Heat Pumps
’;" Source Heat 20 | 30 | 50 3,200 29,000 v
umps
Photo-Voltaics (PV) 0 30 50 2,400 16,000 v
Solar thermal 0 20 50 403 3850 v
Total 1,140 1’30 1’37 37,199 | 528,750

Pag!eng!JB




Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

8.0 NEIGHBOURHOODS

Demand for Council properties will have an important influence on any decision
the Authority may take to invest in its stock. The demand profile obtained from
analysis of the stock will form an important data source for the purpose of
potential investment/non-investment decisions.

Although the majority of the Councils stock is popular, there are a number of unit
types that suffer from low demand. The majority of these are in hard to let
properties such as sheltered bedsits or where properties are in unpopular
locations/estates.

Historically blocks such as Coppa View and Alyn Meadow have suffered from low
demand, but initiatives to make the schemes more attractive have now resulted in
both these blocks being fully let. Additionally the impact of Welfare Reform has
increased demand for smaller properties such as bedsits which were originally in
less demand.

The types of properties which now prove to be a challenge to let are 2+ bedroom
flats which are above ground floor. This is because the Council avoids letting
properties above ground floor to families with children. Previously the Authority
would have been in a position to let these types of properties to single applicants
or couples, but the impact of welfare reform has meant that many applicants now
would not be able to afford these properties.

It is therefore proposed that a proportion of these properties be assessed for
feasibility to re-configure the layout from two bedrooms to one bedroom, or three
bedrooms to two.

Some demand issues can be addressed through consideration of amending
allocations criteria such as re-designation of sheltered accommodation.

Sustainability is not just about letting properties, the rate of turnover also needs
to be considered. Some works to reconfigure properties, such as Glan-Y-Morfa
Court have already been carried out, and this has proven to be successful, both in
terms of increasing demand, but also in reducing turnover.

The following are proposals made by the area housing teams based on their
experience in managing the housing stock in recent years;

Off street parking and pedestrian access issues.

Security - improved lighting schemes.

Kitchens - A number of properties have very small kitchens that would
welcome extensions if funding permitted.

Provision of Lifts - on certain blocks where access to upper floors is a
problem.

>
>
>
>

fage '1809



Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

» Consideration of reconfiguration of some family houses to one bed flats.
» Concerns over lack of single person accommodation.

The demand for housing can be banded into High, Medium and Low. The major
conurbations being of higher demand down to the more rural areas in the low
demand banding. The current data shows the demand in each category as follows:

High Demand 46.77% of the housing stock
Medium Demand 37.80% of the housing stock
Low Demand 15.42% of the housing stock

8.1 Built Environment for Sustainable Neighbourhoods

“Sustainable Development is based on the idea that the quality of people’s

lives, and the state of our communities, is affected by a combination of

economic social and environmental factors. It challenges single-issue

thinking, as people do not see their quality of life in terms of ‘a good
environment’, a thriving economy’ or ‘social equality’. It is about all of these
things and more. By understanding the links between the environment, the
economy and equality it is possible to develop integrated lasting solutions, based
on harmony”. Flintshire Housing Strategy 2012-2017

9.0 FINANCIAL INVESTMENT

9.1  Annual Budget for WHQS works and other planned maintenance to 2020

A strict interpretation of the data arising from the current level of surveys of
WHQS works and planned maintenance needs over the next 7 years indicates an
annual budget requirement in the order of £15m per year including fees and VAT
but excluding inflation costs.

9.2 Asset Management Plan 2014/2020

The financial plan looks at the resources required to meet the expenditure on our
properties over the next 7 years. This includes expenditure on:

Responsive repairs (including voids).

Gas servicing.

Cyclical painting and repairs.

Reinvestment including meeting and keeping the WHQS.

Based on stock condition information of the properties, currently 24
dwellings of the Councils stock comply with the WHQS. To meet the
requirements of WHQS the financial plan will include the initial capital
expenditure required to meet the standard, but will also include the
required expenditure to maintain the WHQS standard.

The highest cost components requiring replacements (excluding VAT, fees and
excluding inflation) over the next seven years are:

VVVVY

Pag!ezall})



Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

Components Current Remedial Costs
(excl VAT & Fees)
Kitchens/Bathrooms/Heating £51.1m
Roofs £10.5m
Doors and Windows £4.2m
Building Structure £5.3m
External Works £ 8.8m
Off Gas provisions £5.0m
Asbestos £5.5m
Environmental £7.4m
Fees £5.8m
Circa Total £103.6

9.4 Financial Resources

The Council will, as part of the business planning/budget setting process, make
available financial resources to deliver approved Asset Management Plans. Where a
decision to divest in properties is the preferred option (sale) any financial benefit
from the sale will be ring fenced (where legislation allows) for reinvestment into
the remaining stock.

For the 7 year period commencing April 2014, the Authority has identified an
investment need (based on stock condition information) of £103, which equates to
an annual investment need of £15m including works to the high rise flats and
demolition of the maisonettes in Flint and excluding £31m for responsive and void
repairs.

The Council through its budget planning process will set aside sums to deliver the
approved Capital Works Programme. Where there is a shortfall during any year,
between resources allocated and those required, the Council will investigate other
possible sources of funding.

Current spending of the housing stock includes:

» Routine repairs and general day to day maintenance. This includes reactive
repairs, works to empty homes prior to reletting, annual servicing of
electrical, gas equipment and other cyclical work such as external painting.
Annual investment amounts to approximately £7.9 million per annum on this
type of work.

» Major improvement works; Major improvement works are carried out when
component parts of a dwelling need to be replaced.

» A programme of improvements is decided upon using the data extracted
from the stock condition survey, Officers and Members local knowledge.
The annual spending is currently approximately £12 million pounds.

fage}%li



Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

The Housing Asset Management Strategy is a live document and will be updated on
a regular basis to reflect changes in legislation and funding, this will usually be
annually.

10.0 DELIVERY

The Council is currently in year 2 of the original 6 year pre-ballot WHQS delivery
programme. It is the intention to continue with year 3 of this original programme
while considerations are given to the information that will be gathered from the
current Stock Condition Survey. The Council will then formulate a new 7 year plan
(from 2014 to 2020) showing what works will be completed in each year and in
which areas of the County.

To date, the Councils original 6 year plan concentrates primarily on the Internal
workstreams of the delivery programme, as supported by the tenants. The Council
has to complete work to the following 4 workstreams (consisting of individual
elements) to comply with the WHQS;
> Internal workstreams - Kitchens, Bathrooms, Heating, Re-wires, Smoke
Alarms etc.
> Envelope workstreams - Roofing, Chimney work, Roofline works (Gutters,
fascias etc), Windows / Doors, Re-pointing / re-rendering etc.
» External workstreams - Fencing, Paths etc
» Environmental workstreams - Estate wide projects to include off street
parking and larger environmental projects.

The Council will be looking at the potential cost savings of grouping elements
together within a workstream, such as kitchens and bathrooms being completed at
the same time. The advantage of this is less contractor management costs and less
management costs trying to effectively administer those contracts. If the Council
were to maintain all individual elements as single contracts and tried to complete
all those individual elements within the 7 years, then the Councils management
costs would not be viable within the business plan. Currently the business plan has
an allowance of 6% management fees; if all individual element approach were
adopted then fees could be as high as 15%. This could potentially cost another £9
million in management fees alone over the 7 year period.

The Council will also be formulating new ideas around geographical areas in lieu of
the current system of working in almost every ward area each year and only
completing one or two streets within those areas each year. It is more cost
effective to group more streets together within slightly larger areas. However, it is
the intention that some elemental or workstream packages will be completed in all
areas in each financial year. The Geography of those areas can be divided into the
following or any combination of the areas after consulting with all parties
concerned;

» East and West area.
» North / South and East areas.

Pag!eﬁl}l



Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

» Split into 5/6 large town cluster areas.
> Follow street scene areas, 13 in total.

The Council will continue to utilise existing frameworks and look for new
frameworks to help procure contractors for the delivery programme. The Council
will procure large PLC type contractors through this process and will continue to
invite local SME’s to tender for smaller schemes of work ensuring that the local
labour market is involved in WHQS expenditure.

The Authority will work closely with other Local Authorities maximising our buying
power through collaborative working and procuring joint contracts. The Council is
working closely with WCBC in various initiatives including; collaborative Energy
contracts and verification of each other housing stock for WHQS compliability.

The Council will also look at the possibility of utilising the DLO in the capital works
expenditure programme, delivering smaller schemes similar in size to the SME
workforce.

The Councils existing responsive repair service is carried out by an in-house
workforce consisting of over 100 trade’s staff. Work is completed and priced based
on a Schedule of Rates. The Council aims to reduce reactive maintenance
expenditure by investing in the stock through Capital Investment Programmes as
part of achieving WHQS.

The voids team, disabled adaptations team and the capital works team are also
working in partnership to carry out improvement works to WHQS standards. The
collaboration between the newly formed in-house adaptations team and capital
works ensures that adaptations are now being completed to WHQS standard and
contributing towards the improvement targets.

10.1 Planned Maintenance

In terms of asset management, one of the principal areas for consideration is co-
ordination of materials used in improvement works to ensure long life replacement
availability for ease of repair together with an evaluation of costs-in-use (i.e. life
cycle costing) to ensure best long-term value.

This principle will be developed through data gathered from framework
agreements and data sharing with Travis Perkins, the Councils managed stores
provider. The results will inform and direct the Capital Works programme and
Maintenance strategy in the use of materials.

10.2 Alignment of repairs with Capital Programme
To avoid unnecessary maintenance expenditure, it is of primary importance to

ensure that all maintenance works are fully co-ordinated with the capital works
programme and that responsive versus planned repairs are properly categorised.

page iz



Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

This will be achieved utilising Capita ‘Open Housing’ - Capital Works - Scenario
planner and Service modules. The core data held on the computer system will
assist in managing the capital programme. Capita Open Housing makes the
necessary information available to all users as a central information sharing tool.

The Council is currently reviewing the existing software to ensure that future
reporting mechanisms are substantial and robust enough to project financial data
for 30 year projections on its housing stock. Other software system manufacturers
are being reviewed and compared with our existing Capita IBS system to ensure
that the Councils Asset Management Software systems are sustainable in the long
term.

10.3 Cyclical Maintenance
The cyclical maintenance programme includes:

» A seven year external painting programme to address approximately 1000
properties annually. The programme includes the painting of internal
communal parts to flatted accommodation. The painting of the garages is
also included under this programme.

» Gas servicing ensures that all gas appliances are serviced on an 11 month
cycle to ensure that the Council meets it statutory responsibility. This work
is carried out by the In-house DLO Team.

» Smoke detector servicing is carried out on an annual basis. Over the next six
years it is intended to service approximately 1200 smoke detectors per
annum. A ten year replacement programme runs concurrently with the
servicing replacing life expired units to ensure that every property is
protected up to a minimum standard of LD3 - alarms fitted in escape routes
only e.g. hallways and landing/s.

» Periodic Electrical Testing - installations to all dwellings are checked for
safety on a ten year cycle. This ensures that every property attains a level
of safety as required by the National Inspection Council for Electrical
Installation Contracting (NICEIC) and is the UK's consumer safety
organisation. This testing is maintained throughout the installations
expected life of forty years and subsequently informs the whole house
rewiring programme.

10.4 Reactive Maintenance

The Councils responsive repair works are currently carried out by the Housing Asset
Management In-house DLO Team.

The introduction of a mobile working and late evening response is aimed at
improving the efficiency of the reactive repair system, as operatives can receive
work through hand held devices, with a wide range of benefits which includes
better planning of their workload and travel time.

Pag!ezgljl



Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

The Service aims to reduce reactive maintenance expenditure, by investing in the
stock through capital projects, such as upgrading kitchens and bathrooms with an
emphasis on quality and reliability of the materials used. This approach aims to
reduce future maintenance costs as high specification materials give a greater
sustainability and lifespan.

10.5 Vacant Properties

The Council has a void turnover of circa 5.27% of its properties per year (560) this
compares with the average void times for Welsh social Housing Providers.

To maximise rental income, void properties must be returned to the rental stream
as quickly as practicable and systems are being developed to streamline the
process. Properties that are included in the capital improvement programme and
subsequently become void during the course of the contract will be addressed by
the relevant contractor on an agreed rapid turnaround basis and completed within
two weeks of being advised.

10.6 Out of Hours Service

The Housing Asset Management Service currently provides and out of hour’s service
accessed via Care Connect, based in Conwy County Borough Council’s Call Centre
this service enables tenants to request/report emergency repairs or incidents 24/7
- 365 days.

10.7 Gas Servicing

The Council has introduced a formal procedure for the successful management of
servicing heating appliances. Housing Asset Management are currently introducing
measures to improve the quality of its maintenance service that will include
repairs by appointment, extended working days and Saturday morning
appointments.

10.8 Asbestos Management.
The ‘Control of Asbestos Regulations’ (CAR) April 2012 requires duty holders to:

» Take reasonable steps to find materials in premises likely to contain
asbestos and check their condition.

» Presume that materials contain asbestos unless there is written evidence
that they do not.

» Make a written record of the location and condition of asbestos and
presumed asbestos containing materials (ACMs) and keep the record up to
date.

fage '1815



Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Asset Management Strategy (2014-2020) FSir y Fflint

In order to meet its statutory obligations under CAR, the Council records the
existence of asbestos in dwellings on Capita ‘Open Housing Asbestos module’
putting effective risk management systems into place, developing a suitable
program of asbestos re-inspections.

Housing Asset Management also undertake specific asbestos surveys for all capital
projects, the results of which are included with the pre-construction information,
in accordance with the Control of Asbestos Regulations 2012 and The Construction
(Design and Management) Regulations 2007 (CDM).

10.9 Risk of Legionella

The Council appointed Hertel Maintenance to manage and record all communal
sites that have an associated risk of legionella. The risk of Legionella affects 3
sites that Housing Services manage.

10.10 Fire Risk Assessment

The Authority is compelled by the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 to
maintain the fire safety arrangements. Properties with common parts must be
assessed periodically for ‘fire risk’ to ensure the continual compliance with the
legislation. There is an ongoing budgetary commitment in the Capital Works
programme to ensure all required locations meet the standard of the ‘fire safety
order’.

10.11 The Disabled Discrimination Act 1995, DDA, element of the Disability and
the Equality Act 2010,

The Disabled Discrimination Act as amended in 2005, places an obligation on the
Authority to make reasonable adjustments for disabled people so that they do not
face difficulties accessing buildings. Savills have undertaken a survey of all the
Councils stock with common areas. Works are being actioned in line with the
action plan prepared by Savills. Costs are included for the ‘high priority’ issues in
the Capital Works programme with the medium and low priorities being addressed
during the following years to enable the Council to meet its obligations under the
act.

10.12 Communal TV Upgrades

Many of the Councils grouped dwellings - e.g. sheltered complexes, block of flats -
enjoy the provision of a communal TV distribution system fed from single aerial
points.

This has been upgraded in recent years, so that all existing dwellings on a
communal system have access to a digital aerial connection. The equipment used
is serviced through the installer Stanley Security Solutions who are responsible for
the upkeep and maintenance of 2500 homes within the County through a long term
maintenance agreement with the company.

Pag!eﬁljﬁ



Agenda Item 15

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2013/14 (MONTH 8)

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To provide Members with the most up to date revenue budget monitoring
information (Month 8) for the Council Fund and the Housing Revenue
Account for 2013/14.

1.02 INDEX OF CONTENTS

Section 2 Executive Summary

Paragraph 3.01 Council Fund Summary Table

Section 4 Inflation

Section 5 Monitoring Budget Assumptions & New Risks
Section 6 Unearmarked Reserves

Section 7 Housing Revenue Account

Appendix 1 Council Fund - Movement in Variances from Month 7
Appendix 2 Community Services -Variances Summary
Appendix 3 Environment -Variances Summary

Appendix 4 Lifelong Learning -Variances Summary

Appendix 5 Corporate Services -Variances Summary
Appendix 6 Central & Corporate Finance -Variances Summary
Appendix 7 Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves Summary
Appendix 8 Housing Revenue Account -Variances Summary
Appendix 9 Council Fund - Achievement of Efficiencies

2.00 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

2.01 The projected year end position, as estimated at Month 8, is as follows:
Council Fund

¢ Net in year expenditure forecast to be £1.068m less than budget. (An
increase of £0.124m on the £0.944m reported at Month 7).

¢ Projected contingency reserve balance at 31 March 2014 of £3.709m

Page 317



Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

e Net in year expenditure forecast to be £0.212m less than budget
(£0.117m as at Month 7)

¢ Projected HRA balances at 31 March 2014 of £1.646m

3.00 COUNCIL FUND LATEST IN YEAR FORECAST

3.01 The table below shows a projected positive variation of expenditure against
budget of £1.068m

Original Revi In-Year Over /
evised
TOTAL EXPENDITURE AND Budget | p,qget | (Under) spend
INCOME

Month 7 | Month 8

£m £m £m £m

DIRECTORATES (Service Groups)

Services for Adults 45.642 44.302 (0.610) (0.664)
Services for Children 11.906 12.172 0.569 0.827
Housing Services 1.800 1.835 (0.296) (0.319)
Development & Resources 1.688 1.659 (0.051) (0.018)
TOTAL : COMMUNITY SERVICES 61.036 59.968 (0.388) (0.174)
Assets and Transportation 6.015 6.091 0.065 0.031
Planning 1.708 1.717 (0.039) (0.068)
Public Protection 3.455 3.464 (0.056) (0.055)
Regeneration 0.715 0.704 0.011 0.007
Streetscene 19.320 19.210 0.333 0.352

Management, Support & 1088 | 1.094| (0.060)| (0.009)

Performance
TOTAL : ENVIRONMENT 32.301 32.280 0.254 0.258
Culture & Leisure 6.876 6.378 0.384 0.409
Inclusion Services 14.058 13.245 (0.011) (0.059)
Primary School Services 43.374 43.334 (0.045) (0.037)
Secondary School Services 36.638 37.472 0.002 (0.016)
Development & Resources 12.118 12.428 (0.179) (0.223)
TOTAL : LIFELONG LEARNING 113.064 | 112.857 0.151 0.074
Chief Executive 2.356 2.301 (0.055) (0.053)
Finance 14.265 14.235 (0.600) (1.019)
HR & OD 2.427 2.479 (0.032) (0.013)
ICT & Customer Services 4,922 5.037 0.010 0.001
Legal & Democratic Services 3.145 3.136 (0.046) (0.135)
TOTAL : CORPORATE SERVICES 27.115 27.188 (0.723) (1.219)
TOTAL DIRECTORATES 233.516 | 232.293 (0.706) (1.061)
Central and Corporate Finance 26.236 27.459 (0.238) (0.007)
Total 259.752 | 259.752 (0.944) (1.068)

Page 318



3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06

3.07

3.08

The original budget column reflects the budget approved by Council on 1
March 2013. The revised budget column reflects in-year virements which
have been approved in compliance with Financial Procedure Rules.

From the table in 3.01 it can be seen that there is an increase of £0.124m
on the under spend of £0.944m reported at Month 7. The key variances to
note include:

Community Services — Out of County Placements (Children’s Services)

The projected overspend for Month 8 is £0.452m, which represents an
increase of £0.203m on the Month 7 amount of £0.249m. The main reasons
for the movement relate to new high cost placements (£0.082m), an
unexpected continuation of an existing placement (£0.082m) and required
changes to an existing placement with a client being moved to a high cost
secure unit placement (£0.049m)

Corporate Services — Housing Benefit Subsidy and Discretionary Housing
Payments

Following a review of the Housing Benefit Subsidy profile and the level of
funding required to meet Discretionary Housing Payment need, it has been
identified that there will be an in year efficiency of £0.381m. The Council has
been proactive in supporting eligible claimants with temporary financial
assistance through discretionary housing payments. At the same time, the
Council has also been very successful, through interventions by the Welfare
Response Team, in assisting households to better manage the financial
changes imposed upon them by welfare reforms and economic impacts. As
a result of this positive action, the need for discretionary housing payments
has been less than had been anticipated. This position will continue to be
kept under review alongside the funding provided for this purpose by the
Department of Works and Pensions.

Flintshire Futures — Customer Programme

It is now projected that £0.286m of the efficiencies included in the budget in
relation to the Flintshire Futures Customer Programme will not now be
realised in 2013/14 although it is anticipated that they will be achievable in
subsequent years when the project has advanced and the wider network of
Flintshire Connects sites are in place.

All of the movements from Month 7 are summarised in Appendix 1 with the
detailed reasons for all variances by Directorate summarised within
Appendices 2 to 8.

Programme of Efficiencies

The 2013/14 budget contains £5.331m of specific efficiencies and the table

below summarises the current position in relation to the achievement of
these items. This analysis shows that it is currently projected that £4.146m

Page 319



3.09

3.10

3.1

3.12

3.13

(78%) will be achieved, resulting in a net underachievement of £1.185m.
This is lower than the agreed efficiency target of 85% as detailed in the
Improvement Plan. The main reason for the underachievement reported in
this period relates to delays in the Flintshire Futures Programme as detailed
in 3.06 above.

Value of Valued of

Status of Efficiency EB#ii?:;ig Projected Aé:;?/‘:&g:’teém
£m Efficiency £m

ALREADY ACHIEVED 1.973 1.973 0.000
EXPECTED TO BE 1.877 1.877 0.000
ACHIEVED IN FULL
ACHIEVABLE IN 0.631 0.296 (0.33%5)
PART
NOT ACHIEVABLE 0.850 0.000 (0.850)
Total 5.331 4.146 (1.185)

Appendix 9 provides further details of the assumptions behind the efficiency
projections, and where relevant the actions required to address items not
currently expected to be achieved in full. It is important to note that the
impact of this analysis has already been included in the overall Month 8
projected outturn position.

Request for Carry Forward — Community Services

Welfare Reform — in 2012/13 an amount of £80k was carried forward to
2013/14 for two additional posts in the Response Team. Due to delays in
recruiting to these posts it is requested that £0.029m is carried forward for
the continuation of two fixed term posts in the Welfare Response Team.

Request for Carry Forward — Corporate Services (Finance)
Internal Audit — due to a delay in the procurement of software it is requested
that £0.030m be carried forward into 2014/15 to fund audit management
software upgrade costs. This software is needed to replace the current
provision following the ending of the contract with RSM Tenon.

Request for Carry Forward — Corporate Services (ICT and Customer
Services)

ICT and Customer Services — It is requested to carry forward £0.046m into
2014/15 in respect of Event and Log Management due to project delays
which mean the system cannot be implemented until 2014/15.

Impacts for the 2014/15 Budget

Any projections relating to in year budget pressures or efficiencies which
have an actual or potential ongoing impact have been taken into account in
considering the budget proposals for 2014/15 which is also reported on this
agenda.

Page 320



4.00

4.01

4.02

5.00

5.01

5.02

6.00

6.01

6.02

7.00

7.01

INFLATION

Pay inflation of £0.734m is included within service budgets to reflect the
national pay award agreed earlier in the year.

Non Standard price inflation — amounts for energy, fuel and food costs are
included in the budget and held centrally. The Service budgets which incur
these costs are monitored closely and funds released on a full assessment
of evidenced need. To date only the food cost allocation of £0.141m has
been allocated (month 6) although the report currently assumes that all of
the non standard allocation will be required by the end of March.

MONITORING BUDGET ASSUMPTIONS AND NEW RISKS

Along with its strategic partners, the Council has intervened in relation to the
former chemical plant in Sandycroft (Euticals Ltd), and continues to be in
discussion with the Welsh Government about solutions, roles and
responsibilities. Estimated costs have been reviewed and are reflected
within current projections and continue to be monitored monthly.

Out of County Placements — This area of Children’s Services is known to be
a highly volatile area of expenditure with potential for significant changes
month on month. This is a challenging area of service to monitor accurately
and efforts are continuing to improve the timeliness and flow of information
to enable the most accurate position to be projected at any given point in
time. However, the very nature of the service is such that there will always
be a potential for major swings in the projection between specific reporting
periods.

UNEARMARKED RESERVES

The 2012/13 final outturn reported to Cabinet on 16 July showed
unearmarked reserves at 31 July 2013 (above the base level of £5.564m) of
£3.409m after taking into account a commitment in 2013/14 for use of
£0.297m to meet one-off time limited costs. In July, Cabinet allocated
£0.250m to the Winter maintenance reserve, bringing the level in the
reserve to £3.159m.

After taking into account an allocation of £0.518m for recovery costs
following the severe weather in March 2013, and bringing in the impact of
the projected in year budget position the current projected level of the
contingency reserve at the end of March 2014 is £3.709.

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

On 19 February 2013, the Council approved a Housing Revenue Account
(HRA) budget for 2013/14 of £28.259m. The budget provided for a closing
balance of £0.903m, which at 3.2% of total expenditure satisfies the prudent
approach of ensuring a minimum level of 3%.

Page 321



7.02

7.03

7.04

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

13.00

13.01

14.00

14.01

The 2012/13 final outturn reported to Cabinet on 16 July 2013 showed a
closing balance at the end of 2012/13 of £1.931m which was £0.861m more
than when the 2013/14 budget was set. This had the effect of increasing the
opening balance for 2013/14 by the same amount.

For 2013/14 there is an overall projected under spend of £0.212 and a
projected closing balance at month 8 of £1.646, which at 5.76% of total
expenditure satisfied the prudent approach of ensuring a minimum level of
3%

Appendix 7 details the reasons for significant variances occurring to date
and the actions planned to deal with them.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are recommended to:
a) Note the overall report

b) Note the projected Council Fund contingency sum as at 31% March
2014 (paragraph 6.02)

c) Approve the carry forwards detailed in 3.10 — 3.12

d) Note the projected final level of balances on the Housing Revenue
Account (paragraph 7.03)

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The financial implications are as set out in Sections 3.00 - 7.00 of the report.

ANTI-POVERTY IMPACT

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

Page 322



15.00

15.01

16.00

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

APPENDICES

Council Fund - Movement in Variances from Month 7 - Appendix 1
Council Fund Significant Variances - Appendices 2 - 6

Council Fund - Movements on unearmarked reserves - Appendix 7
Housing Revenue Account Variances - Appendix 8

Council Fund - Achievement of Efficiencies - Appendix 9

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson
Telephone: 01352 702287
Email: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 323



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 324



COUNCIL FUND - REVENUE BUDGET 2013/14

P FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
o i Y Fflint
Flintshire Budget Monitoring (Month 8)

Summary of Movement from Month 7

Month 7

Service Directorates

Central and Corporate Finance
Variance as per Cabinet Report

Month 8

Service Directorates

Central and Corporate Finance
Variance as per Directorate Returns

Change Requiring Explanation

Community Services

Services For Adults

e Resource and Regulated Service (Intake & Reablement) - Impact of vacancy savings for 2 admin. posts
previously reflected within Community Services - now transferred to meet budgeted efficiency for Flintshire
Futures (Cross-Organisational admin. review)

e Localities (Locality Teams) - Minor adaptations (-£0.050m) reduced expenditure this year following budget uplift,

cessation of OT referrals to private service provider as our own OT's are able to meet current demand (-
£0.037m), and staffing saving due to maternity leave not backfilled (-£0.014m)

e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m for Services for Adults

Development & Resources
e Training - premises costs to be recharged at end of year

e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m

Services For Childrens

e Out of County Placements - new client placements (+£0.082m), continuation of existing placements (+£0.082m),

changes to placement costs (+£0.049m) - offset by a placement ending (-£0.010m)

e Professional Support - one-off pension fund strain costs for a former employee (£0.023m), minor variances
(£0.005m)

e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m
Housing Services

Accommodation Support Team - impact of completion & implementation of restructure
e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m

Environment

Assets & Transportation

e Highways Network & Transportation - Actual income received in excess of expected for Road Closures and
Fixed Penalty Notices ; Bus Subsidies reduced due to re-negotiated contract prices and cross-boundary
recharge increases applied to neighbouring authorities

e Other minor changes of less than £0.010m
Planning
e Planning Control - increased Planning Fee application income
e Other minor changes of less than £0.010m
Public Protection
e Other minor changes of less than £0.010m

Regeneration
e Other minor changes of less than £0.010m

Streetscene
e Transportation & Logistics - additional running costs not able to be reflected in recharges to service users
e Other minor changes of less than £0.010m

Management Support & Performance
e Corporate Admin Review

e Other minor changes of less than £0.010m

Page 325

£m

(0.706)
(0.238)

£m

Appendix 1

(1.081)
(0.007)

(0.944)

0.026

(0.101)

0.021

0.032
0.002

0.203

0.028

0.026

(0.031)
0.008

(1.068)

(0.124)

(0.057)

0.023

(0.016)
(0.011)

0.002

(0.004)

0.025
(0.006)

0.051
(0.003)

0.214

0.004



Lifelong Learning

Culture & Leisure

Leisure Services - £0.020m relates to admin vacancy savings. The remainder relates to minor variances.

Libraries, Culture & Heritage - minor variances.

Inclusion Services

Inclusion Services - the position has improved on Inclusion Services since month 7 by £0.035m. The majority of
this improvement relates to a reduction in the projected costs for Teaching Assistants in the Special Units. A
minor variance of £0.004m relates to maximisation of grant claims in terms of admin charges. £0.012m relates
to additional grant income.

Out of County - A saving of £0.029m relates to a placement which was anticipated to by funded by Lifelong
Learning and is now a joint arrangement with Children's Services. This has been reduced by minor net
increased costs on four other placements of £0.009m. A small saving of £0.004m is also expected on one Post
16 placement.

Primary School Services

Minor variances in the projection for Primary School Services relate to School Service Level Agreement income,
supplies and services efficiencies and maximisation of grant income.

Secondary School Services

Minor Variances in the projection for Secondary School Services relate to the Music Service and maximisation of
grant income.

Development & Resources
Children, Youth & Community - minor variances.

Pupil/Student Transport - minor variances relating to transport contracts.

BUSINESS UNITS - TNE Projected outturn on BUSINESS UNITS Nas IMProvea py £U.Usbm SINCe montn /. £U.uzom
relates to controls on expenditure in the Schools Management Information Team. The remainder relates to
minar «avinas

Facilities - minor variances

Management & Business Support - savings of £0.038m relate to Governor Training, adjustments to the
allocation of the School Effectiveness Grant allocation to maximise the admin charge allowable and supplies and
services budgets across the directorate. Savings have been reduced by £0.014m for admin vacancy savings to
be reported under Flintshire Futures

Corporate Services

Legal and Democratic Services - vacancy savings £0.017m, Members Services savings (£0.013m), Members
Allowances underspend (£0.086m), Legal Subscriptions expenditure (£0.011m), minor variances £0.004m

HR and Organisational Development - Disclosure & Barring Service expenditure £0.009m, vacancy savings
£0.016m, loss of income £0.007m, minor variances (£0.013m)

ICT and Customer Services - vacancy savings £0.013m, registrars income £0.003m, postage spend £0.014m,
ICT Strategy underspend (£0.025m), minor variances (£0.014m)

Finance - Housing Benefit Subsidy efficiency (£0.381m), reduced shortfall on CTRS (£0.019m), minor variances
(£0.019m)
Chief Executives Department - vacancy savings (£0.002m), minor variances £0.004m

Central & Corporate Finance

Pension Fund Contributior - projected budgeted surplus on recovery of FCC share of pension fund deficit
Mass / Matrix Contract - decrease in rebate due to less use of Agency workers

Organisation Review - vacancy savings in Flintshire Futures programmes

Minimum Revenue provision - the calculation has been reviewed within the CLIA Account

Flintshire Futures - Customer Programme requires further advancement - wider network of connect sites
Minor Variances

Total Changes

Page 326

0.017

0.007

(0.035)

(0.013)

0.008

(0.018)

0.005
0.010

(0.035)

0.001

(0.024)

Appendix 1

(0.089)

0.019

(0.009)

(0.419)

0.002

(0.077)

(0.116)
0.115
(0.022)
(0.021)
0.286
(0.011)

(0.496)

0.231

(0.124)



/2€ abed

APPENDIX 2

COMMUNITY SERVICES
Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 8)
. Revised | Projected . LA TG . . . .
Service Variance Last Cause of Major Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Services for Adults
Hospital Social 0.405 0.353 (0.052) (0.056)|The underspend is due to a Hospital One-off.
Work (Intake and Social Worker covering in the Crisis
Reablement) Intervention Team. These costs
(£0.038m) are recovered from Health.
The balance (£0.014m) is due to a staff
vacancy.
Resources and 5.348 5.102 (0.246) (0.272)|Extra Care Projected underspend on Llys |Extra CareThe underspend

Regulated

Services (Intake
and Reablement)

Jasmine (£0.310m) is due to an initial
delay in opening the facility.

In-house Domiciliary Care underspend
(£0.061m) due to greater use of
reablement and independent sector care
providers.

Client Transportation Service underspend
(£0.041m) relates to staff vacancies.

Day Services underspend (£0.033m)
mostly due to vacancies (£0.026m).
These underspends are offset by a
projected overspend within In-house
Residential Service (£0.204m) due to the
need to ensure staff cover (£0.228m)
additional premises costs (£0.049m) and
additional supplies and service (£0.045)
offset by client (£0.070m) and Health
(£0.048m) income.

against is one-off and non
recurring and has arisen due to
the opening of the facility being
part way through the current
year.

Client Transportation Service
Underspend adjusted in
budget rationalisation.

Residential Service further
work required to determine the
most appropriate way to
address the overspend.




geg abed

APPENDIX 2

COMMUNITY SERVICES
Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 8)
Revised | Projected LA TG
Service Variance Last Cause of Major Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)

Locality Teams 13.881 13.843 (0.038) 0.063|Qlder People Services Keep under review.

(Localities) > Locality Teams are together expected
to underspend (£0.200m) mostly due to | Most of the PDSI elements
vacant posts. previously included as part of
> Purchased domicilliary costs are the locality team budgets are
projected to overspend (£0.030) due to  |now shown within the Disability
additional service user costs. Services Heading with only the
> Purchased residential costs are Occupational Therapy service
projected to overspend (£0.094) due to  [remaining as part of the locality
additional service user costs. teams.
> Early Onset Dementia is projected to
overspend (£0.074m) due to purchased
domiciliary care costs.
> Minor adaptations underspend
(£0.047m) due to reduced demand
following uplift to budget based on
2012/13 activity levels

Resource and 15.243 15.115 (0.128) (0.104)|Learning Disabilities - As previously noted|The underspend in relation to

Regulated
Services
(Disability
Services)

this service includes a budget to help
offset the expected impact of a review of
joint funded packages between FCC and
Health. This accounts for a saving of
£0.140m within the net underspend
projection, and remains unchanged from
month 3. There are some other
compensating variances across this large
service which reflect the changes in client
demand.

the negotiations with Health on
jointly funded packages is
based on current assumptions.
These will be kept under
review and adjusted if proven
necessary.




6¢< abed

Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 8)

COMMUNITY SERVICES

APPENDIX 2

Revised | Projected LA TG
Service Variance Last Cause of Major Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(£Em) (£m) (£m) (£Em)
Transition and 0.658 0.765 0.107 0.080| This is mostly due to overspends against |Keep under review.
Disability staff pay costs (£0.040m), third party
Services payments (£0.030m), transport (£0.017m,
(Disability and a shortfall of grant income of
Services) £0.028m. (Supporting People)
Disability 1.941 2.016 0.075 0.070[{The overspend is due to additional Keep under review.
Services transition service user costs.
(Disability
Services)




0€€ abed

Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 8)

COMMUNITY SERVICES

Revised | Projected LA TG
Service Variance Last Cause of Major Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Administrative 0.407 0.457 0.050 0.053|This is mostly due to an overspend Keep under review.
Support against staff pay costs (£0.041m).
(Disability
Services)
Residential and 0.703 0.617 (0.086) (0.120)|This underspend is based on current care |Keep under review.
Domiciliary packages. An additional £0.0259m
Service (Mental budget has been added to this area in
Health & 2013 to reflect the expectation of the
Substance transfer from Health of an individual with
Misuse Service) a high cost transition package, there has
been a delay in transferring this client into
the service. The current underspend
would therefore be higher but reflects the
cost of current care packages including
some other new clients.
Professional 0.828 0.728 (0.100) (0.084)|This is mostly (£0.050m) due to a one-off |One-off.

Support (Mental
Health &
Substance
Misuse Service)

pay cost reduction following an agreed
absence with no pay.

APPENDIX 2




T¢g abed

Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 8)

COMMUNITY SERVICES

APPENDIX 2

Revised | Projected LA TG
Service Variance Last Cause of Major Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(£m) (£m) (Em) (£m)

Forensic Budget 0.305 0.156 (0.149) (0.136)|Reflects current care packages for ) )

(Mental Health & 2013/14. Keep under review - potential

Substance vglatlllty due to changes in

Misuse Service) client numb.ers and de_mands
at short notice from prison or
courts. The possibility of re-
aligning budget between the

_ two services has been

Forensic Budget 0.482 0.429 (0.053) (0.055)|Reflects current care packages for considered and dismissed for

(Learning 2013/14. now as there are early

Disability) indications of additional Mental
Health clients although at this
stage potential costs or start
dates are unknown.

Other Services 4.101 4.057 (0.044) (0.049)[Various minor variances. Continue to review but not

for Adults expected to be recurrent.

variances

(aggregate)

Subtotal: 44.302 43.638 (0.664) (0.610)




2s€ abed

Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 8)

COMMUNITY SERVICES

APPENDIX 2

Revised | Projected LA TG
Service Variance Last Cause of Major Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(£m) (£m) (Em) (£m)
Development & Resources
Vacancy Control (0.100) 0.000 0.100 0.100 Realignment of vacant posts
Other 1.759 1.641 (0.118) (0.151)|Various minor variances. Continue to review but not
Development & expected to be recurrent.
Resources
variances
(aggregate)
Subtotal: 1.659 1.641 (0.018) (0.051)




cee abed

Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 8)

COMMUNITY SERVICES

APPENDIX 2

Revised | Projected LA TG
Service Variance Last Cause of Major Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Services for Children
Family 1.977 2.342 0.365 0.354| The overspend is mainly as a result of an |A review of the Family
Placement increase in the number of foster care Placement Team has been
(Children’s placements within the service. ltis also  |undertaken the outcome of
Services) due to the increasing number of court which is being considered and
orders for Residence and Special will inform future planning and
Guardianship orders which invariably possible efficiencies.
attract an ongoing allowance for the
carers.
Youth Offending 0.308 0.263 (0.045) (0.052)| The underspend within this area is mostly |One-off.
Team (Children’s due to vacant posts.
Services)
Out of County 3.178 3.630 0.452 0.249|Costs reflect existing placements up until | The focus of high cost
Pooled Budget March 2014. The increase in overspend [placements is now a North
(Children's (£0.203m) is due to additional placements|Wales project and will
Services) (£0.082m), continuing placements continued to be reviewed.
(£0.082m), changes to existing
placements (£0.049m), offset by a
placement ending (£0.010m).
Other Services 6.709 6.764 0.055 0.018|Various minor variances. Continue to review but not
for Children expected to be recurrent.
variances
(aggregate)
Subtotal: 12.172 12.999 0.827 0.569




yeg abed

Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 8)

COMMUNITY SERVICES

APPENDIX 2

Revised | Projected LA TG
Service Variance Last Cause of Major Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(£m) (£m) (Em) (£m)
Housing Services
Homelessness 0.360 0.157 (0.203) (0.206)|Variance is due to improvements in the |Keep under review. Variance
Accommodation service where methods have been put in |is due to improvements in the
(Housing place to reduce the cost of temporary service where methods have
Services) accommodation. been put in place to reduce the
Quay House project has been delayed cost of temporary
until 2014/15. accommodation.

Accommodation 1.213 1.130 (0.083) (0.052)|Service recently undergone a restructure |Restructure now implemented.
Support Team now fully reflected within projection.
(Housing
Services)
Other variances 0.262 0.229 (0.033) (0.038)[Various minor variances. Continue to review but not
(aggregate) expected to be recurrent.
Subtotal: 1.835 1.516 (0.319) (0.296)
Total : 59.968 59.794 (0.174) (0.388)




Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 8)

ENVIRONMENT

APPENDIX 3

income for specialist planning advice to
neighbouring authorities

Service ';T:SZZ‘: P(;C:ljtetz:?‘d Variance \I{’aerrliz:lc: Cause of Variance Action Required
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Assets & Transportation 6.091 6.122 0.031 0.065

Industrial Units (1.256) (1.148) 0.108 0.101|Estimated net income shortfalls across the |[Keep Unit rental income
Industrial Estate portfolio which have closely monitored throughout
increased at Period 8 by a further £7k. 2013/14.

Property Holdings 0.083 0.040 (0.043) (0.032)|NNDR costs lower than anticipated Review of site budgets
necessary in line with asset
management programme

Property Asset & 0.528 0.429 (0.099) (0.100)[Net Vacancy Savings

Development

Highways Development 0.813 0.910 0.097 0.108|Lower than anticpated levels of income for

Control & Regulatory FPN's (based on improving standards of

Services repair by utility companies) & road

5’ closures. A commitment of £60k is

« included for the potential excess payment

M to be made to the Council's Insurers in

&; relation to a claim.

on Transportation 1.466 1.402 (0.064) (0.016)|Period 8 reflects the Bus Subsidy
payments to Bus Operators that have
reduced due to re-negotiated contract
prices, together with increased cross-
boundary recharges to neighbouring
authorities.

Aggregate of other Variances 4.457 4.489 0.032 0.004

Planning 1.717 1.649 (0.068) (0.041)

Planning Control 0.363 0.328 (0.035) (0.019)|Favourable move in planning fee income |Further potential for increased
at Period 8, subject to further application |planning fee income which will
levels up to financial year end. be closely monitored

Aggregate of other Variances 1.354 1.321 (0.033) (0.022)|Net Vacancy Savings and staff recharge




Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 8)

ENVIRONMENT

APPENDIX 3

. Revised | Projected . Variance . . .
Service Budget | Outturn Variance Period 7 Cause of Variance Action Required
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Public Protection 3.464 3.409 (0.055) (0.057)
Community Protection 1.243 1.199 (0.044) (0.051)]Includes a Court Costs award of £22k
following the successful prosecution of
Talacre Park Holiday Park by the Health &
Safety Enforcement Team
Aggregate of other Variances 2.221 2.210 (0.011) (0.006)
Regeneration 0.704 0.711 0.007 0.011
;E Streetscene 19.210 19.562 0.352 0.333
<« Waste Disposal & Waste 9.266 9.602 0.336 0.334|Plastic Recycling prices reduced by £100 |Consider potential impact on
@ Collection per tonne between July and September MTFP going forward
&; resulting in an estimated income reduction
le)) of £50k.
Staff backfilling costs as a result of the on-
going investigation within waste.
The Sustainable Waste Management Consider impact on MTFP
Grant (SWMG) has been reduced in-year |going forward
by up to 5% resulting in a funding shortfall
of at least £150k
Aggregate of other Variances 9.944 9.960 0.016 (0.001)
Management Support & Performance 1.094 1.035 (0.059) (0.057)
Management Support & 1.094 1.035 (0.059) (0.057)[Net Vacancy Savings ahead of service
Performance review implementation and reduced
commitments on supplies and services
budgets.
Total : 32.280 32.488 0.208 0.254




/€€ abed

Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Period 8) LIFELONG LEARNING APPENDIX 4
. Revised Projected . Variance . . .
Service Budget Outturn Variance Last Month Cause of Variance Action Required
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Culture & Leisure 6.378 6.787 0.409 0.384{School Library Service (£0.100m saving) Service Manager to place a hold

Following an agreement at DMT, to mitigate the
Directorate overspend and to contribute towards
the value for money programme, a number of
measures will be taken to reduce expenditure in
the School Library Service.

Libraries, Culture & Heritage (£0.001m
pressure)
Minor variances

Leisure Services (£0.508m pressure)

There are a number of pieces of work being
completed to explore solutions to the remaining
deficit. £0.023m relates to the final costs for
Swim Flintshire. This programme ceased in
August. £0.054m relates to employee costs.
£0.301m relates to pressures on income across
centres. £0.065m relates to pressures on
premises budgets, £0.045m to security costs,
£0.007m to credit/debit card fees and £0.013m to
other minor variances.

on £0.100m of the Flintshire
subsidy.

As part of the Leisure Action Plan
a number of solutions are being
explored and implemented
including cessation of Swim
Flintshire, Leisure Service
Review, Leisure Contact Centre
and Asset Review.




8e€ abed

Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Period 8) LIFELONG LEARNING APPENDIX 4
. Revised Projected . Variance . . .
Service Budget Outturn Variance Last Month Cause of Variance Action Required
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Inclusion Services & 13.245 13.186 (0.059) (0.011)|Inclusion Services & Special Schools
Special Schools (£0.059m saving)
£0.038m relates to a projected saving on Out Of
County. £0.024m to minor savings in Inclusion
Services and £0.003m to a minor pressure on
Special School SLA income.
Primary School Services 43.334 43.297 (0.037) (0.045)|Primary School Services (£0.037m saving) Service Manager to review and
Minor Variances reduce planned expenditure by
£0.025m. Awaiting further
information on planned usage of
the Foundation Phase grant.
Secondary School 37.472 37.456 (0.016) 0.002[Secondary School Services (£0.016m saving)
Services
Development & 12.428 12.205 (0.223) (0.179)|Children, Youth & Community (£0.001m

Resources

saving)
Minor variances

Schools ICT (£0.150m saving)

In an effort to reduce the Directorate overspend
and to contribute towards the value for money
programme, DMT have made the decision to
place a hold on all uncommitted expenditure in
Schools ICT.

Transport (£0.023m pressure)
Minor Variances

Service Manager to place a hold
on £0.150m of the budget within
Schools ICT.

Work is ongoing to revise contract
information.




6E€ abed

Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Period 8)

LIFELONG LEARNING

APPENDIX 4

Service I;z\:;;o:t: Pg::;ﬁtrid Variance LZ:: ';:ﬁh Cause of Variance Action Required
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Service Units (£0.031m saving) We are awaiting information from
Pressures of £0.085m on Pupil Support (Free the Schools relating to Music
School Meals, School Trips and Music remissions which is likely to affect
Remissions) and £0.028m on Regional Capita  |the estimated costs.
One have been offset by estimated savings on
Mobile Classrooms (£0.065m), Insurance
(£0.036m), SMIT (£0.028m) and other minor
variances of £0.015m.
Facilities Services (£0.042m saving)
Minor Variances
Management & Business Support (£0.022m
saving)
Minor Variances
Total : 112.857 112.931 0.074 0.151




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 340



Tv¢ abed

Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 8)

CORPORATE SERVICES

Service l;‘:g:z(: Pg::&ﬁ:?‘d Variance LZ:tr ';r::ﬁh Cause of Variance Action Required
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Chief Executive 2.301 2.248 (0.053) (0.055)|£0.018m Corporate voluntary sector
contribution to Dangerpoint
(£0.060m) Vacancy savings
(£0.011m) minor variances
Finance 14.235 13.216 (1.019) (0.600)|(£0.138m) net Vacancy savings Request to carry forward

following reallignment of budget
(£0.381m) in year efficiency
following review of the level of
funding required to meet
Discretionary Housing Payment
(DHP) need and review of Housing
Benefit Subsidy profile.

(£0.894m) net surplus on the Council
Tax Collection Fund after meeting
the £0.305m costs allocated in
2013/14 budget (£0.115m allocated
to Software will remain unspent)
£0.394m CTRS shortfall in funding
compared to estimated in year cost

£0.030m to fund Software
upgrade costs in Internal
Audit. This is due to a delay in
procurement of the Software.

Demand led service but
subject to ongoing monitoring.
Contributing to national
discussion on CTRS funding
for 2014/15.

Appendix 5



Zve abed

Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 8)

CORPORATE SERVICES

. Revised Projected . Variance . . .
Service Budget Outturn Variance Last Month Cause of Variance Action Required
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Legal & Democratic 3.136 3.001 (0.135) (0.046)|(£0.004m) net Vacancy savings

Services

including the use of Agency/Locums
and recharges

(£0.028m) Members Services
underspend

(£0.086m) Members Allowances
underspend (inc. training, travel etc.)
(£0.011m) reduced Legal
Subscriptions expenditure
(£0.006m) minor variances

Appendix 5



e e abed

Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 8)

CORPORATE SERVICES

Service l;i‘g:‘:: P(;(::;ﬁ:?‘d Variance LZ:tr ';r:::h Cause of Variance Action Required
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)

Human Resources 2.479 2.466 (0.013) (0.032)((£0.021m) reduced DBS Check

& Organisational expenditure

Development (£0.016m) Vacancy savings
£0.034m loss of income from
external organisations
(£0.010m) minor variances

ICT & Customer 5.037 5.038 0.001 0.010{£0.074m postage costs Postage contract under

Services (£0.013m) Vacancy savings review.
(£0.024m) additional Registrars Request to carry forward
Income. (£0.025m) ICT Strategy ~ |£0.046m in respect of Event &
underspend. (£0.011m) minor Log Management due to
variances project delays.

Total : 27.188 25.969 (1.219) (0.723)

Appendix 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 344



G ¢ abed

CENTRAL AND CORPORATE FINANCE

APPENDIX 6

Projected LA LCD
Service Revised Budget Variance Last Cause of Variance Action Required
Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Central Loans & 15.283 15.020 (0.263) (0.242)|Review of the Minimum Revenue Provision Contine to monitor in line with
Investment Account (MRP) calculation to include MRP on Local Treasury Management
Government Borrowing Initative. Strategy.
Coroners 0.193 0.248 0.055 0.055 |Due to a change in the lead authority for Overspend is non recurring.
Coroners service provision (effective from May |Regular monitoring with
2013), it has been brought to our attention that  |Denbighshire County Council
Wrexham CBC are continuing to process a undertaken on in year spend
significant number of invoices pertaining to
financial year 2012/13 (currently value circa
£0.110m) for which the Flintshire share is 50%,
resulting in a current year budget pressure.
Centrally Held 4.645 3.733 (0.912) (0.772)|Net budget adjustments of (£0.680m) as Budgets are considered as
Provisions approved in the Month 3 report (Community part of 2014/15 Council
Services £1.185m, Leisure Management (- Budget
£0.505m) Surplus on recovery of FCC share of
budgeted pension fund deficit - final year of three
year strategy (-£0.244m), under recovery of
corporate windfall income £0.046m. ( other
minor variances (-£0.034m).
Central Service (1.931) (1.620) 0.311 0.311 |Shortfall of £0.311m of internal income Subject to an overall review of
Recharges recovered from trading accounts and the HRA. [Support Services
Former Euticals Ltd - 0.000 0.400 0.400 0.400 |Potential costs for six months at £0.060m per Ongoing monthly monitoring

Sandycroft site

month plus some specific one-off costs relating
to site related costs in view of the public
protection risk.




ot¢ abed

CENTRAL AND CORPORATE FINANCE

APPENDIX 6

Projected Variance
Service Revised Budget Variance Last Cause of Variance Action Required
Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)

Mass Matrix Contract (0.315) (0.200) 0.115 0.000 |A review of the rebate on the Matrix Contract has|Further analysis to be
been undertaken. Agency usage has decreased |undertaken to consider the
in 2013/4 and the variance projection reflects the [impact in 2014/15
up to date position.

Flintshire Futures (0.469) (0.183) 0.286 0.000 |Assets Programme - £0.060m will not be A Workshop is due to take
achieved due to delays in the full review of hard |place shortly to review
and soft facilities management across the progress and assess the
Council. methodology for realising
Customer Programme - £0.300m of efficiencies |efficiencies. Continued
will not be realised until the programme has challenge of spend categories
advanced and the wider network of Flintshire will support further efficiencies
Connects sites are in place. in 2014/15.

Back to Basics spend review - £0.074m
additional efficiency as a result of an in year
initiative to challenge spend on stationery and
furniture, putting category managment
arrangments in place to support spend challenge
going forward.

Other variances - 10.053 10.054 0.001 0.010

aggregate

Total : 27.459 27.452 (0.007) (0.238)




Movements on Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves

APPENDIX 7

Total Reserves as at 1 April 2013

Less - Base Level (inclusive of total increase
of £0.270m agreed as part of the 2013/14
budget)

Total Reserves above base level

Less - Amount approved by Council on 1%

March for funding of one-off costs in the
2013/14 budget proposals

Less - Amount approved by Cabinet on 16"
July for reinstatement of funding within the
Winter Maintenance reserve following
utilisation of funding during 2012/13 (late
March severe weather event)

Amount available for delegation to Cabinet

Add projected underspend as at 31 March
2014

Less - Estimate of severe weather recovery
costs

Projected Level of Total Contingency
Reserve as at 31% March 2014

Page 347

£m

9.540

(5.834)

£m

3.706

(0.297)

(0.250)

3.159

£1.068

(0.518)

3.709



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 348



61¢ abed

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

APPENDIX 8

Service l;‘:g:z(: Pg::&ﬁ:?‘d Variance LZ:tr ';r:::h Cause of Variance Action Required
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)

HRA Subsidy 6,167 6,356 189 189|Capital Financing charges amended after |Review timings of figures with
budget rounds completed. Capital Financing team.
Further amendments to Capital figures for
inclusion in 2nd HRAS return. Under
payment on 2012/13 of £31k calculated
on Advance Final return.

Rents (26,946) (27,169) (224) (223)|Bad Debt provision reviewed based on Monitor impact of "Bedroom Tax"
the first quarter impact of "bedroom tax”, |and review expected costs
resulting in a saving of £258k

Repairs and 8,393 8,635 242 277|£224k net under spend variance on Restructure to be implemented.

Maintenance

salaries due to restructure not being in
place and recruitment freeze in place.
£234k over spend on materials and £76k
overspend on equipment due to increase
in the number of high cost jobs. Travis
Perkins is to review pricing.
Subcontractor agreed overspend on
guttering of £127k due to bad weather
early in year.

Carry forward request for £70k due to
hardware costs not materialising in
2013/14 but will be purchased in 2014/15.

Housing Asset Team is working
closely with Travis Perkins to try
and mitigate some of the
overspend in the second half of
the year.




0G¢ abed

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

APPENDIX 8

Service

Revised
Budget

(Em)

Projected
Outturn

(Em)

Variance

(Em)

Variance
Last Month

(Em)

Cause of Variance

Action Required

Finance & Support

2,656

2,413

(243)

(213)

Support Recharges reflected at 2012/13
actuals, saving £106k. Information on
2013/14 has been requested.

Pension Fund Strain costs £80k lower
than anticipated creating saving.
Insurance claim non-reimbursement
reviewed and reflected at 2012/13 figures,
saving £21k

Carry forward request for £85k due to
software costs not materialising in
2013/14 but will be purchased in 2014/15.
Carry forward request for £15k due to
Maisonette budget not being fully spent in
year.

Housing Estates

1,852

1,692

(160)

(130)

Procurement reimbursement for
screening received in amount of £58k.
Void clearance recharges generating a
further £13.5k income.

Water commission generated a further
£34k of income due to early bird discount
scheme.

Cancellation of cleaning contract saving
£5k on maisonette blocks.

Other variances
(aggregate)

8,375

8,358

(17)

Total :

497

285

(212)




\» 901'0 suonejuasald Jo Bulwi] - ssaussajawoH
\r 820°0 sbuineg Aouaioyyg Buisnoy
\¢ 1200 MBINSY UONBASIUIWPY 3DWO |BISUsD)
\¢ SL00 VSO - YEIS JO Juswaoe|dal uop - Juawalgay Aueg
\¢ 00°0 saonoeld Bupsixa JO UOISIAGI - WE3] JuBWadE}d Ajlwey
\; cy0°0 S92IAIBS S,uaIp|IYD - 1s0d Bunsixg Joy Buipuny [eussixg
N £50°0 s|ana| Ajianoe paonpau - s)bry panasald|
\¢ 00L°0 3Jed elxa JO [aA3| BU) Ul Juaws|qeay
Saojnuag Apunwiwon)
(92 X1ONIddv) ebueyg edinses
jatio TViOL
Ve 8L0°0 SJ9S() BINIBS UpjesH [BIUS
1o usaq sey Asusidya Sy} 1 Jeak [eouBulY, . _
3U) JO PUS B [UN BINS 10§ UMOLY| 3G JOU [IIM | \r 00L0 puews(q wol4 aweoou| pasealou] - Builbiey) [enuapisay
saoinueg Aunwuwon)
(e2 XIONTddV) sebiey) g seed
1nd
JT1GVAIIHOV 1yvd NI GIA3IHOV 39 Q3N3IHOV
1ON NI 318VAIIHOV 0L 3Lo3dx3 AQVIHTVY
AON3IOI443 AON3I0I443 ADNII0I443 AON3IOI443
UOojjewIo}U] JUBAS|S] (w3z)
uonydussag Asuad
18Y}o 10 snjejs uolysod Jusiind uopISOd JusLINg Kouaioiyy hal a 10143
yoddns o0} uojjeuniogul Jaypng pajabpng

IS4
g A 5ig ...g

6 xipuaddy - S@diAIag AJlUNWILIoD)

8 Yjuoiy

CEENERITE]

uiiojiuoyy yobpng

Page 351



812 03 Jo puadsianc ue Buimoys mou si1abpnq
SIUY} S2OUB)SWINDII J3SN 3IAIBS Ul abueyo

0} anp JanamoH “(pre 0)3F Jo puadsiapun

ue Bumoys sem Jabpng siy) £ Yuow e sy

S

£E€G°0

aonoeud yuawainooud
panoidwi - sjuawase|d AUnod Jo N0 - SBJIAISS S,UBIp|IuD

0200 sjuawaoe|d swn|oA
\¢ mo| }s02 ybiy jo yuswainooud jeuoibal - gNH Juswaind0ig
\¢ 5070 saoiAlag pue sajddng - aue)) [eloos
\¢ £00°0 saolnlag pue salddng - saoineg BuisnoH
\¢ 0€0°0 mainal ainyipuadxs uonejuawaldwi isod - S|HYd
$8911488 Auniwio)
(92 XIGNIddY) Juswieinooid
S0 Ivi0L
\¢ G000 a1e0 Aep - 821AI8S BJED JB)S0) SANEBIUSASIY
‘2€0°03 jo puadsiano i R
ue Bumoys ARUaLING SI Wes} 1Sy 34 \A 0L0°0 uononpas 196png wes} | Sy - SIS S,U3IPIUD
\r 5100 Aousoyye s)sod Jodsuel] - S8JIAIRS S,UBJPIIYD
“Jeak |elouBUY 9y} Ul J3)E| [RUN PaAaIyde
uaaq sey Aouaioiya SIU} JI umouy aq Jou [|Im 0L0°0 sI9)SIIRq / SI0)1|0S Jo as( - s8a4 |eba
g 7
JI sea [eba jo aumeu ajqejoipaidun ay) 0} ang
\' 0L00 221M3s J|npe ajeudoiddy - sonsnf YINOA
1nd
J1GVAIIHOV 1¥vd NI Q3A3IHOV 38 Q3N3IHOV
10N NI I19VAIIHOVY OL G3.193dX3 AQYIHTVY
AON3IDI443 AON3IDI443 ADONIIDIL43 AON3IOId43
UO{JBULIO}U| JUBAB|BS (w3)
Jayjo Jo snye}s uoyisod juaiind Adusoy)y uopdisasaq Aousioyy3
uoi}Isod juaing 2
poddns 0} uopewioju] JBaYUN4 pajebpng

S
AR ﬁﬂ&

8 Yjuoy

EEEIERITE]

ULIO)IUO Jobpng

Page 352



850 TviOol
i wea} juswabeuepy
\r 0500 40 uONESI[BUOREY - SB0IN0SAY puk Juswdojaaag
\r 0v0°0 1sod Jafeuew WEeSs) SUO JO [BAOWAY - SIIIAIBS S,UdIPIYD
\p 8LO0 90IAJBS UBPIBAA JO MBIADY 90I1AJ8S
‘2jelojoalg
3y} UIYIM BIBYMBS|9 SPUSdsIapun LM }asyo
Buiag si1 Aouaidaya sy} Jo JuswaAaleyde-uoU :
ay} 1eu pajou aq pinoys } "51/FL0Z Ul PaAIBYDE ¥ 0S€°0 aoiniag Buia papoddng jo mainey
Alny aq 0} pajoadxa si pue (Wg0'03F) YL/ELOT
u) panaiyoe Ajued uaaq sey Aouae ay |
S89IM8S Ajlunuiio)
(P2 XIONTFddv) ubiseq jeuopesiuebio
losa0 vioL
S20°0
\? SJOBJUOD PISIASY - MBIADY tonw:m‘_.h
Ind
F18VAIIHOV 1yvd NI d3AIIHOY 39 Q3IAIIHOV
1ON NI 3T1GVAIIHOV OL a3103dX3 AQYIETIV
AON3IDI443 AON3I01443 AONIIOI443 ADN3IDId43
uonewloju) Jueasjal (w3z)
uonduasag Asus)oy
Jay3o 1o snjejs uopyisod Jusiino OISO JUBLINY Kouaioiyy nay a 103
Moddns o} uojeunsoju) J8yun4 payabpng

U

sl
Juigsd A _ﬁw

8 Yjuoy

IRTEIRTE]

uno)iuo Jebpng

Page 353



Page 354



ey b o S PP A
10U sem jey) ainssaid uw>oanm.m=o_,>w._n_ Jo Buiseydal- (dWVH) ueld Juawabeue 195y sAemybiH
1IN} Ul paAaIyoe aq ||w ADUBIDIYD SIY) pue . " - -
peidope Laeq sey Asod BuYBI 1BallS MeL 8L \f 0S0°0 jo-usn) yBiupiw Jsod sease |eljuapisal-uou - Bunybi 19ans
JuswuosAug
(92 XIGN3ddV) 8buey) adjaleg
fori-o IvioL
vL/ELOZ U BW . .
aq |Im 1abie) awooul mau ay) Jey) pajedionue si )| \» 5400 Burssaaoid 3jeyoes) - ausosisans
186png Aoljod .
sAemybiH wiyim woly 18w uononpay 1abpng \r €100 SSINON J3pI0 LONEINBSY dyelL
‘uonisod . -
awoow sniduns e Buuodal Ajuaund sexlen \r 6100 908ds 3qEN3| pasealoul - 3IMSS SIEN
€10Z BuNnf IS| WoOIj PISEaIOU] B1aM SITNAIBS . R
JUBIBAREIOR PUB BUSBOM LOq 10) S50 \» 5200 Sl Ja)Iewl 0) 9SEIOU] - UONI310Id Jignd
‘uonisod awooul .
snjdins e Buipodal Ajjualing sajeis jednynouby \¢ 800°0 SIEjua1 Sjes3 [einynoLby
JUBWIUONAUT
(22 XIGN3ddv) sabiey) g seay
Tind
F1gVAIIHOV 1yvd NI G3AIIHOV 39 J3A3IHOV
1ON NI 319VAIIHOVY OL 43193dxX3 AQV3HTIV
AON3IOI443 ADN3IOId43 ADNZIOI44T AON3I0I1443
uopeuLIOjul (w3)
jueA®21 JBY}0 10 Snje)s uopisod Kousiog uopduoasaq Asusjoy3
uopIsod Juaiing
juaung poddns 03 uopewoju) JayNg pajabpng
8 YJuo
EEA_._EE- CEIRDEIRITE]
uli4 MJM,,_,M § X|puaddy - JUSWUONAUS Buiioyuoyy yebpng

Page 355



6 £ . 13pua)-al pue SJOBIUDY BDINIBS
190pNQ S0IAISS UIYIM PBQIOSAe AdudIaulg \p 9£0°0 sng PasIPISQNS JO MBIASY - S9IABS uoljepodsues ]
mou aJe pue ssadoud Japud) e jo ped se MHWBFM \o 0500 |esodsip
U9q OAEY SIUBWEBUELIE HOdSUE] ] MON 9)sem 10} sjuawabuene podsuel] Japud - S80IAISS BISEM
Juswuonaug
(92 XIANIddv) Juswiaind0id
8L°0 aviol
"A2ua|o13 SIy) JO JUBLIBABIYDE . sassas0.d Jualund suljweans - ABUoHEIS
$9]eJipul $ pouad e uoilisod Buuojuopy 196png \r 800°0 pue sa|iddng - asuewuopad 9 woddng sjel0)aig
“Aouaiolya siy) Jo JuawaAsIyoe . R
SSIEOIPUI { POUS 18 UOMNISO BULGUOW 186png \¢ €00°0 sjuawAed abeajiu paonpal - |aAel) Jels
*Aouaolyd Siy) JO JuBWaAaIYoe . B
SaIEDIDUI POl 12 UoISOd BULIoHUOW 196pNg \» +00°0 Bunyom a)be - wea) Juawdojpaaq ssauisng
‘aMasal snjeis
oL iby0z ot ponersos sq o poreroie| A uoolo2 kepinies
5105 sMEIS 3) mc_w 10 :.o:meEw_ du m.:w uo 10 1N0 |j0J [N} Wy SBUIABS B[DIYBA - SBIINIDS J)SBM
juepuadap s1 AouUato1Ya SIY) JO JUSWBABIYDE 3Y | |
'aAIasal SNIBIS
9i6uis ayy woyy 1aw Buiaq s JleJUoyS ¥L/ELOT
3yl ‘SL/rL0Z W paaawoe aq o) pajedionue 00€£°0 Juswaalbe ||| Yed jo uonejuaiaidul - 3uadsieals
\f
s) 0s snjejs 3jbulg Jo uonejusaldul ay) uo
juepuadap s) Aous|aye SIY] JO JuswBAaIyde 8y
A1 1 1123 Aq Aouaidyye
83U} U0 JUBWIAA3IYIE. Japun pue Alessasau
uoneynsuod Gulobuo ym palkersp Jayunj \f 0500 ABa)ens JO JISIABI - SB0UBIUBAUOY) 2liaNd
usaq aABY SAMIBED PUE UIBD|D pue £1.0¢ Iudy
YI0€ 1nun 3S0j0 LUPIP ||SMAIOH ‘SUBPIBS) JBMOL
1ind
I1GVAIIHOV 1yvd NI G3ATIHOV 39 A3A3IHOV
1ON NI 319VAIIHOV Ol g3193dx3 AQY3IHTY
AON3IDI443 AON3IOI443 ADN3IOI44T AON3IOI443
uopewIOjU] (w3)
jueAS|21 J8Y30 JO Snje}s uopisod TR T Aousjoiyg uopduosaq Asusioy3
juaund poddns 0} uopewIOjUl JBLHNY pajabpng
8 JJUo
YSILI | EEIRDEIRITE]

g A 1 T

© Xipuaddy - JUSWIUCIIAU]

uIojuUOR Jobpng

Page 356



losoo IvioL
199yg aouejeg .
JUSWUONAUT BY} Ul Soueleq Slelojaiqd oylads \r 5200 pannbai jou soueleq - A1ajes @ yieaH / Buisuson
198ys aduejeg .

JUSLWIUOIIAUT 3Y) Ul dueleg ajelojoal] Moads \r 5200 PaAIND31 Jou 8OUEEq - S3IEIST [BIMINoLBy
juswuonnug
(82 XIGN3IddY) salauaipP3 19RO

lozo'o V101
[r1/€10Z Jo3 wielD WelD 1S4 SauNWWo) sy Jo 0200 swweiboid
yed se paaaiyoe aq || siy) Jey) pajedionue st \r 1s114 sanunwiwo) ay) o) abieysay Juswabeuepy mainay
JusuuonAugz
(p2 XIGNTddV) uBiseq |euonesiuebio

wvico IVLIOL
196pnq ao1nes uyim pagiosqe Aouaidiy3 \¢ 0200 poddng ajes0)0aa1q UIym sassasold Juaund aulweans
19b6pnq ao1ues uIyum paqiosqe Aousiolyyg \r 5200 puads ajgeauanjjul Uy UooNPaYy
196png ad1nas uiyim pagiosqe Aouaidiyg \r €100 SJUB)INSUOD JO 3SN U| UOIINPaY

J1avAIIHOV 14V, Ul
d _INi@3agiHovag| G3AFIHOV
1ON NI TI8VAIIHOV OL 03103dX3 AQVIETIV
AON3IDI443 ADN3IOI443 AONZIDIZST AON3IOI443
uopewojuy (w3) o .
UBAD|3J 19}0 10 SN uo pel:1:] JUdID
) | [ jejs uopisod uojpisod juaiung Aauaoiyg Bauodsag 12143
juauIng poddns 03 uoyewaoyul J3yNg pajebpng

AUYSILIL
g A aig

6 X|puaddy - JuaWIUGIIAUT

8 YJuon

sapuadyy

UloyUOR Jebpng

Page 357



Page 358



S YInoA uo ainssaid
e ajedionue Jou op apn 'siseq Buiunoal e uo
Mmojag wQs0'03 auy Jo ed Bulueyas Aq Abajens

YINOA 83U} 40 Led SE passaIppe usaq Sey YoIuMm \¢ 2600 SJ9)JOM BAJE JOJUSS JO UOIaNPal - 3JIAIBS YINOA
meyy 196png e pajeasd Aousiolys siy) "pasnpal
uaaq Ajsnoiaaid pey siaxJom eale Joj 1obpnq ay |
\» G200 s810UaIoNye |euonesadQ

buturea buojayy
(92 XIGN3IddY) abuey) adjates

020 aviol
“aw sy} Je 196pnq
yodsues) sy} uo amnssaid e ajedionue jou
Op aMm 'J8ABMOH “SIY} uuyuod o) BuloBuo sI NIOAA .

"paAaIyde aq UBd ADUSIoIa aY) Jo wgLQ'03F Aluo \¢ 0€0°0 hui SJUEISIP 91, 150d JO MAIASY
18y} sueaw euqwen 6ajjon o) podsuel apiaoid
0} anunuo? o) jescdoud ay) 0} JuUsWpUBWIE 3y |
‘wyoL 03
3|qeASIUOE JUnowe pajewljsy paaaiyde Ajny

aq o} Aj3y)1] Jou osje S| AouaIoIya ay) ‘jaw aq 0} \r 5210 sabieya pasealous - Sa0IAIBS 3INSIST]
pajoadxa jou ase sjabie) swodu; se Inq pasibe
se Aienuer IS| 8y} Uo paseasoul aIam SYUe|

\p 10070 asealou| sabieyo anH - Aesq

\¢ 1000 saul{ - aoineg Aleigr)

bunuiea buosyr]

(e XIONIddY) sebiey) g saag

Iind
JI8VAIIHOV 1yvd NI G3A3IHOY 39 A3A3IHOVY
1ON NI F1GVAIIHOVY OL a3193dx3 AQY3HTVY
AON3I01443 AON3IDI1443 ADN3I0I44T AON3IOI443
uojjewaojul (w3z)
uopduosaq Aoualdl
JUBA3|8J 18430 10 snje}s uopisod uopIsod JusLng Aoueoyyg RAosaqg 19143
juaund poddns 0} uojjewojul JayNg pajabpng
8 Yiuo
QUS| CETRDETRITE]

¢
jutpig A IS & xipuaddy - Bujuiea] BuoosI ulLIo)IUORy Jobpng

S IR) H .

Page 359



61°0 aviol
\a £$0°0 aInjonisay wea) juswabeuey ajeso)oanq
\r £20°0 ApISgns BUILILIMS JO [BAOWIAI - SBDIAIBS aINSIaT
"aw siy} Je 196pnq
191 sjooyas ay) uo anssaid e ajedipyue Jou op . R .
SM 'MAIASY | D] 918I00i0D SU LIt PAUIGLIOD \r 520°0 uononpal jsod - MaIABS BDIAIBS WUBL) - 1O] 1
Ua3Q MOU SBY M3IA3Y 301AI8S | D] SIo0YDS 3yl
‘apew
uaaq 194 Jou sey sinoy Buiuado jleH Aluno) ayy 5200 S)S09 awiano f ABisua
as|Aal 0) UoISIoap ay) ‘Jeak siy) 1@bpng sanijioe \f ¢ paonpai - sinoy Buiuado pasiaal leH Ajuno) - saljoey
ay} uo ainssaxd e Joadxa Jou op am ybnoy)y/|
\¢ 5100 MBIABI BINJONIIS - 32O [BHUAY / Juawabeuely - sanioe
PosuAn 050°0) (EL/E/L 9D) %0S3 0Bq BUIP|OH - BJIAIBS UINOA
Aliny 89 0) pajoadxa S| uolingu)LID [BUOHIPPE SIYL \¢ ) )
\» S00°0 uoyesijeuoiies Buipjing - 82tAI8S YINOA
\f 1100 sbuiaes s}sod buipjing - 221AJ8S YINOA
\¢ ZL0°0 uonenbiyuooal BDIAIBS - 3DIAIBS UINOA
"Jeak [eroueuy siy) Ul spew aq |im w00 03
jo Buines e jey) pajedionue s| ) abels siu) 1y
‘pape)s aAey suonenobsu ybnoy) pajuswaidiul \r 920°0 S]OBIUOD AJUO W) WLIB) - 9IIAIBS YINOA
uaaq 184 Jou sey pue ABajeliS YINnoA
ay} Jo ued se paonposul Bulaq s| abueyd sy
1nd
J1GVASIHOY 1yvd INt g3A3IHOY 38 A3A3IHOV
1ON NI 319VAIIHOV Ol a3103dx3 AQY3IHTY
AON3IOI443 ON3I0I443 AON3IDId43
helRl 228 AONZIDI4T | AONIP
uopeULIOU) (w3z)
uopduasaq Aouald
jueAdjal 1830 1o snjels uojyisod uoln}|sod juaund [ ETRIITE | RAOsaq 10W3
juaLnd poddns 0} uojjewnojul Jsyiang p3jabpng

AysIL

L A 415 T

© Xjpuaddy - bujuiea] buoayr]

8 YJuon

sapuapyl3

UlIOJIUO J°bpng

Page 360



_Nnr.o qviol
\c ZE1L°0 (ssequinu jidnd) sjooyas Ul abuey) oydeibowag
(82 XIAN3IddY) SeipuapY3 180

_ch.c aviol
\; /€00 MmalAay oIAIBG AJeIqi - salelqi
\r SL00 juswalial ajqixald - saueiqn)
buturea buorayy
(p2 XIGNIddv) ubisaq jeuopesjuebio

_em#.o aviol
\f 080°0 saloualolya [euonesadQ - 921A8S Hodsuel | |ooYos
. ‘sjuawaoeld jo Buuojuow pue sjuswaasbe
\p S8E°0 yomauwel; yénouy) Juaswainoosd paroisdw) - Ajunod Jo INQ
\r 1000 soinag Aleigr ay) uiyim abejsod jo uononpay
buiurea buojeyry
(92 XIGNIddv) Jusuwiaindold

318VAIIHOY pava o0 a3namHov
1ON NI 319VAIIHOY OL g31o3dx3a AQVIHIVY
AON3IDI443 AON3IOI443 AONIIDIL4T AON3IOI443
uopeuLIoul (w3)
jueA3jaa 19430 10 snyeys uopisod uoRISod JuaLIng Aouajoiyg uopduosaqg Adusldwg
jusLIND poddns 0} uogeuLIOUl JBLYNS : pajabpng

8 YIUuon

AdIgSIUI CEIENEIETE]
g A NS § Xipuaddy - Buluiea] Buoa Bunoyuow yobpng

Page 361



Page 362



€L°0 avioL
. saouemoj|e AJiqisuodsay [erdads Jo Jagwinu paonpal
\o 0100 0} paul| UOIONPal SUOHNGUIUOD |N - SBOUBMO||Y Siaquisiy
. pajeosoj|e Jaquinu Jo uoijonpal
\¢ 020°0 - S9oUBMO||Y AJl[IgIsuodsay |e10adg - S8IUEBMO||Y Siaquiap
. asealoul
\¢ 0L0°0 Aieuofejyul ou - (82UBMO||Y OISeq) SSOUBMO)|)Y Siaquiapy
\r 0L0°0 abesn Jaded paonpai - s82IA8G diesoowaq
so01u3g 8jes0dio) - OILYHIOWIA ? TvoI1
\r GE0 0 suondo Jo mainal - S¥I3YD gY9
saoiuag ajesodion - JO '? HH
\' £00°0 SUI8|ING S2JOIOM paaNpal - Swwoy) ajesodio)
§891/18S 91eJ0dio) - BANIBXT JaIYD
(92 XIGN3ddV) ebuey) asnies
leso0 IvioL
\ SL0°0 sjuswsalbe 90| S / BuroueAaauos - saa (BuIBIXT
sasyuag 8jesodio) - J/LYHIOWIA ? WO
\r 000 juawdinba ygSd Bunsoy woij swooul - SadIAeS NIOMIBN
\.. 6100 s8a) paseailou - sied)sibay
§80inI8g 81RI0dI0] - SFIIAYTS HIWOLSND ® LO]
.\r /20°0 SaUY XE ] |I2UN0Y) JO JAGUINU PaSEaIdUl - SBNUBASY
$991188 8jes0dio) - JONVYNIJ
(e2 XIGN3ddY) sebiey) g seed
Tnd
318VAIIHOVY Alvd NI G3AIHOY ALY,
NI 319VAIIHOV AQVY3IHIY
1ON ADN3IDI443 ADN3IOI443 39 OL d3103dX3 ADN3I0I443
AON3IOI443
uonewojul AENV . ;
uo| 059 A2U3}o!
JuBA3j31 J3YJ0 10 snjejs uopisod UORISO4 JUBLING Aoueidyyg nauosag Py
juaLInd Joddns 0} uonewIojul JBYINg pajebpng

il U}
A h._mlb

6 X|puaddy - SedjaIeg 8)eio0dion

8 YJuo
SIENEIRITE]

Bunoiuo 186png

Page 363



\e 100°0 sjoesuod Q4N Jo Bumal - adueusjeulepy alempiey

. syuawaaibe Jayjo

\¢ 0L0°0 ybnouay) painooid saduadl| Yososdi - Buisuao] asemyog

Pa 900°0 Juawysnipe jebpnq - Buises

\¢ 2000 uonn|os | dt Aq pajqeus uofonpai - bullged 10J

\a 2000 Juswainooid paonpal - asempieH Buppomisy

\o 5200 huawidinba Ajundas mau 0} anp S}SOD 8JUBUBJUIBW PadNpay

\' 1000 SUOIIN|OS MBU BIA JUBWAINJ0Id - }8bpng Buiuies)

seoinag 8jei0dio) - SIJIAHIS ¥IN0LSND B LO]

\r 100°0 8ouBpUB)IE PaoNpal - SaINJ037/SIBUILIBS/SAdURIBUOD

\' 0L0°0 1obpnq uo puewsp pasnpai - sainsesyy Ajejeg aakojdwg

\¢ 2000 Bunjiom ay1be ainyny - suoonpai sjuswanoidw| / SUONEIANY

\¢ 2000 uofjonpai s)sod - Bupopp Julor

\f 0L0°0 sa0Inag pue salddng

\r €000 13quWINU Ul UOKONPaI - SUOHEBYNSUOY Sjuapisay / aakoidwg

$991/38 91eJ0dioT) - BANNV8XT JAIyD
(24 XIONTddV) Juswainsoid|

T1ind
I18YAIIHOY 1vd NI @3AJIHOV NGO
Ni 318VAIIHOV AQYIHV
L1ON AON3IOI443 ADN3IOIH43 34 OL Q3193dX3 AON3IOI443
AODN3I01443
uofjeuLiouy (w3) . 2
uo| 253 A2Ud191
JueAdjal J3YJ0 40 sme}s uonisod UORISOg JUeLIN) Kauajoyyg Bduosag 1143
uaund poddns 0} uopeWLIoU] JBYMNS pajebpng

]

sl
Jun A 15 o

6 Xipuaeddy - S8diAIBS 8jei0dio)

8 Yyuoy
EIEIERINE]

Page 364



S82IM8S 8jes0dioD - FJINVYNIH

Vad 6000 seoInIeg B salddng
Va v00'0 AJUEYNSUOD PUE YJOM S3oINISS
A 0070 alemp.ey - sienag asudisiug
A 20070 SUEBW 21UCA)23}8 JO asN aJojy - Jaded Bunsi
Y 5100 AueLem yym ABOjOUYIS) MBU - SIUBUSILIEN SIEMPIEH
A 1000 aunyipuadxa uj UOIONPaI - SI|GEWINSUOY 18YI0
N lvooo sanuadele(q - Sjuswancidw| g SuoeISHY
P 1000 suonn|os Bulules} punoJe pjing - uonanpal jabpnq Buiuies |
Va 1900 saoInag pue salddng
A 8100 uonenobaual eI - S)S00 83US)| PaINpay
P bzo0 51500 SOUBUSUIEU SIEMYOS - SaSI AIBUOHEYUI JO 3OUBPIOAY
\’ €100 s)s02 aiemyos Aped puiy) Jo uonesijeuoney
Va £00°0 ainypuadxg | D) paanpay
\r ¥00°0 %€ Aq puads sjqeauanyju) aonpay

I1EVAIIHOY vd NIGEAGHoy | G3ATIHOV

10N AoNaIo143 | MAAEROY 1ag o1 qauogaxal  ATVENY.

AON3IDI1443
uopeuLIou} (wgz)
SRR e

Misii4
A g o

6 Xipueddy - SeojAIog 9jei0dI0n)

g puow

CENEIRITE

ULIO}IUOR Jobpng

Page 365



|vo00 Ivi0L
\r 1000 Buiuueld Aouabrawig - pajjaael) abesjiw ul uononpay
S$99IMI8S a)elsodio)) - BAIINJ8xXT JaIyD
(P X1IGN3ddv) ubiseq Jeuopesjuebio
lsvz0 vi0L
Va ZL00 s@0IMag @ sallddng
1ind
J18VAIIHOV Llvd NI G3AIIHOV CEElL Y
Ni 318VAIIHOV AQV3IHIVY
LON AON3IOI443 ADNIIOIF43 39 O1 A3103dX3 ADN3IIOI443
AON3I01443
uopeuLIOj (w3)
JUBA3J3J J8YJ0 10 snje}s uoypsod UopIsOd JueLNY Aouapg uonduosaqg Asuaoyly
jua.und poddns 0) oW JBYHN 4 g pajabpng
—— 8 JJUON

Mysjul4 -~ CETRNEIR]ITE]
Juijly >.._._m § Xipusddy - 5851Ai8g )esodion ULI0JIUOW Jobpng

Page 366



. Jjuswabeuepy
\' 090°0 SallljIoB - WEBJSHIOA SIASSY Sainnd aqysjull4
\o 120°0 sabueyd ejnwioy o) anp AAaT all4 ul uononpay
\¢ 2200 HAN - sapuabuijuod pasnpay
\r ovZ'0 S)S02 JUBLWI]SAUI HO-8UO - S31oUabunuod paosnpay
aoueul-{ 9je1odio) g [enuad
(9 XIGNTddY) sajpua|dW3 JBNO
1
TAl) IvioL
Va 0910 MBIABY 1934 [ewsalu] - samnind anysiuiy
. sassaosoud
\ coL0 paaoidw pue Juswainooid-3 - saining anysju4
goueulH ajeiodio) ' [esuad
(92 XIGNIddv) Juawainaoid
lsio0 Iv.i0L
\a GL0'0 uoiNGuUIUd 0} uoijonpal paalbe - niwAD neayl pAmo
aoueulH ayesodio) p lenusd
(92 X1GN3ddY) @Bueyg asjalag
TInd
I18VAIIHOV 1yvd NI G3AIIHOY 39 A3an3aIHOVY
1ON NI 3T19VAIIHOV Ol a3103dX3 AQV3IHTY
AON3I01443 AON3IOI443 ADN3I0I443 AON3IO1443
uopew.ou) (w3)
JuBA3jas 4830 JO snje)s uopsod uoRISod JuaLIng Aouajony3 uopduosaq Aduapdiy3
jua1ind poddns o3 uopewsojuy JBYHNg pajyabpng

6 X|puaddy - aoueul] ajeJodio) [euan

8 Yjuop

Page 367



Irozo V1oL
Aauaroya jo bunuy . R
ouj SS0558 0] UBYELOPUN BUISq YIoM PapeISq \¢ 0010 HIUS [BuueyD WEBLSHIOAA JaW0)SND - sainin- aJiysiul4
Aoauaroiyo jo bunury . 10BJUOD JBWOISNI
ayj ssasse o} uayeuapun buiaq 3iom pajiesq \r 0010 a0k} 0] 398 WEBIISYIOAA JBWO)SNY - SaunN)n4 aHysiu4
ayj ssasse o) uayeuapun QMWMM @ﬁﬂﬁmﬂmﬁ\% \r 0010 81)U37) 10BJUOD) WESBIISHIOAA JBWIOISNY - SAININY BHYSIUL
Tind
JT9VAIIHOV 1Hvd NI GIAIIHOY 38 A3A3IHOVY
1ON NI 3T19VAIIHOV OL Q3193dX3 AQV3IHTV
AON3IOI443 AON3ID1443 ADN3IDI443 AON3IOId443
uopewojuy (w3)
uopduasaq Aouad
JUBA3[3J J34)0 10 Snje)s uoyisod uopIsod JusLng LT RTITE | BaudsaQg o443
juaLInd uoddns 0} uoewaoUf JaYKIN payebpng

6 Xipuaddy - eoueul] 9)eiodio’) [enua)

Page 368



Agenda Item 16

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME
CONSULTATION

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To provide Cabinet Members with information on a Welsh
Government Consultation seeking views on the review of options for
the future of Council Tax support in Wales. The closing date is
5™ March 2014.

1.02 To provide Members with a series of recommended responses, as
drafted by officers, on the proposals as set out in Appendix 2 to this
report, and seek members support to them.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 In October 2010, the UK Government announced its intention to
abolish Council Tax Benefit (CTB) and cut funding for replacement
schemes. CTB was abolished on 31 March 2013 and the
responsibility for developing a replacement scheme for Wales was
taken up by the Welsh Government. The Welsh Government
introduced a system for Council Tax Support for 2013-14, and the
regulations governing the system for 2014-15 and 2015-16 have
recently been approved by the Assembly.

2.02 The UK Government has transferred £222 million to the Welsh
Government for 2013-14, and will transfer a further £222 million in
each of 2014-15 and 2015-16. Thereafter, funding will be included in
the overall Welsh budget. The reduction in funding for replacement
schemes means this transfer is insufficient on its own to continue to
maintain the same level of support as was provided under CTB. The
Welsh Government is therefore providing an additional £22 million in
2013-14, 2014-15 and 2015-16 to support local authorities in
maintaining entitlements, with authorities meeting the remaining costs.

2.03 However, whilst the funding from the UK Government is not
increasing, the cost of maintaining entitlements will rise year on year if
council tax rises, or the number of eligible applicants increases,
placing an increasing financial pressure on the Welsh Government
and local authorities, which will become more and more difficult to
sustain.

Page 369



2.04

3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

4.00

4.01

4.02

The Welsh Government are therefore reviewing the options for the
future of Council Tax Support (CTS) in Wales, with a view to provide a
scheme which is equitable, sustainable, and delivers the maximum
protection for low income and vulnerable households within the
financial constraints.

CONSIDERATIONS

The Welsh Government is supplementing the UK Government funding
transfer with an additional £22 million to support Local Authorities in
maintaining existing entitlements. However if Council Taxes continue
to rise at current rates, by 2015-16 the estimated total cost of
maintaining existing levels of CTS could increase to over £260million,
around £40 million more than the provision from the UK Government.

Removal of all support would expose low income households to the
full impact of Council Tax. In Flintshire there are currently 12,800
households in receipt of £10.2 million CTS; as a result, the impact of
removing support would be significant for local residents and for the
Council’s ability to collect Council Tax

The impact of maintaining entittements through a CTS scheme, in
terms of the revenue lost to authorities from households receiving
CTS, is likely to fall on local services, which may themselves also be
providing support to some of the low income and vulnerable
households who benefit from CTS. Equally, reducing entitlement to
CTS will have a direct impact on the income of Flintshire’s poorest
and most vulnerable households at the same time as they are facing
reductions in income through the welfare reforms.

The Welsh Government has identified a range of options for reducing
entitlement (Appendix 1). The options will impact in different ways on
households currently in receipt of CTS and on local authority revenue.
As the cost of maintaining entitlements increases year on year, some
of the options presented will not be sufficient to fully offset the shortfall
in funding.

RECOMMENDATIONS

For Members to note the consultation.
For Members to consider the recommended responses, as prepared

by senior officers within the Revenue and Benefits services, as
detailed in Appendix 2 to this report.

Page 370



5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01
10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

12.02

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Although the Welsh Government funds a significant element of the
CTS scheme through the Revenue Support Grant, the Authority is
required to fund subsequent increases in Council Tax and any
fluctuations in the number of claimants. As such the cost of the current
scheme will increasingly become a budget pressure impacting on
service provision or requiring significant increases in Council Tax. The
expected additional cost to Flintshire in 2014/15 is £0.633m.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

A change to the current scheme will expose low income and
vulnerable households to a liability to pay Council Tax, in many cases
for the first time due to their financial circumstances. This change is at
a time when many are struggling to cope with the impact of other
changes to the welfare system.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

The Welsh Government have completed an equalities Impact
assessment of potential options, which will reflect the impact in
Flintshire.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

The purpose of the report is to provide Members with the opportunity
to comment on the consultation proposals.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Feedback from a report to Corporate Resources Overview and
Scrutiny Committee on 13" February 2014 will be made verbally to
Cabinet.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 to this report contains the Options being considered by
WG

Appendix 2 to this report contains the recommended responses to the
latest consultation.

Page 371



LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

2013 Review of Council Tax Support Consultation
2012 Council Tax Support in Wales: Equality Impact Assessment

2012 Reforming Council Tax Benefit: options for Wales

Contact Officer: Ken A Jones
Telephone: 01352 702286
Email: ken.a.jones@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 372



Appendix 1

Option 1 — CTRS is based on a fixed percentage of council tax liability

Under this option, all households have to pay a percentage of their Council
Tax liability, regardless of their personal circumstances or the band of
property in which they live. They then receive CTRS to help them pay for the
remaining percentage.

Impact on recipients: Band D Council Tax levels in Wales in 2013-14 range
from £974.36 to £1,525.87. Band D households currently in receipt of full
CTRS, would pay, for example, 10% of their bill, which would range from £97
to £153, depending on the Authority in which they live. The average annual
household loss by Authority (ie. across all CTRS households) in 2013-14
would range from £72 to £102, with at least 96% of CTRS-entitled households
in each Authority affected. This option withdraws more support from those in
partial CTRS than option 2 below.

Impact on LA revenues: Across all 22 Authorities the total ‘saving’ (in terms
of additional revenue collected) would be around £28 million, with the
proportionate impact on revenues broadly equal across Authorities (at
between 10.9% and 11.5% of their CTRS expenditure).

Option 2 - Council Tax Support is cut by a fixed percentage across-the-
board

Entitlement is calculated as normal, but all reductions are then reduced by the
percentage.

Impact on recipients: The impact on those currently in receipt of full CTRS is
the same as for the previous option but, because of the way in which the
reduction is calculated, this option is slightly more beneficial for those in
receipt of a partial reduction of CTRS. The average annual household loss by
Authority ranges from £64 to £89, again with at least 96% of households
affected in every Authority.

Impact on LA revenues: Across all 22 Authorities the total ‘saving’ (in terms
of additional revenue collected) would be around £25 million, with the
proportionate impact on revenues equal across Authorities.

Option 3 - Capping CTRS entitlement at the Council Tax liability for the
band below the one in which the recipient lives

The maximum reduction in Council Tax liability is capped at the Council Tax
rate for the tax band below that for the dwelling. So a Band B household’s
CTRS reduction would be equal to that for a Band A dwelling in their
Authority, a Band C reduction would be capped at the Band B level and so on.

Page 373



Impact on recipients: The impact would depend on the band of the property
in which they live and on their Authority. The annual average household loss
by Authority would range from £101 to £152, and at least 96% of CTRS-
entitled households would be affected in all areas.

Impact on LA revenues: Across all Authorities the total ‘saving’ would be
£40 million, and in contrast to the other property band-based options above,
the impact would be broadly the same across individual Authorities (ranging
from 14.9% to 18.7%).

Option 4 - Reducing entitlement by capping CTRS entitlement at the
Council Tax liability for a Band B property

Entitlement to CTRS is calculated as normal, but the maximum reduction in
Council Tax liability is capped at the level of Council Tax for a Band B
property. Full entitlement is maintained for Bands A and B, but all other
households have to pay part of their Council Tax, with those in higher band
properties paying more.

Impact on recipients: The Band B council tax charge 2013-14 ranges from
£758 to £1,187. A band D household currently receiving full CTRS would face
a bill of between £217 and £339, which is the difference between the Band B
and Band D rates in their area. Residents in Bands A and B would be
protected, but those in higher bands would pay more than under the previous
options. The average annual loss for households affected is therefore higher
than for the previous options, ranging from £160 to £291. The proportions of
CTRS-entitled households affected would vary widely between Authorities
(from 5% to almost 70%), because of the variation in the numbers of Band A
and B properties.

Impact on LA revenues: Across all Authorities the total ‘saving’ would be
£27 million, but the impact would vary between Authorities from only 1.6% of
CTRS income to over 23%, with the more deprived areas generating less
additional revenue and those with larger numbers of higher band properties
generating more. Without a mechanism to redistribute the funding released,
some Authorities would still face a substantial shortfall.

Option 5 - Reducing entitlement by removing entitlement entirely from
residents in Band E and above

Residents in Band E or above are automatically disallowed from any
entittement to CTRS. Residents of Bands A to D are unaffected: their
entitlements are protected, and are determined in the same way as now.

Impact on recipients: The CTRS entitlements for those in Bands A to D are
unaffected, and these residents account for around 93% of the total caseload.
However, the rise in Council Tax liability for residents in higher property bands
who currently receive CTRS would be very steep. The average CTRS
reduction paid to Band E households is £1084, but under this option, they
would receive no reduction, and would be liable for their full Council Tax bill.

Page 374



The proportion of CTRS households affected in each Authority would vary
from less than 1% to over 17%.

Impact on LA revenues: Across all Authorities the total ‘saving’ would be
£26 million (or around 10.6% of CTRS expenditure) but again the impact
would vary between Authorities because of the variation in the numbers of
properties in each band.

Option 6 — Increase the income taper to 30%

For CTRS recipients subject to the means test, if their income exceeds their
applicable amount, their weekly entitlement is reduced by 20p for each £1 of
excess weekly income (the taper), until entitlement is fully withdrawn. This
option would increase the reduction to 30p for each £1, leading to a steeper
fall in entitlement as income increases.

Impact on recipients: Those in receipt of full CTRS would be unaffected, but
those on partial reductions would see their entitlement reduced. This is likely
to affect between 19% and 25% of CTRS households, with an average loss
ranging between £114 and £189. An increase in the taper rate will erode any
additional income generated from working, reducing the incentive for those
receiving welfare benefits to find work or increase earnings.

Impact on LA revenues: Across all Authorities the total ‘saving’ would be

approximately £9.2 million, and the impact would be broadly the same across
individual Authorities.

Page 375



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 376



APPENDIX 2
Draft Responses to the Welsh Government Consultation Document

Question 1: Do you agree the Welsh Government should maintain a
system of Council Tax Support?

Agreed that a system of Council tax support needs to be maintained, failure to
maintain a system would lead to many vulnerable and low income households
being liable to pay Council Tax in full, with the consequence of increasing
levels of poverty and the subsequent impacts of social dependency.

Question 2a: Given the financial pressures and the likely impact on local
services, should entitlements be maintained at current levels from 2015-
16? Or should entitlements be reduced, exposing low income and
vulnerable families to increases in the Council Tax they have to pay?

Unfortunately the financial cost of the scheme cannot be sustained in the
current economic climate, without significant increases in Council Tax levels
to fund the scheme which would have a detrimental impact on households
where levels of income are marginally above benefit entitlements. Therefore
entitlements must be reduced to sustainable levels.

Question 2b: If entittements are maintained, how should the gap be
funded? Should the Welsh Government pay, should Local Government
pay, or should the cost be shared?

If entitlements are to be maintained, it would require an examination as to the
drivers for maintenance e.g. if WG commit to anti poverty policies which
include maintenance for specified groups, such as ensuring families with
children have an income of at least 60% of the average household income,
then WG should be responsible for funding.

Question 2c: If some of the costs continue to be met by Local
Authorities, what might be the implications for the communities for
whom they provide services?

Maintenance of entitlements will increase pressures on budgets with only
available solutions of either increasing Council Tax or reducing services both
of which will have a detrimental effect on Communities.

Question 3a: Should some of the costs of maintaining entitlement be
offset by changes to the Council Tax system itself, to enable Local
Authorities to generate additional revenue? If so, how? What are the
implications of making changes to the Council Tax system itself? What
would be the administrative implications for Local Authorities?

It must be recognised that any changes to the Council Tax system would

impact on the Tax payer, particularly in the instances of discounts and
exemptions. For example, reduction of 25% Single person discount (SPD)

Page 377



would increase the liability to the Tax payer, in many cases SPD claimants
are pensioners or single parent households with limited budgets, additional
tax burdens may have a detrimental impact on their finances and for SPD
working households may mean that work no longer pays more than
unemployment.

If changes were to be implicated there would be additional administrative
burdens for Authorities with the cost of software changes and the potential
higher levels of recovery action required.

Question 3b: Should any such changes be prescribed nationally or
should there be local flexibility?

Changes to the Council Tax system should be prescribed nationally with
limited local flexibility which would allow the consideration of local issues,
however this may set a precedent allowing further changes to the Council Tax
system to an extent that Council Tax itself would no longer be a national
scheme.

Question 4a: If entitlements have to be reduced, should everyone pay a
proportion of their Council Tax, or should some groups be protected?

To protect some groups would increase the burden on other vulnerable
groups as evidenced in England where pensioners have been protected with
the consequence that a non-Pensioner household in receipt of means-tested
Welfare benefits can be liable for 40% of Council Tax.

Question 4b: If you think any groups should be protected, which groups
and on what grounds?

See question 4a.

Question 4c: What are the equality implications and potential impacts on
those with protected characteristics of making everyone pay a
proportion of their Council Tax, or of protecting particular groups?

The removal of full CTRS will impact on all groups who have in previous years
been identified by a process of means testing as unable to pay, therefore the
removal will have significant impact on available income for basic needs, for
this reason there is a requirement to limit impact as far as possible which
indicates that the burden should be equitable for all groups.

Question 5a: If entitlements have to be reduced, should this be through
a single national framework scheme proposed by Welsh Ministers and
approved by the Assembly or should Local Authorities have flexibility to
devise local solutions?

To prevent a “post code lottery” there should be a single national scheme.

Page 378



Question 5b: If a localised approach is introduced, should Local

Authorities have full flexibility or should some national prescription be
maintained? What aspects of a CTRS scheme would it be appropriate to
determine locally?

If there is to be a localised approach then LA’s should have full flexibility to
devise a scheme which adapts to local conditions.

Question 6a: If entitlement has to be reduced, what is the most equitable
and sustainable option (or combination of options) for doing so? What
are the implications for groups with protected characteristics under the
Equality Act? What would be the impact on the rights of children and
young people?

To achieve an equitable solution the options must have equal impact on all
groups, as previously stated the protection of any group effectively is at the
detriment of another group. Therefore Options 1, 2 & 3 fulfil these criteria.

Question 6b: Are there other options which should be considered? If so,
how would they work and what advantages would they offer? What
would be the equality impacts?

All effective options are considered

Question 6¢c: What are the relative administrative implications for Local
Authorities of the different options?

All options will require software change which could be achieved by current
suppliers at the cost of upgrades. The major administrative implication would
be the resources required to collect / recover relatively small amounts of
Council Tax, from Tax payers who are on low incomes. This has already been
evidenced in the significant increase in effort and resources that social
housing landlords have had to employ in order to try and collect rent from (a
smaller number of residents) impacted by the spare room subsidy.

Question 6d: The impact of some property band based options on
revenues will vary widely from Authority to Authority. How might these
variations be mitigated if such options are implemented?

It would require an examination of each Authorities tax base compared with

required savings to calculate band changes required. This process would be
cumbersome and would lose the uniformity of a one Wales scheme.

Page 379



Question 7a: In the longer term, it may be desirable or necessary to
make changes to the system of means testing, as UC is fully rolled out,
but our proposal is to retain the existing means testing approach in the
medium term. What are your views on this?

Although there is an increased administrative burden on LA’s to means test,
this does ensure that CTRS recipients receive the correct entitlement, non
means testing would produce a “winners and losers” scenario and potentially
the scheme would be open to abuse, which could result in a higher cost whilst
potentially not supporting vulnerable groups.

Question 7b: What are the main implications of wider welfare reforms for
CTRS, and how should these be addressed?

The impacts of Welfare Reform are in many cases reducing benefit
entitlement within a context of “making work pay”, at a time of economic
uncertainty. The reduction in income for these groups effectively increases the
impacts on CTRS where there will become a liability for payment.

To reduce the impacts requires a long-term commitment to provide / promote
employment, with a demand to increase the skills and education to produce a
workforce which would enhance the potential for employment

Question 8: What are the implications of the Commission’s findings for
the future of CTRS?

The Commission has correctly identified the unsustainable of funding for the
future of CTRS, this consultation addresses the current issues but in the
future further decisions will have to be made to reflect increasing costs. To
ensure a seamless approach the decision as to options available within this
paper should also reflect potential for future change, which will remove
banding based options.

Page 380



Agenda Iltem 17

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014
REPORT BY: DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY SERVICES
SUBJECT: INTERMEDIATE CARE FUND

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To advise Cabinet of the purpose of the Intermediate Care Fund, the
application process, and outline proposals for Flintshire’s bid. As we
are at the initial planning and development stage of the bidding
process the report is presented for information.

1.02 Members may wish to consider arrangements for securing political
endorsement of the final bid which needs to be made within very tight
timescales.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 Intermediate Care describes a wide range of services which focus on
prevention, rehabilitation, reablement and recovery. These services
can help avoid unnecessary hospital admissions, inappropriate
admission to residential care, as well as preventing delayed
discharge from hospital.

2.02 Welsh Government have developed an Intermediate Care Fund to
encourage integrated working between local authorities, (including
Housing and Social Care), Health and other partners The Fund is
only available for 2014-2015.

2.03 Funding is targeted at supporting older people, particularly the frail
elderly, to maintain their independence and remain in their own home.

2.04 The Fund can be used to build on existing good practice and increase
the scale of provision of integrated services. It can also be used to
pump-prime funding to assist transformation and change and to test
new models of delivery. The fund can not be used to substitute
existing funding streams, it must be used to support new or additional
provision of services and ways of working

2.05 The indicative allocation for Flintshire is £1,926m consisting of £642k
capital and £1,284m revenue funding.

Page 381



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06

CONSIDERATIONS

We are in the process of developing outline proposals for our
application to the Fund. Whilst local authorities have been given the
lead for the development of proposals we are required to develop our
bid in close partnership with Local Health Boards, and with third and
independent sector partners. These partners will have a critical role in
delivering services associated with the fund. The fund has also been
allocated on a regional footprint and we will need to have both
regional and partner endorsement of our bid.

We do not yet have definitive proposals or costed models but our
initial areas for dialogue with partners include:

Capital Funding

Our aspiration is to use a significant proportion (£550k) of the capital
allocation to support the development of additional Extra Care
Facilities. Capital funding would provide leverage for investment in
the cost and delivery of Extra Care and enable us to realise the
commitment in our Corporate Improvement Plan to develop a further
2 Extra Care provisions. Our intention is to develop Extra Care in
Holywell and Flint.

We are also exploring the potential of reconfiguring a small number of
existing sheltered housing flats (potentially one per locality) to provide
a resource for short term support in the community. The
accommodation could be used for a range of purposes including a
step-up or step-down beds, the provision of respite for carers to
prevent carer break down and admission to care homes, and to
provide an alternative setting for older people who can not either
return home from hospital, or remain at home, until major adaptations
are completed at their home. The accommodation would make good
use of telecare and telehealth equipment and we can explore
potential links to enhanced care service models where health and
social care support is required. We anticipate that we would allocated
£90k for this work.

Both Extra Care and proposals for sheltered housing would operate a
rehabilitation and reablement culture to support independence and
avoid either hospital or long-term residential care admissions.

Revenue
From the revenue funding we are looking at proposals that will
develop and enhance our capacity and ability to deliver existing

strategic intentions for service modernisation. Examples of our
developing proposals include:

Page 382



3.06.1 Supporting Integration

Support locality working to increase capacity of care coordination
and the delivery of integrated services. This will include costs
associated with establishing co-location as well as providing
additional capacity to develop integrated approaches to assessing
and managing frailty and exploring the potential for joint health and
social care posts

Working closely with Health to develop and deliver joint
commissioning strategies for people with dementia leading to more
market capacity to deliver good quality dementia care. This would
involve funding a 1 year fixed post to work across Health and social
care to expand the Living Well service model to the independent
sector with funding to provide specific training on good dementia
care and approaches for the independent and third sector.
Funding will also be sought to enable mentoring arrangements
from in House services and block contracting of hours to pilot and
test a service model. The aim of the service will be to support a
larger cohort of people with dementia who may otherwise need
Residential Care. We would also look for the post holder to
develop a market position statement for Care Home placements for
people with dementia with a view to supporting the development of
an appropriate level of EMI nursing capacity so that Flintshire
residents can have their needs met within the County.

3.06.2 Avoiding hospital admission and minimising stays

Provide additional capacity to support the roll out of Enhanced
Care and to review service models to ensure effective take up,
good outcomes and value for money. This could include providing,
and assessing the impact of additional CPN capacity which can not
be met within existing Enhanced Care resources

Procure research with Health to develop a targeted risk
stratification of people who are at risk of hospital admission, or who
are regularly admitted into hospital, and associated interventions to
manage and minimise hospital admission for this cohort

Develop respite/convalescence facilities to help ensure that
people are able to access services in their local community as part
of their recovery process

Increase the capacity of reablement and rapid response services
to better meet demand

3.06.3 Investing in prevention and wellbeing

Fund the development of self assessment systems for people to

Page 383



3.07

3.08

3.09

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

access equipment to help them live at home
e Provide additional investment in telecare

e Target investment to make preventative and wellbeing services
sustainable and integrated e.g. expand the provision of Falls
prevention in the East and South locality for people who are
identified as high risk of falls by their GP, and the development of
approaches enable increased access to the National Exercise
Referral Scheme

These proposals should be viewed as initial considerations. They are
not an exhaustive or definitive list and are subject to dialogue with
partners and work to ensure that proposals can be delivered and are
financially sustainable.

Governance arrangements

Funding has been allocated across regional footprint areas to ensure
change is driven at a strategic level and to improve the consistency of
service provision and uniformity of outcomes. Flintshire’s bid will
need to be submitted as part of regional collaborative proposal.

The development of a regional proposal will be overseen by the newly
formed North Wales Integrated Services Programme Board. The
Board has representation from all 6 local authorities, Health and
Housing with arrangements to co-op independent and 3™ sectors
where appropriate. The Board forms part of the governance
arrangements that fed into the North Wales Regional Leadership
Board. The Board is chaired by Flintshire’s Director of Community
Services and the Fund will be brokered by Flintshire on behalf of the
Region. This forms part of reciprocal arrangements across North
Wales for leading on regional initiatives.

There is a North Wales Regional meeting with Welsh Government on
12 February 2014 to discuss and clarify application processes for the
regional bid and developing local proposals. Bids will then be
submitted for regional co-ordination and Health endorsement on the
24 February 2014. The final bid will need to be submitted on behalf of
the region on the 7 March 2104.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet are asked to note the availability of the Fund, initial
proposals, and asked to consider arrangements for securing political
endorsement of the final bid, through delegated powers.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Fund provides an opportunity to pump prime and extend the

Page 384



6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

range of services that help people to maintain their independence and
reduce/delay the need for long term statutory support. As the funding
is for one year only, any proposals for work extending beyond 31
March 2015 will need to clearly state how sustainability will be
achieved and where any future funding will come from within
significant budgetary constraints.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

NA

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

NA

EQUALITIES IMPACT

The Fund provides an opportunity to benefit older people. An equality
impact will be undertaken on our final bid to identify and where
necessary address any equality issues.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Funding may enable fixed term opportunities for staff.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

We are required to develop our bid in close partnership with Local
Health Boards, and with the Third and Independent Sectors. This will
take place at a local level and regionally through the North Wales
Integrated Services Programme Board.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Initial discussions have taken place with key partners at the North
Wales Integrated Services Programme Board.

APPENDICES

None

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None

Contact Officer: Neil Ayling

Telephone: 01352 702500

Email: neil.j.ayling@flintshire.qov.uk

Page 385



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 386



Agenda Item 18

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET
DATE: TUESDAY 18™ FEBRUARY, 2014

REPORT BY: HEAD OF LEGAL & DEMOCRATIC SERVICES
SUBJECT: PLAY PROVISION: SUMMER PLAYSCHEME 2014

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To present to Cabinet the recommendations of the Lifelong Learning
Overview & Scrutiny Committee in order to provide sustainable play
provision from April 2014 with reference to the summer play scheme
programme.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 A Playscheme Task & Finish Group was set up in January 2013 in order
to consider arrangements for Playschemes for 2013 and beyond.

2.02 At its meeting held on the 5 September, 2013, the Lifelong Learning
Overview & Scrutiny Committee considered a report titled ‘Play
Development: Summer Play Schemes’. Following consideration of this
report, the Committee recommended that the item be deferred to allow
the Playscheme Task & Finish Group to meet and consider feedback from
users of the 2013 Summer Playscheme and that the recommendations to
provide sustainable play provision from April 2014 with reference to the
summer play scheme programme be presented to a future meeting of the
Committee.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  The Playscheme Task & Finish Group met on the 18 November, 2013 to
consider the feedback from users of the 2013 Summer Playscheme.
During the meeting the Group all agreed that the Playschemes provided
invaluable facilities for children during the summer holidays and
emphasised the importance of the schemes for families who could not
afford to take their children on holidays. The group also emphasised the
importance of the scheme in developing children’s play, co-ordination and
social skills.

3.02 The recommendations of the Task & Finish Group were presented to the
Lifelong Learning Overview & Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on the 19
December, 2013 where they were supported to be recommended to the
Cabinet.

Page 387



4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

RECOMMENDATIONS

To consider the following recommendations of the Lifelong Learning
Overview & Scrutiny Committee:-

Subject to confirmation of Families First funding, the Head of
Leisure and Culture write to all Town and Community Councils
advising them that the number of Playschemes available to them
during the summer of 2014 and beyond be limited to a maximum of
two each and that summer Playscheme provision be reduced from
five weeks to three weeks at locations previously agreed through
local consultation.

Town and Community Councils who are keen to increase the
complement of Playscheme sites in their area above the 2 offered
are given the opportunity to increase the provision through match
funding.

A pressure bid of up to £12,000 be allocated to support match
funding for Town and Community Councils.

If confirmation was received that there would be a reduction in
Families First funding: the Playscheme Task & Finish Group should
meet again to consider how best to provide sustainable play
provision from April 2014 with reference to the summer play
scheme programme.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The recommendations include a pressure bid of £12,000 which is not
within budget. The recommendations were also subject to confirmation of
grant funding from Families First and continued match funding support
from Town and Community Councils. Families First funding has been
confirmed for 2014. Town and Community Councils are confirming their
commitment to the 2014 programme. The core 2014 programme (with no
growth in provision) can be delivered without the additional £12,000
pressure bid.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None as a result of this report.

Page 388



9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

9.01 None as a result of this report.

10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

10.01 Ongoing consultation with Town and Community Councils.

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.01 The Head of Culture and Leisure has been consulted.

12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 None.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Minutes of the Lifelong Learning Overview & Scrutiny Committee 19
December, 2013.

Contact Officer: Ceri Owen
Telephone: 01352 702305
Email: ceri.owen@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 389



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 390



Agenda Item 19

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET
DATE: TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014
REPORT BY: HEAD OF HUMAN RESOURCES AND

ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT

SUBJECT: WORKFORCE INFORMATION QUARTER 3
OCTOBER - DECEMBER 2013

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To provide Members with an update for the third quarter 2013/14. This
report provides details of the following:

Establishment

Headcount

Agency

Early Retirements (First and third quarter reports only)
Turnover

Diversity

Absence

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The format of the detailed Workforce Information report was approved by
Scrutiny on 9 March 2009 and agreed by Corporate Management Team on
26 March 2009.

2.02 This report now includes additional details on agency workers, including
number of placements, level of spend and the savings which have been
achieved through the Matrix contract and information on Early Retirements,
the latter being reported bi-annually (first and third quarter reports).

2.03 The format of this accompanying report has been adapted to provide
commentary on changes and trends that have occurred during the quarter
on an exceptional basis.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

Establishment

3.01 As a result of Service Reviews across the Council, the iTrent system is
reporting an increase in vacancies of 135 which does not reflect the current
position. The Council is undertaking a thorough review exercise to establish
the ‘true’ vacancies and funding arrangements (e.g. grant funded, base

Page 391



3.02

3.03

3.04

3.056

3.06

budget etc). The iTrent system will be updated accordingly to reflect the
actual position on vacancies when this exercise has been completed.

Headcount

The headcount report figures continue to reflect the removal of relief and
school supply workers. The headcount figure in quarter 3 is 7,176 compared
to the comparative figure of 8,485 last year.

Agency

The statistics below provide a breakdown of spend and net savings per
month during quarter 3.

Month Spend £ Net Savings £ Sav?:::s %
Oct £247,036.74 £21,402.70 8.66%
Nov £241,626.11 £21,001.60 8.69%
Dec £247,213.41 £21,067.15 8.52%

Snapshot figures taken from Matrix on 31% December indicate 150
placements were active. WWhen compared to the previous financial year, it is
evident that the reliance on temporary workers has reduced.

Year 2012 2013
Oct 200 185
Nov 175 158
Dec 184 150

The table below indicates the overall number of hours completed by workers
during quarter 3 of the current financial year and the previous two years.
These figures support the findings in 3.04 and indicate that the overall usage
of the temporary agency workforce has decreased year on year.

Q3 Total Hours Worked
2011/12 54,849
2012/13 38,890
2013/14 38,238

In line with the AWR (Agency Workers Regulations), temporary workers are
entitled to equal treatment after 12 weeks in the job; this relates to basic
employment/working conditions and has an impact in the overall cost. The
Council monitors the number of placements exceeding 12 weeks and where
appropriate have taken steps to reduce those that exceed this duration.
Figures taken from the Matrix placement report at the end of December 2013
indicate that there were 20 fewer placements with duration of over 12 weeks
when compared with figures for December 2012. Further work must be
carried out to identify and reduce the number of long term temporary

Page 392



3.07

3.08

3.09

3.10

3.11

3.12

workers.

The Agency net savings for quarter 3 is £47,887.63, compared to
£95,938.84 savings for the same quarter in the financial year 2012/13. This
is due to an overall reduction in the volume of agency workers used.

In October 2013, a new contract between Flintshire County Council and
neutral vendor, Matrix SCM, was agreed for a period of three years. This
was in agreement with collaborative partners, Denbighshire County Council
and Wrexham County Borough Council.

Early Retirements
There were 10 Early Retirements for the period July to December 2013. The
total cost of pension strain for this period is £127,126.71.

Turnover

The turnover report figure continues to reflect the removal of relief and
school supply workers. The turnover figure in quarter 3 is 14.10% compared
to the comparative figure of 15.03% for quarter 3 last year.

Diversity

Further to the statement made in quarter 2, the increase in the quality and
quantity of data continues to be identified in this quarter with the comparison
from quarter 3 last year.

Absence

The number of days lost due to absence in quarter 3 has decreased
significantly from the comparative quarter 3 last year. There is an improved
trend for absence levels when compared to last year for quarters 2 and 3
and the annual forecast figure for the whole year is currently 10.03 FTE
days.

Average FTE Days Lost

All Wales| 2011/ [All Wales | 2012/ | All Wales |2013/14|2013/14
Avg 12 Avg 13 Avg Actual | Target
Whole (Actual| Whole |Actual| Whole FCC FCC
Year FCC Year FCC Year
2010/11 2011/12 2013/14
Qtr 1 2.27 2.52 2.53 2.25
Qtr 2 217 2.13 2.07 1.95
Qtr 3 2.89 3.18 2.93 2.45
Qtr 4 3.21 3.26 2.95
Whole | 10.34 (10.54| 10.90 |11.10 7.53 9.60
Year

Page 393



3.13

3.14

An additional absence report is included that shows the breakdown of
absence reasons by long and short term periods. This report has been
extended to show the breakdown by Directorate.

This report aligns to the breakdown developed as part of our benchmarking
work across Wales. This means that each service area can now compare its
long and short term absence at each level of the organisation, throughout
Wales.

There is a continued programme of attendance management reporting and
action planning across each Directorate. Absences reporting, containing
trigger reports, produced on a monthly basis are issued to managers. With
the support of the HR team focus is made on frequent, short term absences,
long term absences and return to work interviews, with employees, to
understand any underlying issues affecting attendance at work.

100% Attendance — Flintshire
When looking at the quarter 3 data, 72% of all employees have had 100%

attendance. This represents an increase of 5% when compared to the same
quarter last year.

100 % Attendance

2010/11 | 2011/12 | 2012/13 |2013/14
Actual | Actual | Actual | Actual

Quarter 1 78 77 75 75
Quarter 2 78 84 80 81
Quarter 3 65 75 67 72
Quarter 4 69 67 70
Whole Year 40 42 41

Page 394



3.15

3.16

100% Attendance by Directorate

When looking at each Directorate, the rate for the same quarter last year has
increased in every Directorate area and in Schools.

2012/13 2013/14

Q1 Q2|Q3| Q4| Whole [ Q1| Q2 | Q3 | Q4 | Whole
Year Year

Community Services| 69 |71 |63 |65 30 76 | 75 | 68
Corporate Services 81 (837476 45 82|82|76

Environment 76 |74 |66 |68 37 76 | 76 | 69
Lifelong Learning 78 | 79|72 |71 44 77179175
Schools 76 [85|65|70| 44 73|85|72

Community Services

The workforce information for quarter 3 presents a mixed picture for
Community Services. The information represents positive news for
Children's Social Services and Development & Resources as their absence
rates have reduced and shows an increase in absence levels in both Adult
Social Services and Housing Services.

When compared to quarter 3 last year there has been an improvement in
attendance across all services which is a positive indication of a downward
trend across the Directorate. This means that if the Directorate absence
levels remain unchanged in quarter 4, the predicted absence rates for the full
year 2013/14 will be 14.07 day’s lost per full time equivalent (FTE) when
compared to actual 17.57 day’s lost last year.

The Directorate is hoping to improve on this figure as a number of long term
absences have been brought to an end during quarter 3 as a result of
managers and HR have progressing cases through the Capability procedure.
The impact of this will be reflected in quarter 4. Frequent absences continue
to be managed in line with Council’s policy.

The Cross Directorate Attendance Management working group continues to
meet each month to discuss strategies to improve attendance such as
providing attendance management updates in the Community Services
Bulletin and Health & Well-being promotions. Managers continue to take a
proactive approach by developing opportunities for employees to return to
work as quickly as possible which improves attendance and thereby reduces
the overall absence levels across the Directorate.

Page 395



3.17

2012/13 2013/14
Whole

Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Year Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3
Development and
Resources 2.84 2.35 11.24 1.21 2.59 2.38
Housing Services 4.02 3.06 13.25 2.47 2.07 3.55
Social Services for
Adults 5.56 6.35 20.92 4.01 3.18 4.10
Social Services for
Children 3.98 5.11 14.91 2.97 3.78 2.93
Senior Management
and Support 0.41 0.00 1.02 0.26 0.00 0.23
Community Services 4.78 5.16 17.57 3.33 2.87 3.70

Corporate Services

The targeted approach to supporting services with individual and group
briefings has resulted in an increase in the number of Attendance
Management Reviews and capability meetings held and in referrals to
Occupational Health. This can be linked and has directly led to the return to
work of a number of employees across the services from long term sickness.
Positive quarterly impact is evident in HR & OD, Chief Executives and
Finance service areas, but small increases in other areas have resulted in a
slight increase in day’s lost and the absence rate for Corporate Services as a
whole - but it remains at a tolerable level. Continued review of 'trigger'
activity and ensuring timely action takes place will retain the focus to further
reduce absence levels.

2012/13 2013/14
Whole

Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Year Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3
Chief Executive's Dept 2.44 2.71 11.25 3.87 4.50 3.86
Clwyd Theatr Cymru 0.80 0.95 2.51 0.53 0.22 2.18
Finance 1.62 6.01 10.75 1.56 1.35 1.46
HR & OD 2.26 2.71 7.29 6.30 2.78 1.99
ICT & Customer
Services 1.17 1.06 3.97 0.98 0.50 1.91
Legal and Democratic
Services 2.45 1.04 10.80 2.01 1.09 0.78
Corporate Services 1.65 1.75 6.44 1.61 1.43 1.80

Page 396



3.18

3.19

Environment

Managing attendance at work remains a priority for the Directorate; when
compared to quarter 3 last year, there has been an improvement across the
services. However, absence levels have increased in three out of the six
service areas in quarter 3 this year compared to quarter 3 last year, due
largely to the long term sickness absence of a small number of employees.
Short-term, recurring absences continue to be a priority with interventions
including dismissal taking place across the respective service areas. Long-
term absences have increased in some of the service areas and SMT’s are
working with HR and OH colleagues to establish the long-term prognosis of
those cases in order to expedite ill-health dismissals, where appropriate.

2012/13 2013/14
Whole

Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Year Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3
Assets and Trans 2.50 2.23 8.35 2.28 1.93 2.96
Mgt, Supp and Perf 1.26 4.37 8.92 0.74 1.40 0.94
Planning Services 2.97 4.02 10.27 4.23 2.36 1.46
Public Protection 1.83 1.30 6.83 1.79 1.27 2.20
Regeneration Division 2.38 4.90 13.44 3.46 0.78 0.80
Streetscene Services 4.39 4.34 15.61 3.68 4.31 4.73
Senior Management and
Support 0.00 0.00 2.67 0.00 0.00 0.00
Environment 3.40 3.55 12.34 3.14 3.09 3.56

Lifelong Learning

Lifelong Learning Services continue to use Council Policies and Procedures
to support attendance management. In particular Leisure Services are now
seeing the benefits of a proactive approach through consistent review of the
small number of individual cases where there are regular patterns or long
term absence. As a result, Leisure lost days for quarter 3 are now at 2.16
days per full time equivalent (FTE) which is within the quarter 3 target of 2.45
per FTE. The Service Managers have regular planned meetings with
Occupational Health to discuss how managers can maximise the impact of
the support and advice they receive. Development & Resources have seen a
decrease in days lost for quarter 3 (2.87 days per FTE) compared to quarter
2 (3.58 days per FTE) which is encouraging. However Libraries, Culture &
Heritage & Schools Services, who had been within the quarterly target for
quarter 2 have now experienced an increase at quarter 3, albeit an increase
in absence is not an unusual trend at this time of year.

Page 397



4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

2012/13 2013/14
Whole

Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Year Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3
Culture and Leisure 2.39 2.34 8.30 1.92 2.19 2.16
Resources and Dev 3.34 3.90 13.77 3.27 3.48 2.87
Lib, Culture and
Heritage 3.40 2.98 10.99 0.69 1.39 2.44
School Services 3.54 3.44 10.86 2.40 1.51 3.19
Senior Management
and Support 0.00 0.00 714 0.00 0.57 0.00
Lifelong Learning 3.11 3.13 11.12 2.22 2.22 2.65

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members note Workforce Information Report for quarter three for 2013/14.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Increased accuracy of reporting of the employed workforce and agency
workers will allow the Council to better understand and therefore both plan
and manage the largest single cost of service delivery.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

This increased reporting and monitoring within this area will result in more
informed analysis of the impact our policies and procedures have across
these groups.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Already undertaken with Corporate Management Team and Equalities Unit.

Page 398



12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 Available in Members’ Services.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Helen Stappleton, Head of HR & OD
Telephone: 01352 702720
Email: helen.stappleton@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 399



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 400



Agenda Item 20

FOR INFORMATION

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2014
REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE

SUBJECT: EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS
1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01

2.00

2.01

3.00

3.01

4.00

4.01

6.00

6.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

To inform Members of action taken under delegated powers.

BACKGROUND

At the Executive Meeting held on 31% October, 2000 it was agreed that one of
the standard agenda items at each Executive should be a report on the
“Exercise of Delegated Powers”.

RECOMMENDATION

Members note the details of actions taken under the “Exercise of Delegated
Powers”.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 5.00 ANTI-POVERTY IMPACT

As detailed in each report. 5.01 As detailed in each report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 7.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT

As detailed in each report. 7.01 As detailed in each report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

As detailed in each report

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Not applicable

10.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

10.01 Not applicable

Page 401



11.00 APPENDICES

11.01 Summary of Decisions taken under Delegated Powers.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

Background documents:  See individual report.
Contact Officer: Detailed on the individual reports.

Page 402



APPENDIX 1

EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS — DECISIONS TAKEN

Directorate Subject
Lifelong Learning Greenfield Valley Heritage Park - Charges

for 2014 season

Copies of the Delegated Powers reports are on deposit in the Team Manager's
room, Committee Services

Page 403



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 404



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS

COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

JANUARY 2014 TO JUNE 2014

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
January

Housing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

407 90€d

8 January 2014

Housing

Housing Asset Management
Strategy

To consider stock investment
and proposals to provide high
quality sustainable housing
stock to meeting the Welsh
Housing Quality Standard
(WHQS).

Housing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

8 January 2014

Housing

Tenant Satisfaction Survey
Results and Action Plan

To consider the tenant
satisfaction survey results and
benchmark them with the last
independent survey and agree
an action plan to address any
issues identified.

Xauuy epuaby



COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Housing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

8 January 2014

Housing

Anti-Social Behaviour and
Neighbourhood Management
To consider progress in
delivering the revised Anti-
Social Behaviour Strategy.

Housing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

b
®)

8 January 2014

Overview and Scrutiny

Forward Work Programme
To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Housing
Overview & Scrutiny

Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

(D Committee.
N
OZocial & Health | 9 January 2014 Community Services Home Enhanced Care

Scheme
To receive an update regarding
the implementation of HECS in
Flintshire

Social & Health
Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

9 January 2014

Community Services

Integrated Family Support
Service

To receive a progress report
post implemnation of the
IntegratedFamily Support
Service across Flintshire and
Wrexham.




prescribed requirements and
local discretions for 2014/15

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Social & Health | 9 January 2014 Community Services Collaborative Projects
Care Overview & update
Scrutiny Committee To receive a progress report on
projects and services running
collaboratively across North
Wales
Social & Health | 9 January 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Social & Health Care Forward
Care Overview & Work Programme
_gcrutiny Committee To consider the Forward Work
) Programme of the Social and
t% Health Care Overview &
~ Scrutiny Committee
=
Corporate 16 January 2014 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring
Resources Overview 2013/14 (Month 7)
& Scrutiny To provide Members with the
Committee Revenue Budget Monitoring
2013/14 (Month 7) report.
Corporate 16 January 2014 Finance Council Tax Reduction
Resources Overview Scheme
& Scrutiny Approval of a Council Tax
Committee Reduction Scheme within




fd

policies for the administration
of Council Tax and Business
Rates for the financial year
2014-15

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 16 January 2014 Chief Executive's Improvement Assessment
Resources Overview Letter from the Auditor
& Scrutiny General for Wales
Committee To receive the Improvement
Assessment Letter from the
Auditor General for Wales and
note the Council’'s Response
T@orporate 16 January 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Feedback from consideration
g?esources Overview of Improvement and
DX Scrutiny Performance Plans
J:OCommittee Consultation
00
Corporate 16 January 2014 Finance Council Tax and Business
Resources Overview Rate Policies 2014-15
& Scrutiny For Overview and Scrutiny
Committee members to review various




fod

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 16 January 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Corporate Resources
Resources Overview Forward Work Programme
& Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
Committee Programme of the Corporate
Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
Community Profile & | 20 January 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Presentation by the Red
Partnerships Cross
;?)verview & Scrutiny To receive a presentation by
%Committee the Red Cross
%ommunity Profile & | 20 January 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Community Profile &
Partnerships Partnerships Forward Work
Overview & Scrutiny Programme
Committee To consider the Forward Work

Programme of the Community
Profile and Partnerships
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee




Scrutiny for feedback to
Cabinet in February.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 21 January 2014 Finance Council Fund Revenue Strategic Leader of the
Budget 2014/15 Council and
To present the draft revenue Cabinet Member
budget proposals for the for Finance
Council Fund.
To advise of the ongoing work
to close the current remaining
:1-? budget gap in 2014/15.
o)
D To propose that the draft
= revenue budget proposals be
— :
=) referred to Overview and




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Cabinet

L1 90€d

21 January 2014

Finance

Housing Revenue Account
2014/15 & Capital
Programme 2014/15

To consider the Housing
Revenue Accounts (HRA)
budget as set out in 1.02 and
1.03.

Revenue budget proposals for
the 2014/15 financial year,
including proposed rent and
service charge changes, key
areas of income and
expenditure, and the level of
closing balance at the year
end.

Budget proposals for the HRA
Capital programme 2014/15,
which is year three of a six year
improvement programme.

To note the impact of the
proposed revenue budget and
capital programme on the HRA
30 year Business Plan.

To propose that the HRA
revenue and capital proposals
be referred to Housing
Overview and Scrutiny
Committee on 21%! January for
feadback to Cabinet in

Strategic

Leader of the
Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance




letter from Wales Audit
Office

To advise Members of the
Council’s recent Improvement
Assessment Letter from the
Auditor General for Wales for
noting and to agree an
Executive response.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 21 January 2014 Chief Executive's Improvement Assessment Strategic Cabinet Member

for Corporate
Management

21 abed




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Cabinet

¢l 90€d

21 January 2014

Finance

Council Fund Capital
Programme 2014/15 and
Indicative to 2017/18

The purpose of the report is to

(a) Propose the allocation of
funding to the core
capital programme in
2014/15 (with indicative
funding estimates for
future years), including
the allocation of minor
amounts to two
schemes to meet
contractual and
essential health and
safety works.

(b) Provide information on
the estimated total
capital programme,
based on current
available information,

including schemes
financed from other
sources such as
Government grants,
Prudential and other
borrowing.

(c) Propose that the capital
proposals be referred to
Overview and Scrutiny
for feedback to Cabinet

Strategic

Leader of the
Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Cabinet

V1iv 9bEd

21 January 2014

Community Services

Double Click & the case to
progress to a social
enterprise

This report has been
developed to seek Cabinet
approval to progress Double
Click to a Social Enterprise in
2014.

The report aims to provide
information which indicates the
benefits of this proposal for
Service Users supported at
Double Click, and the benefits
to the council in terms of short
and long term efficiencies.

Strategic

Cabinet Member
for Social
Services

Cabinet

21 January 2014

Finance

Revenue Budget Monitoring
2013/14 (Month 7)

To provide Members with the
most up to date revenue
budget monitoring information
(Month 7) for the Council Fund
and the Housing Revenue
Account in 2013/14.

Operational

Leader of the
Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Cabinet

417 90€d

21 January 2014

Finance

Council Tax and Business
Rate Policies 2014-15
Members are asked to approve
various policies for the
administration of Council Tax
and Business Rates for the
financial year 2014-15.

The policies required by statute
to be approved each year are:-

e Council Tax Discounts
on second and long term
empty homes (section 2)

e Councll Tax
Discretionary discounts
(section 3)

e Business Rates
Discretionary Rate
Relief (section 4)

e Business Rates
Discretionary Rate
Relief for Small
Businesses (section 5)

Some policies are detailed for
information purposes only,
these are:-

e Payment dates for
Precepting/Levying
Bodies (section 6)

™ . 1 1 4 . N

Operational

Cabinet Member
for Corporate
Management




progress made with the
implementation of the
Customer Services Strategy.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 21 January 2014 Finance Council Tax Reduction Operational Cabinet Member
Scheme for Corporate
The report is to explain the Management
requirement for the Council to
adopt the Council Tax
Reduction Scheme for 2014/15
by 31%! January 2014.
:1-? To recommend to Council to
o) adopt the Council Tax
D Reduction Scheme for 2014/15
= subject to any input from
— .
)} Corporate Resources Overview
and Scrutiny Committee.
Cabinet 21 January 2014 Finance Treasury Management Mid Operational Leader of the
Year Report 2013/14 Council and
To present to Members the Cabinet Member
draft Treasury Management for Finance
Mid Year Report for 2013/14
for recommendation to Council.
Cabinet 21 January 2014 ICT and Customer Customer Services Strategy | Strategic Cabinet Member
Services Update for Corporate
To update Members on the Management




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 21 January 2014 Legal and Democratic | Eleventh Annual Report of Operational Leader of the
Services the Flintshire Local Access Council and
Forum Cabinet Member
For Cabinet, on behalf of the for Finance
County Council, to note and
approve the eleventh annual
report of the Flintshire Local
Access Forum, prepared in
accordance with Regulation 16
o of the Countryside Access
Q) (Local Access Forums) (Wales)
% Regulations 2001
ﬁ)abinet 21 January 2014 Environment Rural Development Plan Strategic Cabinet Member
~ for Economic

Local Action Groups 2014-
2020

To seek support in principle for
Cadwyn Clwyd to act as the
Local Action Group for
Flintshire for the next Rural
Development Plan (RDP)
Programme.

Development




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Cabinet

gl 9bkEd

21 January 2014

Environment

Local Development Plan
Delivery Agreement:
Finalising the Delivery
Agreement following
Consultation

To seek the agreement of
Cabinet for revisions to the
draft Local Development Plan
(LDP) Delivery Agreement
following consultation
feedback, in order to submit the
Delivery Agreement to the
Welsh Government for their
formal approval. Once the
Welsh Government has
approved the Delivery
Agreement, it can be formally
published and substantive work
on the preparation of the LDP
can begin.

Strategic

Deputy Leader of
the Council and
Cabinet Member
for Environment




61 obe

implement the Single Access
Route to Housing Project
locally, to the development of a
Housing solutions service; and
to continue to engage with the
project across the North East
Wales sub region.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 21 January 2014 Environment Charging for Re-rating Operational Cabinet Member
Inspections Carried Out for Waste
Under the Food Hygiene Strategy, Public
Rating (Wales) Act 2013 Protection and
To provide details of the new Leisure
legislation and to seek approval
for the delegation of powers
and the setting of fees.
_&abinet 21 January 2014 Community Services SARTH Strategic Cabinet Member
This report seeks approval to for Housing

Housing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

21 January 2014

Overview and Scrutiny

Budget Consultation for
2014/15

To set out the consultation
arrangements with Overview &
Scrutiny for 2014/15.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

22 January 2014

Environment

The Council's Household
Waste Collection Policy

To seek Scrutiny comments on
the revised waste collection

policy

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
T ommittee

Q)

®)

22 January 2014

Environment

Town Centres, High Streets
and Retail Areas

pENnvironment

NDverview & Scrutiny
:E)ommittee

22 January 2014

Overview and Scrutiny

Environment Forward Work
Programme

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

Joint Housing and
Social and Health
Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

28 January 2014

Overview and Scrutiny

Joint Housing and Social &
Health Care Budget
Consultation for 2014/15

To set out the consultation
arrangements with Overview &
Scrutiny for 2014/15




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny

28 January 2014

Overview and Scrutiny

Environment Budget
Consultation for 2014/15

Committee To set out the consultation
arrangements with Overview &
Scrutiny for 2014/15
Corporate 28 January 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Corporate Resources Budget
Resources Overview Consultation for 2014/15
& Scrutiny To set out the consultation
_&ommittee arrangements with Overview &
) Scrutiny for 2014/15.
D lintshire County | 28 January 2014 Finance Treasury Management Mid
@ouncil Year Report 2013/14
= To present the 2013/14 mid
year report on the Council's
Treasury Management
Strategy.
Flintshire County | 28 January 2014 Finance Council Tax Reduction
Council Scheme

To approve a Council Tax
Reduction scheme within
prescribed requirements and
local discretions for 2014/15.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Audit Committee

d

29 January 2014

Finance

Treasury Management
Strategy 2014/15 and
Treasury Management
Update 2013/14

To present the 2014/15
Treasury Management
Strategy and provide an update
on the 2013/14 Treasury
Management activity.

(@)
DAudit Committee

(A4 %

29 January 2014

Chief Executive's

Improvement Assessment
Letter from the Auditor
General for Wales

To receive the Improvement
Assessment Letter from the
Auditor General for Wales and
note the Council’s Response

Audit Committee

29 January 2014

Finance

Council Banking
Arrangements

To provide an update on the
arrangements for the letting of
the Council's banking contract.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Audit Committee

29 January 2014

Finance

Action Tracking

To inform the Committee of the
actions resulting from points
raised at previous Audit
Committee meetings.

Audit Committee

29 January 2014

Finance

Audit Charter Update

To report back to the Audit
Committee following the
meeting of the Constitution
Committee on 16th October
2013.

udit Committee

c4y phed

29 January 2014

Chief Executive's

Protocol on Collaboration
To note the updated protocol
on collaboration.

Audit Committee

29 January 2014

Legal and Democratic
Services

Annual Report on External
Inspections

Operational




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Audit Committee

29 January 2014

Chief Executive's

Risk Management update

To provide members with an
update on the improved risk
management approach as part
of streamlining and integrating
the business planning
arrangements.

To provide an overview of the
key risks of the Improvement
priorities of the Council.

Strategic

0
o)
o)
(D
N
A

udit Committee

29 January 2014

Finance

Forward Work Programme
To consider the Forward Work
Programme for the Audit
Committee.

Lifelong Learning
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

30 January 2014

Overview and Scrutiny

Lifelong Learning Budget
Consultation for 2014/15

To set out the consultation
arrangements with Overview &
Scrutiny for 2014/15




Scrutiny for 2014/15.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Lifelong Learning | 30 January 2014 Lifelong Learning School Funding Formula
Overview & Scrutiny Review
Committee To provide an update on the
recommendations arising from
the Formula Review and
Consultation Process.
Lifelong Learning | 30 January 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Lifelong Learning Forward
Overview & Scrutiny Work Programme
_&ommittee To consider the Forward Work
) Programme of the Lifelong
% Learning Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.
N
N
NI |
February
Corporate 3 February 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Corporate Resources Budget
Resources Overview Consultation for 2014/15
& Scrutiny To set out the consultation
Committee arrangements with Overview &

Housing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

5 February 2014

Housing

Update on the delivery of the
Choices Document

To receive an update report on
the delivery of the Choices
Document.




Social and Health
Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

To update Members on the
Supporting People Programme
in Flintshire.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Housing Overview & | 5 February 2014 Housing Collaborative Working in
Scrutiny Committee Housing
To receive and consider
current and future collaborative
initiatives
Housing Overview & | 5 February 2014 Housing Sheltered Housing
Scrutiny Committee Improvement Project
LS} To consider progress following
2 the review of sheltered
(D accommodation.
=
:7Housing Overview & | 5 February 2014 Housing Forward Work Programme
Scrutiny Committee To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Housing
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.
Joint Housing and | 6 February 2014 Housing Supporting People




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE

REPORT TYPE

PORTFOLIO

2013/14 (Month 8) report.

OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Joint Housing and | 6 February 2014 Housing Extra Care Provision in
Social and Health Flintshire
Care Overview & To update Members on the
Scrutiny Committee development of further Extra
Care schemes in Flintshire.
Joint Housing and | 6 February 2014 Housing Telecare
Social and Health To update Members on the
Care Overview & regional plan for Telecare /
Ecrutiny Committee Telehealth.
0
(D
§oint Housing and | 6 February 2014 Housing Delivering Home Adaptations
ocial and Health To inform Members of current
Care Overview & performance in relation the
Scrutiny Committee administration of Disabled
Facilities Grants
Corporate 13 February 2014 Finance Revenue Budget Monitoring
Resources Overview 2013/14 (Month 8)
& Scrutiny To provide Members with the
Committee Revenue Budget Monitoring




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE DIRECTORATE AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 13 February 2014 Environment Assets as an Organisational
Resources Overview Change strategy workstream
& Scrutiny (6 monthly update, as per the
Committee resolution of the committee
on 17/1/13)
To provide a update
Corporate 13 February 2014 Finance Council Tax Reduction
TResources Overview Scheme Consultation

Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

% Scrutiny To seek the views of Scrutiny
mCommittee on the proposed response to
~ the Council Tax Reduction
DNO Scheme consultation.

Corporate 13 February 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Corporate Resources

Resources Overview Forward Work Programme

& Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work

Committee Programme of the Corporate
Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

Social & Health | 13 February 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Social & Health Care Forward

Work Programme

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Social and
Health Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE

REPORT TYPE

PORTFOLIO

YA LY

2016

To provide (i) an update of the
new arrangements for the
Successor Outcome
Agreement

from 2013-2016; and (ii) to
endorse the outline of a new
Successor Outcome
Agreement for

2013-2016 based on draft
Welsh Government guidance.

OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Community Profile & | 17 February 2014 Overview and Scrutiny | Community Profile &
Partnerships Partnerships Forward Work
Overview & Scrutiny Programme
Committee To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Community
Profile and Partnerships
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee
Eabinet 18 February 2014 Chief Executive's Outcome Agreement 2013- Strategic Cabinet Member

for Corporate
Management




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

DIRECTORATE

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only

Cabinet

OtV 9bEd

18 February 2014

Lifelong Learning

National Model for Regional
Working on School
Improvement

The Hill Review set out a
number of options for
improving the delivery and
structure of education services
in Wales. One of the key
options was that there needed
to be greater consistency in the
delivery of school improvement
services via the regional
education consortia. This view
was endorsed by local
government through the WLGA
response to the Hill Review in
September 2013.

Strategic

Cabinet Member
for Education

Cabinet

18 February 2014

Lifelong Learning

School Funding Formula
Review

School Funding Formula
Review

Strategic

Cabinet Member
for Education

Cabinet

18 February 2014

Finance

Council Fund Revenue
Budget 2014/15

To present the revenue budget
proposals for the Council Fund.

Strategic

Leader of the
Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance




S